

University of Nebraska at Omaha DigitalCommons@UNO

Graduate Catalogs

UNO Academic Catalogs

1979

Graduate Academic Catalog (1979-1980)

University of Nebraska at Omaha

Follow this and additional works at: http://digitalcommons.unomaha.edu/gradcatalogs
Part of the <u>Higher Education Administration Commons</u>

Recommended Citation

University of Nebraska at Omaha, "Graduate Academic Catalog (1979-1980)" (1979). *Graduate Catalogs*. 4. http://digitalcommons.unomaha.edu/gradcatalogs/4

This Report is brought to you for free and open access by the UNO Academic Catalogs at DigitalCommons@UNO. It has been accepted for inclusion in Graduate Catalogs by an authorized administrator of DigitalCommons@UNO. For more information, please contact unodigitalcommons@unomaha.edu.





THE UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA

GRADUATE CATALOG 1979-1980

> \$1.00 The Official Catalog of The University of Nebraska at Omaha Volume XXXVI, Number 2

UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA

THE BOARD OF REGENTS

Edward Schwartzkopf Lincoln Richard Kennedy, UNMC Student Rep. Kermit Hansen, Omaha John Kirk UNO Student Rep.

Robert Koefoot, M.D., Grand Island (Chairman) Ken Marienau, UNL Student Rep. James H. Moylan, Omaha Robert Prokop, M.D., Wilber

Ronald W. Roskens, Ph.D. President The University of Nebraska

Robert L. Raun, Minden Robert G. Simmons, Jr., Scottsbluff Kermit Wagner, Schuyler William Swanson, Corporation Secretary

ADMINISTRATION

Del D. Weber, Ed.D. Chancellor

Otto F. Bauer, Ph.D. Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs

Ronald S. Beer, Ph.D. Vice Chancellor for Educational and Student Services

James Maynard, Ph.D. Director, Institutional Research

Charles R. Hein, A.B. Director, University Relations & Executive Assistant to the Chancellor Gary L. Carrico, M.B.A. Vice Chancellor for Business and Finance

Don Leahy, M.S. Director, Intercollegiate Athletics

> Rex Engebretson, Ed.D. Assistant to the Chancellor for Planning

COLLEGES

John M. Newton, Ph.D. The College of Arts and Sciences

Harold L. Davis, Ed.D. Acting Director The College of Engineering and Technology

David E. Kapel, Ed.D. Acting Dean The College of Education

Larry R. Trussell Associate Dean The College of Business Administration

Alan S. Hackel, Ph.D. The College of Continuing Studies

John E. Kerrigan, Ph.D. Dean The College of Public Affairs and Community Service

Mary R. Hall, Ph.D. Associate Dean The College of Home Economics

> Robert G. Ruetz, D.M. Acting Dean The College of Fine Arts

Robert H. Woody, Ph.D., Sc.D. Graduate Studies and Research

> Robert S. Runyon, M.L.S. Director, Library

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Administration	•••••	
Calendar		4
Departments Offering Graduate Instruction		
General Information		
Graduate Studies at UNO		5
Accredited Standing		9
Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action Policy Statement		9
Privacy Act	1	(
Degree Programs	1	ſ
University Regulations	- 1	C
Admission and Transcripts	1	1
Matriculation Fee	1	I
Examinations for Graduate Students.	1	1
Classification of Admission	1	2
Temporary Admission	1	3
Registration Procedure	1	3
Certification or Professional Growth	1	3
Admission to Candidacy for Graduate Degree	1	4
Application for the Degree	14	4
Final Comprehensive Examination Thesis	14	4
One little of Wash	14	1
Quality of Work	I :	5
Incompletes Policy	1:	5
Policy on Class Attendance	16	٥
Appeals Procedure Ombudsman Office	I)
Study Load	l	4
Dropping and Auditing Courses	l	1
Courses for Graduate Credit	17	
Residence Requirements	18	,
Transfer of Credit	10)
Withdrawal from the University	18	,
Time Limit for Graduate Degrees.	18	,
Inition rees Denosits and Retunds	10	ì
Student Development Services Financial Aid for Graduate Students	17	11000
Financial Aid for Graduate Students	24	i
Organizations	25	į
Administration for Graduate Studies	25	
Faculty Senate Research	26	ġ.
Extramural Grants	26	9
Graduate Program Committees	26	ř
Center for Urban Education	27	ŝ
Policy on Plagiarism	27	
Policy on Ethical Conduct	27	
Required Procedure for Graduate Students	27	
Degree and Certificate Requirements		
Biology	31	
Business Administration	31	
Civil Engineering	33	
Communication	34	
Counseling and Guidance	34	
Criminal Justice	36	
Dramatic Arts	38	
Economics	38	
Educational Administration and Supervision	38	
Educational Foundations	39	
Elementary and Early Childhood Education	41	
English	42	
General Science	42	
Geography and Geology	43	
Gerontology Health, Physical Education and Recreation	43	
History	44	
History	45	
Home Economics	46	
Mathematics	47	

UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA

Political Science	4
Psychology	4
Public Administration)
Secondary/Post-Secondary Education	
Social Work	
Sociology	ځک
Special Education	C
Urban Studies	
Non Degree Areas	0
Art	0
Chemistry	0
Curriculum and Instruction	0
Foreign Languages	0
Gerontology Music	
Music	
PhysicsSchool of Engineering Technology	٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠٠
Course Descriptions	
Art	6
Biology	
Black Studies	
Business Administration	6
Chemistry	7
Civil Engineering	7
Communication	
Counseling and Guidance	7
Criminal Justice	7(
Curriculum and Instruction	7
Dramatic Arts	7
Economics	78
Educational Administration and Supervision	80
Educational Foundations	8
Elementary and Early Childhood Education	87
English	83
Foreign Languages	84
General Engineering	86
Geography and Geology	
Gerontology	88
Gerontology Health, Physical Education and Recreation	89
History	91
Home Economics	93
Mathematics and Computer Science	94
Music	97
Philosophy and Religion	97
Physics	97
Political Science	98
Psychology	100
Public Administration	103
Secondary/Post-Secondary Education	104
Social Work	106
Sociology	108
Special Education	110
Technical Institute	115
Urban Studies	115
JNO Graduate Faculty	117
ndex	127

The University of Nebraska at Omaha Graduate Catalog is published by the Department of University Relations. Robert E. Bernier, assistant director; Lynn Kahn, publications editor; Cindy Wofford and Carol Tate, editorial assistants.

Cover photo by Tim Fitzgerald.

ACADEMIC CALENDAR

ACADEMIC CALENDAR					
First Semester 1979-80					
July 13	Last day for submitting credentials for admission to Graduate Studies for First Semester 79-80.				
July 16-Aug. 31 July 31	Orientation. Last day for submitting credentials for admission to an undergraduate college for the First Semester 79-80.				
Aug. 22,23,24	Registration (Fieldhouse)				
Aug. 27 Aug. 27-31	First semester begins at 7:00 a.m. both day and evening classes. Change of class schedules.				
Aug. 31	Last day until 4:00 p.m. to: Add a course to student's schedule; Add an "audit" course: Change to "CR/NC" grade in a course.				
Sept. 3 Sept. 4	Vacation; no classes. University closed.				
Oct. 8	Vacation; no classes. Last day for filing applications for degrees to be conferred in December.				
Oct. 19	Due: Mid-term (8th week) report from faculty of grades under C for all under- graduates.				
Nov. 9	Last day until 4:00 p.m. to: Drop a course with a grade of "W"; Change a course to "audit" credit; Change from "CR/NC" to grade registration in a course.				
Nov. 21-25	Thanksgiving vacation; no classes.				
Nov. 22, 23 Nov. 26	University closed.				
NOV. 20	Classes resume at 7:00 a.m. Status report for all prospective graduating students due in Registrar's Office by 12:00 noon.				
Dec. 14	Last day for submitting credentials for admission to Graduate Studies for Second Semester 79-80.				
Dec. 15-21	Last day of classes. Finals.				
Dec. 22	Commencement.				
Dec. 25, 26	Christmas Holiday; University closed.				
Dec. 27	Grades due in Registrar's Office at 12:00 noon.				
	Inter-session				
Dec. 27-Jan. 11	Special course offerings.				
	Second Semester 1979-80				
Jan. 1	Holiday. University closed.				
Jan. 2	Last day for submitting credentials for admission in undergraduate college for the Second Semester 1979-80.				
Jan. 2-9 Jan. 9-11	Orientation. Registration (Fieldhouse)				
Jan. 14	Second Semester begins at 7:00 a.m. both day and evening classes.				
Jan. 14-18	Change of class schedules.				
Jan. 18 March 7	Last day until 4:00 p.m. to: Add course to student's schedule; Add an "audit" course; Change to "CR/NC" grade in a course. Due: Mid term (8th week) report from faculty of grades under C for all under-				
	graduates. Also last day for filing applications for degrees to be conferred in May.				
March 28	Last day until 4:00 p.m. to: Drop a course with a grade of "W"; Change a course to "audit" credit; Change from "CR/NC" to grade registration in a course.				
March 31-Apr. 5	Spring vacation; no classes.				
April 7	Classes resume 7:00 a.m.				
April 14 April 15	Last day for submitting credentials for admission to Graduate Studies for the Evening Summer Session 79-80. Honors Day.				
April 24	Status report for all prospective graduating students due in Registrar's Office at 12:00 noon.				
May 2	Last day of classes.				
May 3-9 May 10	Finals. Commencement.				
May 12	Last day for filing credentials for admission to Graduate Studies for the First Summer Session, 1980.				
May 14 May 30	Grades due in Registrar's Office by 12:00 noon. Memorial Day; University closed.				

Summer Session 1980

May 19-July 11	Evening Session.
May 29	Last day for submitting credentials for admission to an undergraduate college.
June 4, 5	Registration.
June 9-11	Change of class schedules.
June 9-July 11	First Summer Session.
June 12	Last day for submitting credentials for admission to Graduate Studies for the Second Summer Session 1980.
July 4	Holiday; University closed.
July 7	Last day for filing applications for degrees to be conferred August 16, 1980.
July 12	Last day for submitting credentials for admission to Graduate Studies for the Fall Semester 80-81.
July 14-Aug. 15	Second Summer Session
July 31	Last day for submitting credentials for admission to an undergraduate college for the Fall Semester 80-81.
Aug. 1	Status report for all prospective graduating students due in Registrar's Office by 12:00 noon.
Aug. 16	Summer Commencement.
Aug. 20	Final grades due in Registrar's Office by 12:00 noon.

^{*}The above dates are subject to change.

DEPARTMENTS OFFERING GRADUATE INSTRUCTION

Departments or areas which have been approved to offer courses for graduate credit and the degrees available in each department are as follows:

grees available in each department are as follows:		1000A		
ar ar	Minor	Master of	Master of	
DEPARTMENT OR AREA	Only	Arts	Science	Other
Art	х			
Biology		X	X	
Business Administration				MBA
Chemistry	X			
Civil Engineering			х	
Communication		x		
Counseling and Guidance		10.00		
Agency Counseling		x	X	
College Student Personnel Services		X	X	
Elementary Counseling		X	X	
Gerontology		X	X	
Secondary Counseling		x	x	
Criminal Justice				
Dramatic Arts		X	X	
Economics		X		
		X	X	ELC
Educational Administration and Supervision				Ed.S.
Elementary Administration			X	
Secondary Administration			X	
Educational Foundations				
Urban Education			X	
Elementary and Early Childhood Education		X	X	N201 (24) 100
English		X		Certificate**
Foreign Languages				
French	Х			
German	X			
Spanish	X			
General Science			X	
Geography		X	X	
Gerontology	X			Certificate
Health, Physical Education and Recreation		X	X	
History		X		
Home Economics		X	X	
Mathematics		x	X	MAT
Music	x			
Physics	X			
Political Science		х	X	
Psychology		X	-	Ph.D.*
Educational Psychology		**	X	
Industrial Organizational Psychology			x	
School Psychology Public Administration			Δ.	6th Yr. Certificate and Ed.S. MPA
Secondary/Post-Secondary Education		x	x	MITA
Social Work		Α.	A	MSW
				IVIS VV
Sociology		Х		
Applied Sociology			х	
Special Education				
Reading			X	
Special Learning Disabilities			X	
Speech Pathology		X	X	
Teaching the Deaf			х	
Teaching the Emotionally Disturbed			Х	
Teaching the Mentally Retarded		X	х	
Urban Studies			X	

^{**}English as a second language.
*Ph.D. in the specialties of industrial psychology and developmental psychobiology offered in conjunction with the Psychology Department, UN-L. Ph.D. in the specialty of experimental child psychology is offered in conjunction with the Educational Psychology and Measurements Department, UN-L.

General Information

GRADUATE STUDIES AT UNO

The first Master's degrees were awarded in 1919 by a special vote of the Board of Trustees of the "old" University of Omaha. In 1932, after the University became the Municipal University of Omaha, a Graduate Committee was organized to supervise graduate education. In 1942, the Graduate Committee was replaced by the Committee on Graduate Studies. The degree Master of Science in Education was approved in 1948. In 1954, the Committee on Graduate Studies became the Graduate Council and the Chairman became the Director of the Graduate Division. In 1960, the Board of Regents authorized a year of graduate study in education beyond the Master's degree. The Master of Business Administration was authorized in 1965 and the Master of Public Administration was authorized in 1970.

Recognizing the growing importance of graduate education, the term "Graduate Division" was authorized in 1949. In October, 1962, the Board of Regents established the College of Graduate Studies as the sixth college of the University of Omaha. In 1966, the name was changed to The Graduate College. In 1973 the Graduate Colleges on the separate campuses were merged into one Graduate College of the University of Nebraska with one Graduate Faculty. The College is administered by a Dean of the Graduate College. The former campus Deans of the campus Graduate Colleges became Deans for Graduate Studies and Research and report to the Dean of the Graduate College.

Graduate studies provide the opportunity for more advanced education than the undergraduate work upon which all graduate programs are founded.

Qualified students at UNO are provided with opportunities:

- To work toward these degrees: Master of Arts, Master of Arts for Teachers of Mathematics. Master of Science, Master of Business Administration, Master of Public Administration, Master of Social Work, and Specialist in Education.
- To earn graduate credit for the issuance or renewal of certificates for teachers, administrators and educational psychologists.
- 3. To provide for scholarly and professional advancement.

To enable the student to attain these objectives, Graduate Studies at UNO provide graduate courses, workshops, institutes, seminars, practica, research and special problems courses, and the supervision of theses or special projects. Thus the Graduate Faculty at UNO promotes the spirit of free investigation in the various disciplines and, at the same time, serve to unite the various branches of the University in advancing human knowledge and providing intelligent, capable leadership for society. The UNO Graduate Council consists of fifteen members from among the Graduate Faculty and student body. The Council serves in an advisory capacity to the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research and is responsible for planning and policy development, review of courses and programs, and faculty and student affairs.

ACCREDITED STANDING

The University of Nebraska at Omaha is fully accredited by the North Central Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools, and has programs which are accredited or approved by the National Council for Accreditation of Teacher Education, the National Council on Social Work Education, the Engineers Council for Professional Development, the American Home Economics Association (for undergraduate programs), the American Dietetic Association, the American Assembly of Collegiate Schools of Business (for undergraduate programs), and the American Chemical Society. Its courses are accepted for purposes of teacher certification by the Nebraska State Department of Education.

Course credits from the University of Nebraska at Omaha are accepted by other colleges and universities which are members of the North Central Association and by other regional accrediting agencies.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION POLICY STATEMENT

The Bylaws of the Board of Regents of the University of Nebraska state: "Admission to the University and the privileges of University students should not be denied to any person because of their age, sex, race, color, national origin, or religious or political beliefs."

The University of Nebraska at Omaha declares and reaffirms a policy of administering all of its educational programs and related supporting services and benefits in a manner which does not discriminate because of a student's or prospective student's race, color, creed or religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap, or other characteristic which cannot be lawfully the basis for provision of such services. These programs, services and benefits include, but are not limited to, admission, class assignments, scholarships and other financial and employment assistance, counseling, physical education and recreational services, and the membership practices of student organizations.

Further, UNO commits itself to a program of affirmative action to encourage the application of mi-

Further, UNO commits itself to a program of affirmative action to encourage the application of minority, women and handicapped students, to identify and eliminate the effects of any past discrimination in the provision of educational and related services, and to establish organizational structures and procedures which will assure equal treatment and equal access to the facilities and educational benefits of the institution for all students.

Option II.

Pursuant to this policy statement, UNO will undertake a continuing program of compliance with all federal, state, and local laws relating to equal educational opportunity and affirmative action, specifically those addressing the obligations of the institution under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, and Sections 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

PRIVACY ACT

In compliance with the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, the University of Nebraska at Omaha guarantees students access to official records directly related to students and an opportunity for a hearing to challenge such records on the grounds that they are inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise inappropriate. Also the institution must obtain the written consent of students before releasing identifiable data about students from records to other than a special list of exceptions, and that students must be notified of these rights.

An explanation of this Act and its application at UNO is available to all students, copies of which may be obtained at the Office of Student Activities, the University Information Center, the Registrar's Office, the Orientation Office, or the Office of Educational and Student Services.

Special Note: UNO welcomes handicapped students. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 does not allow us to make preadmission inquiries regarding handicapped conditions. However, if you are handicapped and wish to receive information concerning available services, please notify us following your admission to UNO.

DEGREE PROGRAMS

All graduate degrees are awarded by the University of Nebraska system, with each campus having the responsibility of establishing and maintaining individual standards and requirements.

All departmental requirements must be in accord with the policies and practices of the Graduate College.

Master of Arts or Master of Science Degree

A departmental or interdepartmental program for either the Master of Arts or Master of Science degree as approved by the Graduate Faculty will normally be arranged to conform to one of the following patterns:

Option I.

A 30 semester-hour program (maximum of 6-hour thesis credit included) as deter-

A 30 semester-hour program (maximum of 6-hour thesis credit included) as determined by the cognizant Graduate Program Committee.

A 36 semester-hour non-thesis program as determined by the cognizant Graduate Program Committee.

Master of Arts for Teachers of Mathematics

This is a specialized graduate degree designed to provide secondary school mathematics teachers with more depth in mathematics combined with a core of relevant professional courses in education.

Master of Business Administration Degree

This is a professional graduate degree designed to provide a broad educational experience for students who wish to assume positions of responsibility in business.

Master of Public Administration Degree

This is a professional degree designed to provide broad educational experience for students who wish to assume positions of responsibility in government.

Master of Social Work

The Master's degree in social work is a professional degree which trains practioners in developing skills for responsible practice in a wide variety of social service roles and settings.

Specialist in Education Degree

The Specialist in Education degree (Ed.S.) is an advanced degree, involving a minimum of one year of study beyond the Master's degree. It is designed to offer additional study for professional educators.

UNIVERSITY REGULATIONS

The University and its various colleges, divisions, and departments reserve the right to change the regulations controlling admission to, instruction in, and graduation from the University or its various divisions.

Such regulations are operative whenever the University authorities deem necessary and apply not only to prospective students but also to those currently enrolled in the University.

The University also reserves the right to withdraw courses, to reassign instructors, and to change tuition and fees at any time.

Efforts will be made to enable students who maintain continuity in pursuing their degrees to follow the policies and requirements in effect at the time of their original enrollments ("Continuity" means that the student is enrolled in both semesters of every academic year or in at least one session every summer until all requirements for the degree have been satisfied). All students are, however, responsible for consulting their major advisers and checking on any changes promulgated. The Graduate College reserves the right to alter policies, practices, and requirements as would benefit the student through academic standards.

The student is advised to be familiar with the academic regulations of the university and Graduate Studies and the student is expected to assume full responsibility for knowing the relevant academic requirements. The student is responsible for complying with all regulations of the University, Graduate Studies, and the departments of instruction, and for meeting all degree requirements. The adviser

should be consulted whenever there is a question concerning degree requirements.

PROCEDURES AND REGULATIONS

Admission and Transcripts

Applications for admission, together with transcripts, must be filed not only by those students desiring to work for a degree, but also by students desiring graduate credit for a renewal of a teacher's certificate, for professional development, and for graduate credit to be transferred to some other school.

Foreign students must provide letters of recommendation, statements of financial independence, and evidence of ability to speak and write the English language. The baccalaureate degree must have been received from an institution accredited by the proper accrediting agencies.

New students should correspond with, or go directly to, the Director of Admissions in order to apply for admission. Each new student will be required to file with the Director of Admissions:

(1) An application for graduate study at the University of Nebraska at Omaha.

(2) One (1) official transcript of all undergraduate (and graduate, if any) college work previously taken. Transcripts and all other materials submitted in support of an application become the permanent property of the University and will not be returned. (Graduates of the University of Nebraska at Omaha need not submit transcripts.)

(3) Scores on the GMAT which should accompany the application for admission to the Master of

Business Administration program.

NOTE: For consideration for the Fall, Spring, Evening Summer, First Summer or Second Summer term, above credentials must be on file by July 15, December 15, April 15, May 15 or June 15 respectively. Those wanting to be considered for admission to the program in counseling and guidance should see page 35 for separate deadline dates.

Scores of the Graduate Record Examination, Miller Analogies Test or Graduate Management Ad-

mission must be filed in the Graduate Office.

The test(s) required and the minimum scores are dependent upon the department in which the stu-

dent intends to enroll.

Admission to Graduate Study does not admit the student to candidacy for any graduate degree. (See "Admission to Candidacy for Graduate Degrees.") The University reserves the right to change the regulations included in this Catalog with respect to admission to Graduate Study, the continuance of graduate study, and the granting of a degree.

MATRICULATION FEE

A matriculation fee of \$10 is payable upon initial enrollment in Graduate Studies. This fee is not refundable.

EXAMINATIONS FOR GRADUATE STUDENTS

Three examinations: the Graduate Record Examination, the Graduate Management Admission Test and the Miller Analogies Test, are used by various departments to provide valuable evidence of a student's qualifications for graduate work and are helpful in planning courses of graduate studies.

student's qualifications for graduate work and are helpful in planning courses of graduate studies.

These tests are given at UNO under the supervision of the Director, Counseling and Testing Center. Registration deadlines and testing dates are available from the Counseling and Testing Center. Eppley Building, or the Graduate Office, Adm. 283. A nominal fee is charged for these examinations.

Graduate Record Examination (GRE)

Graduate students are required to take the general aptitude test of the Graduate Record Examination (GRE) during their first semester of enrollment in Graduate Studies, unless they have taken it previously and have made the scores available to the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research. The advanced area test is also required unless this test has been waived by the cognizant Graduate Program Committee. The examination is not used to exclude admission at the Masters level.

A student who has not taken the GRE prior to application for admission to Graduate Studies but who is judged from other evidence to be capable of graduate study, is assigned provisional status. A final determination of classification will be made after the examination scores have been studied.

A Graduate Studies applicant already holding a Master's degree in the field in which he or she wishes to pursue further study and not enrolling into a degree program is not required to take the Graduate Record Examination.

Students who wish to be admitted to Psychology Department programs are required to submit GRE scores (verbal, quantitative and advanced) before being considered for admission.

The Counseling and Guidance Department requires those wishing to pursue a degree program in counseling to take admissions tests in addition to the Graduate Record Examination (see page 35).

Graduate Management Admission Test (GMAT)

Applicants for admission to the Master of Business Administration program are required to take the Graduate Management Admission Test in lieu of the Graduate Record Examination.

Miller Analogies Test (MAT)

Graduate students who have been admitted into the Department of Educational Administration and Supervision may take the Miller Analogies Test in lieu of the Graduate Record Examination. Students majoring in Special Education must take the Miller Analogies Test. This test is administered on an individual basis; an appointment to sit for the test may be scheduled through the Counseling and Testing Center.

The Test of English as a Foreign Language

The Test of English as a Foreign Language (TOEFL) scores must be on file in the Director of Admissions Office before an application for admission to Graduate Studies is mailed to a foreign student desiring to enroll for graduate work at UNO. This provision does not apply to those foreign students whose native language is English.

CLASSIFICATION OF ADMISSION

All recommendations for any type of admission are subject to the approval of the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research.

Unconditional

Unconditional admission to graduate study may be granted to a student who has a Bachelor's degree from a regionally accredited institution, who has earned at least a B average in the undergraduate work in his proposed graduate major and minor, and who presents at least 15 semester hours of undergraduate work that meet specific requirements of the departments in his graduate major and minor. In addition to the specified transcript record, appropriate scores of the Graduate Record Examination, Miller Analogies Test, or the Graduate Management Admissions Test must be supplied to the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research.

Provisional

Provisional admission may be granted to a student who has a Bachelor's degree from a regionally accredited institution but who has not completed all of the undergraduate prerequisite course requirements for admission to graduate study. This provisional status will continue until such time as the student has completed all of the undergraduate prerequisites for graduate study.

Provisional admission may occasionally be granted to a student who has less than a B average in the undergraduate work in his proposed graduate major and minor, (but in no case less than a C average) upon recommendation of the Chairman of the Graduate Program committee of the major department (and minor if one is involved) and written approval by the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research. This admission may be made for reasons of maturity, experience, or other extenuating circumstances under which the student may be deemed capable of high quality graduate study. This

isfaction of the Department and the Dean his ability to pursue graduate study.

Applicants to graduate study who have been graduated from unaccredited colleges may be admitted provisionally. Unconditional status may be attained upon completion of twelve semester hours of graduate courses with at least a B average. Specifically, a student must earn at least the grade of "B" in each course involved in the first twelve hours of graduate study. A grade of "C" or below in any of

provisional admission will not be removed until the student has successfully demonstrated to the sat-

these courses will result in automatic dismissal.

A student may not apply for admission to candidacy for any degree until he has met the requirements of unconditional admission.

No more than twelve semester hours credit may be earned within the University of Nebraska System while under Provisional Admission status without special approval from the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research.

Non Degree

Some students who do not anticipate pursuing a degree program may be admitted to graduate study as non degree students. This classification includes:

- 1. graduate students taking courses for teacher certification
- 2. graduate students taking courses for professional growth
- 3. graduate students taking courses for cultural advancement
- graduate students taking courses for transfer to another institution.
 Applicants in this non-degree category must meet graduate and departmental requirements for ad-

Applicants in this non-degree category must meet graduate and departmental requirements for admission; each department has the right to establish policies for non-degree students enrolled in classes therein.

Credentials for admission include a completed application blank and one undergraduate transcript. Credit hours accumulated in this category could be counted toward a degree only if (a) the transition from non degree status is accomplished no later than the first opportunity to file candidacy for degree, and (b) the petition for change is accompanied by a departmental recommendation that the specified credit hours count toward the degree. For students desiring to change status, the Request for a Change — Graduate Degree Program Form should be used. Under no conditions may Non Degree students transfer more than nine (9) semester hours into a degree program. Any transfer up to that amount may be recommended for acceptance by the receiving department, which may also recommend less than that maximum.

No more than twelve semester hours credit may be earned within the University of Nebraska System while under Non Degree status without special approval from the Dean for Graduate Studies and

Acceptance of Senior Credits: Seniors at an accredited institution who have obtained in advance the approval of the appropriate campus Dean for Graduate Studies and Research may receive up to 12 hours of credit for graduate courses taken at any campus of the University of Nebraska System in addition to the courses necessary to complete their undergraduate work, provided that such credits are earned within the 12 months prior to receipt of the baccalaureate.

Seniors in this University needing not more than nine hours of undergraduate credit to complete the bachelor's degree and wishing to register for graduate credit may be granted provisional admission to graduate study subject to receiving their baccalaureates within the twelve-month period immediately following such registration. They must file application for admission to graduate study and, if admitted, will register on graduate study registration forms.

Course work taken prior to receipt of the baccalaureate may not always be accepted for transfer to other institutions as graduate work.

Admission to Professional Education Programs

Students who plan to work for the Master's degree with a major in one of the fields of education must hold a valid teaching certificate or be eligible for such a certificate at the undergraduate level before entering the program. For certification requirements, communicate with the Dean's Office in the College of Education.

TEMPORARY ADMISSION

When unexpected circumstances preclude processing applications for Unconditional, Provisional or Non Degree status, the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research may issue a Temporary Admission. In these rare cases, the student must have all materials submitted for one of the regular admission categories within eight weeks after the beginning of classes (two weeks in summer sessions). Failure to fulfill this requirement by the deadline will result in disenrollment, no credit, and loss of tuition. A student using the Temporary Admission form is registering at his/her own risk because, even if the application and transcripts are received by the deadline, the student may be denied admission after the transcripts have been evaluated. If this should happen, his/her enrollment will be cancelled.

REGISTRATION PROCEDURE

The student is to follow the usual procedure in registering for courses by filling out the proper class cards and other registration blanks and by paying fees at the Business Office. At each registration period the student must secure the signature of the major adviser (and of the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research if he/she is registering for more than twelve hours).

Students must have been formally admitted to graduate study prior to their first registration.

CERTIFICATION OR PROFESSIONAL GROWTH

Students who wish to take courses for graduate credit to be used for teacher certification or professional growth must meet the same admission requirements as other graduate students. They must also make application for admission to graduate study.

ADMISSION TO CANDIDACY FOR GRADUATE DEGREE

Admission to graduate study does not admit the student to candidacy for any degree.

It is the student's responsibility to make application for candidacy for the degree as soon as qualified to do so. The qualifications are: (1) the scores on the Graduate Record Examination, the Miller Analogies Test, or the Graduate Management Admission Test must be on file in the Graduate Office: (2) a minimum of six (6) hours of graduate credit must have been completed at this University: and (3) a grade average of "B", with no grade lower than "C" on all work taken which is included in the Plan of Study. Any Incomplete for any course in the student's major field of study or included in the Plan of Study must be removed before submitting the Application for Candidacy. At least one-half of the approved Plan of Study must be completed following the approval of the Application for Admission to Candidacy.

As a rule, no degree can be awarded in the same semester as candidacy for the degree is approved. Cradits for courses which have been included to satisfy the requirements for one master's degree call-hot be included to satisfy the requirements for any other additional master's degree unless in bott-tioned by the student. (2) recommended by the Graduate Program Committee responsible for the additional degree, and (3) approved by the Graduate Council.

Application forms should be filled out by the student — in consultation with the major and minor

Application forms should be filled out by the student — in consultation with the major and minor advisers — as soon as the student can qualify for admission to candidacy. Both the major and minor programs should be carefully and completely planned at this time and the application should be signed by both the major and minor advisers.

The application form and the plan of study should be filed with the major adviser who then secures the necessary signatures. The Graduate Office, after all signatures are secured, provides copies to the major adviser, the minor adviser and the student.

Plans of study should be planned with acceptable alternatives included. Once approved, any modification of a plan of study is permissible only upon recommendation of the major adviser if the major is concerned, the minor adviser if the minor is concerned, and the approval of the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research.

Until a student has been admitted to candidacy for the degree, the graduate work is governed by the rules and regulations as stated in the most recent Graduate Catalog, if he has not been in continuous enrollment.

APPLICATION FOR THE DEGREE

The candidate for the degree must file an application for degree in the Registrar's Office in the semester or session in which the degree is to be granted. (See Calendar for date.)

FINAL COMPREHENSIVE EXAMINATION

A final comprehensive examination is required of all candidates for the Master's degree near the conclusion of their graduate study. For those candidates not writing a thesis, the examination is a written one. For those candidates writing a thesis, the final comprehensive examination may be either written or oral at the option of the department concerned. If written, it must be arranged at the convenience of the major adviser. If the comprehensive is to be oral, it should be arranged at the time of the oral examination over the thesis, at which time one-half of the examination may be devoted to the courses taken by the candidate and one-half to the thesis.

For the degree Master of Business Administration, the course BA 880 is required in lieu of a final comprehensive examination.

If the course work has been of very high quality the minor adviser may suggest to the student's committee that the candidate be excused from the comprehensive examination covering the minor field. This does not prejudice the privilege of the minor professor giving a comprehensive, if the professor so desires. The minor comprehensive is given at a date arranged at the convenience of both the student and the minor adviser but falling within the limits established for all comprehensive examinations.

Most graduate departments require students to register for the comprehensive examination at the time of their final enrollment: however, students should check with their advisers early in their programs to determine departmental policy concerning the administration of the written comprehensive examination. (Note: In most departments, students who plan degree program completion in August should register for the comprehensive examination in the preceding June.)

Results of comprehensive examinations must be submitted to the Graduate Office by the departmental chairperson no later than twelve working days before conferral of degrees.

THESIS

Students electing to pursue the Option I degree program described on page 9 are required to prepare a thesis under the direction of the major adviser supported by a committee. The thesis provides an opportunity for the student to obtain first-hand experience in research methods under competent direction. Up to six hours of credit is allowed for the thesis and the candidate must include the thesis

as a course in his/her schedule during at least one semester. The thesis should be initiated at least eight months before the commencement in which the student plans to receive his degree.

It is the responsibility of the student to be familiar with the "Instructions for the Preparation of Theses," a copy of which may be obtained in the Graduate Office. The thesis must be approved by the student's thesis committee and submitted to the Graduate Office in final form with the signatures of the committee members on the approval sheets of all copies no later than twelve working days prior to the conferral of the degree.

The cost of binding three copies (see Fees) must be paid by the candidate at the time the thesis is submitted in final form to the Graduate Office. If the department conducting the thesis requires an additional copy, it is to be bound at the student's expense. The fees are payable in the Cashier's Office.

ORAL EXAMINATION ON THESIS

The composition of a committee to approve the thesis proposal and to conduct the oral examination over the thesis and thesis field is recommended by the department and submitted to the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research for his approval and appointment. This committee shall consist of members from the major department and at least one graduate faculty member from another department of the University. If the thesis examination is to be combined with the oral comprehensive (noted above), one-half the time may be devoted to the thesis and one-half to the graduate courses taken by the candidate.

Final comprehensive oral examinations are arranged by the department, and it is the student's responsibility to deposit the proper number of copies of the corrected and approved thesis in the Graduate Office together with the signed approval sheets at least twelve working days prior to the conferral of the degree.

The scheduling of oral examinations during the summer sessions will be contingent upon the availability of appropriate members of the Graduate Faculty.

QUALITY OF WORK

A "B" average must be maintained in all graduate work taken as part of a degree program, with no more than two graduate courses in the degree program carrying a grade of "C." Notwithstanding a student's average, a grade of "C" in each of three graduate courses in the degree program will result in automatic dismissal from any further graduate work.

A grade of "D" or below for any course taken in the student's major field of study or in any course included in the Plan of Study is considered a failing grade and a student receiving such a grade will AUTOMATICALLY BE DROPPED from the degree program. The student thus dropped must secure the approval of the COGNIZANT GRADUATE COMMITTEE OR ACADEMIC ADVISER as the spokesperson for the committee and the approval of the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research in order to take coursework as a non-degree student. The student may NOT be a candidate for the degree unless reinstated by the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research.

The above quality of work standards also apply to non-degree students.

A student, upon consent of his adviser, may repeat a course in which he has previously received the grade of C. D. or F. Both grades will appear on the transcript but only the second grade will be counted in determing the grade point average.

INC. — The grade "I" is to be used by an instructor at the end of a term to designate incomplete work in a course. It should be used when a student, due to extenuating circumstances such as illness, military service, hardship, or death in the immediate family, is unable to complete the requirements of the course in the term in which the student is registered for credit. Incompletes should be given only if the student has already substantially completed the major requirements of the course.

Each instructor must judge each situation. The instructor must also indicate by a departmental record, with a copy to the student, how and by when the Incomplete is to be removed, and if he/she is at the University at the time of the removal, supervise the makeup work and report the permanent grade.

In the event that the instructor is not available at the time of the student's application for removal of an Incomplete, the department chairperson shall supervise the removal of the Incomplete and turn in the permanent grade for the student.

NOTE: Two or more incompletes (excluding research projects and thesis) will result in a stop enrollment for any new courses: the stop enrollment will stay in effect until the Incompletes are below two in number. Grades of Incompletes must be completed within one semester (excluding summer sessions) after they have been awarded or they will be turned into a grade of F. Any extensions to the one semester time frame must be arranged with the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research prior to the Incomplete being changed into a grade of F. Incompletes for research projects and thesis may not extend beyond two years from the date the "I" was recorded unless approval is granted by the Dean

for Graduate Studies and Research and the student reenrolls for the credit.

All grades of "I" on courses which are part of the degree requirements must be removed at least twelve working days before conferral of the degree.

Students may not change majors while they have two or more "Incompletes" on their record.

POLICY ON CLASS ATTENDANCE

The policy: Classes are conducted on the premise that regular attendance is desirable and expected. The individual instructor has the responsibility for managing student attendance and for communicating at the beginning of each semester those class attendance policies which prevail in that classroom.

"If a student is absent or anticipates an absence, the student's primary responsibility is directly to the instructors, and the student should consult with them accordingly. A student who misses a class is nonetheless responsible for information and assignments communicated during that class session. If a student discovers that he or she is to be absent for an extended period, the student should promptly notify the instructors and be prepared to document the reason for extended absences."

"Instructors or other University officials who may require students, individually or collectively, to be absent from their classes due to a field trip or similar officially-recognized activity are responsible for providing adequate information to the students involved so that the students may provide notice to other instructors."

Appeals procedure: "Should there be cause on the part of individuals involved to feel that the reasons for absence were not considered with equity, a decision with punitive consequences may be appealed. The initial appeals procedure is the same as that provided for in each departmental unit for other academic, classroom-related items (e.g., grades, cheating, etc.), involving the student submitting the justification for the appeal in writing to the department. If the initial appeal decision is unsatisfactory, the next step in the appeals process rests with the student submitting a written statement to the respective academic dean indicating the specific nature of the appeal to be considered and requesting the consideration of the appropriate collegial committee designated for hearing such grievances."

"The committee makes a recommendation to the respective dean, and the dean's decision is then conveyed to the student. If a student wishes to appeal further the decision of the academic dean, a written appeal may be submitted to the University Committee on Academic Standards, which serves an appellate function in hearing appeals of students who feel aggrieved on the basis of decisions rendered by the academic deans.'

The University Committee on Academic Standards shall recommend appropriate action to the Provost and Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs.

The routing of appeals shall be in the department and collegial unit offering the course in which the student is enrolled.

GENERAL APPEAL PROCEDURES FOR ACADEMIC MATTERS

The following policy was approved by the University of Nebraska Graduate College's Executive Graduate Council on April 24, 1975. It applies to academic matters, other than those associated with class attendance.

- A. Graduate students holding admission with unclassified status in the Graduate College, admission with a master's objective, or admission with a doctoral objective (but prior to the appointment of a doctoral supervisory committee) should appeal as follows:
 - 1. Initially, the appeal should be submitted to the student's adviser.
 - 2. If denied, the appeal may be submitted to the Departmental or Interdepartmental Area Graduate Committee administratively responsible for the student's graduate
 - 3. If denied, an appeal may be made to the graduate council for the campus administratively responsible for the student's graduate program. Normally, this will be the final appeals body (for exceptions, see paragraph E).
- B. Graduate students holding admission with a doctoral objective in the Graduate College and for whom a doctoral supervisory committee has been appointed should appeal as fol-
 - 1. Initially, the appeal should be submitted to the student's adviser.
 - 2. If denied, the appeal may be submitted to the student's supervisory committee.
 - 3. If denied, the appeal may be submitted to the Departmental or Interdepartmental Area Graduate Committee administratively responsible for the student's graduate
 - If denied, an appeal may be made to the graduate council for the campus administratively responsible for the student's graduate program. Normally, this will be the final appeals body (for exceptions, see paragraph E).
- C. When a student's graduate program consists of registrations essentially or entirely on one campus, the Graduate Council of the campus administratively responsible for the program will constitute the appeal board. When a student's graduate program includes substantial registrations on a campus other than the one administratively responsible for the program, three members of the Graduate Council for the other campus will be designated by the Dean for Graduate Studies on that campus to augment the Graduate Council on the campus administratively responsible for the program. In this case, the augmented

council will constitute the appeal board. The decision concerning augmentation of a campus Graduate Council for a specific appeal involving registrations on a campus other than the one administratively responsible for the student's program will be made by the Deans for Graduate Studies on the campuses involved.

- D. In all cases, appeals should be made in writing to the appropriate adviser, committee, or
- E. 1. Only under special circumstances will Committee III of the Executive Graduate Council hear an appeal from the decision of the campus graduate council. These circumstances are limited to occasions where Committee III believes that:
 - a. The campus graduate council has violated some element of due process or fair procedure (example: has failed to allow the parties concerned to present their cases fully to the council);
 - The campus graduate council has failed to examine or give adequate weight to important evidence relevant to one party's position;
 - The campus council has given undue weight to evidence not pertinent to the
 - Some gross miscarriage of justice would be perpetrated if the decision of the campus council were allowed to stand.

It is up to the discretion of Committee III to decide if any of these conditions have been met.

- 2. Appeals to Committee III of the Executive Graduate Council must be made in writing and must specifically outline the grounds for the appeal. Such appeal must be made within 20 working days of the day the decision of the campus council is received (working days shall not include those days the University is not in session).
- 3. Committee III of the Executive Graduate Council must make a decision to hear the appeal or not to hear the appeal within 30 working days after receipt of the appeal. Acceptance or denial of jurisdiction over the appeal will be made in writing.
- 4. The decision of the Committee on the merits of the case will be made and transmitted to the concerned parties within 40 working days after the decision to hear the appeal.
- No person who was a member of the department or campus graduate council involved in the case will be eligible to participate in the decisions of Committee III of the Executive Graduate Council either to decide whether the case should be heard or to decide the merits of the case.

Communications regarding appeals should be directed to the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research.

OMBUDSMAN OFFICE

The Ombudsman's job is to assist you when you have a grievance or a problem with offices or individuals in the University. Advice on how to solve a problem, referrals to persons or offices that have the expertise you may need, and actions on your behalf by the Ombudsman, are just some of the duties of the office. The service is confidential and free. If you have questions about University procedures, or don't know where to turn when you are confronted with unusua! problems, try the Ombudsman, Administration 217. A more detailed description of the Ombudsman is in the Undergraduate Catalog.

STUDY LOAD

Full-time graduate students at the University of Nebraska shall be defined as graduate students enrolled for at least nine credit hours during an academic semester (or quarter) or at least three hours during a five-week summer session irrespective of whether or not the student holds a graduate assistantship.

Students carrying less than twelve hours may obtain a regular students activities card by paying the full-time fee of \$36.00.

NOTE: Students enrolling for more than twelve hours must have the approval of the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research. The Director of the Graduate School of Social Work may approve loads to fifteen hours for social work majors.

DROPPING AND AUDITING COURSES

A student may not drop a course after the date stated in the Academic Calendar and the Class Schedule. Exceptions beyond that date will require the professor's certification that the student was earning a grade of "B" or higher as well as the approval of the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research.

The Dean's approval will require, in part, an uncontrollable circumstance interfering with the student's studies.

A student wishing to audit a course must secure the permission of the adviser, must register for the course to audit, and must secure the approval of the instructor of the course whose prerogative it will be to determine privileges including examinations connected with the course. An audit study may not change to credit registration after the first week of a course. (A credit student may change to audit registration during the first eleven weeks of a semester, or during the first half of a class if it runs longer or shorter than a semester.)

COURSES FOR GRADUATE CREDIT

Courses which are available for graduate credit are those which have been especially approved by the Graduate Faculty with syllabi on file in the Graduate Office.

Courses numbered 800V, 800U and 900 are open to graduate students only. Some courses numbered 800M are open to both seniors and graduates; the same is true of a selected few 800J numbered courses. It is expected as a rule that graduate students enrolled in those courses numbered 800J-800M will do work of a higher level than undergraduates. Typically, such differentiation might include depth studies, field studies, individualized research, and special interest projects.

RESIDENCE REQUIREMENTS

A minimum of 30 semester credit hours in residence (36 in case of the Master of Science, Master of Public Administration, and the Master of Business Administration degrees), is required for granting of the Master's degree, except as provision is made for the transfer of credit. No credit will be allowed for correspondence work. NOTE: The Master of Social Work degree requires a minimum of forty-two semester credit hours.

TRANSFER OF CREDIT

Students who have completed graduate courses at other approved graduate schools (including extension schools) may request the permission to transfer as many as six semester hours of credit on a thirty-hour program, or nine semester hours of credit on a thirty-six hour program provided the courses are pertinent to the student's graduate program.

The total hours of transfer credit may not exceed the number stated except by petition submitted by the student to his major adviser who forwards the petition with his recommendation to the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research for his approval.

Courses for which transfer is requested must not have been used to satisfy the requirements for any previously awarded degree. Grades in courses for transfer of credit must be the equivalent of "B" or higher. A written request must be made for transfer of credits from an ungraded course elsewhere: the student must have the former instructor submit an evaluation to the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research for review and consideration. Transfer of credit for prior graduate work shall be made at the same time that the student applies for candidacy for the degree. All work accepted for transfer of credit must have been taken within the six-year period allowed for the Master's degree.

In the Educational Specialist degree, six semester hours of work beyond the Master's level may count as transfer credit, upon recommendation by the major adviser and with the approval of the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research.

Students who wish to take graduate courses at the University of Nebraska at Lincoln or at the Medical Center for transfer to LINO should secure the Intercampus Registration form from the Graduate Office. Transfer of graduate chedit from all schools in the University system will be accepted to the extent approved by the student's committee with at least one half of the minimum degree requirements to be taken at the UNL of UND campus, whichever is to grant the degree Only grades of "B" or better may be transferred from other schools in the University System to apply toward degree requirements here.

WITHDRAWAL FROM THE UNIVERSITY

To officially withdraw from all classes and thereby from the University, and to receive any refund due as well as appropriate posting of academic standing for the grading period in question, a graduate student is required to obtain the signatures of his adviser and the UNO Dean for Graduate Studies and Research or his designee prior to submitting the withdrawal form to the Registrar's Office. Any refund of fees will be based on the University catalog. Graduate Catalog, class schedule and Student Handbook, and as posted in the Cashier's Office. Failure to withdraw according to this procedure may cause forfeiture of refunds and inappropriate posting of grades.

TIME LIMIT FOR GRADUATE DEGREES

The work required for a-master's degree must be completed within six-consecutive calendar years. Upon the recommendation of the department concerned, a graduate student may apply to the Graduate Council for permission to take a special examination, or the current semester final examination in

courses for which graduate credit has been recorded and is obsolete. A report of the results of the examination, which shall be prepared, given, and graded by the department, shall be filed in the Graduate Office. Unless a grade of B or higher is obtained in the examination, the student shall be required to take additional work, the amount and nature of which will be determined by the major adviser and the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research. Time spent in the military service of the United States may be excepted in the application of this rule.

All requirements for an Ed.S. degree, regardless of major, must be completed during a six-year time period beginning with the date of entrance to the first course used in the plan of study following the

completion of the Master's degree.

TUITION, FEES, DEPOSITS AND REFUNDS

The University reserves the right to change the amount of tuition or fees at any time, and to assess charges for breakage, lost property, fines, penalties, parking, books, supplies, food, or special services not listed in this schedule.

Tuition and related fees are payable in full at the time of registration, or in accordance with delayed billing schedules. Students availing themselves of the delayed billing option must familiarize themselves with the due dates, as publicized. Note: Failure to receive the mailed billing notice will not excuse the student from payment responsibility, nor the late payment penalties. Students in need of financial aid must consult the Student Financial Aids Officer in the Eppley Building. Application for financial aid should be made at the earliest possible time.

Registration is not complete until cleared by the Cashier. Failure to pay tuition or fees when due, or to meet payments on loans when due, may result in cancellation of registration, legal collection ef-

forts, or both.

Matriculation Fee (Graduate College): Payable upon first-time enrollment in the Graduate College\$10.00
Tuition:
Per Semester Credit Hour. Undergraduate or Graduate
Resident of Nebraska (see residency statute)
Non-Resident
Audit Fee:

The Audit (not for credit) fee is set at one-half of the Resident tuition rate. Registration for audit requires the permission of the instructor and is subject to available class space after credit registration ends. Students who register to take a course for credit and who later change to audit registration will be required to pay the full resident or non-resident tuition rate.

Special Instructional Fees:	
Applied Music: Voice and all instruments except percussion and harp. (Fee may be waived b	y the
Head of the Music Department for any full-time students who are music majors or minors.)	-
One semester credit hour	55.00
Two semester credit hours	75.00
Three semester credit hours	95.00
Four semester credit hours	

Conference, non-credit, and off-campus contract course fees are determined for each offering based upon the cost factors and peculiar circumstances involved.

University Program and Facilities Fee (UPFF)	
Full-time students (12 credit hours or more) per semester	\$43.00
Part-time students (less than 12 hours) per semester	\$25.00
This fee is assessed to every student each semester.	

The UPFF receipts are divided into two separate funds. One portion is designated for student activities and is distributed according to an annual budget developed by the Allocation Commission. The Allocation Commission comprised of students, faculty and staff recommends disbursements of this fund to the University Chancellor. After he approves their recommendations he submits them to the President of the University and its Board of Regents for review and adoptions.

The second portion of the UPFF is designated for services, staff salaries, maintenance of facilities and related expense, and those additional items designated by the Chancellor. This portion is budgeted separately with emphasis upon continuing support. The Chancellor recommends to the President and the Board of Regents his plans for this portion.

The full-time fee of \$43.00 also entitles the student to a regular student activities card covering athletics, publications and general student activities. Part-time students may obtain a regular student activities card by paying the full-time fee of \$43.00.

Special Service Fees: Continuing Engineering Studies — Professional Studies — Development Degree Program	
	\$25.0
Attainment of 300 credit units (additional)	\$25.0
Attainment of 600 credit units (additional)	

20	UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA
Tr Ti Ca Gi De Re	Attainment of 900 credit units (additional) \$25.0 Attainment of 1200 credit units (additional) \$25.0 anscripts of Academic Record per copy \$1.0 esis Binding per copy \$6.00 p and Gown Rental (to be arranged through the Bookstore) aduation Fee \$3.00 egree in Absentia (payable in addition to graduation fee) \$2.00 turned Check — per check \$3.00 Dishonored checks given in payment for tuition and fees must be redeemed in cash prior to the late for late registration, otherwise the late registration fee will be assessed in addition to the backheck fee.
Teac	her Placement Fee Schedule:
Th reg	e following annual fees for teacher placement services are effective as of September 1, 1978. Th istration fee is required of all graduates preparing for teacher certification.
	New Registrants — \$27.50. Fee covers establishment of permanent placement file, 10 sets of credentials, and the weekly Vacancy Bulletin may be obtained in the Office.
	Alumni Re-registrants \$33.00
Op	Alumni Re-registrants\$33.00 Fee covers update of placement credentials information, addition of new recommendations, 10 sets of credentials, and the Vacancy Bulletin if picked up in the Office. tional Services /acancy Bulletin Mailing Fee
	3rd class mailing \$11.00
	1st class mailing\$19.50
Ex	Bulletin may be mailed to your home address. Bulletin is published bi-weekly from October through January; weekly from February through August. Ta Credential Fee (over initial 10 sets)
	1 extra set
	7 extra sets
	Fees and Penalties:
Ļa	e Registration (day or evening classes)\$ 5.00
La	e Examination (each course)
La	e Payment of Tuition Billing
Re	nstatement of Cancelled Registration \$10.00
Ke	placement of ID Activity Card
Depo	sits:
Ke	(per key with authorization) refundable
Lo	ker and Travel Deposit-Refundable \$5.00
1	Required fo students taking HPER service classes. Also required of Faculty, Staff and students using Field House Facilities.
CL.	Also required of Faculty, Staff and students using Field House Facilities.
Cn	emistry Laboratory Deposit-Refundable\$10.00
Testin	g Fees:
Сге	dit by Examination—per course (Departmental)\$25.00
An	erican College Testing (ACT), National
An	erican College Testing (ACT), Residual
Co.	lege Level Examination Program (CLEP) 20.00 duate Management Admission (GMAT) 12.50
Gn C-	duate Management Admission (GMA1)
Lor	duate Record Examination (GRE)
Ge	oeral Educational Development (GED)
Mil	ler Analogies Test (MAT) 10.00
Co	respondence Tests 500 per course
Tes	respondence Tests
	d Cabadala.

Refunds are computed from the date application is received by the Registrar, NOT from date of withdrawal from classes. Refund slips issued by the Registrar and given to students are void and not redeemable, unless presented to the Cashier (Eppley Building) within 30 days after date of issue. See policy entitled "Withdrawal from Classes".

Students paying tuition and fees on a deferred payment basis or under any other loan granted by the University, who withdraw before the account is paid in full are not relieved from payment of the balance due. Refunds will first be applied to unpaid balances, and any remaining balance must be

Refunds for withdrawals are figured from the official beginning of the semester as stated in the University's academic calendar, not from the beginning of students' individual class schedules.

Period of Drop/Withdrawal Before first official day of semester First week of classes Second week of classes Third week of classes Fourth week of classes Fifth week of classes	r Percent Refunded 100% 100% 75% 50% 25% 0%	Percent Chargeable 0% 0% 25% 50% 75% 100%
Summer Sessions (5 and 6 Week)		
Before first official day of semester First three days of classes Remainder of first week Second week of classes	100% 100% 50% 25%	0% 0% 50% 75%
Summer Evening and Special Contract (7 and 8 W	/eek)	
Before first official day of semester First three days of classes Remainder of first week Second week of classes Third week of classes	100% 100% 75% 50% 25%	0% 0% 25% 50% 75%
Non-Credit and Special Courses (10 Weeks or M	ore)	
Withdrawal before classes start Withdrawal before first week elapsed Withdrawal before 2 weeks elapsed Withdrawal after 2 weeks elapsed	100% 50% 20% 0%	0% 50% 80% 100%
(Less than 10 Weeks)		
Withdrawal before classes start Withdrawal before second class Withdrawal after second class	100% 50% 0%	0% 50% 100%

RESIDENT STUDENTS

A student's right to classification as a resident for purpose of registration in a state educational institution must be determined under the provisions of Nebraska Revised Statutes of 1943, Sec. 85-502 (R.S. Supp., 1965). (See General Catalog.) Any student who has been classified as a nonresident who believes he can qualify as a resident should contact the Registrar's Office.

STUDENT DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Career Development Center

The Career Development Center assists students, faculty, staff and alumni in exploring career alter-

natives and making career decisions.

More appropriate and satisfying career decisions will be made if individuals have more information about themselves and the world of work. To explore and clarify interests, values, needs, abilities and career goals; one may become involved in individual counseling, workshops, the utilization of career information, testing and test interpretations. Counselors also assist individuals and groups in becoming acquainted with information on employment trends, occupational responsibilities, and required training and qualifications for various career fields.

Stop by and explore the Career Development Center in the East Wing of the Eppley Building.

Career Placement Services

Career Placement Services assists graduate candidates and alumni from all Colleges of the University in their search for career employment.

Employment Counselors aid in assessing student career goals and related employment opportunities. Literature on local and national employers, career fields, job descriptions, salary surveys, em-

ployment trends and job-search techniques are also available.

All first semester graduate students completing degrees are encouraged to register with Career Placement Services by completing a placement file, including a resume and Personal Data Form. The College Placement Annual, supplied without charge to registrants, is a valuable directory of organizations having positions available for college graduates.

Teacher credentials are prepared and permanently maintained for candidates completing requirements.

ments for certification. A complete listing of local and regional teacher vacancies is available to all

teacher candidates

Career Placement Services offers two programs:

Campus Recruiting. Each semester local and national employers seeking December and May graduates visit the campus to conduct interviews with candidates registered with the office. Interviewing facilities are provided.

Candidate Referral. Throughout the year, local and regional employers contact our office seeking potential employees. Career Placement refers qualified candidates directly to these employers and assists in arranging candidate interviews.

Career Placement Services sponsors programs covering numerous career employment topics. Programs include groups, seminars or individual sessions. Job-Readiness Workshops are offered each semester to help students develop interviewing skills and job-search materials, i.e., letters of application, resumes, and other items.

An effort is made to obtain positions for all registered candidates; however, employment cannot be

Students are encouraged to visit Career Placement Services, Milo Bail Student Center, Room 134.

Counseling and Testing Center

There are a variety of services offered by the Counseling and Testing Center. The Center is located in the Eppley Building, first floor, east wing. The services are available to all students, faculty and staff without charge. The Center provides a setting in which a student can talk about anything he wishes in private with a counselor.

It is the aim of the Counseling Center to use all available resources to assist students in making positive adjustments both in their academic and personal lives.

Counseling

Counseling services are provided to assist UNO students in their intellectual, emotional, and social development. Students may come to the Counseling Center to talk with a professionally trained counselor anytime it is convenient for them. The staff believes that classes and studies are not an isolated part of a student's life. The educational experience is greatly influenced by the problems which allow students to gain the full benefits of their educational experience. Concerns about school, friends, financial worries, family problems, and vocational indecision are some of the things that are often discussed with a counselor. The students can expect that their privacy will be respected; whatever is discussed with a counselor will be held in confidence.

The main concern of the Counseling Center is the individual student. We try to help students better understand themselves in relation to the world they live in. Students can learn to make more realistic decisions, increase their self-reliance, and discuss the things which concern them in a free, relaxed atmosphere. This experience results in the students knowing themselves better, becoming more comfort-

able with themselves, and being more effective in the total life experience.

Referral to other helpful sources is provided. Quite frequently students are unsure of where to turn for assistance in specific problems. The Counseling and Testing Center can act as a referral source to other services such as the Reading Clinic, Student Financial Aid, and others which might help the students if they are aware of their availability. Contact with referral sources outside the University is also maintained for those students who might profit from them. Thus, if a student does not know exactly where to go for special assistance, the Counseling and Testing Center can usually supply relevant information.

Examinations for Admission to Graduate or Professional Schools. The Counseling and Testing Center at UNO administers special examinations required to enter professional or graduate school. The following are among those examinations: Graduate Record Examination, Miller Analogies Test, Graduate Management Admissions Test, Law School Admissions Test, and Test of English as a Foreign

Language.

Information and applications are available at the Counseling and Testing Center in the east wing of

the Eppley Building.
Vocational and Educational Testing

The University believes that academic programs can be most efficiently planned in terms of the interests, aptitudes, and objectives of the individual student; therefore, an extensive testing system has

been developed.

While there is no one test or group of tests which will magically reveal exactly the occupation for which one is best suited, a battery of psychological tests may be helpful to clarify interests and to indicate aptitudes for certain broad fields of work. The test offered by the Counseling and Testing Center includes tests of five major types — intelligence, interest, achievement, aptitude, and personality — on the belief that each of these factors is significant in understanding oneself and in making educational and vocational plans.

Any admitted or currently enrolled students may avail themselves of the opportunity to take these tests at minimal or no cost. Professional counselors in the Counseling and Testing Center are availa-

ble to all students for explanation and interpretation of these tests.

Occupational and educational information is available at the Counseling Center. The student has access to such information as educational opportunities, trends, and qualifications for various careers; and training opportunities in many fields. Information of an academic, social, and personal nature is also available. The office is located in the east wing of the Eppley Building.

The Information Center

The Information Center located in the Eppley Building has available information about campus events and campus phone numbers and office locations for University employees. To give or receive information call 554-2800 from 7:30 a.m. to 8 p.m. daily and 8 a.m. to noon on Saturdays.

Parents Association

Parents of students at the University of Nebraska at Omaha have a unique opportunity to become involved in the growth and development of the institution by joining the UNO Parents Association. Any parent of a UNO student is eligible to become a member. Membership in the Parents Association gives parents an opportunity to become better informed about UNO and to share their children's college experience. Family membership dues are \$5.00 annually. For information contact Student Development Services.

Part-Time Student Employment Service

UNO students seeking off-campus part-time employment should visit the Part-Time Student Em-

ployment Service Office in Milo Bail Student Center, Rm. 134.

Employment counselors are available to assist students in finding employment, matching job with career interest where possible. Emphasis is placed on developing job-search skills and interviewing techniques, with the Part-Time Student Employment Service acting as liaison between employer and student.

Current listings of available jobs are posted on bulletin boards near Room 134 in Milo Bail Student Center and outside Room 150 in the Eppley Building.

Qualified students are referred directly to employers for job interviewing. All services are free.

Special Programs

The Office of Special Programs is the coordinating arm of several service units which function to assist UNO students with their special needs. The units, which are a part of the Office of Special Programs, are the Women's Support Program, Minority Affairs, Student Health Services, International Student Advisor, Study Skills Center, and Handicapped Student Services. The Office of Special Programs is located in the North Lobby of the Eppley Building.

Handicapped Services

This service provides counseling to handicapped students as well as a forum to discuss and initiate needed services for the students. An advisory committee assists the University in providing a more

conducive environment for handicapped students.

International Student Advisor

The International Student Advisor provides guidance and advisement to individual foreign students on problems of adjustment, finances, academic matters, immigration, and other legal matters. One advisor working with other campus and community groups, develops and promotes extracurricular programs and opportunities for foreign students and coordinates foreign student campus activities.

Minority Affairs

The Office of Minority Affairs acts as a referral agent for persons seeking information and services at UNO and agencies located in the area. The Office disseminates information necessary in the coordination of activities involved with the minority student population as well as those special interest groups (American Indians United, Black Liberators for Action on Campus, La Causa, and United Minority Students) which are organized to serve them.

The Office also provides cultural and academic programming for non-white students on campus. The Office minimizes the difficulty minority students encounter during their learning process at UNO. The financial transition is aided through minority financial aid files accessible to students

through the office.

Student Health Services

The Student Health Service is available to all students for diagnosis and treatment of illnesses and injuries, with referral to the Medical Center if necessary. The Health Center also offers Strept Throat and tuberculin skin testing programs. Allergy and other injections are given with appropriate physician's orders. (Syringes and medication to be supplied by the patient).

Preventive Health measures are stressed and audiometric, hypertension and vision screening is done on a walk-in basis. Various health clinics and programs are scheduled throughout the year on se-

lected topics of interest. Those services are open to students, faculty and staff.

Applications for handicap parking permits are issued for mobility limitations/disabilities.

A physician assistant is available at the Health Center 8 to 9 a.m. on Monday through Friday. A health nurse is available from 8 a.m. to 7 p.m. Monday through Thursday and from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. on Friday.

Student Health Insurance. All full time UNO students have the option of contracting for accident and sickness insurance through a group plan. This plan is made available by the University through a commercial insurance carrier. If you are not protected for accident and sickness under a policy held by your parents, or one that you have purchased privately, you are encouraged to participate in this or some other health care plan. A brochure describing coverge and benefits is available from the

Health Center. Coverage for injury and sickness not due to University negligence is the full responsibility of each student.

University of Nebraska Medical Center Services. As a complement to the Health Center facility on the UNO campus, a range of services is available to UNO faculty, staff, students and their families at the Nebraska Diagnostic and Internal Medicine Associates at the Medical Center. These services include diagnostic and therapeutic outpatient services.

FINANCIAL AID FOR GRADUATE STUDENTS

GRADUATE ASSISTANTSHIPS

Available for qualified students who are enrolled in a graduate degree program are graduate assistantships in teaching, research or laboratory supervision. The assistant's assignment is designed to provide unexcelled opportunities for supervised educational experiences at the graduate level in conjunction with the degree program. The stipends range upward from \$3225.00. Approximately twenty hours of work per week is required. The enrollment of students with assistantships will be limited to no more than twelve credit hours per semester unless the student has demonstrated extraordinary efficiency and the adviser recommends the abnormally high work load to the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research for his approval.

Graduate Assistants will be expected to carry at least six graduate credits per semester (with two five-week summer sessions equivalent to one semester). Graduate assistants or interns who must earn money for self-support may be required to reduce correspondingly the number of hours for which they may register. Such adjustments shall be subject to the approval of the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research.

Applications and their supporting credentials must be received on or before March 1. Address requests for information and application forms to the Chairperson of the Department in which the assistantship is desired.

TUITION WAIVERS FOR GRADUATE STUDENTS

Tuition waivers are often available for qualified students who have been admitted to graduate study. Eligibility is based on academic qualifications and financial need.

Information and application forms are available in the Graduate Office. Allow at least two months for processing applications.

TRAVELING SCHOLAR PROGRAM

The University of Nebraska is a member of the Mid-America State Universities Association along with Iowa State University. Kansas State University, University of Kansas, University of Oklahoma, Oklahoma State University and the University of Missouri. Under the traveling scholar program, a graduate student who wishes to use special research facilities or take courses not available at the University of Nebraska at Omaha may do so with a minimum of red tape. If the major professor and the host institution agree, the student may spend a semester at another MASUA school simply by making appropriate arrangements at UNO. Nebraska residents pay resident tuition. The Graduate Office has further information.

SCHOLARSHIPS

Phi Delta Gamma, a national fraternity for women, offers two annual scholarships of \$150 each, to women graduate students who have completed approximately one half of their graduate work with an excellent record: The Mary-Ellen Patterson-Phi Delta Gamma Scholarship and the Nelle Boyer-Phi Delta Gamma Scholarship.

Applications and details concerning these scholarships may be obtained from the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research Room 283, Administration Building. Applications should be in the Graduate Office by March I of each year.

LOANS

Graduate Students are eligible to apply for National Direct Student Loans (NDSL) which are based upon financial need. Qualified women graduate students are eligible for a Phi Delta Gamma loan on a limited basis. To apply for loans from other sources as well, contact the Director of Financial Aid, Room 219, Eppley Building.

WORK-STUDY

Graduate Students may apply for College Work-study positions. Eligibility for these positions is based upon financial need. To apply for work-study, contact the Office of Financial Aid, Room 219, Eppley Building.

ORGANIZATIONS

Phi Delta Gamma is a national sorority for graduate women in all fields. Membership is by invita-

Phi Delta Kappa is a national fraternity for men who are graduate students in Education. Membership is by invitation.

Beta Gamma Sigma is a national honorary society for students in Business Administration. Membership is by invitation.

Psi Chi is a national honorary association for graduate students in Psychology. Membership is by

Omicron Delta Epsilon is a national honorary association for graduate students in Economics. Membership is by invitation.

ADMINISTRATION FOR GRADUATE STUDIES

GRADUATE FACULTY

The Graduate Faculty prescribes the qualifications of all professors who offer graduate work and approves all courses which may be taken for graduate credit. The Dean for Graduate Studies and Research serves as Chairperson of the Graduate Faculty at UNO and of the UNO Graduate Council. Information about graduate programs, including qualifications of graduate faculty members, is available in the Graduate Office.

GRADUATE FACULTY MEMBERS

RESPONSIBILITIES

Graduate Faculty Members may teach graduate courses, supervise students enrolled in subdoctoral graduate programs, serve on the final examining committees for these students, and vote on any matters presented to the Graduate Faculty including the election of the Executive Graduate Council and the Graduate Council for their specific campus.

CRITERIA

The following requirements for the nomination of Graduate Faculty Members were adopted by the Graduate Faculty to establish consistent standards for faculty members eligible for appointment to carry out these assignments:

- 1. The nominee must hold the rank of Assistant Professor or above.
- The nominee must hold the terminal degree normally accepted for academic employment in the discipline or its clear equivalent as determined by the Graduate Committee of the nominee's department or interdepartmental area.
- The nominee will as part of his or her regular duties be actively involved in graduate student research and/or graduate teaching.
- The nominee must have demonstrated clear evidence of scholarly activity and potential beyond teaching. This evidence must be provided by the nominator.

GRADUATE FACULTY FELLOWS

RESPONSIBILITIES

Graduate Faculty Fellows may teach graduate courses, supervise and serve on supervisory committees for students working towards post-baccalaureate degrees, vote on all matters presented to the Graduate Faculty, and vote on nominations for Graduate Faculty Fellows. CRITERIA

The following requirements for the nomination of Graduate Faculty Fellows were adopted by the Executive Graduate Council to establish reasonably consistent standards for faculty members eligible for appointment to supervise doctoral students:

- 1. The nominee must be a Graduate Faculty Member or meet all criteria for Graduate Faculty Membership.
- 2. The nominee must have published research and scholarly work of quality, or have demonstrated comparable, creative achievement.

- a. In disciplines where publication is the normal outlet for scholarly work or research, the nominator must provide evidence of the nominee's significant, refereed publications appearing under the imprint of recognized scholarly publishing houses or journals. Publication must have resulted from a judgment of quality by an editorial board
- Publication based on the nominee's terminal degree alone is not sufficient, although publication of the dissertation or parts of it is significant if the nominator indicates the manner in which the published version represents a substantial amount of scholarly work in addition to that required for dissertation.
- c. In disciplines such as art, architecture, theatre, or music where publication is not the normal or singular end product, the nominator must provide evidence of creative work accomplished by the nominee. This creative work must bear evidence of acceptance by peers within the discipline.
- 3. The nominator must indicate current involvement of the nominee in research and/or creative
- 4. The nominator may provide supporting evidence for the nominee such as published textbooks related to graduate education, published instructional materials, published professional reports, or evidence of funded research and development projects.
- The nominator may provide evidence of the nominee's teaching effectiveness in working with graduate students. This evidence may consist of peer and student evaluations or reports of student achievement subsequent to the receipt of advanced degrees.

GRADUATE COUNCIL

The Graduate Council of the Graduate Faculty at UNO is composed of elected faculty members and three graduate students. This Council considers graduate policies, procedures and proposed academic offerings. Information about the structure of the Council, functions of the committees, and names of the Graduate Faculty members who are currently serving on the Council is available in the Graduate Office.

FACULTY SENATE RESEARCH COMMITTEE

This is an advisory committee to the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research.

The objectives of this committee are: (1) to foster fruitful research as an adjunct to teaching excellence, (2) to recommend allocation of the available funds for research toward these ends, (3) and to encourage solicitation of monies for research. Requests for various research activities will be solicited, evaluated, and recommended for approval or disapproval in keeping with the objectives of the Committee's area of responsibility and concern.

EXTRAMURAL GRANTS

Through the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research, the Office of Grants Development provides advice and technical assistance to faculty and staff in the following areas: solicitation of funding sources; preparation of research proposals; preparation of grant budgets; preparation of grant financial reports; excess property programs; and implementation of workshops, seminars, and classes on grants development. The Director of Grants Development reports directly to the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research.

GRADUATE PROGRAM COMMITTEES

Each department (or area) offering a graduate degree has a Graduate Program Committee of at least three members. This committee and its chairperson are recommended annually by the graduate faculty members of the department for appointment by the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research.

In its department the Graduate Program Committee has the responsibility for the planning of the graduate program, the general supervising of the candidates for graduate degrees and the examining of students by means such as the qualifying examination and the final comprehensive examination when these examinations are not given by a student's thesis or field project supervisory committee.

Each new graduate student, in conference with the chairperson of the Graduate Program Committee of the major department, shall select a major adviser. For the student who has a supervisory or advisory committee, the composition of the committee shall be recommended to the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research by the chairperson of the student's Graduate Program Committee after consultation with the student and the major adviser. At the master's level, committees of three members are usually sufficient. The chairperson should be a member of the Graduate Faculty and when ever feasible, the student's adviser and thesis director. The representative from a department other than the major must be a member of the Graduate Faculty. In addition to at least three voting members, faculty members in the university system may be appointed to serve ex officio (without vote) as consultants (or to gain experiences as special representatives of the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research. The Graduate Program Committees at UNO represent both the Graduate Faculty and the student's field of study. The word program denotes all kinds of academic requirements which must be satisfied by the graduate student in order to qualify for a particular degree (or-in the case of a non-degree student the requirements of graduate-level certification or recognized stages of professional development). Every degree candidate's plan of study must be designed to satisfy the requirements of a program which has been approved by the Graduate Faculty. Both major and minor requirements, together with quality-of-work standards, are included under programs; also included are transfer credits and

those electives which are not major or minor courses.

If aculty, members involved imgraduate education, and in research for any kind of further faculty development involving graduate students), should have aprile opportunity to participate in decisions equally important.

Palfeding these responsibilities. Provisions for appropriate participation by graduate students is equally important.

CENTER FOR URBAN EDUCATION

The Center for Urban Education is a practical, problem-oriented off-campus laboratory which is not housed in any of the individual departments or colleges but reports to the Vice-Chancellor for Academic Affairs. The Center has an advisory council consisting of several deans and public citizens. The Center focuses upon problems of low-income areas (both urban and rural) but does not offer separate graduate degree programs. However, there will be provided appropriate opportunities for graduate students from several disciplines (e.g., Sociology, Psychology, Urban Studies, Business Administration, Home Economics, Social Work, Counseling, Educational Administration, and Urban Education) to have, as part of their regular graduate programs practicum-type experiences, and to interact on an interdisciplinary basis. This type of university out-reach into the low-income and poverty areas can be productive for the community and for students as well as faculty from all of the units of the University.

POLICY ON PLAGIARISM

The prevention of, and the imposition of sanctions upon those who resort to, plagiarism is necessary in any university that espouses the ideals embodied in the concept of academic freedom. Plagiarism is the appropriation of the work (be it ideas or words) of another without crediting the source. Such a practice is particularly reprehensible in a community dedicated to the pursuit and advancemend of knowledge.

Plagiarism by Faculty

The investigation of allegations of plagiarism by a faculty member at any major administrative unit shall be the responsibility of the Academic Freedom and Tenure Committee.

Plagiarism by Students

The investigation of allegations of plagiarism by a student or appeals therefrom, at any major administrative unit shall be carried out under the appropriate faculty-student appeals committee at that campus.

POLICY ON ETHICAL CONDUCT

It should be understood that academic performance is not the only criterion for graduation. Students are expected to maintain the highest standards of ethical conduct pertaining to academic coursework, professional practice, and research activity. Any breach in ethical conduct shall be subject to disciplinary action, regardless of the student's prior or current academic performance.

SUMMARY OF PROCEDURE FOR GRADUATE STUDENTS

- 1. File official transcripts of all undergraduate and graduate credit and an application for admission with the Director of Admissions, First Floor East, Eppley Building.
- 2. Contact an adviser within the department to which you are applying for admission to determine departmental admission requirements.
- Arrange to take the appropriate entrance examinations for your department. These will normally include either the GRE, GMAT or MAT. If you have already taken the appropriate examination, have your scores sent to the Graduate College.

You will be notified by mail of your acceptance or non-acceptance into the Graduate College after your transcripts have been evaluated.

28 UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA

 Arrange your class schedule with your adviser and have him/her sign your registration card. You will be asked to pay a \$10.00 matriculation fee the first time you enroll for graduate study.

6. Apply for candidacy as early as possible. This can be done as soon as you have satisfactorily completed six hours of graduate work at UNO, have your transcripts showing a Bachelor's degree and the GRE (or other specified test) scores on file in the Graduate Office, and have completed all undergraduate prerequisites and other departmental requirements. See your adviser for details. NOTE: Filing for candidacy is not the same as filing for a degree. It is necessary for you to make application for the degree in the semester in which you intend to graduate.

 If you are a transfer student, you must consult with your department's Graduate Program Committee to determine which courses you will be allowed to transfer. These courses must be included on your application for candidacy.

8. You will be informed by mail of your admission to candidacy.

9. At the time of your final enrollment, arrange with your supervisory committee a time for your comprehensive examinations, if these have not already been taken. Also, inform the Graduate Office of your intent to graduate so that your graduate record may be compiled and reviewed.

10. If your approved program includes a thesis, obtain a copy of "Instructions for the Preparation of Theses" from the Graduate Office and prepare your thesis in accordance with Graduate College guidelines and departmental style requirements. Make arrangements with your department for oral examinations. The completed, fully corrected and approved thesis must be deposited in the Graduate Office together with the proper number of copies of it at least twelve working days prior to the conferral of the degree. The thesis binding fee must be paid in the Registrar's Office prior to the depositing of the thesis in the Graduate Office.

11. Make application for the conferral of the degree in the Registrar's Office. The deadlines for filing are usually well before graduation, so be aware of these dates. The deadlines will be stated in the current issue of the Graduate Catalog as well as posted during registration and in the Registrar's Office. If you apply for graduation and do not complete all of the requirements for the degree in time to graduate, you must reapply for graduation the following semester. No additional fee is charged to reactivate your application.

 Pay all fees and fines and satisfy all obligations to the University at least twelve working days before conferral of the degree.

13. Order a cap, gown and hood from the Bookstore.

Degree Requirements

DEGREE REQUIREMENTS

BIOLOGY

To enter a degree program with a major in biology the student must present approximately 24 semester hours of credit in the biological sciences including general botany, general zoology, and genetics plus adequate preparation in the supporting sciences of inorganic and organic chemistry, general physics, and mathematics. Students with inadequate backgrounds may be admitted provisionally. GRE (advanced and aptitude) is required and the scores should be submitted as soon as possible.

Master of Arts

Ordinarily every student will become a candidate for this degree. Only under appropriate circumstances will a student be allowed to become a candidate for the Master of Science degree.

To complete the Master of Arts degree with a major in biology the candidate must present 30 hours of graduate work in biology to include credit in thesis (a maximum of 6 hours), a minimum of 2 hours in departmental seminar (801V), and at least 22 hours of appropriate courses to be determined by the student and the faculty committee. Graduate students are expected to attend the departmental seminar even when not registered for it.

The candidate must pass a final oral examination and present his/her thesis results at an open meeting of the faculty and students.

Master of Science

A student may become a candidate for this degree only upon the recommendation of the student's advisory committee.

To complete the degree the candidate must present 36 hours of graduate work in biology to include at least 2 semesters of Biology 801V, 1 semester of Biology 802V, and other appropriate courses to be determined by the student and his/her faculty committee. Graduate students are expected to attend the departmental seminar (801V) even when not registered for it.

The candidate must pass a final written comprehensive examination.

Master of Public Administration - Environmental Option

The Biology Department cooperates with the Department of Public Administration in offering this degree. The degree is administered through Public Administration and is described under that department.

BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

The Master of Business Administration Degree

The MBA is a professional graduate degree designed to provide an intense educational experience for students who desire to assume positions of increasing responsibility in business.

Courses in the program give the students an understanding of the principles of management, marketing and finance and a proficiency in the use of accounting, computers, statistics, and quantitative methods as tools for analysis of business activities. Also, the student is made aware of the societal, economic, legal and political factors which influence business decisions and develops an appreciation of the social responsibilities of business.

Emphasis is placed on decision making and problem solving.

Admission Standards

The minimum standards for students in the MBA program are:

Junior-Senior GPA \times 200 + GMAT = 1020

The GMAT score must not be below 400 in computing the above total.

Students who do not meet the above criteria or who attain a GMAT score below 400 may be considered for admission on an exception basis only.

Students are admitted on a provisional status until all foundation courses have been completed. GMAT scores must be received prior to the student's admission to the MBA program.

Degree Requirements

Foundation courses: A student must have completed basic courses in the following areas either as an undergraduate student or in the early part of graduate program:

College Algebra Math 131

Economics Econ 201 and Econ 202 or Econ 800J
Accounting Acc 201 and Acc 202 or BA 811J

Computers in Business
Quantitative Methods
Productive (O)

OB 231

DS 212

Production/Operations Management Business Law

Corporation Finance

MOB 350 Statistics

L&S 323 BF 325

Management Principles MKT 331 Marketing MKT 331
These foundation courses cannot be used to meet the 36 semester hours required for the MBA de-

gree. The quality of work in the foundation core should be the same as for degree requirements.

Courses successfully completed (A, B, or C grades) in the student's undergraduate program are considered as sufficient preparation. Otherwise, the student must include the course deficiencies in the program of study.

Students who through experience or self study consider themselves proficient in any of these areas may complete a Satisfaction by Examination" in lieu of course work. It is recommended that students complete the majority of the foundation courses before enrolling in either core courses, option

Graduate Courses: The degree requires a minimum of 36 semester hours for completion.

1
1
-
3

The six hours of electives must be in one or more areas different than the area of concentration and may be taken in an area outside the College of Business Administration, subject to advance approval by the Director of Graduate Studies.

A thesis is required in one option (Real Estate) and may be elected in others. No comprehensive examinations are required. Instead, the integrative course BA 880V must be successfully completed with a grade of A or B in the student's last nine hours of the degree program.

Core Courses

BA 800V	Quantitative Analysis	3 hours
BA 801V	Business and Society	3 hours
BA 810V	Managerial Economics	3 hours
BA 820V	Managerial Accounting	3 hours
or		
BA 821V	Accounting Theory (if applicable)	3 hours
BA 831V	Human Behavior in Organization	3 hours
BA 880V	Policy, Planning, and Strategy	3 hours

2	Option Courses	
Option #1 —	Business Administration	
BA 830V	Environment of Management	3 hours
BA 840V	Marketing Policies	3 hours
BA 850V	Financial Management	3 hours
BA 805V	Business Conditions Analysis	3 hours
Option #2 —	Marketing	
BA 840V	Marketing Policies	3 hours
BA 841V	Promotional Policies	3 hours
BA 845V	Seminar in Marketing	3 hours
One of the follo	owing courses:	
BA 802V	Research Methods in Economics and Business	3 hour
BA 805V	Business Conditions Analysis	3 hour
Option #3 —	Decision Sciences	
BA 802V	Research Methods in Economics and Business	3 hour
BA 803V	Business Information Systems	3 hour
BA 804V	Applied Quantitative Analysis	3 hour
	One of the following courses:	
Econ 803V	Econometrics	3 hours
	or	
BA 890V	Independent Research (In Decision Sciences)	3 hours
Option #4-	Real Estate	
BA 860	Real Estate and Land Use	
	Economics Theory	3 hours
BA 861	Current Problems in Real Estate and	
	Land Use Economics	3 hours
BA 899V	Thesis	6 hours
Option #5 —	Accounting	
BA 821V	Accounting Theory (if not taken as a core course)	3 hours
BA 823V	Controllership	3 hours
BA 825V	Seminar in Accounting	3 hours
One of the follo	owing courses:	
BA 803V	Business Information Systems	
BA 890V	Independent Research (in Accounting)	3 hours

pleted.)		
Option #6 - E	conomics	
BA 805V	Business Conditions Analysis	3 hours
Plus 9 hours from	m the following:	
Econ 810V	Economic Security	3 hours
Econ 816V	Seminar in Labor Economics	3 hours
Econ 820V	Seminar in Micro Theory	3 hours
Econ 822V	Seminar in Macro Theory	3 hours
Econ 829V	Research Methods	3 hours
Econ 830V	Econometrics	3 hours
Econ 845V	Seminar in Money and Banking	3 hours
Econ 865V	Seminar in International Economics	3 hours
Econ 885V	Seminar in Urban Economics	3 hours
Option #7 - N	lanagement:	
BA 830V	The Environment of Management	3 hours
BA 835V	Seminar in Management	3 hours
BA 832V	Personnel Administration	3 hours
One of the follow	wing courses:	
BA 803V	Business Information Systems	3 hours
BA 805V	Business Conditions Analysis	3 hours
BA 840V	Marketing Policies	3 hours
	anking and Finance:	
BA 850V	Financial Management	3 hours
	m the following:	
BA 851V	Security Analysis	3 hours
BA 852V	Seminar in Investment Management	3 hours
BA 855V	Seminar in Finance	3 hours
Econ 845V	Seminar in Money and Banking	3 hours
BA 853V	Banking and Financial Markets:	
DA 0334	Structure, Function and Policy	3 hours
BA 890V	Independent Research (in Finance)	3 hours
	dustrial Psychology:	2.110.111
BA 832V	Personnel Administration	3 hours
	Psychological Aspects of Industrial	J mouns
Psych 862V	Training and Education	3 hours
D - L 061	Seminar in Industrial/Organizational Psychology	3 hours
Psych 961	following four courses:	J mours
		3 hours
Psych 813M	Research Design	3 hours
Psych 814M	Nonparamentric Statistics	3 hours
Psych 910	Proseminar: Analysis of Variance	3 Hours
Psych 911	Proseminar: Multiple Regression	3 hours
0 1 410	and Factor Analysis	3 nours
Option #10 — I	Individually Designed Program:	and Engage and with the an

(Note: If BA 821V. Accounting Theory, is taken as a core course, both BA 803V and BA 890V must be com-

A student under the guidances of the Director of Graduate Studies in Business and Economics and with the approval of the Graduate Faculty of the College of Business Administration may develop an option of 12 hours of

A minimum of 21 semester hours must be completed in courses designated as business administration (BA). Also, at least 30 hours must be at the "V" level of graduate work.

Student Responsibilities

It is the responsibility of each student admitted to graduate studies to be familiar with the procedures and regulations of the Graduate Catalog.

Each student should also consult with the Director of the MBA program at least once each semes-

ter to assure continued progress toward the degree objective.

Students must maintain a 3.0 (B) average to fulfill the program and graduation requirements. A maximum of 2 C's in either foundation or graduate courses is permitted.

In selecting electives the student must be guided by the restrictions that a maximum of 6 hours of "M" level courses be included in the graduate program of study.

CIVIL ENGINEERING

Master of Science

This is a professional graduate degree designed to provide a broad educational background for students who wish to gain greater proficiency and assume positions of greater responsibility in the field of Civil Engineering.

Courses in the program give students a better understanding of the basic principles and methodology used in the design of civil engineering projects. Emphasis is placed on Systems Analysis, Decision Making, and Problem Solving.

The degree program is offered by the faculty of the merged departments of Civil Engineering at Omaha and Lincoln, and will be administered by the Graduate College, UN-L. Requirements for the Master's Degree will be as stated in the Graduate Studies Bulletin, University of Nebraska-Lincoln. Upon admission by the Graduate College, UN-L, student records will be maintained on the campus at which the major portion of the graduate courses will be taken. Normally the faculty advisor will also be on that campus.

Graduate Committee. The Civil Engineering Department has a Graduate Committee of six faculty, selected from the Omaha and Lincoln campuses, appointed by the Department Chairperson and approved by the Graduate Dean, UN-L. The Graduate Committee has general supervision over the work of the candidates for the Master's degree. The committee may prescribe such tests as it deems necessary in order to determine whether an applicant is adequately prepared for graduate study. After all application materials are received by the Graduate College, UN-L, the chairperson of the committee will be asked to make a recommendation, after consultation with the committee, on admission to the Graduate College.

Admission to Candidacy Options for the Masters Degree Consult current Graduate Studies Bulletin, University of Nebraska-Lincoln

Examinations Graduate Work. Graduate work in Civil Engineering is governed by the general requirements of the Graduate College. Selection of the option and program are subject to approval of the students' advisor and the departmental Graduate Committee.

A student applying for admission should designate the primary area in which he/she wishes to study. Major work for the Master of Science degree may be selected from the areas of structural, geotechnical, transportation, hydraulic, sanitary and water resources engineering. A minor area may be designated from any one of the related Civil Engineering areas, or from other related departments. Other supporting courses will be selected from advanced or graduate courses having some relation to the major group.

COMMUNICATION

Master of Arts

In or ler to be admitted without deficiencies to graduate study in Communication, the applicant must present at least 15 undergraduate semester hours of appropriate courses in communication arts and sciences, including advanced (upper division) work in the area of graduate concentration. Applicants who have more than 9 semester hours of deficiencies will be advised to remove them before reapplying for any type of admission.

All students who major in Communication are required to complete the 12 semester hours of core courses prescribed by the Graduate Committee. These core courses provide a basic, intensive and broad coverage of communication as a field of advanced study, including foundations of both mass and transactional communication in conjunction with research and theory. Currently the core courses are Communication 801V, 847V, 857V, and a theory or research seminar, above the 800M level, which may be in the student's area of concentration.

The student's plan of study must be approved by the student's committee and may include provisions for a minor or area studies. Every plan of study must be designed to meet the requirements of either the thesis option or the non-thesis option:

Thesis option:

Successful completion of 24 semester hours of course work, plus a thesis (6 credit hours) based on a proposal approved by the student's committee. The completed thesis is defended orally before the committee, and the committee conducts an oral comprehensive examination covering the student's field(s) of study (unless the written comprehensive examination was taken previously and passed).

Non-thesis option:

Successful completion of 36 semester hours of course work, at least 18 hours of which must be in courses open only to graduate students. At least half of the 36 hours must be in the student's area of concentration. In lieu of thesis, an independent research or creative project, based on a proposal approved by the student's committee, may be formulated in writing, video, or film; plus a written comprehensive examination covering the student's major emphasis and minor or area studies, judged by a faculty committee.

COUNSELING AND GUIDANCE

Students may begin a program of studies in Counseling and Guidance at any one of three starting times during the course of the year. Once a program is begun, students are expected to pursue the program on a continuous enrollment basis. Fulltime study is encouraged, however, provision is made for those unable to devote more than part-time to their program. All students are required to follow a sequence of course-work, whether full or part-time, and must consult their advisor to determine this sequence. Failure to do so could possibly result in a delayed completion date.

Students obtain a Master's degree in Counseling and Guidance with an area of specialization. Current specialty areas include Elementary School Counseling, Secondary School Counseling (both of which require current teaching certificates for endorsement as a Counselor in Nebraska or Iowa). Agency Counseling, College Student Personnel Services, and Counseling in Gerontology.

Required courses are determined in relation to the student's previous coursework, experience and anticipated work setting. Most programs however would fit within one of the general outlines given

Students are admitted and permitted to continue programs in Counseling and Guidance on the basis of their potential for successful training and professional practice.

Major points where students are evaluated with respect to their suitability for continuation in the program are 1) initial admissions to Graduate Studies and Department, 2) admission to degree candidacy and 3) prior to taking the Counseling Practicum or Internship courses. Successful completion of a Counseling Practicum or Internship is a requirement for graduation.

The Counseling and Guidance Department has admissions requirements and procedures in addition to those applicable to Graduate Studies as a whole, and prospective students are strongly encouraged to contact the Department regarding these admissions requirements and procedures. One such exception from the general Graduate Studies procedures are the different admissions deadlines for Counseling and Guidance.

The last date for filing admissions credentials for admission to the Department of Counseling and Guidance is April 23 for either Summer Session and the Fall Semester of 1980, and November 30 for the Spring Semester of 1981. Students are admitted to the programs in Counseling and Guidance twice each year. If students wish to begin the program at a different time from those indicated, they may discuss this with faculty in the department.

NOTE: Non-counseling degree students may obtain an elective option in Affective Humanization Processes. This consists of a 12-hour block of courses which must be authorized by Dr. Harl Jarmin in the Counseling and Guidance Department and the student's advisor for this to be officially included as part of the student's degree program.

Master of Arts

Programs for the Master of Arts degree with a major in counseling and guidance will be determined by the major adviser upon request.

Master of Science

Specialization in Agency Counseling I Foundation Course3 hours FED 801V. Introduction to Research II. Selected Cognate Courses 6-15 hours These courses are selected in accordance with student's particular area . 22-28 hours III. Counseling and Guidance Courses COUN 890M, Principles of Guidance and Counseling COUN 820V, Introduction to Counseling Theories COUN 822V. Occupational and Educational Information COUN 823V. Appraisal Techniques in Counseling and Guidance COUN 824V, Counseling Practices COUN 825V, Counseling Practicum COUN 829V. Community Involvement for Urban Counselors Selected additional courses in the department. Specialization in School Counseling - Secondary Level* I. Foundation Course. 3 hours FED 801V. Introduction to Research 6-15 hours II. Selected Cognate Courses .. These are most often selected from offerings of the Psychology, Sociology, Secondary Education and Special Education departments. 22-28 hours III. Counseling and Guidance Courses COUN 890M. Principles of Guidance and Counseling COUN 820V. Introduction to Counseling Theories COUN 821V. Organization and Administration of Guidance Services COUN 822V, Occupational and Educational Information COUN 823V. Appraisal Techniques in Counseling and Guidance COUN 824V. Counseling Practices COUN 825V, Counseling Practicum Selected additional courses in the department. Specialization in School Counseling — Elementary Level* Foundation Course. .. 6 hours

FED 801V. Introduction to Research

^{*}Teaching certificate required for institutional endorsement to serve as secondary or elementary school counselors in Nebraska or

12 hrs.

15 hrs.

12 hrs.

50	UNIVERSITI OF NEBRASIKA AT OMAMA	
	PSYCH 851V. Advanced Educational Psychology	6 12 hours
11.		- Chaption and
	Selected Cognate Courses These are most often selected from offerings of the Psychology, Sociology, Elementar	ry Education and
	Special Education departments.	10.27 1
111.	Counseling and Guidance Courses	19-27 nours
	COUN 890M. Principles of Guidance and Counseling	
	COLIN 820V Introduction to Counseling Theories	
	COLIN 831V Child Assessment in Elementary School Guidance	
	Practicum or Internship	(4-6 hours)
	Selected additional courses in the department.	
	Specialization in College Student Personnel Services	• 1
1.	Foundation Course	3 hours
11.	Selected County Courses	6-15 hours
• • •	These courses are selected in accordance with the student's particular	
	area of interest. Most often these courses are taken in the departments	
	to the liberty of the second o	
111.	Counciling and Guidance Courses	21-27 hours
	The pattern of coursework is individually designed to prepare the stu-	
	dent for specific roles within the field of student personnel services, i.e.,	
	Admissions and Registrations, Counseling, Housing, Financial Aids, Place-	
	Counseling with specialization in Gerontology	7 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
1.	Foundation Course	nours
11.	Counseling and Guidance Courses	23-28 nours
	COUN 890. Principles of Guidance and Couns.	
	COLIN 820. Introduction to Counseling Theories	
	COUN 822V. Occupational and Educational Information	
	COUN 823V, Appraisal Techniques in Counseling & Guidance	
	COUN 824V. Counseling Practices	
	COUN 825V, Counseling Practicum	
	COUN 826V. Guidance Internship	
	COUN 827V. Group Techniques in Guidance	
	Selected other courses in the Department	13 15 hours
111.	Gerontology Courses	12-13 nours
	These courses are selected with the major advisor's	
	assistance and in collaboration with the Gerontology	
	Program.	
	The second of th	
	CRIMINAL JUSTICE	

CRIMINAL JUSTICE

Degree Programs

The Criminal Justice Department offers the student a choice of either a Master of Science or a Master of Arts Degree in Criminal Justice. Both degree programs emphasize criminal justice research, planning and administration.

Admission Requirements for the Criminal Justice Graduate Program

All candidates must have a minimum of 18 semester hours of Criminal Justice or related courses which represent the core undergraduate curriculum. In addition, all candidates must have completed a basic statistics course, a research methods course, and a minimum of 15 hours in the Social Science area at the undergraduate level. Those students lacking these requirements will be required to make up these deficiencies during the first year of graduate work.

Master of Arts

The Master of Arts degree is a 30 credit-hour program designed to emphasize research activity and independent inquiry, while simultaneously providing fundamental course work. This degree is especially recommended for those students seeking an interim degree prior to obtaining the Ph.D.

To earn the Master of Arts degree in Criminal Justice, the student must satisfactorily complete the

following course requirements: Required Core Courses 801V. Criminal Justice Planning and Innovation 802V, Seminar in the Administration of Justice 812V Criminal Justice Research Theory and Methodology

Elective Courses

(student selects three (3) courses with advisor's approval)

807V, Theoretical Criminology 808V, Seminar in the Processes of the Criminal Justice System 809V. Seminar in Delinquency Prevention. Control, and Correction 811V. Special Problems in Criminal Justice 814V, Independent Study **Elective Cognate Courses** 6 hrs. In consultation with an advisor the student selects two (2) courses in a related field. Suggested fields include, but are not limited to: Business Administration, Psychology, Political Science, Social Work, Sociology, and Public Administration. Completion of and Successful Defense of Thesis 6 hrs.

Master of Science

The Master of Science degree is a 36 credit-hour non-thesis program designed to emphasize research, planning, and administration, while simultaneously providing fundamental course work. This degree program offers the student a choice of either the standard Master of Science curriculum or a Master of Science with an option in Public Administration. The Public Administration option is especially recommended for administrators or future administrators within the Criminal Justice System.

To earn the Master of Science Degree in Criminal Justice, the student must satisfactorily complete the following course work:

Required Core Courses 801V, Criminal Justice Planning and Innovation 802V. Seminar in Administration of Justice 812V, Criminal Justice Research Theory and Methodology Elective Courses (student selects four (4) courses with advisor's approval) 803V. Comparative Law Enforcement Systems 804V, Seminar in Community Services and Treatment 807V. Theoretical Criminology 808V. Seminar in the Processes of the Criminal Justice System 809V, Seminar in Delinquency Prevention, Control, and Correction 811V. Special Problems in Criminal Justice

Elective Cognate Courses In consultation with an advisor the student selects five (5) courses in a related field. Suggested fields include, but are not limited to: Business Administration, Psychology, Political Science, Social

Satisfactory completion of the comprehensive examination is also required.

Master of Science **Public Administration Option** To earn the Master of Science Degree in Criminal Justice, Public Administration Option, the stu-

dent must satisfactorily complete the following course requirements: 9 hrs. Required Criminal Justice Core Courses 801V. Seminar in Criminal Justice Planning and Innovation 802V. Seminar in Administration of Justice 812V, Criminal Justice Research Theory and Methodology 12 hrs. Required Public Administration Core Courses 840M, Public Budgeting or 848V, Seminar in Public Financial Management if credit has been earned in 441/841M

842V. Seminar: Introduction to Public Organization 844V. Seminar in Organization Development in Public Agencies **Elective Criminal Justice Courses** (student selects four (4) courses with advisor's approval)

803V. Comparative Law Enforcement Systems 804V, Seminar in Community Services and Treatment 805V. Seminar in Criminal Jurisprudence 807V, Theoretical Criminology

808V. Seminar in the Processes of the Criminal Justice System 809V. Seminar in Delinquency. Prevention. Control and Correction

811V. Special Problems in Criminal Justice 814V, Independent Study

803V. Comparative Law Enforcement Systems 804V, Seminar in Community Services and Treatment

Elective Public Administration Courses

9 hrs.

814V. Independent Study

In consultation with an advisor the student selects one (1) course from the Public Administration Satisfactory completion of the comprehensive examination or an alternative problem solving exer-

DRAMATIC ARTS

Master of Arts

An applicant for graduate study in Dramatic Arts must present a minimum of 15 undergraduate semester hours in appropriate courses in dramatic arts beyond the introductory course. Deficiencies must be made up during the first year of graduate study.

The graduate program in dramatic arts is designed to insure that students are familiar with the field as a whole and prepared to demonstrate their mastery in a written comprehensive examination at the conclusion of their course work. All candidates are required to take a course in research methods and to complete one of the following plans of study:

Option I:

Successful completion of 24 semester hours of course work including at least 12 hours in V-level courses; plus a thesis (6 credit hours) based on a proposal approved by the student's committee and defended orally when completed before the commit-

tee.

Option II:

Successful completion of 33 semester hours of course work including at least 12 hours in V-level courses; plus a final project (3 credit hours) in playwriting, directing, acting, scenic design, costume design, or lighting design which will be orally defended upon completion.

ECONOMICS

Master of Arts

An applicant for admission to the program for the Master of Arts degree with a major in Economics must have the equivalent of 15 undergraduate semester hours in Economics.

Degree Requirements: The course program must include a balanced coverage of the major areas in economics. At least 15 hours of the required 30 hours, including thesis, must be courses numbered at the 800V-level or above. Students must also satisfactorily complete Economics 820V, 822V, and 829V.

The course work under the Master of Arts program consists of 24 hours and 6 hours of thesis under course 899. Thesis.

Master of Science

An applicant for admission to the program for the Master of Science degree with a major in economics must have the equivalent of 15 undergraduate semester hours in economics.

Degree Requirements: The course program must include a balanced coverage of the major areas in economics. At least 18 hours of the required 36 hours must be approved at the 800V-level or above. Students must also satisfactorily complete Economics 820V, 822V, and 829V.

There are two basic options for students seeking a Master of Science. Option I consists of a total of 36 hours of course work. Option II, a student takes 30 semester hours of course work and writes two research papers on topics approved by the Graduate Study Committee, each paper worth three semester hours.

This is also a degree where teachers K-12 grades may concentrate on research concerning economic education in the schools.

As part of the required 36 hours, graduate course work in related fields may be taken, up to a total of not more than 12 semester hours.

EDUCATIONAL ADMINISTRATION AND SUPERVISION

Master of Science

An applicant for admission to the program for the Master of Science degree in educational administration and supervision (with endorsement) must hold a Bachelor's degree from an accredited institution and be certificated at either or both the elementary or secondary teaching level. The degree program of at least 36 semester hours must include balanced coverage of the major areas of educational administration and supervision.

An applicant for admission to the program for the Master of Science degree in educational administration and supervision (without endorsement) must hold a Bachelor's degree from an accredited institution

As part of the 36 hour program, graduate course work in related fields may be taken, up to a total of not more than 12 semester hours.

All programs will be designed with the student's needs in mind and will be developed by the student with advice and counsel of his major advisor.

Specialist in Education

An applicant for admission to the Specialist in Education degree in the department of Educational Administration and Supervision must hold a Master's degree and present acceptable evidence of having served as a certified school administrator or supervisor. These programs of study are designed to best harmonize the student's needs and ambitions. Articulated with the Master's Degree, the total program must accumulate to not less than 66 graduate semester hours. The program is carried out un-

der the direction of a graduate faculty supervisory committee. Prior to admission to candidacy, all students must successfully pass the designated qualifying examination.

EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATIONS

The following courses provide a broad foundational basis for more advanced work in graduate education. They are designed to initiate students in education into a more thorough and critical understanding of basic educational issues. As introductory courses, the following courses can be applied for credit in most graduate programs in education.

FED 801. Introduction to Research	3 hours
FED 802, History and Philosophy of Education	3 hours
FED 806, Education and Society	3 hours
FED 807, Alternative Strategies in Urban Education	3 hours
FED 809. The Urban School	3 hours
FED 811, Conflict and Controversy in Urban Education	3 hours

For more information call the Department of Educational Foundations and Urban Education, 554-2712.

MASTER OF SCIENCE IN EDUCATION

Major in Urban Education

The Master of Science program in Urban Education is designed for graduate students who are interested in exploring the contemporary issues confronting urban educational institutions. The range and depth of the inter-disciplinary course offerings in this program provide varied, challenging, and relevant experiences for both classroom teachers and community workers in allied professional fields. Students in this thirty-six hour program will increase their competence and expertise in functioning not only in the educational setting of the urban classroom, but also within the wider community milieu.

It is expected that students will be able to critically analyze the logic and structure of the educational institution, and the inter-relationship of education and other primary socializing agencies.

Many of the courses offered in the program are designed specifically to facilitate an analysis of the

ethnic, racial, and social characteristics of the contemporary urban scene.

It is also expected that students will develop an awareness of and the ability to handle the learning problems of urban youth. The program emphasizes a cultural awareness and appreciation of the varied life-styles within the urban setting, and specific skills to function effectively as an educator. In addition, attention will be focused on a critique of existing programs and the development of new strategies for change and the improvement of education.

Entrance Requirements

Students interested in the degree program must initially:

- 1) Hold a Bachelor's degree from an accredited institution.
- Submit completed application forms for graduate studies together with the names of three references and a transcript of all previous college work.
- Complete an interview (where possible) with the Urban Education Committee.

Advancement to Candidacy

Before students can be advanced to candidacy, they must fulfill the following requirements:

- Complete the Graduate Record Examination verbal and quantitative. A low score may require supplemental work.
- Complete six graduate hours at UNO, one of which must be FED 801V with grades of B or better.
- 3) Complete an interview (where possible) with the Urban Education Committee.

Graduation Requirements

For a student to graduate from the program with the Master's degree in Urban Education he/she must fulfill the following requirements:

- Complete a minimum of thirty-six graduate hours. (Eighteen required, six to nine from the Primary Electives and a minimum of nine from the Secondary Electives List.)
- 2) Assist and/or participate in departmental colloquim activities.
- 3) Complete satisfactorily both the written and oral sections of the comprehensive examinations.
- 4) Complete practicum and/or field study in the immediate locale, another American metropolitan area, or overseas.

POL.SCI 812M, Public Opinion and Political Behavior....

PROGRAM

This program will consist of a minimum of thirty-six hours selected from the following course offerings. Eighteen hours are required; six to nine hours to be selected from the Primary Electives and a minimum of nine hours to be selected from the Secondary Electives.

Primary Electives (6 to 9 Hours)

FED 806V, Education and Society (F)	3 Hours
FED 810V, Practicum or Special Projects (F:S:SS)	3Hours
FED 813M, Field Research in Urban Education (S)	3 Hours
FED 818M, Mental Health (F:S:SS)	3 Hours
FED 833V, Anthropology & Urban Education (S)	3 Hours
FED 898M, Growth and Learning Problems of the Disadvantaged (F:SS)	Hours

g i totalia a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a	110013
Secondary Electives (Minimum of 9 Hours)	
Students may substitute other courses with approval of Urban Education	n Committee:
Business Administration	
BA 811H, Survey of Accounting	3 Hours
BA 818H, Analytical Foundations of Economics	3 Hours
BA 831V, Human Behavior in Organizations	3 Hours
Counseling & Guidance	
COUN 890M. Principles of Guidance	3 Hours
COUN 821 V. Organization & Administration of Guidance Services	3 Hours
COUN 829V Community Involvement	3 Hours
Economics	
ECON 811M, Government and Labor	3 Hours
ECON 818M, Collective Bargaining	3 Hours
ECON 803V, Economic Education	3 Hours
ECON 806V, Economic Education II	2.11
ECON 880V. Independent Study in Hebanism	
ECON 884V, Interdisciplinary Seminar on Urban Community	7.11
ECON 886V, Seminar in Urban Economics	riours
Educational Administration	Hours
ED AD 835V, Foundations of Educational Administration & Supervision	
FD AD 849V Theory & Practice of Constraints action & Supervision	3 Hours
ED AD 849V, Theory & Practice of Supervision	3 Hours
ED AD 871V, Interpersonal Relationships in Educational Administration	3 Hours
Elementary Education EL ED 840V. Innovations and Trends in the Elementary School	
EL ED 843V, Introduction to Curriculum Planning	
EL ED 845 V, Introduction to Curriculum Planning	
GEOG 912M Habon Court	
GEOG 812M, Urban Geography	3 Hours
GEOG 890M, Urbanization	3 Hours
GEOG 821 V, Cultural Geography	Hours
Gerontology	
GERO 810M, Educational Gerontology	3 Hours
Health, Physical Education & Recreation	
REC 824, Organization & Administration of Recreation	3 Hours
ri i i 855M, Health Aspects of Aging	2 11
PE 825M, Sports in American Culture	3 Hours
HIST 812M, American Social and Intellectual History since 1865	2 11
DIST 02/M, 20th Century America to 1933	
HIST 828M, 20th Century America, 1933 to present.	Houis
HIST 844M, American Urban History Since 1870	3 Hours
Journalism	Hours
JOUR 823M, Public Relations	
IOUR 850M Mass Communications and Bubble Opinion	3 Hours
JOUR 850M, Mass Communications and Public Opinion	3 Hours
Political Science	

Psychology

PSY 856V, Learning in Children	3 Hour
PSY 859V, Social and Personality Development	3 Hour
PSY 832V, Tests and Measurements	3 Hour
Secondary Education	
SED 825V, Seminar in Secondary Education	3 Hour
SED 830, Emerging School Curriculum.	3 Hour
SED 833, Analysis of Teacher Behavior	3 Hour
Social Work	
SW 820M, Human Behavior and the Social Environment I	4 Hour
SW 822M, Physical Components of Social Functioning	2 Hour
SW 857M, Public Welfare Organization	2 Hours
SW 961M, Public Social Welfare Policy	2 Hours
Sociology	
SOC 801M, Social Control of Behavior	3 Hours
SOC 802M. Collective and Exchange Behavior	3 Hour
SOC 803M, Advanced General Sociology	3 Hours
SOC 810M, The Community	3 Hours
SOC 813M, Sociology of Deviant Behavior	3 Hours
SOC 814M, Urban Sociology	3 Hours
SOC 815M. Seminar in Cross Cultural Communication	
SOC 815M, Seminar in Cross Cultural Communication (also 853M Speech)	3 Hour
SOC 862M, Complex Social Organizations	3 Hours
SOC 875M. Social Change	3 Hours
SOC 880V, Independent Study on Urbanism	1-3 Hours
Urban Studies	
US 801V, The Metropolis as a Public Enemy	3 Hours
US 802V, Race Ethnicity, and American Urban Culture	3 Hours

ELEMENTARY AND EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION

Master of Arts

Programs for the Master of Arts degree with a major in elementary education will be determined by the major adviser upon request.

Master of Science

Admission to the Program

- 1. An applicant must hold a valid elementary school teaching certificate.
- 2. Unconditional admission is granted if/and when:
 - a. undergraduate major average is 3.0 or above.
 - b. Graduate Record Examinations are completed with acceptable scores.
 - c. any undergraduate deficiencies are made up.
- Graduate Record Examinations (Verbal, Quantitative, and Advanced Education) must be taken before a second registration. An acceptable score must be earned.

Candidacy for the Degree

..3 Hours

- A plan of study and admission to candidacy are completed in conference with the student's adviser when six (6) hours of graduate work have been completed. This plan of study must be approved by the Department and the Graduate Office.
- 2. A written comprehensive examination is required during the semester in which a student completes the program. Application for the examination must be made to the Director of Graduate Studies in the department. The examination covers coursework taken and its content is determined by each individual student's program.

Degre	ee Program
Ĭ.	Required Courses21 hours
	FED 801V, Introduction to Research
	FED 802V. History and Philosophy of Education
	EED 819V, Diagnostic and Corrective Instruction
	EED 840V, Innovations and Trends in Elementary Education
	EED 843V, Introduction to Curriculum Planning — Elementary
	EED 844V, Seminar in Elementary Education

ance, Improvement of Instruction, Learning Disabilities, Urban Education, Educational Administration, Educational Media, or an academic concentration, e.g., history, English, mathematics.

Electives 3-6 hours

Non-Degree-Seeking Students

Students who are not planning to pursue the program leading to a Master's degree are allowed to take courses for which they meet the prerequisites. Their graduate adviser will confer with them in planning for such courses.

ENGLISH

Master of Arts

To be admitted to graduate study in English, a student should have completed at least eighteen credit hours in undergraduate English courses above the freshman level with an average grade of "B" or above.

All candidates for Master of Arts degrees with majors in English are required to take English 801V (Introduction to Literary Research) within the first nine hours of graduate study, and to complete one

of the following plans of study:

Plan A: Successful completion of 24 credit hours in course work, including at least 12 hours in 800V- or 900-level courses; plus a thesis (6 credit hours) on an approved topic accepted after oral defense before a faculty committee; plus a written examination prepared and judged by a faculty committee.

Plan B: Successful completion of 36 credit hours in course work, including at least 18 hours in 800V- or 900-level courses; plus a written examination prepared and judged by a faculty

The following English seminars in major periods vary in emphasis and may be repeated for credit: English 806V, 808V, 809V, 810V, 813V, 820V, 898V, 912, 915.

NOTE: The English Department offers a Certificate in Course in Teaching English as a Second Language:

- 1. Satisfactory completion of the following four courses:
 - a. Eng. 858M, Introduction to Linguistics
 - b. Eng. 878M, Structure of English
 - c. Eng. 896M, Studies in Linguistics (Applied Linguistics)
 - d. Eng. 896M, Studies in Linguistics (Teaching English as a Second Language)
- 2. For all students except those with a major or teaching field concentration in a foreign language, demonstrated oral and written competence in a second language as certified by the Department of Foreign Languages.
- 3. For students whose language of nurture is not English, demonstrated oral and written mastery of English as certified by the Department of English.

The Certificate in Course, granted by the Board of Regents, is not a certificate to teach in the public schools of Nebraska or any other state. It is an academic credential only. Students who want certification to teach in the public schools must follow the procedures and courses of study prescribed by the College of Education. The requirements for certification to teach English as a second language in American public schools vary widely from state to state.

THE MASTER OF ARTS DEGREE WITH A MAJOR IN GENERAL SCIENCE

This graduate degree is designed to provide a broad scientific background for students who wish to gain greater proficiency in the natural sciences. The program for the Master of Arts with a major in General Science will be directed by a Graduate Science Committee consisting of representatives (recommended by their respective graduate faculties and approved by the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research) of biology, chemistry, geology-physical geography, and physics. The Graduate Science Committee may prescribe such tests as it deems necessary in order to determine if an applicant is adequately prepared for graduate work, and will supervise the final oral examination. Each candidate will be assigned an advisor who will be responsible for the candidate's curriculum and thesis in accordance with the policies established by the Graduate Science Committee and the Graduate Council.

Prerequisites: An applicant for full admission to the graduate program must present a Bachelor's degree. In addition, eight semester hours of credit must be presented in each of the four natural sci-

Degree Requirements: The degree requires a minimum of thirty-six (36) semester hours for completion. Candidates must complete a minimum of thirty (30) semester hours of approved course work and, in addition, submit a thesis, credit for which will be allowed to a maximum of six (6) semester hours. Courses leading to the degree will be distributed across the natural science areas according to the needs of the student, with a maximum of twenty (20) semester hours (not including thesis) allowed in any one field. In general, the student's program will include at least one course in each of the four natural science areas. Any deficiency in the prerequisites must be made up but may not be counted as a part of the thirty-six (36) hour graduate requirements.

GEOGRAPHY AND GEOLOGY

The department offers the following degrees with a major in geography: the Master of Arts degree and the Master of Science degree.

The Master of Arts with a major in geography is intended for those preparing themselves in areas other than physical geography: whereas, the Master of Science with a major in geography is intended for students electing to do major work in physical geography. Each degree has two options:

Option I should be chosen by those preparing for careers in research and scholarly work, or in college or university teaching. The option requires a minimum of 24 semester hours in geography courses

numbered 800M-800V and 900, and thesis 1-6 hours for a combined total of 30 hours.

Option II may be chosen upon the advise and with the approval of the major adviser. This option requires a minimum of 36 semester hours in geography courses numbered 800M or 800V-900, or selected cognate courses in other departments. No thesis is required for this option. Students who have taken the degree under Option II and later elect to continue in graduate work for the Ph.D., will not be encouraged by the department to continue unless evidence of ability to carry on independent research is presented.

Admission Requirements

An applicant for admission to either the Master of Arts or the Master of Science degree program in geography must present as a prerequisite a minimum of 15 undergraduate semester hours of geography including Physical (106 or 107 or 117) and Cartography (353) or the equivalent. Those students not meeting minimal course requirements must remove any deficiency during the first year of gradu-

Individual programs of study will be designed for incoming graduate students on the basis of GRE scores and personal interview. This should enable each student and his adviser to construct a program

oriented to individual needs and desires.

Basic courses required for either an M.A. or M.S. degree include Geography Concepts; History and Philosophy of Geography, 801V; and Geography Concepts; Quantitative Methods, 802V; and Field Geography, 861V. In addition, all students will be required to attend General Seminar. The remainder of the program shall consist of courses selected by the student with the advice and consent of an advising committee.

GERONTOLOGY

Certificate in Gerontology

While UNO does not offer a graduate degree in Gerontology, a Specialization in Gerontology is available. The Board of Regents has established a Certificate in Gerontology that will be awarded upon completion of requirements for the Specialization. The Specialization may serve as an academic minor for students majoring in many of the social and behavioral sciences at the graduate level. Requirements

Students wishing to work toward the Certificate in Gerontology must make application and be accepted into the Gerontology Program. Those working toward a graduate degree must also be

accepted into the degree program of their major department.

- Coursework requirements consist of a minimum of 15 semester hours in Gerontology. The only required course is GERO 811M-Applied Social Gerontology (3 semester hours); the other 12 hours (usually four graduate level courses) in Gerontology are selected by the student in consultation with the Academic Coordinator of the Gerontology Program. In this manner, individualized programs of study are developed for each student to best meet his or her career goals and interests.
- 3. A one semester full-time practicum or its equivalent is also required. The goal of this is to give each student practical one-on-one experience with the aged in a service program or agency delivering services to the elderly. Practicum students must register for GERO 894M-Practicum and participate in periodic seminars with the Practicum Supervisor of the Gerontology Pro-

Example of a program of study

Each individual program of study will be tailored to the needs and interests of each student. Below is an example of what one program of study might look like:

GERO 811M—Applied Social Gerontology (3 semester hours) — required of all students at the

graduate level.

GERO 810M—Educational Gerontology (3 semester hours) GERO 846M—Aging and Human Behavior (3 semester hours)

GERO 867M—Programs and Services for the Aging (3 semester hours)

GERO 898M—Counseling Skills in Gerontology (3 semester hours) GERO 894M—Practicum (0-6 semester hours)

HEALTH, PHYSICAL EDUCATION, AND RECREATION

The School of Health, Physical Education, and Recreation offers graduate courses in the areas of health education (HED), recreation education (RED), and physical education (PE). At present, the Master of Arts and the Master of Science degrees are offered with a major in physical education.

Master of Science Major in Physical Education

To be admitted to this degree program, students must possess an undergraduate major or minor in physical education or related field. Students pursuing the Master of Science Degree with a major in physical education will select course work from the four areas indicated below. Minimum and maximum hours that must be included from each area are indicated where such limits are applicable. The student in consultation with the major adviser will determine the exact courses leading to the degree.

AREA		НО	URS
I.	PE Core PE 822V Problems and Issues in Physical Education	Min 12	Max 12
	PE 828V Curriculum in Physical Education PE 840V Motor Learning and Performance		
••	PE 845V Kinesiological Analysis of Motor Skills		
11.	Research Research Methods, Statistical Methods	3	•
Ш.	Professional Specialization Improvement of Instruction	3	•
	Teaching Seminars, Workshops, Independent Research, Special Studies		
IV.	Related Academic Courses	•	18

Master of Arts Major in Physical Education

To be admitted to this degree program, students must possess an undergraduate major or minor in physical education or related field. Students pursuing the Master of Arts Degree with a major in physical education will select course work from the five areas indicated below. Minimum and maximum hours that must be included from each area are indicated where such limits are applicable. The student in consultation with the major adviser will determine the exact courses leading to the degree.

AREA		HOURS		
1.	PE Core		Min 12	Max 12
	PE 822V Problems and Issues in Physical Education PE 828V Curriculum in Physical Education			
	PE 840V Motor Learning and Performance			
	PE 845V Kinesiological Analysis of Motor Skills			
11.	Research		3	
	Research Methods, Statistical Methods		3	
П.	Professional Specialization		3	
	Improvement of Instruction.			
	Teaching Seminars, Workshops, Independent			
	Research, Special Studies			
	Related Academic Courses		•	18
V.	Thesis		6	6
V. V.	Research, Special Studies Related Academic Courses			

^{*}Minimums or maximums are determined by adviser.

ARFA

HISTORY Master of Arts Admission to M.A. Program

To be admitted unconditionally a student must present 21 (twenty-one) hours of undergraduate preparation in History with at least a 3.00 average in those hours: further, to be admitted unconditionally, the student must have achieved a grade average of 2.75 in his overall undergraduate work and must follow all other admission requirements for Graduate Studies.

 Students may be admitted provisionally who have less than 21 (twenty-one) hours of undergraduate preparation, or who have not achieved a 2.75 overall grade average. They shall be removed from provisional status when they become eligible for and have achieved candidacy.

M.A. Program with Thesis (Option I)

The program for the Master of Arts degree (Option I) with a major in History will usually be arranged to conform to one of the following general patterns:

Ia. 24 semester hours of approved graduate courses in History, 9 of which must be in courses open only for graduate registration, i.e., seminars. The other 15 hours may be either lecture courses or courses numbered 801V and no more than 6 hours of credit may be taken by a student under this number. A balance of 15 and 9 must be maintained between major and minor areas of study. Seminar study should be divided two and one, depending upon the student's area of concentration.

Ib. 15 semester hours of approved graduate courses in History including 9 hours of seminars, plus 9 approved hours of graduate course work in a related field, such 9 hours constituting a graduate minor. The minor department must be consulted to determine the student's eligibility to do graduate work in that department.

In either program of study, a thesis, not to exceed 6 semester hours in independent study credit, is required under the direction of the major adviser.

M.A. Program without Thesis (Option II)

- Under this plan the student may earn a Master of Arts degree by completing successfully
 thirty-six hours of course work, at least half of which must be earned in courses open only to
 graduate students (V series). No more than nine (9) hours of credit may be taken by a student
 under courses numbered 801V.
- In addition to showing broad competency in history, the candidate must give proof of research ability and proficiency in writing. This normally will be done in research seminars and independent research projects.
- 3. While there is no requirement for a minor in some field other than history, the student may elect to take a minor in some other field, such minor to consist of no less than six graduate hours and no more than nine graduate hours. Permission to take a six hour minor may be gained by the adviser's permission, and the approval of the Graduate Program Committee.
- 4. Whether or not the student elects a minor in an outside field, he shall maintain a reasonable balance between American and non-American fields in history.
- 5. When the student initially enrolls, he shall, in conference with the chairperson of the Graduate Program Committee of the Department of History, choose his adviser. The chairperson of the History Graduate Program Committee shall, after consultation with the student and his adviser, recommend an advisory committee to the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research for official appointment. The advisory committee shall be composed of members of the Faculty appropriate to the student's program and academic interests. The chairperson of the advisory committee (and the representative of the minor field, if such field is selected) must be members of the Graduate Faculty.

PROCEDURE FOR COMPREHENSIVE EXAMINATION FOR NON-THESIS MASTER OF ARTS CANDIDATES IN HISTORY

- Early in the semester the candidate expects to take the degree, he/she must make arrangements with his/her sponsor to take the comprehensive written examination.
- The examination in history will consist of two parts, one devoted to the major area, and one to the minor area of study.
 - a. If the major area of study is European/English history, the examination will be comprehensive, taking into consideration the student's program of study. The non-European/English portion of the examination will be over the specific courses taken for the minor. The major area examination will be of six hours duration (two three-hour segments), and the minor area examination will be of three hours duration.
 - b. If the major area of study is American history, the examination will be comprehensive, divided into two three-hour segments, with the breaking point for the two segments normally following the breaking point of the American history survey (History 111-112) course. The minor portion of the examination will be over the specific minor courses taken, and will be of three hours duration.
 - c. If the candidate offers an outside minor, the minor department and adviser will be responsible for the minor examination.

3. The reading committee will consist of the sponsor and one other graduate faculty member expert in the major area. The readers for the minor area will be the instructors of the courses offered in the minor. In the major area, the selection of the second reader shall be made by the sponsor and candidate. Both readers of the major and all readers of the minor area must agree that the candidate has passed the examinations for which they are responsible. In the event of disagreement, a third reader may be consulted as a mediator, and the result he/she supports will be the result of the examination.

The sponsor and the reading committee will select the items to appear on the examination, and determine the number of essays to be written. The candidate will have a choice of questions on

each portion of the examination.

5. Once the examination has been administered and graded, the secretary has forms to be filled out by the sponsor, signed by the Graduate Program Committee chairperson, and sent to the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research, certifying the candidate for conferral of the degree.

6. In the event of failure of either all or a portion of the comprehensive examination at least four (4) months shall elapse before the examination in whole or in part may be retaken. Any reexamination must occur within twelve (12) months following the initial failure.

 In no event shall a student be permitted to take all or a portion of the comprehensive examination more than twice.

In planning for a comprehensive examination (or reexamination), students should be cognizant of the six-year limit for completion of degrees as set forth by the College for Graduate Studies and Research.

HOME ECONOMICS

Home Economics graduate offerings at UNO may be used as a minor (HDR or FN) for those pursuing programs in another discipline. The minor portion should be determined in consultation with a designated member of the Graduate Faculty from Home Economics.

UNO courses may also be used to satisfy recertification.

Admission to a graduate program in the College of Home Economics requires presentation of the baccalaureate degree from an accredited institution. Departments within the college may determine specific course deficiencies.

Application for a graduate degree program in Home Economics is to be made to Graduate Studies. Lincoln Campus: In addition to this, an important step to initiate a graduate program is to consul with the chairman of the appropriate department in Lincoln. Dean Hall, Omaha Division, will assist in making such appointments. For a graduate degree in Home Economics, it will normally be necessary to take some courses on the Lincoln campus, though additional graduate course offerings from the Lincoln listings will be available in Omaha periodically dependent upon demand and staff.

Interdepartmental area offers graduate work leading to the Master of Science or Master of Arts de-

Students applying for study in the Interdepartmental Area must hold a bachelor's degree in Home Economics or its equivalent. The undergraduate work must have included the equivalent of 24 hours in Home Economics, distributed in at least three subject matter areas and 20 hours in Natural and Social Sciences including a minimum of 9 hours in the Natural and 6 hours in the Social Sciences.

Work leading to the master's degree in Home Economics may be completed under Option I, II, or II. (See Graduate Studies Bulletin-Lincoln) If Option I is selected the thesis research may be done in any one of the four cooperating departments. Under any option not more than one-half of the total program for the master's degree. including thesis research when applicable, may be completed in the major subject matter areas. These subject matter areas are, Education and Family Resources; Food and Nutrition; Human Development and the Family, Textiles, Clothing and Design. At least 6 hours of the remaining work must be completed in one or more of the subject matter areas other than the major one. Additional supporting courses to complete the program may be carried in cooperating departments or in the departments outside of the College of Home Economics. However, if Option II is selected the required minor must be completed in a department other than those in the College of Home Economics, which can be an approved graduate program at UN-O.

Separate programs leading to the master's degree are also offered by the Department of Food and Nutrition and the Department of Human Development and the Family.

Food and Nutrition — Candidates for the Master of Science degree in Food and Nutrition must hold a Bachelor of Science degree or a Bachelor of Arts degree from an accredited college and have completed undergraduate preparation the equivalent of that required in the Basic General Education Core in Home Economics plus at least 10 hours exclusive of freshmen courses in Biochemistry, in Microbiology, and in Physiology for a total of at least 18 hours in Food and Nutrition, Chemistry and Biological Science.

Human Development and the Family — Candidates for the Master of Science degree in Human Development and the Family must hold a Bachelor of Science or a Bachelor of Arts degree from an accredited college and have completed undergraduate preparation the equivalent of that required in the Basic General Education Core in Home Economics plus a major of at least 18 hours of exclusive of

freshmen courses in Human Development and the Family or the equivalent from Psychology, Education Psychology or Sociology.

MATHEMATICS

Admission Requirements: Admission to a degree program is based on evidence of mathematical ability. An applicant is usually expected to have completed fifteen acceptable credits in undergraduate mathematics beyond calculus, and to have an overall average of B or better during the last two undergraduate years. In some cases where the above criterion is not met, a provisional admission may be granted provided the applicant is willing to take some preliminary course work that will not apply towards the degree.

Master of Science

To obtain the Master of Science degree, the student must:

- a. Earn a total of 36 acceptable credits, at least 24 of which must be in mathematics.
- . Choose mathematics courses which carry a number of 800M or above and at least 18 credit hours which carry a number of 800V or above.
- c. Include mathematics courses 823M-824M, 827M and one of the following sequences: 811M-812M, 830M-831M, 853M-854M.
- Maintain a "B" average in all of his work with no grade lower than a "C," and no more than two grades of "C."
- Pass a written comprehensive examination.

Master of Arts

To obtain the Master of Arts degree, the student must:

- a. Earn a total of 30 credits in mathematics.
- Complete a thesis not to exceed 6 semester hours, which may be applied toward the 30-hour total.
- c. Complete the requirements of b. c, d, and e above.

Admission Requirements for Master of Arts for Teachers of Mathematics (M.A.T.):

A student meeting the following two conditions will be admitted to the M.A.T. program:

- 1. has state certification for teaching secondary school mathematics.
- has maintained at least a "B" average in previous mathematics course work including at least two courses beyond elementary calculus.

The above conditions are considered normative and a student not meeting them may be admitted to the program only as a result of special action by the M.A.T. program committee.

Master of Arts for Teachers of Mathematics

To obtain the M.A.T. degree, the student must:

- a. Earn a total of 36 credits, of which 24 must be in mathematics.
- Include in his program mathematics courses 801T, 802T, 803T, 804T, 823J-870J (Courses 823J-870J may be waived if the equivalent undergraduate courses have been taken).
- c. Include in his program secondary education courses 850V, 853V, and at least one additional secondary education course selected from 825V, 830V, 833V, 890M, 846V, or 936V.
- d. As listed under the Master of Science above.
- e. As listed under the Master of Science above.

POLITICAL SCIENCE

Admission Requirements: An applicant for admission to the Master of Arts or Master of Science program must present, as a prerequisite, a minimum of fifteen semester hours of undergraduate course work in Political Science or their equivalent as determined by the departmental Graduate Admissions Committee. For unconditional admission the applicant must have at least a 3.0 grade point average in undergraduate political science course work and must satisfy the Graduate College GRE requirements. In addition, the department requires two letters of recommendation from persons who are in a position to evaluate the applicant's potential for graduate studies before an applicant can be considered for unconditional admission.

Master of Arts

Degree Requirements: The program is intended for those who expect to pursue a doctoral degree. The student must satisfactorily complete thirty semester hours, twenty-four of course work and six of

thesis supervision. Students must maintain a "B" (3.0) average in their course work, receiving no more than one "C." The thesis is expected to be a mature piece of scholarship. From the four subfields of Political Theory. American Politics, Comparative Politics and International Politics, the student will select an emphasis in two. Twelve hours of course work will be taken in one area of emphasis and six hours in the other. The remaining course work is elective and may include cognate courses in related disciplines. Of the twenty-four hours of course work twelve hours must be at the "V" level, including 800V (Research Methods). There will be comprehensive examinations in the two emphasized fields and an oral defense of the thesis.

Master of Science

Degree Requirements: This advanced non-thesis program is specifically designed to enhance career goals in the public service, education and business fields. Thirty-six hours of course work are required with a minimum of eighteen hours at the "V" level, including 800V (Research Methods). The student will select courses from the Political Science curriculum but may include up to nine hours of cognate courses in related disciplines. Students must maintain a "B" (3.0) average in their course work, receiving no more than one "C." Degree candidates must pass comprehensive examinations covering their areas of study. The aim is to tailor each student's program to fit his or her personal or career interests.

PSYCHOLOGY

Admission Requirements: A minimum of 15 undergraduate semester hours of psychology courses including basic statistics and an upper level laboratory course emphasizing the experimental method, data collection, statistical analysis, and report writing; Graduate Record Examination scores on the Verbal, Quantitative, and Advanced Psychology sections. Letters of recommendation are not required. However, applicants who believe that such letters would provide information that is important and not clearly communicated in other documents are encouraged to have one or more letters submitted in their behalf. Three letters of recommendation are required of those applicants who are seeking a departmental graduate assistantship or are applying to a post-masters program. Exceptions to these admission requirements can be made on an individual basis.

Master of Arts

To complete the M.A. degree with a major in psychology, the student must present 30 hours of graduate course work in psychology, or 21 hours in psychology plus 9 hours in a related minor field. Up to 6 hours of thesis credit are to be included in this total.

The student must choose one course from each of the following four groups. These courses must be completed within the first 16 hours of graduate work.

A. Psychology 904 (Proseminar in Learning)

B. Psychology 956 (Proseminar in Development) A. Psychology 921 (Proseminar in Perception)

B. Psychology 923 (Proseminar in Physiological Psychology)

A. Psychology 910 (Proseminar in Analysis of Variance)
 B. Psychology 911 (Proseminar in Factor Analysis)

IV. A. Psychology 943 (Proseminar in Personality) B. Psychology 944 (Proseminar in Social Psychology)

The student must earn a grade of at least B in the four required proseminars. If a C is earned, or a withdrawal (W) is recorded, in one proseminar the course may be repeated or the other in the group may be taken. Should two such grades (C and/or W) be recorded, the student will be dropped from the degree program. Under special circumstances (e.g. a W necessitated by illness, a unique academic record, etc.) the departmental Graduate Committee will entertain a petition for exemption from this rule.

The remainder of the student's course work is elective, but must be planned in conference with the academic adviser, in order to meet the individual needs and interests. Psychology 800V is a non-credit course intended to familiarize the beginning graduate student with the profession of psychology and is required of all graduate students in psychology. The student may emphasize one of the following areas: quantitative, physiological, general experimental, social, personality, developmental, educational, and industrial/organizational psychology. Final determination of a student's plan of study always resides with the adviser and the department. To meet the graduate college requirements, a student must take at least half of the work in courses which are open only to graduate students.

Master of Science

To complete the M.S. with a major in industrial/organizational psychology or the M.S. with a major in educational psychology, the student must present 36 hours of graduate course work in psychology, or 24 hours in psychology plus 12 hours in a related minor field. The M.S. degree has the same proseminar requirement as the M.A., and all rules concerning proseminar courses are the same in both degree programs, as well as the requirement of Psychology 800V.

Additional required course work may be designated by the department. This will ordinarily include up to 3 hours of practicum credit. Final determination of a student's plan of study always resides with

the adviser and the department. To meet the graduate studies requirements a student must take at least half of the work in courses which are open only to graduate students.

Specialist in Education

The Ed.S. degree requires completion of sixty-six graduate hours including those taken for the Master's degree. The requirements for this degree are the same as for those leading to certification as a School Psychologist with one addition. The degree candidate must write and defend a thesis which deals with research or supervised experience in the area of school psychology.

Doctor of Philosophy

Through a cooperative program with the University of Nebraska-Lincoln, programs are offered in Omaha leading to the Ph.D. in industrial/organizational, experimental child, and in developmental psychobiology. Students may be considered for admission to a doctoral program if they have completed or are doing excellent work toward their Masters degree which includes a demonstration of research skills. There is no generally specified language or research skill requirement, but each student is expected to demonstrate proficiency in languages, research skills, or knowledge in collateral research areas appropriate for the student's research interests as determined by his Supervisory Committee and the departmental Graduate Committee. Specific requirements and procedures for the Ph.D. degree are printed in the Graduate Studies Bulletin of the University of Nebraska-Lincoln.

Summary of Procedure for the Doctor of Philosophy Degree

This summary of procedure should be studied carefully in connection with the Graduate College calendar.

 Admission to the UNL Graduate College by the evaluation of official transcripts presented in person or by mail prior to registration.

2. Registration after consultation with advisers in major and minor departments.

Appointment by the UNL Graduate Office of a supervisory committee on the recommendation of the departmental or area Graduate Committee.

4. Submission to the UNL Graduate Office of a program approved by the supervisory committee setting forth the complete plan of study for the degree prior to completion of more than half of the minimum requirements.

5. Satisfactory completion of foreign language or research tool requirements set forth in the approved program and passing of comprehensive examinations in major and minor or related fields when the student's program of courses is substantially completed.

Submission to the UNL Graduate Office of a report from the supervisory committee on the specific research for the dissertation and progress to date.

7. Admission to candidacy for the Ph.D. degree by filing a report in the Graduate Office of the passing of the comprehensive examinations and the completion of language and research tool require-

ments (at least seven months before the final oral examination). The term of candidacy is limited to three years.

8. Filing of an application for the degree at the Registration and Records Office, Information Win-

8. Filing of an application for the degree at the Registration and Records Office, information window, 208 Administration Building at UNL. This application is effective during the current term only. It must be renewed at the appropriate time if requirements for graduation are not completed until during a later term.

Presentation of the dissertation and the abstract to the members of the reading committee in sufficient time for review and approval, which must be obtained at least three weeks prior to the final examination.

10. Presentation to the Graduate Office of two copies of the approved dissertation, three copies of the approved abstract, and the application for the final oral examination at least three weeks prior to the date of that examination.

11. Passing of any required final oral examination.

12. Deposition of two copies of the dissertation in proper form, one copy of the abstract, and a signed agreement for microfilming the dissertation and publication of the abstract, with the UNL Director of University Libraries. Delivery of the certificate of deposit, signed by members of the supervisory committee, the UNL Director of University Libraries, and UNL Comptroller, to the Graduate Office. In addition, one bound copy of the dissertation is to be deposited with the student's major department.

Professional Programs in the Area of School Psychology

Application

Application for admissions to the programs in school psychology must be filed with the School Psychology Committee of the Psychology Department. The application should include official transcripts of all previous college work, scores for the Graduate Record Examination Aptitude Test, a vita, and three letters of recommendation. Students who have not been admitted to Graduate Studies previously must apply to the Director of Admissions, also, Applications must be completed by April 1 for the following Fall semester. A second application period is possible, should openings exist. These applications must be completed by November 1 for the following Spring. Before a final decision is made concerning admission the applicant must be interviewed by at least two members of the School Psychology.

chology Committee.

School Psychologist

Students may take work leading to a recommendation for certification as a school psychologist. A minimum of thirty semester hours of work beyond the Masters degree is required for the recommendation. Filing of an acceptable plan of study with the Graduate Office will be required on admission to the program. Students will arrange their programs according to the subject matter areas below. In addition to the courses required for the thirty hours beyond the Masters degree the student must complete requirements for the Master of Science in Educational Psychology or its equivalent. Since individual students may have widely variant backgrounds, considerable flexibility is allowed in choice of electives. However, the final decision on the appropriateness of a program rests with the Psychology Department. Students should contact the School Psychology Committee when starting their studies in order to facilitate individual program planning. The student's advisor should be a member of the School Psychology Committee.

The Ed.S. degree in school psychology requires completion of sixty-six graduate hours including those taken for the Masters degree. The requirements for this degree are the same as for those leading to certification as a school psychologist with one addition. The degree candidate must write and defend a thesis which deals with research or supervised experience in the area of school psychology. The student must consult with the School Psychology Committee before starting the specialist project.

1. Required Courses in Psychological Methods

Psychology 831M (or 431) Psychological and Educational Testing

Psychology 800V The Profession of Psychology

Psychology 853V Individual Tests I

Psychology 854V Individual Tests II

Psychology 851V Advanced Educational Psychology

Psychology 958 Personality Assessment

Psychology 979 Topical Seminar in School Psychology (3-9 hours)

One of the following three courses

Psychology 855V Introduction to Therapeutic Techniques with Children

Psychology 857V Behavior Modification

Psychology 957 Applied Behavior Analysis

One of the following three courses

Psychology 855M (or 455) Retardation

Psychology 859M (or 459) Psychology of Exceptional Children

SPED 860M (or 460) Introduction to the Mentally Subnormal Child

2. Required Professional Education Courses

COUN 824V Counseling Practices

EDAD 835V Foundations of Educational Administration and Supervision

One of the following two courses:

Eled 843V, Introduction to Curriculum Planning-Elementary

SED 830V Emerging School Curriculum

3. Required Supporting Work

One to three courses in basic psychology (outside the student's area of specialization) and/or one to three courses in Special Education, Counseling and Guidance, or other professional education fields other than those specified as requirements. The student must also have had course work in both learning and developmental psychology.

Practicum in School Psychology

A minimum of 200 clock hours are required for certification in Nebraska. The general rule is that 50 clock hours is given 1 credit hour. The student is to have a minimum of 4 credit hours of practicum including testing and intervention experience. At least half is to done in a school setting. The student's practicum is to be approved by the School Psychology Committee prior to

Psychological Assistant

Students who are pursuing work toward endorsement in Nebraska as a Psychological Assistant must simultaneously complete requirements for the M.A. or M.S. Those seeking such endorsement are encouraged to apply to the Psychology Department at the same time they make application for degree candidacy in order to ensure that required courses are included in the plan of study for the degree. In any event, students must have been accepted in this program before enrolling in Psychology 853V or 854V. Application should be made to the Psychology Department and three letters of recommendation are required. Required courses in this program are: Psychology 831M (431), 800V, 853V, 854V, and 897V. Also, one of the following is required: Psychology 859M (459), 855M (455), or SPED 860M (460). The student must also have had course work in both learning and developmental psy**Recommendation for Certification**

Upon completion of the approved program of studies the student requests review for the School Psychology Committee's recommendation for certification as a school psychologist or psychological assistant. The student is expected to have completed the program satisfactorily (B or better) and maintained the professional standards of school psychology. The student in training is expected to behave in accordance with the ethical guidelines of the American Psychological Association and the National Association of School Psychologists.

NOTE: The requirements for the School Psychology Program and/or for certification as a school psychologist by the State Department of Education are presently under review and are subject to

change without published notice.

PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION

Master of Public Administration

This is a professional graduate degree which is designed: (1) to prepare students for careers in the public service — national, state, or local; (2) for those already in the public service who are seeking professional training; (3) for research or teaching in this field.

Administrators are required for a wide variety of governmental programs and students in the M.P.A. program will likely come from widely differing backgrounds. Some may come from current public employment while others may enter with degrees in the social sciences, engineering, business administration, or the humanities.

The general prerequisite for admission to the M.P.A. program is a Bachelor of Arts or Bachelor of

Science degree or equivalent.

For students to be admitted unconditionally to the M.P.A. program they must have completed as prerequisites a course in each of the following: Introduction to Public Administration, Accounting, and Statistics. The department will recommend a provisional admission to students who lack either statistics or accounting, but not both. In no case will it admit on a provisional basis students with a deficiency in Introduction to Public Administration. The deficiency is to be removed during the first semester the student is enrolled as a graduate student.

In addition, if the student's undergraduate preparation in the social sciences is insufficient or if he/ she lacks prerequisites for certain graduate courses additional course work may be prescribed which must be completed before unconditional admission is accorded. If an applicant has more than 9 hours of deficiencies he/she will be advised to remove these before being considered for any type of admission. These additional courses do not carry graduate credit, but other courses for graduate credit may be taken simultaneously if the prerequisites for these courses have been met. No student will be permitted to take a graduate course in Public Administration without having had an introductory course in Public Administration unless expressly granted a waiver in writing by the Departmental Graduate

The student will be assigned an adviser in the Public Administration Department. If he/she chooses an option other than General Public Administration or Local Government, an adviser from that field will also be assigned to the student.

Degree Requirements

Thirty-six hours consisting of thirty hours of course work plus 6 hours of internship in a public agency for 4-12 months. In the event the governmental agency or jurisdiction sponsoring the internship cannot provide compensation, the student intern should be prepared to sustain the expenses of the internship. The internship may be waived for prior service in a civilian public or semi-public agency. Requests to waive the internship shall be submitted to the departmental graduate committee upon application for candidacy. In lieu of the internship, if waived, the student must take six additional hours of approved course work. Eighteen hours of the course work must be at the 800V level and a comprehensive written final examination is required.

Admission to Candidacy for Graduate Degree

It is the student's responsibility to make application for candidacy for the degree as soon as he/she can qualify for admission to candidacy. The qualifications are: (1) the scores on the Graduate Record Examination must be on file in the Graduate Office; (2) nine hours of graduate credit must have been completed at this University; and (3) a grade average of B" with no grade lower than C"; and (4) removal of all deficiencies specified for admission.

As a rule, no degree can be awarded in the same semester as candidacy for the degree is approved. Application forms should be filled out by the student — in consultation with the major and minor advisers — as soon as the student can qualify for admission to candidacy. Both the major and minor programs should be carefully and completely planned at this time and the application should be signed by both the major and minor advisers. The application form and the plan of study should be filed in the Graduate Office and copies should be provided for the major adviser, the minor adviser.

Plans of study should be planned with acceptable alternatives included. Once approved, any modification of a plan of study is permissible only upon recommendation of the major adviser if the major is concerned, the minor adviser if the minor is concerned, and the approval of the UNO Dean for

Graduate Studies and Research.

Courses Required of all Options

P.A. 840M, Public Budgeting or 848V Seminar in Public Financial Management if credit has been earned in 440/840M

P.A. 841M, Public Personnel Management or 846V Seminar in Public Personnel Administration if credit has been earned in 441/841M

P.A. 800V, Seminar in Research Methods in Political Science and Public Administration

P.A. 842V, Seminar: Introduction to Public Organizations

P.A. 844V, Seminar in Organization Development in Public Agencies

P.A. 803U-804U, Internship

General Public Administration (15 hours from the following selected list in consultation with Adviser. It is possible under exceptional circumstances to substitute other courses with approval of Adviser.)

P.S. 804M, The Legislative Process P.S. 805M, The Judicial Process

P.A. 843M, Municipal Administration

P.A. 810V, Seminar in Public Administration

Econ 856M. State and Local Finance

P.S. 815V. Seminar in Public Law

P.A. 830V, Seminar in Public Policy

P.A. 846V, Seminar in Public Personnel Management P.A. 848V, Seminar in Public Financial Management

P.A. 860V, Seminar in Administrative Law

P.A. 881V, Urban Seminar in Metropolitan Planning and Development

Econ 887V, Seminar in Regional Economics P.A. 892V, Readings in Public Administration P.A. 894V, Research in Public Administration

Gerontology Option (15 hours to include the following plus one more course at the 800V level selected in consultation with Adviser to fit the students particular needs.)

Gero 811M, Applied Social Gerontology Gero 855M, Health Aspects of Aging

Gero 858M, Gerontology Psychology Gero 892M, Special Studies in Gerontology

Local Government Option (15 hours from the following selected list in consultation with Adviser. It is possible under exceptional circumstances to substitute other courses with approval of Adviser.)

Geog 812M, Urban Geography P.A. 843M, Municipal Administration Econ 856M, State and Local Finance

P.A. 810V, Seminar in Public Administration

P.A. 830V, Seminar in Public policy

P.A. 860V, Seminar in Administrative Law

P.A. 881V, Urban Seminar in Metropolitan Planning and Development

Econ 885V. Seminar in Urban Economics P.A. 892V, Readings in Public Administration

P.A. 894V, Research in Public Administration

The Planning Option (15 hours to include CRP 811 and CRP 828 plus nine hours of course work from the following list selected in consultation with Adviser.)

The option stresses the planning process and related skills and techniques. Students selecting this option should plan on taking one or more courses on the Lincoln campus in order to complete the program expeditiously.

Required courses: CRP 811, Urbanism and Planning in the U.S.

CRP 828. Planning Administration and Implementation

Elective courses:

CRP 813, Planning Process and Theory

CRP 415/815, Housing Renewal and Development

CRP 822, Research Methods for Planning

CRP 913, Planning and the Natural Environment

CRP 915, Planning Within the Intergovernmental Context CRP 917. Planning with Minority and Low Income Groups CRP 924, Human Resource Planning

Public Works-Civil Engineering Option (15 hours from the following selected list in consultation with Adviser.)

Four fields of supplemental study available: Transportation, Sanitary, Water Resources and Design and Construction.

The objective of the program is to develop a broad based Civil Engineering plan of study for public administration students who have little or no formal engineering training. A tentative list of Civil En-

gineering courses requiring no prerequisites or engineering background is presented below. The student will be encouraged to select courses from at least three of the four fields of interest in order to encourage breadth in his educational experience. Other courses may be available to the student with instructor's consent or if sufficient student demand warrants additional offerings.

Transportation

CE 468, Traffic Engineering CE 468A, Transportation Geometrics CE 485, Urban Transportation Planning

CE 486, Transportation Planning and Economics

Sanitary

CE 800, Environmental Quality and Control - Land, Air, and Water

CE 826, Environmental Pollution Control

Water Resources

CE 914, Water Resources Planning

CE 916, Case Studies in Water Resources

Design and Construction

CE 469, Pavement Analysis and Design

CE 842, Construction Management

Social Work or Social Welfare Option (15 hours from the following selected list in consultation with

SW 800, Human Behavior and the Social Environment

SW 805, Social Welfare Policy and Services SW 850, Task Groups in Macro Practice

SW 852. Social Work Administration SW 854. Social Welfare Planning SW 856. Supervision in Social Work

SW 858, Advanced Policy Analysis and Implementation

SW 860, Social Work Practice in Mental Health

SW 866, Social Work Practice in Child Welfare

SW 870, Alcohol Abuse: Comprehensive Treatment Program

SW 890, Special Studies in Social Welfare

The Environmental Option (15 hours to include at least one of the courses listed below, the remaining part of the program to be customed designed for the student at the discretion of the Graduate Program Committee of the Biology Department.) Students selecting this option must be approved for entrance into the graduate program by both the Department of Public Administration and the Depart-

ment of Biology. Biology 813V. Environmental Biology Biology 873V, Environmental Physiology

Biology 815V, Plant Ecology

The Law Enforcement Option (15 hours to include CJ 801V, Seminar in Criminal Justice Planning and Innovation; CJ 802V, Seminar in the Administration of Justice; CJ 812V, Criminal Justice Research Theory and Methodology, plus six hours from the following list selected in consultation with

CJ 803V, Comparative Law Enforcement Systems
CJ 804V, Seminar in Community Services and Treatment

CJ 805V, Seminar in Criminal Jurisprudence

CJ 807V, Theoretical Criminology

CJ 808V, Seminar in the Processes of the Criminal Justice System CJ 809V, Seminar in Delinquency Prevention, Control and Correction

CJ 811V, Special Problems in Criminal Justice

CJ 814V, Independent Study

SECONDARY/POST-SECONDARY EDUCATION

Major in Secondary Education

Programs in Secondary Education are developed on an individual basis by the student and the adviser. They are designed to extend academic background the instructional skills of secondary school teachers.

To pursue degree work in the Department, students must hold a valid secondary teaching certificate. During the first semester of enrollment students must take the Graduate Record Examination including the Advanced Test in Education. To be admitted to candidacy the combined scores on the Verbal, Quantitative, and Advanced GRE Tests must total at least 1200. Students are expected to file their Application for Candidacy before they complete more than 18 hours of graduate work and no more than 18 hours of completed course work may be included in the proposed program of graduate

HOLIDS

Students seeking the Master of Science Degree with a major in Secondary Education and a minor in some academic or professionally related area are required to select course work from the five areas indicated below. Minimum and maximum hours that must be included from each area are indicated where such limits are applicable. Course names or types included in each area are indicated where appropriate.

	AREA	Ю	JRS
I.	SED Core	Min 6	Max *
	SED 825V — Seminar in Secondary Education		
Plus of	ne of the following:		
	SED 890M — Problems: Post-Secondary/Higher Education		
	SED 820V — Seminar for Cooperating Teachers		
	SED 830V — Emerging School Curriculum		
	SED 833V — Analysis of Teacher Behavior		
	SED 846V — Simulation Gaming Laboratory for Secondary Teachers		
	SED 936V — Seminar in Applications of Non-Verbal Communication Theory		
11.	Research	3	•
	Research Methods, Statistical		
	Methods. Tests & Measurements		
111.	Professional Specialization	3	•
	Improvement of Instruction. Teaching Field		
	Seminars, Independent Research,		
	Special Studies		
IV.	Related Professional Courses	•	•
٧.	Related Academic Courses		18
		Total:	36 hou

^{*}A minimum of 15 hours of SED courses must be included in each Plan of Study. Minimums or Maximums are determined by advisor.

Master of Science (without Minor)

Students seeking the Master of Science Degree with a major in Secondary Education and no minor are required to select course work from the five areas indicated below. Minimum and maximum hours that must be included from each area are indicated where such limits are applicable. Course names or types included in each area are indicated where appropriate.

AREA		HOURS	
Î.	SED Core	Min 9	Max 21
155	SED 825V — Seminar in Secondary Education		
Plus t	wo of the following:		
	SED 890M — Problems: Post-Secondary/Higher Education		
	SED 820V — Seminar for Cooperating Teachers		
	SED 830V — Emerging School Curriculum		
	SED 833V — Analysis of Teacher Behavior		
	SED 846V — Simulation Gaming Laboratory for Secondary Teachers		
	SED 936V — Seminar in Applications of Non-Verbal Communication Theory		
11 Research		3	3
	Research Methods, Statistical Methods, Tests and Measurements		
111.	Professional Specialization	12	12
	Improvement of Instruction, Teaching Field		
	Seminars, Independent Research, Special Studies		
IV.	Related Professional Courses	•	6
	Courses that support ultimate goal of the student are approved		
	by adviser in advance of any course enrollment.		
	Substitutions not approved by adviser in advance of enrollment		
	may not be included in the program. Acceptable alternatives		
	should be included in the graduate program at the time		
	it is filed. Seminars, research projects, practica, etc., outside		
	the department of Secondary Education may be taken only with		
	special permission of the adviser before enrollment.		10.00
V.	Related Academic Courses		18
		Total: 36 hor	

Master of Arts

AREA

Students seeking the Master of Arts Degree with a major in Secondary Education are required to select work from the six areas indicated below. Minimum and Maximum hours that must be included from each area are indicated when such limits are applicable. Course names of types included in each are indicated where appropriate.

Victoria.	- AREA	HOU	HOURS	
1.	SED Core SED 825 — Seminar in Secondary Education	Min.	Max.	
Plus o	one of the following:			
	SED 890M — Problems: Post-Secondary/Higher Education			
	SED 820V — Seminar for Cooperating Teachers			
	SED 830V — Emerging School Curriculum			
	SED 833V — Analysis of Teacher Behavior			
	SED 846V — Simulation Gaming Laboratory for Secondary Teachers			
	SED 936V — Seminar in Applications of Non-Verbal Communication Theory			
11.	Research	3	•	
	Research Methods, Statistical Methods,			
20 000	Tests & Measurements			
111.		3	•	
	Improvement of Instruction Courses, Teaching			
	Field Seminars, Independent Research			
117	Projects, Special Studies			
IV.	Related Professional Courses			
V.	Related Academic Courses		12	
VI.	Thesis	6	6	
	20 1 66 100° 15 20080 15 10000	Total: 3	0 hours	

Students who seek the Master of Science Degree must take a written Comprehensive Examination. The examination is administered in two parts. Part I must be taken after the student has completed 18 hours of graduate work and before more than 24 hours are completed. This portion of the examination will deal with concepts common to the programs of all students who enroll in the Department.

Part II of the examination is administered during or after the semester or summer session in which the last course of the program of studies will be completed. This portion of the examination deals with those concepts that are unique to each student's program but may also re-examine areas of weakness revealed by Part I.

Registration for this part of the examination must be made with the Department not later than the end of the seventh week of the semester in which the examination will be taken. If the examination is to be taken during the summer, registration must be completed by the end of the second week of the first summer session.

SOCIAL WORK

The Profession of Social Work

Social work is one of the "helping professions" concerned with the quality of human life. Specifically, the social worker is concerned with man's ability to function meaningfully and effectively in transaction with his environment (i.e., his family, friends, associates, and the community at large). The social worker brings systematized knowledge to bear on his dealings with people individually, in families, in other group and collective associations, with communities, societies, and organizations with a view to helping in the resolution of problems which cause stress in social transaction.

In these endeavors, social workers are employed in public and private counseling agencies and services, medical settings, schools, residential and community agencies providing care for the mentally ill and retarded, court and correctional agencies, community planning, and development agencies and programs. Their endeavors and interventions are designed to promote more effective functioning of society as it struggles to "provide for the general welfare" as well as to help the people, families, groups, and institutions within the society toward self fulfillment.

Requirements for the Degree of Master of Social Work

- I. A minimum of one year in residence.
- 2. There are two programs leading to the Master of Social Work degree. The Advanced Standing Program, for students with an approved Bachelor's degree in social work, requires 42 credit hours of graduate study in social work, which may be completed in a minimum of two semesters and a full summer. The Two Year Program for students with a Bachelor's degree not in social work, requires the same 42 credit hours plus up to 22 graduate credit hours of social work

^{*}Minimums or maximums are determined by adviser.

Details about research, practicum, and other course requirements may be obtained from the Graduate School of Social Work.

The type and credit value of each of the courses is indicated in the course descriptions below. Courses offered by the School are subject to change.

NOTE: Social Work students may transfer up to twelve semester credits from another university toward the 42-credit M.S.W. program; each course must be approved by the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research as being an appropriate substitute for a requirement or elective.

SOCIOLOGY

Applicants for admission to the graduate program in sociology must present a minimum of 15 undergraduate semester hours in sociology including a course in statistics and research methods. Those students lacking either will be required to make up this deficiency during their first year of graduate

Examinations: Both the M.A. and M.S. (see below) degree programs with majors in sociology require the incoming student to complete an examination covering basic concepts and theorists of the field. The examination is used in counseling the student in his degree program. In addition the student must demonstrate proficiency in sociology through successful completion of four comprehensive examinations.

Two of these comprehensives - Social Theory, and Methodology and Statistics -- are required of all graduate students; the two remaining examinations are selected by the student, in consultation with his graduate adviser, from a list available through the Sociology Office. The examinations are given a minimum of twice annually, and other times as required. Detailed explanations of graduate requirements should be secured through the Sociology Office.

The M.A. degree should be sought by students preparing for college-level teaching and continued academic work; the M.S. degree as preparation for field or action application of sociology.

Master of Arts

The student is expected to complete Sociology 801V and a minimum of 21 additional graduate semester hours, including at least nine semester hours of 800V-level work. A thesis is required.

Master of Science with a Major in Applied Sociology

A student contemplating this degree is expected to complete Sociology 801V and a minimum of 27 additional graduate semester hours, at least nine of which are from the 800V-level selection. In addition, the student must complete satisfactorily six semester-hour equivalents of a supervised work practicum related to his academic area of concentration, and write an acceptable report on the experience.

Detailed requirements for the M.S. degree with a major in applied sociology should be secured through consultation with the Sociology Office.

Colloquia

Each graduate student in Sociology is required to attend, without credit, the departmental colloguia as scheduled.

SPECIAL EDUCATION

Graduate Requirements — STUDENT TEACHING

Students needing SPED 872, SPED 873, and/or SPED 850, SPED 851, SPED 852, must submit a completed application form for student teaching/practicum signed by their adviser before March 15

for a fall and/or summer placement and by October 15 for a spring placement.

Under no circumstances can a student take both SPED 872 and SPED 873 or SPED 850, 851 and 852 during the same semester.

Master of Arts: Speech Pathology

The Master of Arts degree with a major in speech pathology involves these requirements:

- 1. Submit two letters of recommendation from people who know your undergraduate work well.
- 2. Pass an examination to determine adequate personal voice and speech proficiencies and adequate hearing acuity for speech (Administered by the Speech and Hearing Clinic of the University).
- 3. Have successfully completed a minimum of twenty-four semester hours of work preparatory to admittance to the major. These hours are to include the following courses or their equivalents: SPED 140, Introduction to Communication Disorders
 - SPED 433, Speech Reading and Auditory Training
 - SPED 437, Hearing Disorders
 - SPED 438, Speech Science I: Speech Mechanisms

57

SPED 443, Speech Pathology I: Childhood Language and Articulation

SPED 444, Speech Pathology II: Rhythm and Symbolization

SPED 445, Speech Science II: Experimental and Applied Phonetics

SPED 450, Communication Disorders in the Elementary and Secondary Schools

SPED 451, Basic Clinical Practicum in Speech Pathology

SPED 475, Childhood Language Disorders

- For those students who wish to work toward special state certification in the schools, adviser consultation should be sought early since additional coursework is required (this does not apply to those already holding state certificates in elementary or secondary teaching or a special
- 5. Twenty-four semester hours of course work and practicum. These hours may be taken from the following:
 - I. Required Courses:

FED 801V Introduction to Research

SPED 851V Advanced Clinical Practicum in Speech Pathology (schools)

SPED 852V Advanced Clinical Practicum in Speech Pathology (externship)

SPED 846V Diagnostic Methods in Communicative Disorders

SPED 848V Advanced Audiology

SPED 870, Seminar in Special Education

SPED 899V, Thesis

II. Elective Courses:

Students may choose any of the courses in the area numbered 800V or above.

Students must present a thesis representing six semester hours of work and which is deemed satisfactory to the members of the committee, following oral examination.

Master of Arts: Mental Retardation

The Master of Arts degree with a major in mental retardation is a program primarily designed for persons certified or have near certification in special education. It involves a concentrated course of study designed to improve and advance competencies in the area of mental retardation and to provide investigative approaches to problems associated with children who are mentally retarded. Re-

- Applicants to the M.A. degree program with a major in Mental Retardation must be approved by the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research and the major adviser.
- Applicants should hold a teaching certificate in special education or be within 15 credit hours
- Students may undergo course work which will lead to:
 - a. a major of 24 hours in mental retardation.
 - b. a thesis not to exceed six semester hours.
 - a. a major of 15 semester hours in mental retardation. OR:
 - b. a minor of nine semester hours in a related field of interest.
 - c. a thesis not to exceed six semester hours.
- 4. To be admitted as a candidate for the M.A. degree in Mental Retardation the student must have successfully completed twelve hours of course work and passed a comprehensive exami-
- 5. Each candidate will submit a thesis proposal to his committee for approval. A thesis will represent six semester hours in independent study under the direction of the major adviser.
- Subject to review of the applicants transcripts and related experiences with retarded children, required courses may be selected from the following:
 - a. Required Courses:

FED 801V Introduction to Research

SPED 870V Seminar in Special Education

SPED 872U Practicum in Special Education

b. Elective courses may be chosen from any of the 800V level courses within the major and minor area of study.

The Master of Science degree with a major in reading conforms to standards of the International The Master of Science degree with a major in reading conforms to standards of the international Reading Association for the professional training of Reading Specialists. Applicants for admission must be eligible for teacher certification at the undergraduate level. Upon successful completion of the program, the student is recommended for K-12 endorsement in reading in Nebraska.

Core Professional Courses... Including work in graduate reading courses SPED 911, 912, 813V, 814V. 815V. 917V or 918V or their equivalent. 18 hours Related Professional Courses .. Including Introduction to Research and selected work in such areas as foundation and general education, elementary education, secondary6 hours

.... 12 hours

education, special education, and psychology. III. Related Cognate Courses......

Including selected work in such areas as guidance and counseling and/or the various subject areas mentioned under sections I and II.

Master of Science: Speech Pathology

The Master of Science degree with a major in speech pathology involves these requirements:

- 1. Submit two letters of recommendation from people who know your undergraduate work well. 2. Pass an examination to determine adequate personal voice and speech proficiencies and adequate hearing acuity for speech (Administered by the Speech and Hearing Clinic of the Uni-
- Have successfully completed a minimum of twenty-four semester hours of work preparatory to admittance to the major. These hours are to include the following courses or their equivalents: SPED 140, Introduction to Communication Disorders

SPED 433, Speech Reading and Auditory Training

SPED 437, Hearing Disorders

SPED 438, Speech Science I: Speech Mechanisms

SPED 439, Hearing Science

SPED 443, Speech Pathology I: Childhood Language and Articulation

SPED 444, Speech Pathology II: Rhythm and Symbolization

SPED 445, Speech Science II: Experimental and Applied Phonetics

SPED 450, Communication Disorders in the Elementary and Secondary Schools SPED 451, Basic Clinical Practicum in Speech Pathology

SPED 475, Childhood Language Disorders

Psy 213, Statistics

Thirty-six hours of course work and practicum. These hours may be taken from the following:

FED 801V, Introduction to Research

SPED 846V, Diagnostic Methods in Communication Disorders

SPED 848V, Advanced Audiology

SPED 851V, Advanced Practicum Speech(Schools)

SPED 852V, Advanced Practicum Speech (Externship)

SPED 853V, Seminar in Speech Pathology

SPED 870, Seminar in Special Education. Elective Courses in Communicative Disorders:

Students may choose any of the courses in the area numbered 800 or above.

III. Elective Courses in Related Area:

Depending upon the student's preparatory work, courses may be taken in fields such as psychology, sociology, speech, English, Special Education and other related areas.

5. Pass a written comprehensive examination, administered under the direction of the Depart-

Master of Science: Teaching the Deaf

The Master of Science degree with a major in teaching the hearing impaired is based on the standards for the certification of teachers of the hearing impaired as developed by the Committee on Professional Preparation and Certification adopted by the Council on the Education of the Deaf. Students who plan to enter this program must show evidence of holding a valid certificate in one of the following areas: elementary education, secondary education, K-12 special content area.

A Nebraska pre-standard certification and a CED provisional certification will be recommended upon satisfactory completion of the program.

SPED 823M, Teaching Language to the Deaf I 3 cr. hrs.
SPED 824M, Teaching Language to the Deaf II 3 cr. hrs. SPED 837M, Hearing Loss and Audiometry 3 cr. hrs.
SPED 800V, Special Projects 3 cr. hrs.
SPED 870V, Seminar in Special Education 3 cr. hrs.

38 cr. hours

..30 hours

6 hours

Competency in manual communication is required for student teaching.

Master of Science: Teaching the Mentally Retarded

The Master of Science degree with a major in mental retardation provides broad study investigations for students who wish to improve and expand competency areas necessary for greater individual proficiency in teaching mentally retarded children. State certification in EMH and TMH teaching are also available through this program. The following program requirements must be fulfilled:

- 1. Applicants to the M.S. degree with a major in Mental Retardation must be approved by the Dean for Graduate Studies and Research and the Major adviser.
- 2. Applicants should hold a valid teaching certificate. Those not holding teaching certificates will be required to take preparatory courses in teacher education (the number of courses to be taken will be subject to a review of the applicant's transcripts and his/her related experiences in teaching children).
- 3. To be admitted as a candidate for an M.S. degree with a major in Mental Retardation the student must have successfully completed twelve hours of course work and passed a comprehensive written examination covering these first twelve hours.
- Each candidate, having successfully completed thirty hours of course work and practicum, and enrolled for their last six hours, will be required to pass a final written and/oral examination.
- Thirty-six hours of course work and practicum may be taken from the following required and elective courses:

I. Required Courses ... FED 801V, Introduction to Research SPED 806V, Interdisciplinary Approaches to Developmental Disabilities SPED 860M, Introduction of the Mentally Subnormal Child SPED 863M, Curriculum Planning for the Developmentally Disabled SPED 864V, Theoretical Approaches for Teaching the Developmentally Disabled Child SPED 864M, Methods and Materials for Teaching Mentally Retarded SPED 872V. Basic Observation and Student Teaching SPED 873V. Advanced Observation and Student Teaching SPED 870V, Seminar in Special Education One course surveying language difficulties (or other equivalent SPED 875M, Language Development of Exceptional Children One course concerning evaluation techniques (or other equivalent SPED 895V, Diagnosis of Learning Disabilities Psych 832V, Testing and Measurement Psych 831M, Psychological and Educational Testing SPED 812M, Reading Diagnosis and Remediation for the Elementary Classroom Teacher II. Electives .. SPED 840M, Learning Disabilities

SPED 880M, Emotional Development

SPED 885M, Introduction to the Physically Handicapped

SPED 866V. Vocational Training of the Mentally Retarded SPED 867V. Community Resources for the Mentally Retarded

SPED 871V, Parent-Professional Relationship in Special Education SPED 886V, Methods and Materials for Teaching Crippled

SPED 890U. Administration and Supervision of Special Education SPED 887U, Diagnosis and Remediation Techniques in Early Childhood Education for the Disabled

Master of Science: Resource Teaching in Learning Disabilities Resource Teaching in Learning Disabilities is a specialized training program designed to prepare the graduate student in identification, analysis, and intervention techniques relative to children who have specific learning deficits. Since the program assumes a knowledge of "normal" learning development, the student should enter the program with a strong background in learning theory, child growth and development, curriculum development, and methods and techniques of teaching.

and development, curriculum development, and methods and techniques of teaching.

The training program is divided into three sequential steps which provide experiences necessary to develop competencies in theory, specific diagnostic and intervention skills, and practical application. The student will be comprehensively evaluated after each of the first two steps and during Step III.

Upon completion of this program, the student will seceive a Master's degree in Special Education with a major and endorsement as a Resource Teacher in Learning Disabilities. Other roles which the student could assume as a result of this program are clinical teacher, diagnostic teacher, and selfstudent could assume as a result of this program are clinical teacher, diagnostic teacher, and selfcontained learning disabilities teacher. These positions are available only according to local school

Entrance Requirements:

- Admission to the University of Nebraska at Omaha Graduate College. The Miller Analogies Test (MAT) must be taken and scores submitted to the Special Education Department for consideration before applications are evaluated and processed to the Graduate College. A raw score of 35 on the MAT is required for initial entrance into the program. 2. Teaching Certification
- - A. The applicant must hold a teaching certificate from a state education agency and be eligible to teach in elementary or secondary grades or special education.
 - Students accepted into the program without certification must complete the College of Education CORE Program. No student will be eligible to enter STEP II of the program without having first completed the CORE program.
- No certification and/or endorsement in areas of special education will be offered at the graduate level where certification/endorsement is available at the undergraduate level. 3. Teaching Experience

Students must have completed a minimum of two years of successful teaching in pre-school, kindergarten, elementary, secondary, special education, or special services before final endorsement is recommended. It is possible for students to enter and complete the program without teaching experience, however, endorsement will not be recommended until two years of

Pre-requisite courses

Regardless of the student's major area of study coming into the program, his/her transcript must show courses, graduate or undergraduate, which relate to: A. Child Development - 3 hours

- B. Learning Theory 3 hours
- Curriculum Development 3 hours
- Student Teaching (or equivalent) 3 hours
- E. Methods Courses 3 hours
- Pre-competency Evaluation

Upon admission to the Graduate College and prior to entering Step I, the student must make arrangements with his/her program advisor to undergo pre-competency evaluation. This eval-

A. Written — this will test the ability of the student to articulate in writing a position taken by him/her relative to previous work or teaching experience.

B. Interview (informal) — an interview conducted by the faculty will be used to seek information from the student relative to his past experiences, general and specific attitudes, and approaches to various problems of teaching and pupil-teacher relationships.

Objective Test — this is designed to examine the student's past and present exposure to theories and terms concerning the area of special education and learning disabilities.

Course Requirements:

1. STEP I (12 hours) — This is an entrance level step which will prepare the student in the theoretical aspects of learning/language and behavioral deficits. It is also designed to give the student a foundation for the inquiry approach to problem solving. Courses for Step I include the following: SPED 840-Learning Disabilities (3)

SPED 880-Social and Emotional Growth of Children and Youth (3) FED 801-Introduction to Research (3)

Electives:(3 hours)

SPED 911U-Problems in Teaching Reading-Elementary (3) SPED 912U-Problems in Teaching Reading-Secondary (3)

SPED 806V-Interdisciplinary Approaches to Development Disabilities (3)

SPED 875M-Childhood Language Disorders (3) SPED 847V-Neurophysiology of Speech (3)

SPED 871V-Parent/Professional Relationships (3)

Psy 856V-Learning in Children (3)

Psy 858V-Linguistic and Cognitive Development (3) Psy 859V-Social and Personality Development (3)

FED 898M-Growth and Learning Problems of Disadvantaged (3)

Comprehensive Evaluation — At the end of Step I and prior to entering Step II, each student will be given a comprehensive evaluation of Step I experiences. This evaluation may take the form of a written exam or oral exam or both. Students must attain at least an 80 percent proficiency level before entering Step II. Students not attaining an 80 percent proficiency level may: (a) be evaluated a second time: and/or (b) be recommended to take additional elective courses, or (c) be dropped from the pro-

gram.

2. STEP II (16 hours) — Upon successful completion of Step I, students will enter Step II which is the candidacy level. Step II combines both theory and practicum in preparing the student in the analysis of children's learning and emotional behavior and the application of intervention techniques relative to learning problems. During this step, students must submit to the Graduate College a completed Application for Candidacy Form. Courses for Step II include the following:

SPED 895V-Basic Diagnosis of Learning Deficits (3) SPED 896V-Advanced Diagnosis of Learning Deficits (4)

SPED 897V-Clinical Teaching in Learning Disabilities (3)

SPED 881M-Classroom Techniques for Behavior Control (3)

SPED 863M-Curriculum Planning for the Disabled (3)

SPED 813V-Diagnostic and Remedial Instruction in Reading (3)

SPED 887V-Diagnostic and Remedial Techniques for Early Childhood (3)

Psy 831M-Psychological and Educational Testing (3) Coun 831V-Child Assessment in Elementary School Guidance (3)

ElEd 819V-Diagnostic and Corrective Instruction (3)

ElEd 843V-Introduction to Curriculum Planning-Elementary (3)

ElEd 829M-Learning Materials for Early Childhood Education (3)

SED 830V-Emerging School Curriculum (3) SED 877V-Vocational Curriculum Construction (3)

Other secondary methods courses SPED 810V-Research Projects

SPED 800V-Special Projects

Comprehensive Evaluation — At the end of Step II and prior to entering Step III, each student will be given a comprehensive evaluation of Step II experiences. This evaluation may take the form of a written exam or oral exam or both. Students must attain at least an 80 percent proficiency level before entering Step III. Students not attaining an 80 percent proficiency level may: (a) be evaluated a second time; and/or (b) be recommended to take additional elective courses, or (c) be dropped from the

3. STEP III (9 hours) — This is the final step in the student's program. Except for SPED 870, Seminar in Special Education, the student must demonstrate and be evaluated in those skills and competencies developed for practical use. The following courses are required:

SPED 870-Seminar in Special Education (3) SPED 873-Advanced Observation and Student Teaching in Special Education (3)

SPED 872-Basic Observation and Student Teaching in Special Education (3)

Master of Science: Teaching the Emotionally Disturbed

Entrance Requirements

- 1. The student must have completed the following courses:
 - a. Child Development 3 hours
 - b. Learning Theory 3 hours
 - c. Curriculum Development 3 hours
 - d. Student Teaching (or equivalent) 3 hours
- The student must demonstrate a "B" average for the last two years of coursework. The student
 may be granted provisional admission with less than a "B" average (but not less than 2.54) (See Graduate Catalog). The student must maintain a "B" average for graduate work.
- The Miller Analogies Test must be taken prior to evaluation of admission application. The student must score 35 for provisional admission and 45 for unconditional admission.
- The student will demonstrate his/her ability to articulate by writing a position paper in terms of previous work or teaching experience.
- 5. An informal interview with the advisor.

- Student must hold a Bachelor's degree with a teacher's certification in one or more teaching ar-
- 7. Student must have completed two years of successful teaching before endorsement will be
- Students must fulfill all other entrance requirements as required by the Graduate College of the University of Nebraska at Omaha.

Program Requirements

- 1. Thirty-six (36) hours must be completed for the M.S. in Special Education with a major in Emotionally Disturbed and endorsement as a teacher of the Emotionally Disturbed, K-12.
- 2. The student will be required to pass a 2-hour comprehensive competency examination at the end of each step. This exam will be scheduled once a term.
- 3. Courses

Step I — 12 hours

Required

FED 801, Introduction to Research — 3 hours

SPED 880. Emotional/Social Development of Children and Youth — 3 hours

SPED 840, Learning Disabilities — 3 hours

Electives

SPED 806. Interdisciplinary Approaches to Developmental Disabilities — 3 hours

PSY 844, Abnormal Psychology — 3 hours

PSY 845, Personality Theories — 3 hours

PSY 859, Psychology of Exceptional Children — 3 hours

PSY 851, Advanced Educational Psychology — 3 hours

Comprehensive Examination

Step II — 12 hours

Required

SPED 895. Diagnosis of Learning Disabilities — 3 hours

SPED 872. Basic Observation and Student Teaching in Special Education — 3 hours

SPED 881, Classroom Techniques of Behavior Control — 3 hours

Electives

SPED 896, Advanced Diagnosis of Learning Disabilities — 3 hours

SPED 813, Diagnosis and Remedial Instruction in Reading — 3 hours

SPED 875, Childhood Language Disorders — 3 hours

PSY 831, Psychological and Education Testing — 3 hours

PSY 863, Techniques of Programmed Instruction — 3 hours

PSY 856, Learning in Children — 3 hours

PSY 857, Behavior Modification — 3 hours

Comprehensive Examination

Step III — 12 hours

Required

SPED 871, Parent/Professional Relationships — 3 hours

NPI 852, Group Dynamics — 2 hours

SPED 873, Advanced Observation and Participation in Special Education — 3 hours

SPED 870, Seminar in Special Education — 3 hours

SPED 800, Special Projects — 1 hour

Comprehensive Examination.

URBAN STUDIES

Master of Science With a Major in Urban Studies

This is a professional graduate degree which is designed: (1) to prepare students for human service careers in an urban setting; (2) for research or teaching in this field; (3) for those already involved in

urban programs and are seeking additional professional training.

Qualified urbanists are being sought by a wide range of employers. Private corporations as well as public agencies are seeking employees who have a broad range of technical skills and an understanding of the problems of contemporary urban society.

The general prerequisite for admission to the Urban Studies Graduate Program is a Bachelor of Arts or Bachelor of Science degree.

For a student to be admitted unconditionally to the M.S. program he/she must have an undergraduate grade point average of at least 3.00 on a 4.00 system. In addition, if the student's undergraduate preparation in the social sciences is insufficient, additional preliminary work may be prescribed which he must complete before he is accorded unconditional admission. These additional courses do not carry graduate credit, but other courses for graduate credit may be taken simultaneously.

Degree Requirements

Thirty-six semester hours of course work are required. A core of six required courses shall be completed, plus nine credit hours must be taken from one of three areas of concentration. The required courses include Urban Studies 883V, 884V, 801V, 802V, a course in research methods; and one of the following: History 844M, Geography 812M, or Community and Regional Planning 811M. Courses applicable to the area of concentration may include, but are not necessarily restricted to, Political Science 892M, 843M, 880V; Public Administration 840V, 842V, 844V, 846V, 848V; Geography 881V; Psychology 991; Sociology 810M, 841M, 862M, 875M, 899M, 880M, 811M; Gerontology 810M, 892M; Counseling 898M, 822V, 827V, Community and Regional Planning 811M, 813V. A maximum of nine hours of optional credit may be selected from Economics 885V, 886V, 887V, 888V; History 843M, 811M; Geography 881V, 812M; or many of the courses listed above.

Eighteen hours of the course work must be at the 800V level.

A comprehensive final examination is required, although a thesis is not required.

NON DEGREE AREAS

Graduate Art courses are offered to fulfill requirements for a minor field or as cognate or selected courses on a plan of study.

Chemistry

Graduate Chemistry courses are offered to fulfill requirements for a minor field or as cognate or selected courses on a plan of study.

Curriculum and Instruction

This area includes those offerings which have or could have a broad (K-12) multi-grade level appli-

Offerings in this area and having the Curriculum and Instruction prefix (CI) are meant to serve students within the education profession by broadening their skill levels, making available merged talents of collegiate faculty and functioning within different or multi-level educational settings.

Foreign Languages

Graduate Foreign Languages courses are offered to fulfill requirements for a minor field or as cognate or selected courses on a plan of study.

Gerontology

The Gerontology Program does not offer a degree. Graduate courses are offered to fulfill requirements for a minor field or as selected courses on a plan of study. Therefore, the courses offered are not concentrated in one particular area, but are offered in a variety of areas to afford the student the opportunity of specializing in Gerontology within his major field of study or as a non-degree student. Persons admitted to the Gerontology Program may earn the Certificate in Gerontology upon completion of at least fifteen semester hours of coursework in gerontology plus an approved practicum. The Certificate in Gerontology program can serve as a cognate area for graduate candidates in many of the human service and behavioral science degree programs.

Graduate Music courses are offered to fulfill requirements for professional development or as cognate or selected courses on a plan of study.

Physics

Graduate Physics courses are offered to fulfill requirements for a minor field or as cognate or selected courses on a plan of study.

School of Engineering Technology

Graduate courses in the School of Engineering Technology are offered to fulfill requirements for a minor field or as cognate or selected courses on a plan of study.

COURSE DESCRIPTIONS

Art

Studio Art

831M Advanced Sculpture (3) Advanced work in area of student's choice with facilities for oxyacetylene welding, arc welding, and wood working. Prereq: Art 331 and permission of instructor.

841M Advanced Painting (3) Instruction in oil painting and related media permits each student the time and environment to work and develop individually. Strong emphasis on knowledge of contemporary art. Prereq: Art 341 and permission of the instructor.

851M Advanced Techniques in Printmaking (3) Intaglio, lithography, collagraph, and the embossed print, stressing color and technical proficiency in the various media. Prereq: 351 and permission of instructor.

461/861M Advanced Ceramics (3) Advanced work on the potter's wheel, glaze composition, loading and firing of a high-fire kiln. Prereq: Art 361 and permission of the instructor.

831V Graduate Sculpture (3) Advanced problems in sculptural media. Prereq: Art 431 and permission.

841V Graduate Painting (3) More complex problems in the oil medium and related material. Prereq: Permission and 12 credit hours of painting.

851V Graduate Printmaking (3) Advanced problems in printmaking in either intaglio or lithography techniques. Prereq: Art 451 and permission.

Biology

Course Descriptions

823J Microtechnique (3) A course in the techniques of fixation, dehydration, staining, cleaning and mounting biological material in the manufacture of microscope slides. Prereq: Two years of Biological Sciences.

834J Ecology (4) Study of interrelationships between organisms and their biotic and abiotic environment: includes population biology, community dynamics, biotic interactions, and evolution. Prereq: Biology 145 and 175. Graduate standing.

855J Morphology of Plants (5) An evolutionary survey of the major plant groups, including consideration of the morphology, ecology, life history, research use, and economic importance of each group. Prereq: Biology 145, Gen. Botany, or permission. Grad.

353/853J Flora of The Great Plains (3) The classification, identification, and recognition of common vascular plants, including weeds, ornamentals, and indigenous plants, found in the great plains Prereq: For 353. Biology 145. junior-senior. For 853j, Biology 145.

363/863J Plant Anatomy (3) A study of cells, tissues, and organs of vascular plants with particular emphasis on internal structure of seed

plants. Prereq: For 363, Biology 145, junior-senior. For 863j, Biology 145.

373/873J Fauna of The Great Plains (3) A survey of the common animal groups found in the great plains, including their evolution, ecology, distribution and specific adaptations to the environment of the temperate North American grasslands. Prereq: For 373, Biology 145, junior-senior. For 873j, Biology 145.

374/874J Histology (4) Analysis of the microscopic anatomy of tissues and organs, their adaptations and functional significance. Prereq: For 374, Biology 175, and a course in vertebrate anatomy, or permission of the instructor. Junior-senior. For 874j, Biology 175, and a course in vertebrate anatomy, or permission of the instructor.

384/884J Embryology (4) A study of the principles of development in multicellular organisms, including current concepts derived from experimental embryology, with emphasis on vertebrate morphogenesis. Prereq: General zoology, Biology 175, and a course in vertebrate anatomy.

410/810M Plant Geography (3) A study of the worldwide distribution of major vegetation types and the ecological and physiological factors that determine their location. Special attention to North America is included. Prereq: Biology 102 and Biology 145, botany, or permission.

412/812M Problems in Ecosystem Management (2-3) Directed study in the application and evaluation of methods used for managing native and reestablished ecosystems; the principal study site is the 65 ha. Allwine Prairie Preserve. Strong emphasis is placed on field work. Prereq: Graduate standing in Biology and permission of the instructor required.

414/814M Cellular Biology (4) This course is a comprehensive study of the structure and function of plant and animal cells. Prereq: For 414, Biology 145 and 175; organic chemistry; or permission of the instructor. Junior-senior. For 814m, Biology 145 and 175, organic chemistry, or permission of the instructor.

418/818M Limnology (4) A study of the physical, chemical, and biotic relationships that serve to establish and maintain plant and animal communities in a freshwater environment. Prereq: For 418, Biology 145, 175, and organic chemistry. Junior-senior. For 818m, Biology 145, 175, and organic chemistry.

423/823M Organic Evolution (3) A study of organic evolution in terms of evidences which support the theory and the mechanisms involved in the process. Prereq: For 423, Biology 214. Junior-senior. Lecture and discussion only. For 823m, Biology 214. Lecture and discussion only.

427/827M Animal Behavior (3) Behavior of diverse animals for the understanding of the relationships between nervous integration and the behavior manifested by the organism, as well as the evolution and adaptive significance of be-

havior as a functional unit. Prereq: For 427, Biology 175 and Psychology 101 or permission of the instructor. Junior-senior. Lecture only. For 827m, Biology 175 and Psychology 101 or permission of the instructor. Lecture only. (Same as Psychology 427/827m).

828M Animal Behavior Laboratory (1) Laboratory and field studies of animal behavior with an ethological emphasis. Classical laboratory experiences and independent studies will be conducted. Prereq: Biology/Psychology 427/827M or concurrent enrollment.

433/833M Bryology (3) A course in the identification, classification, ecology, and distribution of bryophytes. Prereq: For 433, Biology 344 or permission of the instructor. Junior-senior. For 833m, Biology 344 or permission of the instructor.

434/834M Ichthyology (4) A study of the biology of fishes, including their evolution, anatomy, physiology, ecology, distribution, classification and identification with emphasis on North American freshwater fishes. Prereq: For 434, Biology 175. Junior-senior. For 834m, Biology 175.

443/843M Mycology (3) A lecture and laboratory course in the collection, cultivation, identification and life cycle of fungi. Prereq: For 443, Biology 145. Junior-senior. For 843m, Biology 145.

444/844M Plant Physiology (4) A study of plant processes and functions with emphasis on photosynthesis, growth and development, metabolism and mineral nutrition. Prereq: For 444, Biology 145, organic chemistry, or permission of the instructor. Junior-senior. For 844m, Biology 145, organic chemistry, or permission of the instructor.

464/864M General Bacteriology (4) The nature of microorganisms, their life processes, their biologic and economic significance. Prereq: For 464, Biology 145, organic chemistry, or permission of the instructor. Junior-senior. For 864m, Biology 145, organic chemistry, or permission of the instructor.

472/872M Experimental Endocrinology (2) Laboratory studies of the functions of the endocrine system emphasizing experimental techniques and laboratory experience. Prereq: For 472, a course in endocrinology, concurrent registration in Biology 473 or permission of instructor. Junior-senior. For 872m, a course in endocrinology, concurrent registration in Biology 873m, or permission of the instructor.

473/873M Endocrinology (3) A survey of endocrine physiology stressing the regulative and integrative roles of hormones, the control of hormone secretion, and mechanisms of hormone action. Prereq: For 473, organic chemistry, vertebrate anatomy, and physiology or permission of the instructor. Junior-senior. For 873m, organic chemistry, vertebrate anatomy, and physiology or permission of the instructor.

474/874M Animal Physiology (4) A comprehensive study of animal function emphasizing mechanisms of regulation and control. Prereq: For 474, Biology 175, vertebrate anatomy, or-

ganic chemistry, and physics, or permission of instructor. Junior-senior. For 874m, Biology 175, vertebrate anatomy, organic chemistry, and physics, or permission of the instructor.

478/878M Vertebrate Zoology (4) A study of the general biology of the subphylum vertebrata including the morphology, anatomy, physiology and ecology of vertebrate representatives. Prereq: For 478, Biology 175. Junior-senior. For 878m, Biology 175.

879M Mammalogy (4) The biology of mammals, including their evolution, functional morphology, physiology, ecology, zoogeography, behavior, classification, and identification with emphasis on North American groups. Field trips. Prereq: Biology 285 or 478 or permission from instructor. Graduate student.

484/884M Herpetology (4) The biology of amphibians and reptiles, including their evolution, classification, anatomy, physiology, ecology, distribution and identification with emphasis on north american groups. Prereq: Biology 175.

885M Developmental Biology (4) A study of the principles of development of multicellular organisms. Current concepts of interactions at the biochemical, cellular, and tissue levels will be included. Prereq: Biology 145, Biology 175, or permission of instructor. Graduate student.

488/888M Invertebrate Zoology (4) A field-oriented course emphasizing the taxomomy and natural history of the invertebrate animals. Prereq: For 488, Biology 175. Junior-senior. For 888m, Biology 175.

491/891M Protozoology (4) The biology of phylum protoza, including their morphology, physiology, reproduction, genetics and ecology with emphasis on free-living groups. Prereq: Biology 175, general zoology.

492/892M Parasitology (4) Taxonomy, morphology, physiology, life history dissemination, and control of the parasitic protozoans, helminths, and arthropods. Prereq: Biology 175.

494/894M Entomology (4) The study of insects, their classification, morphology, physiology, behavior, life histories, ecology, and evolution. Prereq: For 494, Biology 175. Junior-senior. For 894m, Biology 175.

498/898M Ornithology (4) An introduction to the general biology of birds, including their anatomy, physiology, behavior, ecology, classification and identification with emphasis on North American groups. Prereq: For 498, Biology 175; junior-senior. For 898m, Biology 175.

801V Seminar in Biology (1) A study of current research in any of the divisions of biology. Graduate students in biology must complete this course twice for credit. Prereq: Graduate standing.

802V Problems in Biology (2) Research investigation in various areas of biology. Prereq: Sufficient work in biology and the ancillary sciences necessary to pursue adequately the area of investigation involved.

804V Current Topics in Botany (2) Survey of recent literature in one or more of the following areas of botany: Physiology, morphology, anat-

omy, ecology, taxonomy, economic botany, genetics, phytogeography. Prereq: Grad. Standing in biol, an advanced botany course or permission.

805V Current Topics in Microbiology (2) Survey of recent literature in one or more of the following areas of microbiology: Morphology and development, physiology, genetics, taxonomy, ecology, medical microbiology and immunology, virology, and food and industrial microbiology. Prereq: Grad. Standing in biol., Biol 864m, or permission.

806V Current Topics in Zoology (2) Survey of the recent literature in one or more of the following areas of zoology: taxonomy, morphologyanatomy, ecology, physiology, behavior, zoogeography, genetics. Prereq: Graduate standing and permission.

813V Environmental Biology (3) A study of the recent advancements in environmental biology, concentrating on the areas of population dynamics, community interaction and ecosystems theory. Readings, dicussions, laboratory, and a written report. Prereq: Graduate standing in biology and/or permission of instructor.

815V Advanced Ecology (4) Advanced study of populations, communities, and ecosystems, including methods of analysis; may require two-day field trips. Emphasis may be placed on plant or animal ecology. Prereq: Biology 334/834J ecology or permission.

816V Experimental Genetics (3) Lecture and laboratory involving experimentation with organisms such as drosophila spp., neurospora spp., e. Coli and t4 phage. Prereq: Biology 214.

818V Biosystematics (3) A study of principles and techniques in animal and plant biosystematics. The course will focus on the species problem and upon the experimental investigation of the problem. Readings, discussions, laboratory, and a written report. Prereq: Graduate standing in biology and permission of the instructor.

823V Biomorphology (3) A study of the morphology and anatomy of organisms in relation to support, circulation, response, excretion and reproduction. Lecture, laboratory, selected readings, and a written report. Prereq: Graduate standing in biology and permission of the instructor.

833V Advanced Topics in General Physiology (3) Studies in general physiology including such topics as photo-physiology, hormonal regulation of metabolic pathways, temperature-related phenomena, and cytogenetic physiology. Lecture, laboratory, and written report.

883V Environmental Physiology (3) A detailed study of selected dynamic environmental factors and mechanisms of physiologic adaptation by organisms of various taxa. Prereq: General physics, algebra, animal physiology, or permission of instructor. Graduate.

899 Thesis (1-6) Independent research project written under the supervision of a faculty committee.

Black Studies

450/850M International African Community Field Research (3-6) Compartive political culture observations of selected black communities in the United States in relation to counterpart communities in Africa, the Caribbean and Latin America. Section w: East Africa; x: West Africa; y: Caribbean; z: Latin America. Prereq: Permission of the instructor or graduate advisor. (Same as Pol Sci 450/850m)

Business Administration

811H Survey of Accounting (3) The uses of accounting for purposes of control and decisions by managers, shareowners, creditors and others. Prereq: This course is for the graduate student who has not taken principles at the undergraduate level.

817H Quantitative and Statistical Methods for Business Decisions (3) Elementary concepts in quantitative and statistical methodologies. Emphasis is placed on multiplicity of applications to a wide variety of methods. Prereq: Graduate standing and one year of college mathematics.

818H Analytical Foundations of Economics (3) Fundamental principles of macro- and micro- economic theory for graduate students in business. The development of modern aggregate theory is examined along with an economic analysis of the business firm, its market structure, production possibilities, and cost factors. Prereq: Open to MBA candidates and other graduate students desiring this course. No credit is given to students having previously taken Economics 201 and Economics 202 or their equivalents.

456/856M State and Local Finance (3) An inquiry into the facts, techniques, principles, theories, rules, and policies shaping, directing, influencing, and governing the spending, taxing, debt, and utilities of scarce resources for state and local governments. Prereq: Econ 201 and 202.

800V Quantitative Analysis (3) The study of quantitative techniques and models and their application in business decision making. Prereq: DS 213 or BA 816J.

801V Business and Society (3) Exploration of the diversity of societal forces and pressures which produce continued transition in the system of American capitalism. Prereq: L&S 323, 446 or BA 812J.

802V Research Methods in Economics and Business (3) A study of current research techniques in business and economics. The student will become familiar with these techniques through text material, journal studies and actual application. Prereq: DS 213.

803V Business Information Systems (3) A study of how computer-based information systems are constructed and of the opportunities and problems associated with this activity. Prereq: BA 800V.

804V Applied Quantitative Analysis (3) A collection of quantitatively-oriented models and

techniques applied to a variety of business problems in a case study format. Prereq: BA 800V.

805V Business Conditions Analysis (3) This course is concerned with the statistical measurement and evaluation of general business conditions, and the adaption of business policies to changing business conditions. Emphasis is placed upon the practical application of the statistical techniques of analysis to the business situation, within the framework of the aggregate economy. Prereq: Econ 800J or 202.

810V Managerial Economics (3) Economic analysis of the business firm and its environment, with emphasis on market structure, pricing, production possibilities and cost factors. Additional consideration is given the theory of the firm under conditions of uncertainty. Prereg: Econ 201 and 202 or Econ 800J.

820V Managerial Accounting (3) A study of concepts, analysis, and procedures of accounting utilizing internal financial and non-financial data which provides management with information for planning and controlling routine operations, for non-routine decision, policy making and long-range planning; and for external reporting to stockholders, governments, and interested parties. Prereq: BA 811J or Acc 202; Students with Acc 306 or equivalent should enroll in BA 821V.

821V Accounting Theory (3) The development of accounting, current accounting theory and present controversies, and suggested theory and practice. Prereq: BA 820V or Accounting 306 or equivalent.

823V Controllership (3) An analysis of the concept and basic techniques of the controllership function with emphasis on operational control and long range budgeting. Prereq: BA 820V or BA 821V.

825V Seminar in Accounting (3) A study of problem areas which may be independent or interrelated in public, private, and governmental accounting. Prereq: BA 820V or BA 821V.

830V The Environment of Management (3) A study of current administrative philosophy and processes and their historical foundations. The course examines both the intra-organizational processes of managerial planning, decision making, organizing and controlling as well as the external environment's impact on these processes. A systems framework is used to examine the environment, which includes an examination of international factors on the practice of management.

831V Human Behavior in Organization (3) An interdisciplinary study presenting the major trends represented by a variety of theories of organizational behavior as well as major concepts and ideas of organizational psychology. Prereq: MOB 349 or BA 814J and written permission of the CBA Graduate Counselor.

832V Personnel Administration (3) Extensive treatment of the relevant developing theories, and coverage of certain new methods, techniques, and procedures that relate to personnel administration and human resource management. Efforts are made to select and present material to illustrate the practical, applied aspects of resource management and personnel administration, as related to human problems in organizations. Prereq: BA 831V.

835V Seminar in Management (3) A student participation course emphasizing current issues and problems in the areas of management theory and operation. Prereq: BA 830V and BA

840V Marketing Policies (3) A marketing management approach to the determination of policies employed in solving problems in marketing. Prereg: Mkt 331 or BA 815J.

841V Promotional Policies (3) Analysis of the methods, research, and policies needed to develop and administer an effective promotional program. Prereq: Mkt 331 or BA 815J.

845V Seminar in Marketing (3) Exploration, study and critical analysis of contemporary marketing problems, trends, methods and approaches for seminar discussion and written report. Prereq: BA 840V.

850V Financial Management (3) Examines the problems of managing the financial operations of an enterprise with emphasis on analysis and solution of long and short-term problems pertaining to policy decisions. Prereq: BF 325 or BA 813J.

851V Security Analysis (3) A study in the techniques of analysis of marketable securities. Statistical and financial ratio methods of analysis are examined as well as broader bases for appraisal of values of securities. Prereq: BF 325 or BA 813J.

852V Seminar in Investment Management (3) The theory of investment management and its application in formulation of policies for different types of investors. Prereq: BF 325 or BA

853V Banking and Financial Markets: Structure, Function, and Policy (3) A comprehensive study of the structure and functioning of financial firms and markets; recent policies affecting the financial system; proposals for structural and functional changes of the financial system. Prereg: BF 345 or BF 435.

855V Seminar in Finance (3) Selected topics from areas of business finance. Prereq: BA 850V.

860V Real Estate and Land Use Economics Theory (3) This course brings together the best of the technical literature dealing with the development of advanced tools of analysis and concepts of Real Estate and Land Use Economics. The tools are presented and developed which assist real estate decision-makers in identifying and evaluating professionally the complex factors which determine real estate productivity, value, investment, and land-use patterns. Prereq: Econ 201 and 202 or 800J.

861V Current Problems in Real Estate and Land Use Economics (3) A study of current problems in real estate markets affecting decision policies in the private and public sectors. Analysis of economics of land development and use and reuse of real property to provide a viable environment for all citizens. Prereq: RE 341, RE 346, RE 440, and RE 441 or equivalent experience.

880V Policy, Planning and Strategy (3) A comprehensive study of business problems, prospects and opportunities at varying levels of or-ganizations. The student is responsible for demonstrating interrelationships between the various disciplines of study. Only an A or B is considered an acceptable grade. Prereq: Taken in last 9 hours of MBA program.

890V Independent Research (3) Individual research in the field of accounting, finance, management, marketing, quantitative analysis or the environment of business. Maximum of nine hours of three different fields.

891V Special Studies in Business (1-3; may be repeated up to 6) A series of special courses each designed to focus on current major issues and developments in a specific area of Business Administration, scheduled as a workshop or seminar according to purpose. Prereq: Graduate student in good standing and as indicated for specific workshop or seminar.

899V Thesis (1-6) A research project, under the supervision of a faculty thesis adviser in the College of Business Administration, in which the student establishes his capacity to design, conduct, and complete an independent, scholarly investigation of a high order of originality. The research topic and the completed project must be approved by the student's faculty thesis adviser, and two other faculty members, one of which must be from outside the program area. Prereq: Permission of graduate adviser.

Chemistry

335/835J Physical Chemistry (3) A presentation of selected topics from the areas of quantum mechanics, classical thermodynamics, statistical mechanics. Prereq: Chemistry 226, 226L. 240, 240L with grade of C or better. Physics 212, Math 196.

335L/835JL Physical Chemistry Laboratory (1) Physical chemistry laboratory. Chemistry 335L should be taken concurrently with Chemistry 335. Prereq: Chemistry 226, 226L, 240, 240L with grade of C or better. Physics 212, Math

336/836J Physical Chemistry (3) A presentation of selected topics from the areas of classical thermodynamics, statistical mechanics and chemical kinetics. Prereq: Chemistry 335.

336L/836JL Physical Chemistry Laboratory (1) Physical chemistry laboratory. Chemistry 336l should be taken concurrently with Chemistry 336. Prereq: Chemistry 3351.

340/840J Instrumental Analysis (2) Instrumental methods of quantitative analysis. Normally taken concurrently with Chemistry 340l. Prereq: Chemistry 336 (May be taken concurrently.)

340L/840JL Instrumental Analysis Laborotory (2) Laboratory to be taken concurrently with Chemistry 840. Prereq: Same as Chemistry 840.

423/823M Advanced Organic Chemistry (3) An advanced lecture course in modern theories and special topics in organic chemistry. Prereq: Chemistry 226, 335 with grade of C or better (Chemistry 335 may be taken concurrently).

424/824M Advanced Organic Chemistry (3) An advanced lecture course in organic chemical reactions. Prereq: Chemistry 226, 336 with grade of C or better (Chemistry 336 may be taken concurrently).

450/850M Advanced Inorganic Chemistry (3) Theories of chemical bonding, the determiniation of chemical structures, and the application of modern chemical theory to classical and recent problems in inorganic chemistry. Prereq: Chemistry 336 (May be taken concurrently.)

451/851M Advanced Inorganic Preparations (1-2) Laboratory preparation of representative types of inorganic compounds by various standard and special experimental techniques. Prereq: Chemistry 450 (May be taken concurrently.)

465/865M Biochemistry (3) Chemistry and biochemistry of proteins, carbohydrates and lipids. Enzymes and energetics. Biological oxidation. Not open to students with credits in 365 or 366. Chemistry 4651 must be taken concurrently with Chemistry 465. Prereq: Chemistry 226, 2261 and and 336, 3361.

465L/865ML Biochemistry Laboratory (1) Biochemistry laboratory for Chemistry 465, Chemistry 465 and 4651 must be taken concurrently.

466/866M Biochemistry (3) Continuation of Chemistry 465. Chemistry 4661 must be taken concurrently with 466. Prereq: For 466, Chemistry 465, 465L. For 866M, Chemistry 865,

466L/866ML Biochemistry Laboratory (1) Biochemistry laboratory for Chemistry 466. Prereq: For 466l, Chemistry 465, 465l. For 866ml, Chemistry 865m, 865ml.

493/893M Special Topics in Chemistry (1-3) Selected special topics in chemistry. Prereq: For 493, Chemistry 226 and 240 with permission of the instructor. For 893m, graduate standing, Chemistry 226 and 240 with permission of instructor. Some topics will require more advanced prerequisites.

499/899M Chemistry Problems (1-3) Independent student research. To receive a passing grade the student must present a seminar on the research project to the Chemistry faculty. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

499/899V Research in Chemistry (Arranged) Provides the student with an opportunity for experience in the solving of an actual research problem in the field of chemistry. To receive a passing grade the student must present a seminar on the research project to the Chemistry faculty. Prereq: Permission of instructor, and an undergraduate chemistry major (not less than 32 hours).

Civil Engineering

360/860M Transportation Engineering II (3) Introduction to planning and analysis of multimodel transportation projects. Governmental activities in the finance and control of transportation. Basic rural and urban planning techniques and their effect on land use, the environment and social and economic development. Economic, operational and control characteristics of existing and futuristic transportation modes. Prereq: For 360, junior standing or permission of the instructor. For 860m. graduate standing or permission of the instructor. Not available for graduate credit for engineering students.

400/800M Environmental Quality and Control Land, Air, and Water (3) Application of the principles of ecology, engineering, and planning for the control and management of the physical environment (Land, air and water) Including land and water ecosystems, air and water pollution, and environment planning. Prereq: For 400, senior standing. For 800m, graduate standing.

426/826M Environmental Pollution Control (3) An introduction to the engineering principles of control of air pollution, solid wastes, and radioactive wastes in relation to the total environment. Interrelations of air, water, and land waste disposal methods are stressed. Prereq: For 426, junior standing in engineering or permission or the instructor. For 826m, graduate standing or permission of the instructor.

428/828M Application of Chemistry to Sanitary Engineering. (3) Applications of chemistry in the analysis and treatment of water and waste water (Lecture 2, lab 3). Prereq: CE 226, 327.

429/829M Applications of Microbiology to Sanitary Engineering (3) Applications of microbiology related to the treatment of waste waters, and the bacteriologic examination of water and waste water. (Lecture 2, lab 1). Prereq: For 429, Civil Engineering 327. For 829m, graduate standing and Civil Engineering 327.

834M Soil Mechanics II (3) Application of the effective stress principle to shear strength of cohesive soils; analysis of stability of slopes. Development of continuum relationships for soils; solutions for stresses and displacements for an elastic continuum, solution of the consolidation equation for various initial and boundary conditions. Prereq: Graduate standing and Civil Engineering 334.

836M Foundation Engineering (3) Subsoil exploration and interpretation; selection of foundation systems; determination of allowable bearing pressures from laboratory and field data; proportioning shallow foundations for bearing capacity and settlement; design of deep foundations; pile driving analysis; control of ground water. Prereq: Graduate standing, Civil Engineering 334; or equivalent.

441/841M Structural Analysis II (3) Analysis of statically indeterminate structures, including continuous beams, planar frames, and trusses. Numerical and classical methods of analysis, including an introduction to solutions by matrix methods. Effects of temperature and movements of supports. Influence lines. Relation of design to analysis. Prereq: For 441, Civil Engineering 340. For 841m, graduate standing.

444/844M Steel Design I (2) An introductory course involving the application of the basic

principles of mechanics of materials and the current practices in proportioning of structural members in steel. Prereq: For 444, Civil Engineering 340 or permission of the instructor. For 844m, graduate standing.

445/845M Structural Analysis III (3) Computation of stress resultants in statically indeterminate structures including beams, and planar and three dimensional frames and trusses using matrix formulations (Finite element method), advanced moment distributing techniques and column analogy. Consideration of shearing and axial deformation in addition to the usual flexural deformations. Effects of temperature and prestrain, support displacements, elastic supports, and axial-flexural interaction. Prereq: For 445, Civil Engineering 441 and digital computer methods in engineering analysis. For 845m, Civil Engineering 841 and graduate standing.

446/846M Steel Design II (3) A continuation of Civil Engineering 444, but directed toward building systems. Steel and timber structural systems are studied. Prereq: For 446, Civil Engineering 444. For 846m, Civil Engineering 844 and graduate standing.

447/847M Reinforced Concrete II (3) The use of reinforced concrete design principles in special applications including columns and footings, and the study of additional design concepts including deflections, prestressing and torsion. Prereq: For 447, Civil Engineering 443. For 847m, Civil Engineering 843 and graduate standing or permission of the instructor.

448/848M Plastic Analysis I (3) Application of the basic principles of plastic analysis to frame structural systems, plastic collapse concepts, upper and lower bound theorems, and moment balancing are applied to various frame geometry. Member selection and deflection calculations. Prereq: For 448, Civil Engineering 441 or permission of the instructor. For 848m, Civil Engineering 841m and graduate standing or permission of the instructor.

452/852M Water Resources Development (3) Theory and application of systems engineering with emphasis on optimization and simulation techniques for evaluating alternatives in water resources developments related to water supply, flood control, hydroelectric power, drainage, water quality, water distribution, irrigation and water measurement. Prereq: For 452, Civil Engineering 351 or Civil Engineering 457 or equivalent. For 852m, graduate standing and permission of the instructor.

854M Hydraulic Engineering (3) Fundamentals of hydraulics with applications of mechanics of solids, mechanics of fluids, and engineering economics to the design of hydraulic structures, continuity, momentum, energy principles are applied to special problems from various branches of hydraulic engineering. Prereq: Graduate standing and permission of the instructor.

456/856M Advanced Hydrology (3) Advanced topics in hydrology including parametric and stochastic processes and systems analysis of hydrologic problem with particular emphasis on the application of techniques in the design of

engineering projects. Prereq: For 456, Civil Engineering 351 or Civil Engineering 457 or equivalent. For 856m, graduate standing and permission of the instructor.

457/857M Engineering Hydrology (3) Introduction to the principles of engineering hydrology, with emphasis on the components of the hydrologic cycle; precipitation, evaporation, surface runoff, infiltration, drainage basin characteristics, streamflow, and precipitation runoff relationships. Emphasis is placed on utilizing these variables in forming engineering judgment. Prereq: For 457, Math 197 and GE 331 or equivalent. For 857m graduate standing and permission of the instructor.

458/858M Ground Water Engineering (3) The application of engineering principles to the movement of ground water. The influence of the physical and geologic environment on ground water hydraulics, water well hydraulics and aquifer evaluation. Emphasis is placed on practical ground water engineering problems. Prereq: For 458, Math 197 and GE 331 or equivalent. For 858m graduate standing and permission of the instructor.

461/861M Urban Transportation Planning (3) Development of urban transportation planning, objectives and goals, data collection procedures, land use and travel forecasting techniques, trip generation and assignment and modal choice analysis. Mass transit system design, operation and evaluation. Prereq: Upper class standing or permission of the instructor.

462/862M Airport Planning and Design (3) Principles in planning, locating and designing of airports. Analysis of airport financing, site selection and estimation of aeronautical demand, air traffic control and aircraft characteristics are discussed. Environmental effects of airports including noise and air pollution problems. Prereq: For 462, upper class standing and permission of the instructor. For 862m, graduate standing and permission of the instructor.

463/863M Transportation Geometrics (3) Functional design of transportation systems with emphasis on highway, railway and airport design considerations. Horizontal and vertical curves, sight distance, superelevation and intersection and ramp curve analysis. Design of highway interchanges, channelization and cross sections. Basics of airport, railroad, mass transit and pipeline design geometrics. Prereq: For 463, upper class standing and permission of the instructor. For 863m, graduate standing and permission of the instructor.

464/864M Traffic Engineering (3) Characteristics of traffic flow as influenced by the interaction of the driver, vehicle and roadway. Volume speed, delay, pedestrian and parking analyses. Traffic laws and ordinances, highway capacity, accident investigations, roadway illumination and traffic control devices. Prereq: For 464, upper class standing and permission of the instructor. For 864m, graduate standing and permission of the instructor.

468/868M Portland Cement and Asphalt Concrete Laboratory (1) Laboratory and field procedures used to obtain portland cement and as-

phalt concrete for engineered construction. Prereq: For 468, GE 326 or equivalent. For 868m, graduate standing.

469/869M Pavement Design and Evaluation (3) Thickness design of flexible and rigid pavement systems for highways and airports; design of paving materials; evaluation and strengthening of existing pavements. Prereq: For 469, CE 334 or equivalent. For 869m, graduate standing.

470/870M Construction Management (3) Estimating and bidding, scheduling (Cpm, pert), contracts, bonds and insurance, cost control systems, equipment utilization, code and zoning. Prereq: Permission of the instructor.

472/872M Construction Techniques (3) Job planning and management; construction equipment; construction materials; construction methods. Prereq: Permission of the instructor.

474/874M Construction Cost and Controls (3) A course emphasizing accounting, costing and management control as related to construction and construction organization. The various relationships between the accounting and management aspects will be presented with emphasis on the informational and controlling segments of costing. Estimating, bidding, cpm, pert, computers and office procedures as they apply to costing and control will be discussed. Prereq: For 474, permission of the instructor. For 874m, graduate standing and permission of the instructor.

480/880M Engineering Economy (2) Economic comparison of engineering alternatives. Studies of equipment selection and replacement, depreciation, break-even points and minimum-cost points. Prereq: For 480, senior standing. For 880m, graduate standing.

843M Reinforced Concrete I (2) A study of the principles of mechanics applied to reinforced concrete structural members. Emphasis is placed on flexure, shear, and bond. Prereq: Graduate standing.

899 Graduate Research (Thesis) (3-6)

Communication

401/801M History of Mass Communication (3) The American mass media from 17th Century origins to present, with emphasis on mass communication aspects of literary, intellectual, social and political history, and their relationships to current media issues. Prereq: Graduate standing and major/minor in Communication or instructor's permission.

411/811M Development of Rhetorical Theory (3) The origin and development of rhetorical theory and practice.

412/812M Studies in American Public Address (3) Study of representative American speakers from the eighteenth century to the present. Prereq: Nine hours of speech.

417/817M Organizational Communication (3) Communication in relation to problematic transactions within and between various types of organizations. Theoretical and practicable methodologies and procedures for comprehending and then preventing, alleviating, or solving

422/822M Literary Aspects of Journalism (3) Survey of the journalistic works of pertinent American writers through readings, lectures, discussions, plus creative writing assignments.

423/823M Public Relations (3) A study of the principles, problems and techniques of the public relations function through lectures, discussions and case histories.

431/831M Political Broadcasting (3) A study of the evolving role of the electronic media in shaping political activities in our contemporary democratic society. Prereq: Political Science 100 or Comm 150, 151.

434/834M Broadcasting History and Regulation (3) A study of broadcasting in the United States through its regulatory history. Prereq: Permis-

435/835M Issues in Broadcasting (3) A study of current economic, legislative and sociological issues facing the American system of broadcasting. Prereq: Comm 150 or 151.

436/836M Broadcasting Sales Seminar (1) A study of the overview of broadcasting economics and sales. Prereq: Nine hours of broadcasting courses including Comm 339.

437/837M Communication Workshop (3) A workshop to explore and develop new communication theory and processes, to develop skills in the formation and execution of such processes, and to increase awareness of the pragmatics of communication. Prereq: Comm 150 or

840M Mass Media and Society (3) The study of mass media as social institutions, particularly in their interaction with government and the public, with emphasis on themes of criticism, normative statements and solutions to perceived media problems.

441/841M Communications Law (3) A discussion of laws, legal issues, court decisions and government regulations which have special application to the mass media, such as libel, privacy, contempt of court, copyright, censorship, and the Federal Communications Commission.

442/842M Theories of the First Amendment: Speech and Press (3) An examination of freedom of communication in the United States with particular attention to freedom of the mass media and the many attempts at censorship. The course examines the philosophical and legal aspects of freedom of speech and press and the theories held by some of the country's most prominent legal scholars. Prereq: Communication 440 or 441 or permission.

450/850M Mass Communications and Public Opinion (3) A study of the nature and formation of public opinion and its significance in our society; the nature of propaganda and its methods; and the relationship between public opinion, propaganda, and the mass communication process.

451/851M Persuasion (3) Basic principles and psychological processes underlying persuasive communication; a review of various source, message, channel, and receiver variables and their influence on communication effectiveness. Prereq: Comm 101 and 3 hours of psychology or sociology, or permission.

452/852M Psycholinguistics (3) A discussion of the literature concerned with how such psycholoigcal variables as perception, learning, memory, and development relate to the linguistic variables of sentence structure, meaning, and speech sounds. Prereq: Permission. (Same as Psy 452/852M)

453/853M Seminar in Cross-Cultural Communication (3) This seminar will be directed towards understanding the components of cultural and subcultural misinterpretation, with the purpose of bringing to awareness those factors which disturb communication in cross-cultural situations. (Same as Sociology 453 and 853M)

462/862M Directing Forensics (3) To provide students planning to teach speech in high school or college with a philosophy and detailed knowledge of how to direct a forensic program. Prereq: Comm 112 or permission.

490-491/890M-891M Seminar in Mass Communication (3) A senior seminar applying historical and theoretical perspective to current issues and developments in mass communications.

801V Introduction to Research in Communication (3) Philosophy of scientific research, including process, components, and products; research methods, designs, and procedures in communication; preparation of a proposal; writing research reports. Prereq: Basic statistics (Psy 213 or equivalent).

811V Seminar: Modern Public Address (3) Studies in figures, movements and institutions prominent in modern public address. May be repeated. Prereq: Permission.

815V College Debate Workshop (S) (3) A comprehensive analysis of the current intercollegiate debate proposition. Also stresses methods of coaching debate and debate tournament management at the college level. Students taking this course may not only receive credit for Comm 862M, directing forensics, toward a degree at UNO. Prereq: Permission.

830V Seminar in Broadcasting (3) Substantive study into specialized areas and modes of broadcasting. Content will vary according to the individual semester being offered. Course may be repeated. Prereq: Permission.

847V Foundations Seminar: Transactional Communication (3) This seminar was designed for students preparing to take the major, a minor, or advanced seminars in Communication. Universals of human symbolizing processes (e.g., deleting, distorting, and generalizing) will be explored intensively and extensively. Principles underlying current issues in transactional (vs. Mass) communication will be emphasized by means of selections from recent developments and contemporary methodologies, including General Systems Theory, Modern Heuristic. and General Semantics. Prereq: Graduate standing and majoring in Communication or instructor's permission.

850V Seminar in Communication Theory (3) Analysis of current approaches to the study of communication, with emphasis on theoretical models, and their application to various professional interests. Prereq: Communication 847V or the instructor's permission.

857V Foundations Seminar: Mass Communications (3) This seminar was designed for students preparing to take the major, a minor, or advanced seminars in Communication. The mass communication system in the United States will be examined in terms of its basic philosophical and legal assumptions and the current political, cultural, sociological and psychological theories relating to the process and effects of mass communication. Prereg: Graduate standing and majoring in Communication or instructor's permission.

898V Independent Research or Creative Projects (1-6)Non- thesis projects for majors in Communication supplementing advanced graduate courses. Prereq: Admitted to candidacy (or application pending); written proposal of each project approved by the student's committee.

899 Thesis (1-6 each) Independent research project written under the supervision of an advi-

940 Seminar in Small Group Communication (3) Research and theory in the process of small group communication and leadership; research procedures: approaches to teaching a discussion course. Prereq: Comm 801V or equivalent, or basic statistics, or permission. (Same as Sociology 940V and Psychology 940V)

955 Seminar in Applications of Non-Verbal Communication Theory (3) Theories and research on the development, facilitation and barriers of human non-verbal communications. Analysis of non-verbal interaction with specific applications to education, business, supervision, counseling, therapy and interpersonal speech communication. Prereq: Course in research methods or permission. (Same as Secondary Education 936 and Psychology 936)

Counseling and Guidance

479/879M Practical and Experiential Training in Counseling (1/2-6) An integrative course designed to acquaint students and practitioners with recent developments in the counseling profession. The course is typically a collaborative effort with the ACT I, a local, non-profit advanced counseling training institute. This course is repeatable up to a maximum of six hours of credit each time the conditions of this sequence are met. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

480/880M Guidance Skills for Educators (3) Course designed to familiarize educators with guidance activities of schools, the educator's role in these activities, and to develop appropriate guidance and listening skills. No credit for guidance majors. Prereq: For 480, senior. For 880m, senior or graduate.

492/892M Guidance in The Elementary School (3) A study of the teacher's role in elementary

school guidance with emphasis on activities in the classroom. No credit for guidance majors. Prereq: For 492, senior.

498/898M Counseling Skills in Gerontolgy (3) This course is intended to help develop basic counseling skills for application in gerontology.

800V Special Studies in Counseling and Guidance (3) Intensive courses scheduled as regular seminars or workshops, according to purpose. Prereq: Permission of department.

801V Humanistic Processes in Education (3) A study of procedures to increase the effectiveness of humanistic processes in the classroom. Special emphasis will be placed on planning and implementing processes in specific situations. Prereq: ELED 436 or SED 458 or permission of instructor.

805V Alcoholism Treatment Modalities (3) An examination of alcoholism treatment modalities. Special attention is given to comparison with regard to theoretical perspectives, techniques, and effectiveness. Prereq: Graduate standing in Counseling and Guidance, Social Work, or Psychology. Graduate students in other disciplines with prior training or experience in counseling will be admitted with permission of instructor.

810U Advanced Studies in Counseling (2-3) An intensive study of selected counseling theories, methods and research. Prereq: Coun 820v and 825v or 835v.

810V Research Project in Counseling and Guidance (3) Individual or group study and analysis of specific problems/issues in the field. Prereg: Permission of the instructor.

812U Counseling With Parents (3) A course emphasizing techniques used in working with families. Prereq: Coun 825v or Coun 832v or permission of instructor.

815U Advanced Counseling Practicum (2-3) Continuation of practicum in counseling. Prereq: Coun 825v or 836v and permission of department.

815V The Student and Student Personnel Work in Higher Education (3) An overview of the characteristics of college students and their interaction with campus environmental influences. The impact of student personnel work is considered as it affects personality growth, social development and career planning by college students. Prereg: FED 801v.

818U Guidance and Counseling Seminar (1-3) The consideration of topics having current relevance to guidance and counseling. Prereq: Permission of department.

819U Research Project in Counseling and Guidance (2-3) Research study on a problem in the area of guidance and counseling. Prereq: Permission of department.

820V Introduction to Counseling Theories (3) Study of contemporary theories of counseling. the counseling process and methods. Prereq: Coun 890m.

821V Organization and Administration of Guidance Service in Secondary Schools (3) Study of organizational patterns and administrative practices in guidance and counseling programs. Preseg: Coun 890M or 892M.

822V Occupational and Educational Information (3) The nature and use of occupational and educational information. The process of vocational choice. Prereq: Admission to Counseling and Guidance or permission of the instructor.

823V Appraisal Techniques in Counseling and Guidance (3) Utilization of standardized and nonstandardized appraisal techniques in counseling and guidance. Prereq: Coun 890m, fed 801v.

824V Counseling Practices (3) The process of establishing a counseling relationship, utilizing different approaches appropriate to client con-cerns, and developing basic counseling skills. Prereq: Coun 820v, 822v, 823v.

825V Counseling Practicum (2-4) Counseling experience under the supervision of a practicum instructor of the university. Prereq: Coun 824v and permission of department.

826V Guidance Internship (3-6) Field experience in an approved guidance program under the supervision of a qualified counselor and a guidance professor of the university. Prereq: Coun 824v and permission of department.

827V Group Techniques in Guidance (2-3) The group process with emphasis on the experiential aspect. Prereq: Coun 890m and permission of instructor.

828V Counseling Older Adults (2) Designed to provide basic information counselors need for work with older adults. For Counseling and Guidance Majors not specializing in Gerontology. Prereq: Counseling 890M, Principles of Guidance.

829V Community Involvement for Urban Counselors (3) A wide range of experiences dealing with the ecology of the urban disadvantaged and its effects upon counseling. Prereq: Admission to Counseling and Guidance, Criminal Justice, or Home Economics, or Instructor's approval.

832V Counseling Elementary School Children (3) A study of the methods and techniques applicable in counseling young children. Prereg: Coun 820v. 831v.

833V Elementary School Counseling Practicum (4) Counseling in the elementary setting under the supervision of a counseling professor of the university. Prereq: Coun 832v and permission of department.

835V Elementary Counseling Internship (6) Field experience in an elementary counseling program under the supervision of a counseling professor and appropriate in-school personnel. Prereg: Coun 832v and permission of depart-

837V Group Counseling Theory and Practice (3) A course designed primarily for Counselors with a combination of theory and experiences necessary to the understanding of effective leadership skills involved in the group counseling process. Prereq: Coun 890M, Coun 820V, Coun 823V, and Coun 827V.

839V Guidance Services and The Disadvantaged Youth (3) A study of the methods and techniques in counseling disadvantaged youth. Prereg: Coun 820V and 824V.

845V College Student Personnel Internship (6) This course is designed to provide practical work experience under supervision in various areas within student personnel services. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

847V Practicum in Group Counseling (4) Supervised experience co-facilitating group counseling at an approved practicum site. Required as the third course for the cognate area of Group Work in Counseling. Prereq: Counseling major, Couns 824, 827, 837 and/or permission.

860 Parent Education (3) Review of literature relative to the role of parents in America and to programs in parent education. Study of the basic concepts in dynamics of group discussion, child development and family relations with emphasis on application to parent education programs. Same as HD&F 860. Prereq: Graduate standing.

890M Principles of Guidance (3) The introductory course for students majoring in the counseling and guidance department. A study of basic principles underlying guidance and counseling. (Non-counseling majors are encouraged to take Coun 880M, Guidance Skills for Secondary Educators, or Coun 892M, Guidance in the Elementary School.) Prereq: Adm. to the Guidance and Coun. Program.

896V Directed Readings in Counseling and Gerontology (1-3) A study of recent and current literature on counseling with older people. Prereq: Counseling Major and Coun-Gero 898M or permission of the instructor.

897V Personal Values and Aging (1) Course designed to increase students' self-awareness of personal values and feelings related to aging and the aged. (Same as Gero 897V.) Prereq: Coun 890M or permission of the instructor.

899 Thesis (1-6) Independent research project written under the supervision of an adviser. Prereq: Permission.

Criminal Justice

801V Criminal Justice Planning and Innovation (3) A review of the literature in social psychology, public administration and sociology which relate to the effectiveness of alternate strategies of promoting change in criminal justice agencies, institutions, organizations and individual attitudes and values. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

802V Seminar in Administration of Justice (3) Justice in America from the standpoint of the offender and an inquiry into the influences and pressures upon individuals across the criminal justice spectrum who corporately deliver justice to the citizenry. More feasible and improved systems of delivery are examined. Prereq: None.

803V Comparative Law Enforcement Systems (3) A structural and functional examination of modern law enforcement systems, especially European. Emphasis placed upon historical development, current practices and trends. Prereq: CJ 203 and permission of instructor.

804V Seminar in Community Services and Treatment (3) An analysis of probation and other alternatives to incarceration in the community setting, and of the feasibility and effectiveness of treatment of individuals under sentence in the community based treatment spectrum. Prereq: CJ 435 and permission of instructor.

807V Theoretical Criminology (3) A study of the etiology of crime as a social phenomena and an objective analysis of the historical influences and thought which molded its development into an accepted contemporary science. Prereq: CJ/ Soc 335, graduate standing and permission of

808V Seminar in The Processes of The Criminal Justice System (3) An examination of the interaction of the constituent elements of the American criminal justice system with emphasis on institutional and personnel interfacing. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

809V Seminar in Delinquency Prevention, Control and Correction (3) An inquiry in the social ramifications of the entire juvenile delinquency process including labeling, detention, incarceration and tolerance. Pre- and post-adjudicatory issues are dealt with as well as a realistic perspective given to delinquency prevention strategies. Prereq: None.

811V Special Problems in Criminal Justice (3) A course devoted to an exploration and analysis of contemporary special problems in the broad spectrum of law enforcement and corrections. Prereq: CJ graduate student and permission of instructor.

812V Criminal Justice Research Theory and Methodology (3) Research theory and methodology in the social sciences as applicable to criminal justice; preparation of research designs, conceptual models; sampling procedures; and development of individual research papers. Prereg: Permission of instructor.

814V Independent Study (1-3) Individual projects in research, literature, review, or creative production which may or may not be an extension of course work. The work will be supervised and evaluated by departmental graduate faculty members. Prereq: Graduate hours in major department and permission of instructor. 899V Master's Thesis (1-6)

Curriculum and Instruction

886M Audio-Visual Materials in Education (3) An introduction to the theory, history, organization, selection, and utilization of educational technology for instruction, emphasizing the place of educational media in the learning/ teaching process. (F,S,Su)

887M Preparation of Instructional Materials (3) A basic course in the production of inexpensive audio-visual materials for the classroom. Graphic, photographic and auditory materials are considered, including such instructional materials as slides, transparencies, still pictures, video presentations, and exhibits. (F,S,Su)

800V Special Studies (1-3) A series of intensive courses especially for teachers in service scheduled as regular seminars, or workshops, according to purpose. Prereq: Graduate standing and departmental permission.

810V Research Project (1-3) Individual or group study and analysis of specific problems in schools. Typical problems will be concerned with curriculum and instruction in areas which have a broad scope of application rather than a specific level. Prereq: Graduate standing and departmental permission.

890V Introduction to the Education of the Gifted (3) The course involves the processes of defining and identifying characteristics of giftedness, analyzing associated problems, examining relevant research, and relating these to the overall education of gifted individuals. Prereq: Admission to Graduate College; one year teaching experience.

Dramatic Arts

801M-802M Advanced Projects in Dramatic Arts (1-3) Special projects in dramatic arts supplementing regular courses; individual research projects; combined study and practicum. Prereg: 9 hours of dramatic arts in the general area to be studied and permission of the instruc-

806M Children's Theatre Production (3) Study of the methods of direction, design, acting and production of plays for children. Students plan a complete children's theatre production or become actively involved in an actual production. Prereq: Undergraduate major or minor in theatre or permission of the instructor.

809M Advanced Oral Interpretation (3) Theories and forms of interpretation from antiquity to the present. Preparation and presentation of a recital. Prereq: DA 109.

831M-832M Acting: Historical periods and Styles (Each 3) The fundamental theories and practices of major styles of acting from ancient Greece to the present, including interpretation of outstanding dramatic literature. Prereq: DA 331-332 or permission of the instructor.

844M Directing: Rehearsal and Performance (3) A practicum in play selection, analysis, casting, directing and performing. Prereq: DA 101, 206, 263, 331 or permission of the instructor.

851M Costume Design (Each 3) An introduction to the fundamentals of stage costume design, including line, silhouette, movement. color, texture and theatricality. Emphasis on the visual presentation of designs, including considerable work with life drawing and rendering technique. Prereq: DA 206-207, 351; Art 110,

861M Scene Design (3) Principles of composition perspective and color for the stage; the designer's approach to the play, production of ground plans, elevations and sketches. Prereq: DA 101, 206, 207, 261, 263.

867M Stage and TV Lighting (3) Characteristics and control of light and color and their application to the theatre and television; elementary

electricity; lens systems; reflectors; lamps, control systems. Prereq: DA 101, 206, 207, 261.

871M History of the Theatre to 1642 (3) A historical survey of the theatre and its literature from its origins to 1642.

872M History of the Theatre Since 1642 (3) A historical survey of theatre and its literature from 1642 to the present.

873M Seminar in Theatre History (3) Selected subjects in theatre history from ancient to modern times. The subject of the course will change each year, according to the interest of the students and the instructor. Prereg: Permission of the instructor.

883M Seminar in Dramatic Literature (3) A seminar for graduate and advanced undergraduate students which will explore selected subjects in dramatic literature in depth. Research papers and seminar reports will be required. The subject of the seminar will change from year to year. Prereq: Permission of the instruc-

843V Seminar in Play Direction (3) An indepth study of the principles of play direction. Prereq: Graduate standing and permission of instructor.

865V Technical Theatre Problems (3) Research and dialogue in the aesthetics and physical results of the relationships between dramatic form, theatre architecture, and scenic design and lighting from historical and contemporary points of view. Prereq: DA 101, 461, 467, 471, 472 or permission.

890V Dramatic Arts Research Methods (3) This course is designed to introduce graduate students in dramatic arts to basic techniques of scholarly research: gathering material, defining the problem, and preparing the manuscript. Prereq: Admission to graduate program in Dramatic Arts.

891V Dramatic Theory and Criticism (3) For advanced students of dramatic literature. Important dramatic theories and criticism from antiquity to the present. Prereq: DA 101 or permission of instructor.

892V Seminar in Contemporary Theatre Aesthetics (3) Research and dialogue in the aesthetic theories and movements in the contemporary theatre. Emphasis on the sources, background, and configuration of theatrical styles in this century. Prereq: DA 101, 471, 472 and English 252 or permission.

898V Final Project (3) Final project for Option II. Prereq: Admission to candidacy and the approval of the project proposal.

899V Thesis (1-3) Independent research project written under the supervision of an advisor.

Economics

418/818M Collective Bargaining (3) A study of the issues, structures, and procedures involved in collective bargaining, and the settlement of disputes, as centered around the labormanagement contract. Prereq: Econ 315. Fall in even-numbered years

821M Competition and Monopoly in American Industry (3) An appraisal of the role of competition and monopoly in the American economy; examination of market structures, conduct, and economic performance in a variety of industries. Prereq: Econ 320.

823M Advanced Macro-Theory (3) A study of the level of income, production, employment, and growth. Classical and Keynesian systems are contrasted with recent theoretical paths being explored. Prereq: Econ 322.

426/826M Evolution of Economic Thought (3) Tracing the evolution of economic thought from the medieval to the Keynesian period. Focus is on the interactions of institutional milieu, thought, and economic doctrine. Prereq: Econ 201 and 202. Fall in even-numbered years

430/830M Quantitative Applications in Economics and Business (3) The study and application of modern quantitative techniques to problem solving in economics and business. Prereq: Econ 201, 202 and D.S. 212 or permission of instructor.

831M Public Utility Economics (3) This course is designed to develop the theoretical and empirical basis for economic analysis of public utilities in general with specific emphasis on the gas, electric, and telephone industries. Prereq: Econ 320 and 322, DS 213 or permission of instructor.

832M Energy Economics (3) This course develops the economics of supply and demand for alternative energy sources including gas, oil, coal, and nuclear power. Various economic analytical techniques including specific energy modeling are discussed. Prereq: 320 and 322, DS 213, or permission of the instructor.

833M Transportation Economics (3) Study of relationship between transportation industry and the national economy and to the other business sector. Emphasis on government regulation, passenger and freight transport and urban transit and energy and environment issues. Prereq: Econ 202 and DS 213 or permission of the instructor.

445/845M Monetary Theory and Policy (3) This course traces the development of monetary theory from the classical theory to current monetary theories. Beside the classical theory, the monetary theories of Keynes, the neo-Keynesians, and the neo-classical are examined and compared. The implications of each school for monetary policy are examined. Prereq: BF 345. Fall in odd-numbered years.

466/866M International Economic Development (3) Problems relating to early stages of economic development; investment priorities, mobilizing savings and policies and programs are studied. Prereq: Econ 201 and 202. Spring in even-numbered years

801V Theory of Public Finance (3) This course is designed to develop the theoretical basis of modern tax and expenditure processes at the frontier of knowledge. Prereq: Econ 320, Econ 322 and Econ 822V or permission of instructor.

805V Economic Education (I) (3) Open to any graduate student with no previous college work

in economics who is teaching K-12. Not open to majors in economics. A study and examination of economic principles and how they can be related to the teacher's classroom presentation. This course is designed to furnish the public school teacher (K-12) With sufficient background and understanding to aid in the recognition of economic issues and the teaching of economic concepts and principles.

806V Economic Education (3) A continuation of Econ 805v. Prereg: Econ 805v.

807V Economic Education Institute (3) A study and an in-depth examination of selected economic topics and their relation to citizens, students, teachers, community and society. Prereq: Permission by director of the institute.

816V Seminar in Labor Economics (3) A study and investigation of current developments and issues involving labor institutions, labor relations, wage theories and employment policies. Prereq: Econ 320, 322 and three hours of credit in undergraduate labor economics or permis-

820V Seminar in Micro Theory (3) This course deals with the current state of microeconomic theory. The major topics covered are the theory of consumer behavior, theory of production and cost, theory of the firm, distribution theory, and welfare theory. Prereq: Econ 320 and 322 or permission.

821V Managerial Economics (Same As BA 810v) (3) Microeconomics for graduate students of business. Economic analysis of the business firm and its environments, with emphasis on market structure, production possibilities, and cost factors. Additional consideration is given to the theory of the firm under conditions of uncertainty. Prereq: Graduate standing in the college of business administration.

822V Seminar in Macro Theory (3) This course traces the development of macroeconomic theory from the classical point of view to current schools of thought. Keynesian, neo-Keynesian, and neo-classical models are developed. Prereq: Econ 320 and 322 or permission.

823V Business Conditions Analysis (Same As BA 805V) (3) This course is concerned with the statistical measurement and evaluation of general business conditions, and the adaption of business policies to changing business conditions. Emphasis is placed upon the practical application of statistical techniques of analysis to the business situation, within the framework of the aggregate economy. Prereq: Econ 800J or Econ 202.

829V Research Methods in Economics and Business (3) A study of current quantitative research teachniques in business and economics. The student will become familiar with these techniques through text materials, journal studies and actual application. Prereq: D.S. 213 or its equivalent. Not open to students who have had BA 802V.

830V Econometrics (3) The study of the underlying assumptions, techniques, and applications of single and multiple equation regression analysis in economics. Prereq: Permission of in-

845V Seminar in Money and Banking (3) Original research and writing of papers on basic problems in the area of money and banking. Prereq: Six hours in undergraduate monetary courses or permission of the instructor.

865V Seminar in International Economics (3) An analysis of the theory of international trade and the working of the international monetary system. Prereq: Econ 365 or 466 or permission of instructor.

880V Independent Study in Topics On Urbanism (1) This course is intended to allow interested graduate students to pursue study and research on an individual basis under faculty direction. in topics pertaining to urbanism. The format of the course will be along either of two lines, depending on the student's interest. In one respect the course can be devoted to readings which accord with topical schedule set forth here on an accompanying basis. In another respect the course can be devoted to field investigations along the lines of the same topical schedule. Prereq: Undergraduate major in one of the social sciences plus 6 hours of graduate work in one of the social sciences.

885V Seminar in Urban Economics (3) An examination of the theoretical basis for the analysis of urban economic problems with emphasis upon the policy alternatives applicable toward their possible solution. (Also listed under geog. And sociology.) Prereq: At least 6 hours of upper division course work in economics or permission of the instructor.

887V Seminar in Regional Economics (3) An examination of the current developments and issues involving regional economic development and planning. These courses provide the theoretical basis for understanding and analyzing economic problems of a regional nature. In addition, policy alternatives, decision making, and measurement techniques are examined. (Also listed under geography.) Prereq: At least 6 hours of upper division course work in economics or permission of the instructor.

892V-893V Independent Study (Each 1-3) Guided independent study and research under tutorial supervision. Prereq: Graduate student in economics and permission of instructor.

898V-899V Urban-Regional Research (Each 3) For master of science degree candidates in economics only. Consists of a study in urban economic problems, employing research techniques. Students do independent research consulting with adviser, and submitting completed reports to a departmental committee. Prereq: Permission of graduate adviser.

899 Thesis (1-6) An independent research project, written under the supervision of a graduate adviser in the department of economics. Approval of the topic and the completed project by the student's departmental committee is required. Prereq: Permission of graduate adviser.

840V/940 Seminar: Economic History of the Western World (3) This course, intended primarily for graduate students in history and economics, is a research course. As such, students will be expected to carry out a research project dealing with the economic history of the western world and/or its relations with lessdeveloped parts of the world. Prereq: Permis-

941 Seminar in American Economic History Since 1865 (See History) (II) (3)

Educational Administration and Supervision

849 Theory and Practice of Supervision (3) An in-depth inquiry into the nature and function of supervision in the modern school. This course will incorporate the salient psychological, sociological, business administration and educational administration concepts of personnel and organizational development as they apply to educational systems. Prereq: EDAD 835, EDAD 846, or EDAD 847.

900 Seminar in Research Design (3) A seminar designed to acquaint students with the principles of research design and to provide experience in the application of these principles to problems in educational administration. Prereq: Adm to Ed.S. Program.

800V Special Studies in Educational Administration and Supervision (3) A series of intensive courses especially designed for educational administrators and supervisors--scheduled as regular seminars or workshops, according to pur-

901 Advanced Seminar in Educational Administration (3) Participation is limited to individuals who have been admitted to candidacy for the specialist in education degree with a major in school administration. Emphasis will be placed upon the theory and techniques of administration. Prereq: Admission to education specialist program.

805V School-Community Relations (3) This program is designed to acquaint the student with all aspects of school-community relations. Primary attention will be given to study and research of effective principles and practices in schoolcommunity relations. 810V Research Project in Educational Administration (1-3) Individual or group study and analysis of specific problems in educational administration and supervision.

911 Field Project in Educational Administration (3) The study of a problem in the area of school administration, and employs the techniques of

825V Data Processing in Educational Administration (3) A study of systems as planning bases for administration, and the role of electronic data processing in implementation.

830V Seminar in Educational Administration (3) A study of educational problems with in-depth research analysis to show their relationship to and implication for educational administration. Prereg: Admission into EDAD Dept.

835V Foundations of Educational Administration and Supervision (3) A study of the nature and functioning of effective school organization and administration, including the inter-relationship between the federal, state, and local responsibil-

840V Practicum in Educational Administration and Supervision (3) Designed to provide guides of study and practice in elementary, secondary and general administration and supervision as the interests and needs of the student requires. Prereq: Completion of 24 hours of graduate study and approval of written application.

841V Practicum in Educational Administration and Supervision (3) Continuation of Education 840v. Continued study and practice under guidance in elementary, secondary or general administration and supervision as the needs of the student requires.

846V Administration and Supervision in Elementary Schools (3) The nature, principles and functions of modern administrative and supervisory practices as they relate to the elementary school.

847V Administration and Supervision in Secondary Schools (3) The nature, principles and functions of modern administrative and supervisory practices as they relate to the secondary school.

848V Administration and Supervision in Junior High School (3) This course is designed to acquaint the graduate student with the nature of administration and supervision of the junior high school program.

855V School Business Management (3) An analysis of the functions of business management; budgetary procedures; financial accounting, auditing and reporting; management of funds, purchasing procedures and inventory; administration and protection of property; and administration of transportation.

856V School Finance (3) A study of the sources of school financing; local, state and national. In addition to covering this area from a historical point of view, emphasis is placed on current problems in school finance.

860V School Plant Planning and Operation (3) Includes steps in planning the modern school building: Site selection, building construction and design; school furniture and equipment; maintenance and operation; rehabilitation; scheduling of work; and custodial care.

861V Organization and Administration of The Physical Plant (3) Designed to give the school administrator competence in organizing the maintenance and operation program of the school plant; includes long range maintenance, rehabilitation and remodeling, financing, scheduling of work and custodial care.

870V Administration and Staff Personnel (3) This course deals with personnel policies, problems, and issues in the following areas: Teacher recruitment, orientation, evaluation, promotion, tenure, retirement, professional organizations and legal status. Emphasis will be placed upon the techniques of democratic administration.

871V Interpersonal Relationships in Educational Administration (3) This course is designed specifically to deal with interpersonal and group relations. It should be useful to those administrators who recognize the need to increase their knowledge and skill in human relations.

880V Administration and Supervision of Vocational Education (3) Basic concepts for administration and supervision of vocational education, as related to the needs of the superintendent, principal, supervisor.

881V Urban School Administration (3) This course is designed to acquaint students of educational administration with urban problems and issues which most significantly affect the administration of city schools.

888M Administration of The Instructional Materials Center (3) A course designed for students who wish to prepare themselves for the administration of an educational media program within an elementary and/or secondary school.

890V Administration of Higher Education (3) A study of the major functions of higher education, with emphasis on the principles involved in organizing and directing the academic program, the activities of the student body, the faculty and staff, personnel policies, financing the program, operating the buildings and grounds and conducting the public relations program.

920 Supervision Practicum (3) A practicum course for graduate students in educational administration and supervision. Prereq: Postmasters and permission.

954 School Law (3) This course is concerned with laws related to schools. Topics include certification, contract, negligence, curriculum, admission, pupil control, and transportation. Each is approached through study of most recent court pronouncements.

Educational Foundations

418/818M Mental Health (3) A study of the principles and practices conductive to good mental health in the classroom. Major emphasis is given to the teacher's role in providing an environment that will foster learning to relate to others and learning about oneself. Secondary emphasis is placed upon communication phenomena and the impact of institutions and authority structures upon mental health. (F,S,Su) Prereq: For 418, junior.

498/898M Growth and Learning Problems of Disadvantaged (3) An intensive study designed to help students develop a basic understanding of child growth and development and learning problems of the disadvantaged children and youth. (F,S)

800V Special Studies (3) A series of intensive courses scheduled as regular seminars, or workshops, according to purpose.

801V Introduction to Research (3) To acquaint the beginning graduate student with the nature and significance of research; to enable the student to read, evaluate and apply research results and techniques; to give some understanding of the meaning and spirit of research; to give some experience in studying and preparing research reports.

802V History and Philosophy of Education (3) This course is designed to provide a critical perspective, both historical and philosophical, for understanding education in the United States. The course examines critically the evolution of

educational thought and practice from the Colonial era to the present in the U.S.

803V Communication for Teachers of The Disadvantaged (3-6) An intensive interdisciplinary course dealing with the nature of the disadvantaged pupil, communication skills for teachers. and group interaction for the instructional teams working with low-income pupils.

804V Comparative Education (3) An intensive study of the educational systems of selected nations found in Europe, Asia, Latin America, and Africa; particular emphasis is placed on a total study of the society selected and its resulting educational adaption and future educational directions.

805V Seminar in Education (3) Systematic study of the problems and developments which have current significance to American or foreign education; individual student and group analysis emphasized.

806V Education and Society (3) A study of the problems that modern society is confronted with and the role(s) That education has in helping society meet its challenges. Emphasis will be placed on the interface between the educational institution and the other major arenas forming the social fabric. Attention will be given to the mechanism of change.

807V Alternative Strategies for Education (3) An intensive study of (A) The impact of present school organization and practice on the student and (B) Current alternative proposals for educational innovation. A brief overview of both the historical development and theoretical assumptions underpinning the traditional school program will serve as a foundation from which to analyze and evaluate the merit and utility of contemporary strategies. Stress will be placed on the wide social implications of the models

808V Topics in Audio-Visual Education (3) A study of selected topics involving principles, problems, trends and materials in audio-visual education.

809V The Urban School (3) An analysis of the societal and institutional processes and problems which have bearing upon the education of children in urban settings. A study of the urban school.

810V Research Project (1-3) Individual or group study and analysis of specific problems in schools.

811V Conflict and Controversy in Urban Education (3) A course designed for students who wish to keep abreast of contemporary issues which confront the educational institution and the teaching profession in an urban milieu. Topics are modified annually to reflect current educational issues. Class meetings are scheduled once per month, September through May.

813VA Field Research Techniques in Urban Education (3) The basic purpose of this course is to give students an opportunity to design and conduct field research within the urban educational milieu. Anthropological field research and naturalistic studies will be given emphasis. Students will be assisted in developing a field

research design and will learn to gather and collate data. The course will culminate in the completion of an urban educational field study. Prereq: Graduate standing. FED 801, 833, or permission of instructor.

833V Anthropology and Urban Education (3) This course is designed to examine ways in which education, conceptualized as cultural transmission, contributes to and is influenced by continuities and changes in culture. An understanding and working knowledge of the culture concept is basic to the course. Interrelationships among ecological, social, and ideological forms in a subculture or society will be stressed. A limited anthropological field study is a requirement of the course. Prereq: FED 801v — Introduction to Research.

835V Futurism and Education-Learning for Tomorrow/The Role of the Future in Education (3) Designed to make use of the telephone in order to receive first-hand, immediate information from individual Futurists who have expertise in the field of Futures studies. Participants in the course can expect to have four capabilities upon completion. They are: (1) knowledge of the field, (2) an awareness of the values system that determines how one looks at the future and how these values have been shaped in our culture, (3) a knowledge of the resources available for use to Futures students, and (4) a structure for beginning to deal individually with change, i.e., a forum for action.

848V Practicum Internship (2-8) An integration of community and school experiences with special reference to the disadvantaged pupil. Each semester focuses upon a curriculum area of the junior high and elementary schools — language arts, social studies, evaluation procedures, classroom control and curriculum are the foci.

899 Thesis (1-6) Independent research project written under the supervision of an adviser.

Elementary and Early Childhood Education

420/820M Literature for Children and Youth (3) Selection, evaluation and guidance in various types of literature for early childhood and elementary school levels with emphasis on developing a broad acquaintance with authors and works, and including the development of a better understanding of the significance of literature in meeting children's needs and interest. (F.S.Su)

427/827M Current Trends in Early Childhood Education (3) This course is intended for persons with an interest in the area of early childhood education and its current status at the local, national and international levels. Prereq: Admission to teacher education, FED 205, 208, EIEd 225, 58 hours, required grade point average.

428/828M Patterns of Parental and School Care (3) Exploration of contemporary patterns of home and school care of the young child from birth to six years.

429/829M Learning Materials for Early Childhood Education (3) Designed to promote the development of sound criteria for use in selecting appropriate learning materials for children from three to eight years of age. (F.S)

800V Special Studies (3) A series of intensive courses especially for teachers in service — scheduled as regular seminars, or workshops, according to purpose.

802V Individualization of Instruction (3) This course is designed for experienced teachers who desire to study the philosophy and various aspects of individualization of instruction in the elementary school. Prereq: Admission to Graduate College.

810V Research Project (1-3) Individual or group study and analysis of specific problems in schools.

819V Diagnostic and Corrective Instruction (3) A study of methods of diagnosing children's difficulties in all subject areas of the educational program of the elementary school and corrective techniques for overcoming such problems.

820V Improvement of Instruction in Elementary Science (3) This course is designed for graduate students in education who wish to become better informed about the recently developed programs for elementary science: the methods, materials, philosophy, and emphasis in instruction, which are characteristic of these programs.

821V Improvement of Instruction in Elementary Mathematics (3) An examination of the philosophy, content, methods, and materials of modern mathematics programs for the elementary school. The needs and backgrounds of the students enrolled during the semester are given special consideration.

822V Improvement of Instruction in Social Studies (3) This course is intended for those professionals wishing to learn about the "New Social Studies." Curricula, instructional strategies and research appropriate to this topic will be explored.

823V Improvement of Instruction in Language Arts (3) This course includes a study of language and its use in the areas of speaking, writing, and listening in the elementary school curriculum. The research in these areas is studied and application is made to classroom practices and to the evaluation of curriculum materials. Prereq: Admission to Graduate College.

840V Innovations and Trends in Elementary Education (3) Designed as an advanced study for the purpose of exploring current trends and developments within the various subject matter areas of the elementary school. Prereq: FED 801v.

843V Introduction to Curriculum Planning-Elementary (3) A study of the history, philosophy and current developments in the elementary curriculum with an emphasis on appropriate content and methods of curriculum reorganization. Prereq: FED 801v.

844V Seminar in Elementary Education (3) A study of educational problems as they relate to the elementary school, to be taken in the last

nine hours in the program for the master of science degree. Prereq: FED 801v.

845V Seminar in Supervision of Student Teachers-Elementary (3) Designed for experienced teachers who are or may be serving as cooperating teachers, and who desire to study student teaching, its aims, procedures, objectives, trends and developments. Prereq: 2 years of teaching experience.

850V Workshop: Newspaper in the Classroom (3) A course designed to assist teachers in planning to use the newspaper as an aid to classroom instruction. The course content includes the importance of the newspaper, methods for using the newspaper, activities suitable for classroom use, and a study of available curricular materials.

870V Practicum in Elementary and Early Childhood Education (3-6) This practicum is designed for selected graduate students who are participating in the graduate program in elementary and early childhood education. The six-hour practicum experience will consist of one semester of full-time teaching in an elementary school under the supervision of graduate faculty of the department of elementary and early childhood education. (Half-time teaching will grant 3 hours of credit.) Prereq: Permission of adviser.

871V Advanced Practicum in Elementary Education (3) Advanced practicum will demand an increased responsibility of the student for one semester and a concomitant increase in variety of experiences, based upon his individual needs. EEd 871v is a continuation and refinement of the quality of teaching based upon his performance during his first practicum experience (EEd 870v). Prereq: Permission of adviser and satisfactory completion of EEd 870v, practicum in elementary education.

899 Thesis (1-6) Independent research project required of all students taking master of arts degree. See major adviser.

English

415/815M Contemporary French and German Novel (3) Comparative study of selected contemporary French and German novels in translation. Prereq: Permission of the instructor. (Same as French 415/815m and German 415/815m).

417/817M Contemporary French and German Drama (3) Comparative study of selected contemporary French and German plays. Conducted in English with English translations. (Same as French and German 417/817m). Prereq: Permission of the instructor.

818M Mexican American Literature (3) A study of representative works of Mexican American, Spanish American, and American writers, along with their cultured and historical antecedents. Perereq: Permission. (Same as Spanish 418/818M)

832M Middle English Literature (3) A survey of the principal writings in English, excluding those of Chaucer, from 1100 to 1500.

433/833M Sixteenth Century Literature (3) Poetry and prose of the English renaissance, from its continental origins to the end of the Elizabethan age.

834M Chaucer (3) A literary and linguistic study of the works of Chaucer, with emphasis on the Canterbury Tales.

440/840M The Age of Pope and Swift (3) Poetry, prose (exclusive of the novel), and drama of England during the Restoration and the first half of the eighteenth century, with emphasis on Pope and Swift.

441/841M The Age of Johnson (3) Poetry, prose (exclusive of the novel), and drama of England during the second half of the eighteenth century, with emphasis on Boswell and Johnson.

448/848M Seventeenth Century Literature (3) A study of the English poetry and prose from 1600 to 1660 with emphasis on Milton.

850M Shakespeare's Contemporaries (3) A study of the development of the English drama, exclusive of Shakespeare, from the beginning to 1642.

858M Introduction to Linguistics (3) An introduction to the concepts and methodology of the scientific study of language; includes language description, history, theory, variation, and acquisition as well as semantics, lexicography, and foreign language learning.

860M Shakespeare (3) A critical study of selected comedies, histories and tragedies by Shakespeare.

864M The Eighteenth Century English Novel (3) Readings in the English novel from Daniel DeFoe to Jane Austen.

465/865M The Nineteenth Century English Novel (3) Readings in the English novel from Jane Austen to Thomas Hardy.

466/866M The Twentieth-Century English Novel (3) Readings in the English novel from Joseph Conrad to the present.

868M History of English (3) A study of the structural development of the English language. Prereq: English 458/858M or permission.

875M Rhetoric (3) A study of contemporary theories of invention, form, and style and their application in written discourse, with special emphasis on such contemporary rhetoricians as Kenneth Burke, Ross Winterowd, Edward P.J. Corbett, Francis Christensen, and others. Prereq: Eng. 458/858M.

878M Structure of English (3) A study of the phonology, morphology, and syntax of English as seen by the traditional, structural, and transformational-generative theories of language description. Prereq: English 458/858M or permission.

881M Literature of The Romantic Period (3) Poetry and prose (excluding the novel) of England from 1798 to 1830.

482/882M Literature of The Victorian Period (3) English poetry and prose (excluding the novel) from 1830 to 1900.

885M Twentieth-century English Literature (3)
Readings in English literature from Shaw to
Yeats to the present.

486/886M Modern French Women Authors (3) A comparative treatment of works by women in contemporary and recent French literature; the feminine perspective on society, politics and human values as expressed in those works. Conducted in English with readings in French or English. (Same as French 486/886M). Prereq: Permission of instructor.

888M Linguistic Variation (3) The methods and results of linguistic geography, sociological dialectology, and modern variation studies with emphasis on American English in the community and the classroom. Prereq: English 458/858M or permission.

891M Contemporary Poetry of England and America (3) A study of the English and American poetry, the important ideas it contains, and the relevant critical theory of the contemporary period.

893M American Poetry (3) The practice and theory of American poetry from the colonial period up to the contemporary period.

894M Studies in Language and Literature (3) Specific subjects (when offered) appear in class schedules. Complete syllabi available in English Department.

495/895M Contemporary Literature: Major Figures and Major Movements (3) A critical study of selected major literary figures or major literary movements which have appeared since World War II.

496/896M Seminar: Linguistics (3) A seminar in a selected sub-field or problem area of linguistics such as sociolinguistics, generative semantics, applied linguistics, descriptive linguistics, teaching English as a foreign language, etc. Prereq: English 458/858M and permission of the instructor.

497/897M The American Novel (3) A critical and historical study of the work of twelve or more significant American novelists of the nineteenth and twentieth centuries.

898M The American Drama (3) A study of the American drama and its theatrical background from the beginning to the present day, with concentration on the drama of the twentieth century.

801V Seminar: Introduction to Literary Research (3) A survey of literary research, history, and interpretation, with a primary emphasis on methods of scholarship currently useful to the study of English and American literature. Prereq: Graduate standing or permission of the chairman of the department of English.

804V Seminar: Literary Criticism (3) Literary criticism from the beginnings to the present, with emphasis on the criticism of ancient Greece and Rome, nineteenth century England and twentieth century America. Prereq: Graduate standing or permission of the chairman of the department of English.

806V Seminar: American Literature (3) Individual research and group discussion relating to a

general topic in American literature. (The course may be repeated for additional credits under different topics.) Prereq: Graduate standing or permission of the chairman of the department of English.

808V Seminar in The English Renaissance (3) A seminar in a few significant literary figures of the English renaissance. Prereq: Graduate standing or permission of the chairman of the department of English.

809V Seminar: The Restoration and Early 18th Century (3) A detailed study of selected English authors and works of the Restoration and the Augustan Age (1660-1750). Prereq: Graduate standing.

810V Seminar: Victorian Literature (3) An intensive study of selected Victorian authors and their works. Prereq: Graduate standing or permission by the chairman of the department of English.

813V Topical Seminar in English (3) An intensive study of one or more authors, genres, literary movements or literary problems not covered by regular period or genre courses. (This course may be repeated for additional credits under different topics.) Prereq: Graduate standing or permission of the instructor.

814V Seminar: John Milton (3) Intensive seminar in the major works of John Milton and investigation of specific critical and scholarly problems. Prereq: Graduate standing or permission of the instructor.

820V Seminar in Middle English Literature (3) A study of selected writings in middle English. Prereq: Graduate standing and one course in middle English language or writings.

825V Seminar in Chaucer (3) A study of selected works of Geoffrey Chaucer. Prereq: Graduate standing and one course in middle English language or writings.

898V Independent Study (3) Specially planned readings in a well-defined field of literature or language, carried out under the supervision of a member of the graduate faculty. Designed primarily for the student who has need of work not currently available in the departmental offerings and who has demonstrated capability of working independently. May be repeated for credit once. Prereq: Permission of the instructor, admission to candidacy, and no incompletes outstanding.

899 Thesis (3-6) Independent research project written under the supervision of an adviser. Prereq: Graduate standing.

912V Seminar: Shakespeare (3) Critical analysis of ten tragedies or ten comedies of Shakespeare. Prereq: Graduate standing.

915V English Literature 1750-1830 (3) Studies in the transitions between English literature of the age of Johnson and that of the age of Wordsworth. Prereq: Graduate standing.

Foreign Languages and Literature

French

415/815M Contemporary French and German Novel (3) Comparative study of selected contemporary French and German novels. Conducted in English with English translations. Additional readings in French for French students. Prereq: Permission of the instructor. (Same as German 415/815M and English 415/815m).

417/817M Contemporary French and German Drama (3) Comparative study of selected contemporary French and German plays. Conducted in English with English translations. Additional readings in french for french students. Prereq: Permission of the instructor. (Same as German 417/817M and English 417/817M).

453/853M Contemporary French Theater (3) Study and analysis of selected French plays from 1930 to the present. Prereq: French 315 and 316 or permission.

454/854M Modern French Novel (3) Reading and discussion of representative novels of the modern period. Prereq: French 315 and 316, or permission.

455/855M Twentieth Century Poetry (3) Examination of the development of poetry in the contemporary period. Prereq: French 315 and 316, or permission.

458/858M Introduction to Linguistics (3) An introduction to the concepts and methodology of the scientific study of language: includes language description, history, theory, variation, and acquisition as well as semantics, lexicography, and foreign language learning. Prereq: Junior standing or permission: Graduate standing.

486/886M Modern French Women Authors (3) A comparative treatment of works by women in contemporary and recent French literature; the feminine perspective on society, politics and human values as expresses in those works. Conducted in English with readings in French or English. (Same as English 486/886M) Prereq: Permission of instructor.

490/890M Independent Study (1-3) Guided independent study and research under tutorial supervision. May be repeated with different topic but not in same semester for maximum of six semester hours total. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

496/896M Pro-Seminar (1-3) Detailed study of narrower phases of literature, language, or culture. Prereq: Permission of the instructor.

German

410/810M Introduction to Germanic Folklore (3) An intensive familiarization of the student with the broad spectrum of folklore in modern and ancient societies of the indo-germanic continuum. Definition of folklore as an academic field and the delineation of the material studied by the student of folklore. Introduction to the folklorist's methodology in collecting, archiving, and research. To be taught in English. Prereq: For 410, at least three credit hours in any one of the following areas: Anthropology, art, music,

literature, psychology, sociology, or history. For 810m, graduate standing and permission.

415/815M Contemporary French and German Novel (3) Comparative study of selected contemporary French and German novels. Conducted in English with English translations. Additional readings in German for German students. Prereq: Permission of the instructor. (Same as French 415/815m and English 415/815m).

417/817M Contemporary French and German Drama (3) Comparative study of selected contemporary French and German plays. Conducted in English with English translations. Additional readings in German for German students. Prereq: Permission of the instructor. (Same as French 417/817M and English 417/817M).

431/831M German Literature of The 19th Century (3) Survey of the literature of the nineteenth century from Romanticism to Naturalism. Prereq: For 431; German 303 or permission of the instructor. For 831m, German 303.

432/832M German Literature of The 20th Century (3) Survey of literature of the twentieth century from Expressionism to the literature after World War II. Prereq: For 432, German 303 or permission of the instructor. For 832m, German 303.

438/838M German Civilization From The 18th Century to The Present (3) Detailed analysis of German art, architecture, literature, music, and philosophy. The influence of the sciences and of technology upon modern German civilization and culture. Prereq: For 438, permission of the instructor. For 838m, graduate standing and permission of the instructor.

439/839M German Novel (3) Survey of the German novel from its beginning to the twentieth century. Prereq: For 439, permission of the instructor. For 839m. German 303 or permission of the instructor.

440/840M German Novelle (3) Survey of the German short story, its historical origin, characteristics. Prereq: 303 or permission of instructor.

444/844M German Drama (3) History of drama development, study of several of the more important dramas. Prereq: 303 or permission of instructor.

449/849M German Literature of The Seventeenth Century (3) The principal dramatic, epic and lyric works of 17th century German literature. Prereq: German 303 or permission.

450/850M German Literature of The Eighteenth Century (3) A study of representative authors of the enlightenment, storm and stress, and German classicism: Lessing, Herder, Schiller, and Goethe. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

458/858M Introduction to Linguistics (3) An introduction to the concepts and methodology of the scientific study of language; includes language description, history, theory, variation, and acquisition as well as semantics, lexicography, and foreign language teaching. Prereq: Junior standing or permission; graduate standing.

459/859M Bibliography and Methodology (1-2) An introduction to the basic bibliography and methodology of German literature and language. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

490/890M Independent Study (1-3) Guided independent study and research under tutorial supervision. May be repeated with different topic but not in same semester for maximum of six semester hours total. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

496/896M Pro-Seminar (1-3) A detailed study of narrower phases of literature, language, or culture. Prereq: Permission of the instructor.

Spanish

410/810M Theater of The Golden Age (3) Foremost Spanish dramatists and plays of the sixteenth and seventeenth centuries, with emphasis on Lope de Vega, Tirso di Molina, and Calderon de la Barca. Prereq: For 410, Spanish 317 or permission of the instructor.

411/811M Novel of The Golden Age (3) Study of the prose masterpieces of the sixteenth and seventeenth centuries, including such works as Lazarillo de Tormes, La Celestina, and Don Quixote. Prereq: For 411, Spanish 317 or permission of the instructor.

416/816M Spanish American Literature of The Twentieth Century (3) Critical and analytical study of the foremost Spanish American dramatists, poets, and essayists from modernism to the present. Prereq: Spanish 322 or permission of the instructor.

418/818M Mexican American Literature (3) In English. A study of the representative works of Mexican American, Spanish American, and American writers, along with their cultural and historical antecedents. Does not apply toward foreign language requirements. Prereq: Permission of the instructor. (Same as English 418/818M.)

420/820M Spanish American Novel (3) Study of representative novels and novelists of the nineteenth and twentieth centuries, with emphasis on contemporary authors. Prereq: Spanish 322 or permission of the instructor.

424/824M Generation of 1898 (3) Examination of the ideology, philosophy, and literary techniques of Unamuno, Martinez Ruiz, Valleinclan, Baroja, and Antonio Machado. Prereq: Spanish 318 or permission of the instructor.

435/835M Spanish American Short Story (3) Representative stories of the nineteenth and twentieth centuries, from Romanticism to current production. Prereq: Spanish 321 and 322 or permission of the instructor.

455/855M Modern Drama of Spain (3) Ideologies, techniques, trends, and influences of the major Spanish dramatists of the nineteenth and twentieth centuries. Prereq: Spanish 318 or permission of the instructor.

456/856M Modern Novel of Spain (3) Analytical study of the representative Spanish novelists of the nineteenth and twentieth centuries from P. A. de Alarcon to Cela. Prereq: Spanish 318 or permission of the instructor.

458/858M Introduction to Linguistics (3) An introduction to the concepts and methodology of the scientific study of language; includes language description, history, theory, variation, and acquisition as well as semantics, lexicography, and foreign language teaching. Prereq: For 458, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

490/890M Independent Study (1-3) Guided independent study and research under tutorial supervision. May be repeated with different topic but not in same semester for maximum of six semester hours total. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

496/896M Pro-Seminar (1-3) A detailed study of narrower phases of literature, language, or culture. Prereq: Permission of the instructor.

General Engineering

452/852M Experimental Stress Analysis I (3) Investigation of the basic theories and techniques associated with the analysis of stress using mechanical strain gages, electric strain gages, brittle lacquer, photoelasticity, and membrane analogy. Prereq: GE 325.

460/860M Vibration Theory and Applications (3) Free and forced vibrations of mechanical and structural systems with various types of damping. Vibration isolation. Harmonic and nonharmonic disturbances. Shock spectrums. Rayleigh's method for beams. Lagrange's equation. Design of vibration absorbers. Theory of vibration measuring instruments. Experimental methods and techniques. Prereq: GE 373, Math 325.

440/880M Digital Computer Methods in Engineering Analysis (3) Computers and programming. Roots of algebraic and transcendental equations. Simultaneous algebraic equations. Numerical integration and differentiation. Ordinary initial-value problems. Error analysis. Ordinary boundary value problems. Two-dimensional problems. Digital computer simulation by CSMP. Emphasis is placed on the application of numerical methods to the solution of engineering problems. Prereq: Math 235; GE 112.

493/893M Advanced Mechanics of Materials (3) Stresses and strains at a point; theories of failure; pressure vessels and spinning disks; torsion, bending and shear; elastic energy methods. Prereq: GE 325, Math 235.

494/894M Advanced Dynamics (3) Euler's equations of motion, gyroscopic motion, theory of vibrations; Lagrange's equation and Hamilton's principle; motion of a variable mass; central force problems. Prereq: GE 373, Math 235.

495/895M Advanced Fluid Mechanics (3) Ideal and real fluid flow; Eulerian and Langrangian equations of motion; potential theory; conformal transformations; turbulent flow; boundary layer theory. Prereq: GE 318, Math 235.

804V Experimental Stress Analysis (3) Investigation of the basic theories and techniques associated with the analysis of stress using mechanical strain gages, lacquer, photo-elasticity and

membrane anaology. Prereq: GE 493 or permission.

810V Applied Elasticity (3) Stresses, strains, hook's law and displacements, formulation of problems in elasticity, various methods of solution of two and three dimensional problems, thermal stresses, comparision with approximate solutions. Prereq: GE 493, CE 343, Math 235.

812V Theory of Plates and Shells (3-6) Plates: Governing equations for the bending and stretching of thin plates with small deformations; large deflection theory of thin plates. Shells: Membrane theory of barrel shells, domes, translation shells of double curvature; bending theory of domes, cylindrical shells; general theory of thin shells; analysis of thin folded plates. Prereq: GE 493, Math 235.

813V Theory of Elastic Stability (3) Beam columns, elastic buckling of bars and frames, inelastic buckling of bars torsional buckling, lateral buckling of beams, buckling of rings, curved bars and arches, Prereq: GE 493, Math 735

818V Similitude (3) The principles and illustrations of dimensional methods, similarity and model testing, distorted and dissimilar models. Applications to structures, fluid flow, heat transmission, electromagnetic theory, acoustics and chemical engineering, differential equations and similarity. Prereq: Permission.

819V Engineering Vibrations (3) Systems with one degree of freedom; systems with non-linear and variable spring characteristics; systems with several degrees of freedom; vibrations of elastic bodies. Prereq: Math 235.

Geography and Geology

401/801M Conservation of Natural Resources (3) A study of physical, cultural, and human resources of nations with emphasis on the United States. Includes the history of conservation in the U.S., the philosophy behind the movement, current conservational practices and problems, and the direction in which resource use and conservation is moving. Prereq: 3 hours of Geog., senior or graduate standing.

403/803M Computer Mapping and Data Analysis (3) Computer techniques in mapping and analyzing areal data. Emphasis is placed upon address systems as input to various mapping and statistical programs. Prereq: Geog. 353, and a course in introductory statistics.

410/810M Plant Geography (3) A study of the worldwide geographic distribution of major vegetation types and the ecological and physiological factors that determine their location. Special attention to North America is included. Prereq: Biol. 102 and Botany 145, or permission. (Same as Biol. 410/810m)

412/812M Urban Geography (3) A geography of the city from the viewpoint of history, site, and situation, external relations, internal relations, and the comparative study of cities. Prereq: Junior standing. (Same as Econ 412/812m), and Soc 412/812m).

413/813M Geography of Manufacturing (3) A course which discusses methods of measure-

ment and classification, as well as the function of manufacturing; major world manufacturing regions and industry analysis; location criteria and theory in the U.S.; and local community patterns. Prereq: Geog. 313 or Econ 201 and 202. Junior standing. (Same as Econ 413/813m).

814M Urban Sociology (3) Examines urban theoretical perspectives, urbanization processes, the diversity of metropolitan communities, urban stratification, metropolitan growth, urban neighborhoods, community power and urban policy and planning. (Same as Soc. 414/814M). Prereq: Graduate standing and permission of instructor.

423/823M Great Plains and Nebraska (3) A study of the major physical and cultural attributes of the region. Emphasizes settlement history and the role of agriculture on the regional economy. Prereq: For 423, 6 hours of Geography and Junior standing. For 823M, Graduate standing.

425/825M Landform Studies I (Geomorphology I) (3) Primarily a lecture course with quantitative work included. Emphasis on understanding the theoretical aspects of processes and conditioning factors which produce landforms. Should be regarded as first half of a two-semester landform studies course. Evolution of slopes is emphasized. Prereq: Geog. 107 or 117.

426/826M Landform Studies II (Geomorphology II) (3) Primarily a lecture and laboratory course. Emphasis on methodology and modern process-oriented geomorphology. Should be taken as second half of a two-semester landform studies course. Prereq: For 426, Geog. 107, or 117. Junior standing. For 826m, Geog. 107 or 117.

432/832M Climatology (3) Includes a basic review of the various atmospheric elements; climatic classification; analysis of selected climatic regions; and effect of climatic phenomena on shaping the cultural and physical landscape in general. Prereq: Geog. 106 or permission.

453/853M Historical Geography of The United States (3) An analysis of historical circumstances behind contemporary patterns of American cultural geography. Prereq: For 453, junior standing and Hist. 111 and 112. For 853M, Hist. 111 and 112.

463/863M Environmental Remote Sensing (3) Analysis of various sensor systems ranging from conventional low-altitude aerial photography through imagery obtained from earth-orbital platforms such as "Skylab" and "Landsat" with emphasis on practical application. Provides basic tools for environmental evaluation. Prereq: Graduate standing.

490/890M Urbanization in Developing Areas (3) The functions and morphology of various types of cities found in presently developing areas of the world. Emphasis will be upon contrasting the cities of the developed and developing areas. Prereq: For 490, 6 hours of geog., or junior standing and urban geog. For 890m, 6 hours of geog., and Urban Geog. 812m.

801V Geography Concepts: History and Philosophy (3) Introduction to history of geography. Emphasis on significant ideas, concepts, methodologies, and philosophies in geography from classical Greeks to present. Prereq: Permission.

802V Geography Concepts: Quantitative Methods (3) The understanding and appreciation of quantitative techniques in geography. Emphasis is placed on sampling theory and design, graph theory and spatial statistics. Prereq: Permission.

804V Seminar in Educational Geography (3) A survey of methods, instruction aids and goals for teaching geography. Designed to aid the teacher in the improvement of geographic instruction in the elementary and secondary schools as well as in higher education. Prereq: Permission.

821V Cultural Geography (3) The philosophical basis of human and cultural geography; interpretation of the cultural landscape. Prereq: Permission.

831V Geography of Agriculture (3) A systematic study of the characteristics of agriculture on a world wide basis. Prereq: Permission and Geog. 313 or Econ 313.

851V Advanced Geomorphology (3) A seminar and lecture course on the current concepts and literature in the field of landform studies. Discussion will emphasize classic ideas as well as the modern concepts of climatic, dynamic, and quantitative geomorphology. Some study of quaternary chronology will be necessary. Several optional Saturday field trips. Prereq: Geog 825M or 826M and 117, or 107. Permission.

858V Soils (3) An examination of the older geographical concepts of the distribution and morphology of soil and the new works concerned with soil forms on a regional, rather than zonal, basis. Prereq: Geog 106 or 107. Graduate, permission.

860V Independent Research (1-3) (May be repeated to a maximum of 3 hours). Advanced study in the form of a major paper to give the senior or graduate student knowledge of and experience in using government documents, professional and primary materials, concerned with a region. Must be under the supervision of the instructor who is particularly qualified for the topic chosen. Paper will be presented to either the graduate general seminar or the local chapter of GTU, national honorary geography fraternity. Prereq: Permission of department chairman.

861V Field Geography (3) A systematic discussion of techniques for studying and analyzing terrain features, land use characteristics, and the nature of their patterns as a part of the whole geographic environment. Prereq: Permission.

865V Land Use (3) A field course designed to understand, by actual field investigation, land use patterns in urban areas through the comprehension of social, physical, and economic factors which tend to shape the land use of a given place. The major emphasis will be placed upon field investigations in the urban area, with the

functional region receiving the major consideration. Prereq: Geog. 412.

867V Cartographic Methods (3) Teaches the student proper use of drawing instruments, effective map layout and exposure to the latest cartographic techniques, leading to a high level of competence in the design and interpretation of maps.

871V Population Seminar (3) The significance of differences from place to place in the number, kind, and qualities of human inhabitants and changes through time. Prereq: Permission. (Same as Soc. 871v)

880V Internship in Environmental/Regional Planning (1-6) (repeatable up to 6 hours). Internship with local planning agencies enabling students to gain knowledge and experience in comprehensive regional or environmental planning. Prereq: Permission, and 12 hours graduate credit in geography.

881V Urban Seminar in Metropolitan Planning and Development (3) An overview of the present status of planning in metropolitan areas with special emphasis on structure of planning departments, comprehensive plans, and problems of annexation. Prereq: Permission. (Same as Econ. 881v and P.A. 881v)

883V/884V Interdisciplinary Seminar On The Urban Community (2-6) An interdisciplinary course on the metropolitan community in which various departmental and college offerings concerned with urban problems are put on broad interrelated focus. Prereq: Undergraduate major in one of the social sciences plus 6 hours of graduate work in one of the social sciences. (Also listed under economics, political science, and sociology)

899 Thesis (1-6) Independent research project written under the supervision of an adviser.

941 Seminar in Problems in Political Geography (3) Case studies in land boundary problems. A review of important studies in political geography. Prereq: Permission and Geog. 393.

955 Topics in Regional Geomorphology of North America (3) A seminar on the landforms of North America from the perspective of a particular geomorphic process viewed on a regional basis rather than the general geomorphology of a specific region. Prereq: Permission.

975 Seminar in Regional Geography (3-6) Maximum 3 per semester, except in foreign country field work.

991-992 General Seminar (0) Required. Review of current research by geographers including national and international associations and initial thesis proposal.

Gerontology

410/810M Educational Gerontology (3) An introduction to the field of education for and about the aging. The institutions and processes of education will be analyzed to determine their relationships and value to persons who are now old and those who are aging.

411/811M Applied Social Gerontology (3) An introduction to social gerontology with a special

emphasis upon the effects of aging on social institutions and social participation and on examination of practice-oriented implications. Prereq: Nine hours of sociology. (Same as Sociology 411)

835M Issues in Aging (3) This course is intended for students in Gerontology and in other fields who are interested in a humanistic approach to understanding significant issues which affect the lives of older people. Prereq: Graduate standing.

446/846M Aging and Human Behavior (3) The course examines different kinds of behavior and the changes which may occur in older age. Applications of various personality theories concerning aging will be considered. Prereq: 3 hrs. gerontology or permission.

448/848M Comparative Gerontology (3) The study of aging around the world by a comparative method in a cross-cultural and crossnational framework. An explanation of some practical experiences and developments in Europe, Asia, and Africa will be examined. Prereq: Three hours gerontology or permisson.

455/855M Health Aspects of Aging. (3) The study of psychological, sociological and physiological factors that influence the health of the aging, with particular emphasis given to biological changes that have implications for disease and health disorders. (Same as HED 455)

867M Programs and Services for the Aging (3) This course is provided to give the student an historical overview of programs for the elderly; examine the national policy process as it relates to the older American; and review the principles and practices relative to the existing national programs for the aged. Prereq: 3 hrs. Gerontology.

492/892M Special Studies in Gerontology (1-3) Special studies designed around the interests and needs of the individual student in such areas as the psychology, sociology, economics, or politics of aging, as well as operation of various service systems. The studies may be either a literature review project or a field project in which experience is gained in the community identifying and analyzing needs and services related to older people. Prereq: Six hours Gerontology or permission.

494/894M Practicum (0-6) This course provides the opportunity to students to share field experiences; to obtain guidance concerning various relationships with agency, staff, and clients; and to develop a broadly based perspective of the field of aging. Prereq: Nine hours of Gerontology and permission.

498/898M Counseling Skills in Gerontology (3) This course is intended to help develop basic counseling skills for application in gerontology. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

812V Seminar in Social Gerontology (3) An interdisciplinary development of the impact of aging upon individuals and society, including the subsequent reaction of individuals and society to aging with particular emphasis given to changes during the later half of the life cycle (45 years). Both theoretical and programmatic im-

plications of aging research are considered. (Same as Sociology 812V) Prereq: 9 hrs. of gerontology and permission.

828V Counseling Older Adults (2) Designed to provide basic information counselors need for work with older adults. For Counseling and Guidance majors not specializing in Gerontology. Prereq: Counseling 890M, Principles of Guidance.

873V Thanatology-Study of Death (3 sm hours) An examination of theory and research relevant to interaction with the older, terminally ill person, focusing on communication with widows and other survivors as well as the dying patient. Prereq: Graduate standing, 3 hours Gerontology, permission.

896V Directed Readings in Counseling and Gerontology (1-3) A study of recent and current literature on counseling with older people. Prereq: Gero 898M (or Couns 898M), Counseling major, or permission.

897V Personal Values and Aging (1) Course designed to increase students' self-awareness of personal values and feelings related to aging and the aged.

948 Geropsychology (3) To become familiar with the psychology of aging from a research perspective. The focus will be on psychological research in the middle years and in later years. (Same as Psychology 948) Prereq: 12 hours of psychology and/or gerontology or permission.

Health, Physical Education and Recreation

General HPER

800V Special Studies (1-3) A series of intensive courses — scheduled as regular seminars, or workshops, according to purpose. Prereq: Permission of department.

803V Research in Health, Physical Education and Recreation (3) An introduction to the nature and significance of research in HPER. Attention will be given to reading, evaluating, conducting, and applying research results to classroom situations. Basic statistical techniques will be covered. Prereq: Graduate student in HPER.

810V Research Project (1-3) Individual or group study and analysis of specific problems in health, physical education or recreation. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

899 Thesis (1-6) Independent research project written under the supervision of an adviser. Prereq: Permission.

Health Education

455/855M Health Aspects of Aging (3) the study of psychological, sociological and physiological factors that influence the health of the aging; with particular emphasis given to biological changes that have implications for disease and health disorders. Prereq: For 455, six hours of health of permission of the instructor. (S)

801V Elementary School Health Education: Selected Content Areas (3) This course is designed to provide the student with an in-depth study of selected content areas in health education. These selected content areas include: Drug education, nutrition, dental health, human sexuality, and safety education. In addition an abbreviated overview of health education in the elementary schools will be provided. Prereq: Graduate standing.

825V Human Sexuality (3) This graduate level course is aimed at providing an overview of the current scientific knowledge concerning human sexuality. The course is designed to be interdisciplinary in nature, providing the biological, behavioral and cultural aspects of human sexuality. Priority will be given to students from the helping professions. Qualified students from other related disciplines must have permission of the instructor.

833V Alcohol Education for School Personnel (3) A study of the problems associated with alcohol use and misuse. The patterns and trends of use, theories of dependence, pharmacological aspects and health consequences are explored. Emphasis is given concerning the identification of students with alcohol related problems and the role of the school in alcohol prevention, education, intervention and referral. This course is designed primarily for public school personnel.

Physical Education

822V Problems and Issues in Physical Education (3) An examination of current problems and issues in college, secondary, and elementary physical education. Special emphasis is given to problems that relate to the general aims and purposes of physical education.

825V Sport in American Culture (3) The course is a study of sport and the ways in which it influences people in America.

826V Supervision of Physical Education (3) Concepts, principles, organization, and techniques of supervision for use by supervisors and teachers in the construction and supervision of programs in physical education.

828V Curriculum in Physical Education (3) A study of the foundations for curriculum development and related educational problems. Special consideration is given to curriculum change, curriculum patterns, and programs in physical education.

830V Analysis of Research and Literature in Human Movement (3) Survey of research and literature in human movement for the purpose of orienting the student to possible areas of research and developing an understanding and appreciation of writings in the field.

837V Improvement of Instruction in Physical Education (3) An examination and discussion of current programs, content, methods, and materials within physical education. Emphasized is the improvement of each individual's teaching in the physical education setting.

840V Motor Learning and Performance (3) A study of conditions and factors which influence the learning and performance of motor skills with particular attention being given to those skills having relevance for the teacher of physical education.

845V Kinesiological Analysis of Motor Skills (3) An investigation of the biomechanical basis of motor performance. Includes a descriptive analysis of sports skills and fundamental movement patterns and an examination of techniques for collecting biomechanical data.

493/893M Measurement and Evaluation of Physical Education (3) Analysis of tests, measurement apparatus and testing procedures used in physical education. Includes a review of basic descriptive statistics. Practical experience in test administration is provided. Prereq: For 493. junior standing and physical education 243.

494/894M Physiology of Exercise (3) A study of the major physiological systems of the human body and their response to exercise and the exercise programs. Includes application of physiological concepts to physical training and condi-tioning. Prereq: HPER 288 or equivalent, F.

Recreation/Leisure Studies

424/824M Organization and Administration of Recreation (3) Designed to provide a background of information on community recreation with special attention to organization, promotion, development from the administrative aspect. Prereq: For 824m, at least 9 hours of upper division courses in recreation or permission of the instructor.

430/830M Recreation Programming (3) An advanced study of recreational programming and planning through practical application of research techniques utilizing survey, analysis, case study and compiling study results. Prereq: For 430, recreation major or permission of instructor. For 830m, undergraduate recreation major or minor/or permission of the instructor.

841V Outdoor Recreation Resource Planning (3) An in-depth view of outdoor recreation planning, policy formulation, administration, and significant current problems. Specific attention will be focused on statewide planning, recreation variables, cultural preferences, demand, financing, decision-making, and public policy. Prereg: Graduate standing, at least 6 hours undergraduate preparation courses, or permission of the instructor.

851V Recreation Programs for The Mentally III and The Mentally Retarded (3) Designed to explore recreative programs for the mentally ill and the mentally retarded (Children, adolescents and adults) In institutions, residential schools and training centers and other agency settings. Consideration is given to developing an understanding of the relationship between recreative experiences and the ill or retarded person's potential for social independent living. Prereq: Introduction to therapeutic recreation. coursework and/or experience in working with the handicapped, or permission of the instrucHistory

313/813J American Colonial History (3) A study of the background settlement, and development of the English colonies. Prereq: For 313, junior standing or permission of the in-

315/815J The American Frontiers: 1600-1840 (3) A study of the frontier systems of the thirteen colonies and of Spain and France, and the westward movement of the United States to the Mississippi river. Prereq: For 315, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

316/816J The American Frontier: 1840-1900 (3) The trans-Mississippi west from Spanish and French days to the disappearance of the frontier around 1900. Prereq: For 316, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

333/833J Diplomatic History of The United States Before 1900 (3) A study of the foreign relations of the United States before 1900. Prereq: For 333, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

334/834J Diplomatic History of The United States Since 1900 (3) A study of the foreign relations of the United States since 1900. Prereq: For 334, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

341/841J History of Nebraska (3) From the earliest known records to the present. Prereq: For 341, junior standing or permission of the in-

344/844J History of The South (3) Economic, social, and political development of the south as a region. Prereq: For 344, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

353/853J Medieval Europe, 284-1095 (3) Establishment and development of the medieval church and of feudal society from the declining years of the Roman empire to the beginning of the Crusades. Prereq: For 353, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

354/854J Medieval Europe, 1095-1492 (3) Religious, social, economic, philosophic and institutional developments of the era extending from the Crusades and the investiture struggle through the waning of the middle ages. Prereq: For 354, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

355/855J The Age of The Renaissance (3) An introduction to the economic, social, political, religious, and intellectual changes and to the principal thinkers, writers, and artists of the period extending roughly from 1300-1550. Prereq: For 355, junior standing or permission of the in-

364/864J History of The British Empire and Commonwealth (3) Britain in America, Africa, India and the Pacific. The development of a dependent empire and the transformation of many dependencies to the status of independent members of the Commonwealth of Nations. Prereq: For 364, junior standing or permission of the in-

371/871J Europe and America in the Two World Wars (3) A military, social and political history analyzing the causes, conduct and consequences of each war, the wartime transformation of European and American society, and the emergence of the United States as a world power. Prereq: Junior standing or permission.

391/891J Topics in History (3) A pro-seminar on selected topics based on a consideration of interpretive historical writings and/or source materials. Prereq: Permission of the instructor.

405/805M History of Women in The United States (3) Study of women's history from the colonial period to the achievement of suffrage. Prereq: For 405, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

806M History of Women in the United States, II (3) This course discusses the history of women in nineteenth and twentieth century America including the study of feminist theorists and activists, female educational/professional and employment opportunities, current status of women and the New Feminism of the 1970's.

411/811M American Social and Intellectual History to 1865 (3) Primarily a non-political approach to American history, this course will examine significant topics in American thought and society. Prereq: For 411, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

412/812M American Social and Intellectual History Since 1865 (3) Primarily a non-political approach to American history, this course will examine significant topics in american thought and society. Prereq: For 412, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

413/813M The Revolutionary Era, 1763-1789 (3) An analysis of the imperial and internal forces which led to the revolution and an examination of the economic, social, and political problems of the emerging nation. Prereq: For 413, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

414/814M The Early Federal Period, 1789-1815 (3) A study of the interworkings of politics, economics, and foreign affairs in molding government and society during the formative years of the United States. Prereg: For 414, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

416/816M The Jacksonian Era (3) An interpretive study if the middle period of American history. Prereq: For 416, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

418/818M Civil War and Reconstruction (3) A period study from 1845 to 1877. The backgrounds of the Civil War, the war years, and the reshaping of the Union during reconstruction. Prereq: For 418, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

424/824M The Emergence of Modern America: 1877-1901 (3) A study of a transitional period in American history, this course considers the importance of industrialization, urbanization, immigration, and the emergence of the United States as a significant world power. Prereq: For 424, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

427/827M Twentieth Century America to 1932 (3) A study of the history of the United States from the end of the nineteenth century to the election of Franklin D. Roosevelt to the presidency in 1932. Prereq: For 427, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

428/828M Twentieth Century America Since 1932 (3) A study of the history of the United States since the election of Franklin D. Roosevelt to the presidency in 1932. Prereq: For 428, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

433/833M Constitutional History of The United States to 1860 (3) A history of constitutional theory and practice since 1860. Prereq: For 433, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

434/834M Constitutional History of The United States Since 1860 (3) A history of constitutional theory and practice since 1860. Prereq: For 434, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

440/840M History of North American Indians (3) A survey of traditional North American Indian cultures, their contact with transplanted European peoples, and the continuing problems faced today. Prereq: For 440, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

442/842M History of American Science (3) A study of the origins, development, and nature of American science and its relations with technology, social thought, and government. Prereq: For 442, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

443/843M American Urban History to 1870 (3) Historical survey of urban development in the United States from the colonial period through the 1860's; urban society, problems, institutions; role of cities in national history; American ambivalence toward cities. Prereq: For 443, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

444/844M American Urban History Since 1870 (3) American urbanization from 1870's to the present; influence of technology, transportation, industry, immigration; urban politics and reform movements; emergence of metropolitan America and problems of the contemporary super-city. Prereq: For 444, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

447/847M History of American Medicine and Public Health (3) Analysis of the relationship and interaction of medical thought and practice, public health problems and institutional development, and the changes in American society and culture from the 17th to the 20th century. Prereq: For 447, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

451/851M Intellectual History of Modern Europe From The Renaissance to The French Revolution (3) A study of historically potent political, religious, economic, scientific and philosophical ideas in the western European culture from the Renaissance to the French revolution as a basis for stimulating the spirit of philosophical inquiry in each student. Prereq: For 451, junior standing or permission of the intervence.

452/852M Intellectual History of Modern Europe From The Early Nineteenth Century to The Present (3) A study of the historically potent scientific, economic, and philosophical ideas of the last century and a half. Emphasis will be upon the answers of western European culture

to life's great questions. Prereq: For 452, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

453/853M The Age of The Reformation (3) Study of an era characterized by the dissemination of Renaissance culture, the declining authority of the medieval church, nascent nationalism, changing economic and social patterns, religious upheaval, and interrelated political rivalries and strife. Prereq: For 453, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

454/854M The Age of Absolutism (3) The emergence of new power relationships on the European continent after the religious wars of the sixteenth century with an emphasis upon the political, military, and cultural factors that led to the French hegemony and the secularization of European politics. Prereq: For 454, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

455/855M The Age of Enlightenment (3) An examination of eighteenth century society and culture with the attendant rise of Prussia, the growing importance of Russia, enlightened absolutism, and the causes of the French revolution. Prereq: For 455, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

456/856M The French Revolution and Napoleonic Era: 1789-1845 (3) A study of the French revolution and the Napoleonic era with particular attention to the development of democratic practice concurrently with the development of modern authoritarianism. Prereq: For 456, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

457/857M Europe Betrays Its Promise (1815-1890) (3) A study of reform and reaction which resulted in the Balkanization of Europe.

461/861M Tudor and Stuart England (3) A study of England under the Tudors when the English people rose magnificently and experienced a golden age, and the Stuarts then cast off the last remnants of medieval things and formed new institutions foreshadowing those of our world of today. Prereq: For 461, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

462/862M English History: From Empire to Welfare State (3) A study of the change and development in Great Britain from the late 18th century to 1918.

474/874M Nineteenth Century Intellectual History of Russia (3) A pro-seminar emphasizing the nineteenth-century revolutionary tradition, prototypes, ideology and impact upon Russian society. Prereq: For 474, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

477/877M Europe in Crisis: 1890-1932 (3) A study of the conditions and forces immediately precedent to World War I, the war itself, the peace following the war and the rise of the modern dictatorships. Prereq: For 477, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

478/878M Europe in The Global Age: 1933 to The Present (3) A study of the ever increasing tensions between the Fascist and Communist dictorships and the western democracies, World War II, the resultant dislocation of power and the emergence of the balance of terror. Prereq:

For 478, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

481/881M Comparative Imperialism (3) Historical development of various forms of imperialism. Prereq: For 481, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

883M Economic History of the Western World to 1850 (3) This course discusses the evolution of capitalism and capitalistic forms of business, the price revolution of the sixteenth century, mercantilism, and the process of industrialization, particularly in England. In addition, attention will be given to related demographic, social, institutional, and intellectual developments. Prereq: Graduate standing.

884M Economic History of the Western World Since 1850 (3) This course discusses capitalism and its general acceptance in the western world and those modifications and criticisms which have emerged over the past century and a quarter. In addition, attention is given to the relations among the advanced industrial nations and between the less developed nations. Appropriate related demographic, social, institutional, and intellectual developments are also presented. Prereq: Graduate standing.

801V Advanced Research Project in History (1,11, S) (1-5) Special problems in advanced research in history, arranged individually with graduate students.

803V Historical Research (1) (3) The critical method in collecting and organizing historical materials; the processes of verification, evaluation and organization of facts: the problems of writing: Documentation, styling and printing the product. Prereq: Graduate standing and permission of instructor. (Not open for credit to students who have taken Hist. 493 or equivalent).

806V Great American Historians (11) (3) A survey of the history of American historical writing from colonial times to the present. Reports based on selected readings. Prereq: Graduate standing and permission of instructor. (Not open for credit to students who have taken Hist. 495 or the equivalent.)

807V Great European Historians (1) (3) A survey of the history of European historical writing from Homer to Toynbee. Reports based on selected readings.

810V/910 Seminar in American History. Readings and research in selected topics of American history. This course will be offered at the 900 level when taught by a graduate faculty fellow.

840V/940 Seminar: Economic History of the Western World (3) This course, intended primarily for graduate students in history and economics, is a research course. As such, students will be expected to carry out a research project dealing with the economic history of the western world and/or its relations with less-developed parts of the world. Prereq: Permission.

851V Seminar in European History

863V/963 Seminar in British History Readings and research in selected topics of British history. This seminar will be offered at the 900

level when taught by a Graduate Faculty Fellow.

899 Thesis (1,11, S) (1-6) Thesis research project written under supervision of an advisor.

Home Economics

Education and Family Resources

807 Occupational Experience Programs (1-6) Philosophy and objectives of the project method. Providing adequate educational experience, organizing, administering, evaluating experience programs. May include supervised occupational experience.

893 Special Topics (2-6) Focus on problems of contemporary concern in the area. Implications for and application to the special setting in which learners serve in role of educator. Prereq: 12 hours home economics and permission of associate dean.

Food and Nutrition

453/853 Cultural Aspects of Diet (3) Cultural approach to development of the dietary patterns of various population groups. Factors involved in food habit alteration. Offered alternate years only. Prereq: FdNutr 241, 9 hours social science or permission of instructor. S

953 Ecology of Malnutrition (3) Fundamental principles underlying the current world malnutrition problems. Investigation of projected future problems and schemes for their prevention or solution. Prereq: FN 850 and 853, or permission of instructor.

Human Development and The Family

455/855 Nutrition Throughout the Life Cycle (3) Influence of normal physiological stress throughout the life span including pregnancy, lactation, growth and aging on nutritional requirements. Aspects of community nutrition. Prereq: 3 hours nutrition, 3 hours human development and family 6 hours natural science or permission of instructor. (F)

460/860 Parent Education With Field Experiences (3) Review of literature relative to the role of parents in America and to programs in parent education. A study of the basic concepts in dynamics of group discussion, child development and family relations pertinent to the class and field experiences. Lect lab arr. Same as Coun 860m. Prereq: HumDev 270, 380 or equiv. or permission of instructor.

463/863 The Child and Family in The Community (3) Study of legislation and agencies pertaining to children and families. Field trips and supervised experiences through contacts with community agencies. Offered alternate years only. Lect 2 lab 3. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

Textiles, Clothing and Design

416/816 Principles of Tailoring (3) Theory of tailoring techniques, the design factors and the specialized fabrics requisite to custom tailored and mass produced tailored garment. Lect 2 lab 2. Prereq: 12 hours textiles, clothing, and design including TCD 103. (F)

422/822 Professional Study Tour -- International or Domestic A. Heritage of Fashion B. Interior Design (1-6 credit each, per semester, maximum 12) A learning experience for broadening the scope of experience and understanding of the heritage of fashion or interior design. The experience includes visits to museums, ateliers, showrooms, manufactures and retail establishments. Sites selected from the following: New York City, Paris, London, Rome, Florence, Venice, Milan, Vienna and Cote d'Azur. Prereq: 12 hrs. textiles, clothing and design permission of department chairman.

808 History of Textiles (3) A study of the historic role of textiles, in the artistic social, and economics development of various cultures. Prereq: 9 hours textiles, clothing and design, 3 hours art history or a course in history of western world or permission.

Mathematics and Computer Science

Computer Science

311/811J Information Systems Analysis (3) Decision-making processes, system life cycle, logical design of information systems. Prereq: CS 171 or 172.

312/812J System Design and Implementation (3) Principles and techniques of the design and implementation of information systems. Hardware and software selection and evaluation. Prereq: CS 311.

322/822J Advanced Programming Techniques (3) The study of software production and quality including correctness, efficiency, and psychological factors of programs and program-ming. Prereq: Completion of CS 250, 251 or

330/830J Numerical Methods (3) Solving equations and systems of equations, interpolation, numerical differentiation and integration, numerical solutions to ordinary differential equations, numerical calculations of eigenvalues and eigenvectors, analysis of algorithms and errors, computational efficiency. Same as Math 830J.

332/832J Data Structures (3) Methods of representing arrays, stacks, queues, lists, trees, graphs and files. Searching and sorting. Storage management. Prereq: CS 230 and 235.

345/845J File and Communications Systems (3) Functions of file systems and communication systems within an information system. Prereq: CS 332.

365/865J Stochastic Modeling (3) Examination and construction of probabilistic models for queueing, inventory and simulation. Same as Math 865J. Prereq: Math/CS 205 and probability/ statistics desirable.

422/822M Programming Languages (3) Definition of programming languages. Global properties of algorithmic languages including scope of declaration, storage allocation, grouping of statements, binding time. Subroutines, coroutines and tasks. Comparison of several languages. Prereq: For 422, CS 230 and 235. For 822M, CS 365.

430/830M Linear Programming (3) Theory of simplex method, obtaining of initial basic feasible solution, infeasible and unbounded problems, quality, sensitivity analysis, implementation of a commercial LP package. transportation and assignment algorithms, in-teger programming techniques. Same as Math 830M. Prereq: Math/ CS 205.

831M Optimization Techniques (3) The mathematical foundations of optimization theory, applications, and computerized solution algorithms. Same as Math 831M. Prereq: Math 197. Math/CS 205 or Math 305. CS 170 or CS 172.

435/835M Computer Architecture (3) Basic digital circuits, Boolean algebra, combinatorial logic, data representation and digital arithmetic. Digital storage and accessing, control functions, input-output facilities, system organization and reliability. Description and simulation techniques. Features needed for multiprogramming, multiprocessing and realtime systems. Prereq: CS 231 and 235.

450/850M Systems Programming I (3) Operating System principles. The operating system as a resource manager; I/O programming, interrupt programming, and machine architecture as it relates to resource management; Memory management techniques for uni-multiprogrammed systems; Process description and implementation; processor management (scheduling); I/O device, controller, and channel management: file systems. Operating system implementation for large and small machines. Prereq: CS 231 and CS 332. CS 435 is recommended.

451/851M Systems Programming II (3) Advanced Topics in Operating Systems. State of the art techniques for operating system structuring and implementation. Special purpose operating systems. Pragmatic aspects of operating system design, implementation, and use. Prereq:

470/870M Compiler Construction (3) Assemblers, interpreters and compilers. Compilation of simple expressions and statements. Organization of a compiler, including compile-time and run-time symbol tables, lexical scan, syntax scan, object code generation and error diagnostics. Prereq: CS 332 and 422. CS 450 and CS 172 recommended.

849V Information Organization and Retrieval (3) Introduction to language processing as related to the design and operation of automatic information systems, including techniques for organizing, storing, matching, and retrieving structured and unstructured information on digital computers. Prereq: CS 332 (CS 345 recommended)

867V Algorithmic Combinatorics (3) Classical combinatorial analysis, graph theory, trees, network flow, matching theory, extremal problems, block designs. Same as Math 867V. Prereq: Math/CS 205 and CS 235.

881V Advanced Numerical Methods I (3) Review of basic concepts from Linear Algebra. Direct and indirect methods for solving systems of equations. Numerical methods for finding eigenvalues and eigenvectors. Computation of in-

verses and generalized inverse, Matrix norms and applications. Same as Math 881V. Prereq: Math/CS 330.

882V Advanced Numerical Methods II (3) Solutions to equations, approximation, numerical solutions to boundary value problems, numerical solutions to partial differential equations. Same as Math 882V. Prereq: Math 881V/CS 881V.

891V Advanced Topics in Optimization (3) Topics selected from integer programming methods, optimization under uncertainty, constrained and unconstrained search procedures, advanced dynamic programming, variational methods and optimal control. May be repeated for credit with permission of Graduate Advisor. Same as Math 891V. Prereq: CS 430, CS 431.

895V Data Base Design and Organization (3) Introduction to objectives of computer data bases, how these objectives can be met by various logical designs, and how these designs are physically represented. Prereg: CS 332 (CS 345) recommended)

Mathematics

311/811J Differential Equations (3) Methods of solving ordinary differential equations, with applications to geometry and physics. Linear differential equations are emphasized. Prereq: Math 196. It is further recommended that the student has taken Math 197 or takes it concur-

823J Introduction to Analysis (3) Provides a theoretical foundation for the concepts of elementary calculus. Topics include the real number system, topology of the real line, limits, functions of one variable, continuity, differentiation, integration. Prereq: Math 197 and Math 201.

330/830J Numerical Methods (3) Solving equations and systems of equations, interpolation. numerical differentiation and integration, numerical solutions to ordinary differential equations, numerical calculations of eigenvalues and eigenvectors, analysis of algorithms and errors, computational efficiency. Same as CS 830J. Prereq: Math 196, Math/CS 205. Math 311 recommended.

350/850J Selected Topics in Mathematics (1-6) This is a variable content course with selected topics in the mathematical sciences which may be of interest to students in other disciplines such as mathematics education, psychology, and business. The course may be taken more than once for credit provided topics differ, with a maximum credit of 9 hours. Mathematics majors may apply no more than 3 hours of Math 350 toward the minimum major requirements. Math 850J does not apply to M.A. or M.S. in mathematics. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

364/864J Modern Geometry (3) Axiomatic systems, finite geometries, modern foundations of Euclidean geometry, hyperbolic and other non-Euclidean geometrics, projective geometry. Prereq: Math 196 and Math 201.

365/865J Stochastic Modeling (3) Examination and construction of probabilistic models for queueing, inventory and simulation. Same as CS

865J. Prereq: Math/CS 205 and probability/ statistics desirable.

370/870J Introduction to Modern Algebra (3) An introduction to abstract algebra to include: groups, rings, and fields. Examples and elementary proofs will be discussed. Prereq: Math 201 or permission of the instructor.

411-412/811M-812M Abstract Algebra (Each 3) An advanced undergraduate (beginning graduate) course in abstract algebra to include: groups and the Sylow theorems, rings and ideals, fields and Galois theory. Prereq: Math 370 or permission required for Math 811M; Math 305 and Math 811M required for Math 812M.

423/823M Mathematical Analysis I (3) Provides a theoretical foundation for the concepts of elementary calculus. Topics include functions of several variables, partial differentiation and multiple integration, limits and continuity in a metric space, infinite series, sequences and series of functions, power series, uniform convergence, improper integrals. Prereq: Math 305 and Math 323 or equivalent.

424/824M Mathematical Analysis II (3) Provides a theoretical foundation for the concepts of elementary calculus. Topics include functions of several variables, partial differentiation and multiple integration, limits and continuity in a metric space, infinite series, sequences and series of functions, power series, uniform convergence, improper integrals. Prereq: Math 305 and Math 423/823M.

427/827M Complex Variables (3) Differentiation, integration and power series expansions of analytic functions, conformal mapping, residue calculus and applications, analytic continuation, singularities and representations of analytic functions. Prereq: Math 423 or advanced

429/829M Theory of Ordinary Differential Equations (3) Vector spaces, existence and uniqueness theorems, systems of linear equations, and two-point boundary problems. Prereq: Math 311 and 423, and an appropriate linear algebra course.

430/830M Linear Programming (3) Theory of simplex method, obtaining of initial basic feasible solution, infeasible and unbounded problems, quality, sensitivity analysis, implementation of a commercial LP package, transportation and assignment algorithms, integer programming techniques. Same as CS 830M. Prereq: Math/CS 205.

831M Optimization Techniques (3) The mathematical foundations of optimization theory, applications, and computerized solution algorithms. Same as CS 831M. Prereq: Math/CS 205 or Math 305. CS 170 or CS 172.

433/833M Fourier Series and Boundary Value Problems (3) Heat conduction problems. boundary value problems, Sturm-Liouville systems, Fourier series, Fourier integrals, Fourier transforms. Prereq: Math 311.

441/841M Introduction to The Foundations of Mathematics (3) Logic, the axiomatic method, properties of axiom systems, set theory, cardinal and ordinal numbers, metamathematics, construction of the real number system, historical develoment of the foundations of mathematics, recent developments. Prereg: For 441, senior standing.

451/851M Theory of Numbers (3) Congruences, quadratic reciprocity, Diophantine equations, continued fractions, and prime number distribution. Prereg: At least one math course numbered 300 or above.

453/853M Probability and Statistics I (3) Probability models, discrete and continuous. Prereq: Math 197 and at least one math course numbered 300 or above or permission.

454/854M Probability and Statistics II (3) Point estimation, confidence intervals, testing of statistical hypotheses. Prereq: Math 853M or equivalent required for Math 854M.

460/860M Tensor Analysis (3) A review of vector analysis, study of bisors and space tensors, applications to geometry and mechanics. Prereq: Math 311 or equivalent.

461/861M Elementary Topology (3) Sets and functions, metric spaces, topological spaces, continuous functions and homeomorphisms, connectedness, compactness. Prereq: Math 323.

801T Topics in Finite Mathematical Structures (3) Logic and sets, discrete and continuous probability theory, linear algebra, linear programming, stochastic processes. Prereq: Has secondary teacher certification or is working toward it, or permission of instructor.

802T Topics in Geometry and Topology (3) Selections from the following topics: Straight-edge and compass constructions; geometries and transformations - complex numbers and stereographic projection, non-Euclidean geometries; graph theory; topology of the plane; two dimensional manifolds; theory of dimension. Prereq: Has secondary teacher certification or is working toward it, or permission of instructor.

803T Topics in The Algebraic Foundations of Mathematics (3) Set theory, number systems and their properties, number theory, Boolean algebras with applications. Prereq: Has secondary teacher certification or is working toward it, or permission of instructor.

804T Topics in Computer Science (3) An introduction to digital computers and programming techniques. Brief history of the development of computing, a survey of the applications of computers, and the implications of the use of computers in education. Prereq: Has secondary teacher certification or is working toward it, or permission of instructor.

825V Partial Differential Equations (3) Linear and nonlinear first order equations, self-adjoint elliptic equations, linear integral equations, eigen-functions, and boundary value problems. Prereq: Math 423 and 311 or equivalent.

835V-836V Theory of Analytic Functions (Each 3) Semester I: Complex numbers, analytic and elementary functions, complex integrations. Semester II: Calculus of residues, entire and meromorphic functions, normal families, and conformal mappings. Prereq: Math 423, 424 or 427, 835V needed for 836V.

845V Calculus of Variations (3) An introductory course devoted to the classical theory and problems, such as the brachistochrone problem and the problems in parametric form. Prereq: Math 423-424

850V Applied Complex Variables (3) Applications of complex variables to potential theory, to the Fourier and Laplace transforms, and to other fields such as ordinary differential equations, number theory, etc. Prereq: Math 427.

860V Differential Geometry (3) Differential manifolds, integral calculus on manifolds, Lie groups, differential geometry of Euclidean space. Prereq: Math 424 or permission.

862V General Topology (3) The concepts of Math 461/861M are studied at an advanced level in conjunction with ordinal and cardinal numbers, open and closed maps, separation axioms and countable compactness. Prereq: Math 461/861M or permission of the instructor.

863V Topics in Topology (3) Topics from among the following: quotient spaces, convergence, compactification, completeness, function spaces, covering properties, homotopy, metrization, uniform spaces. Prereq: Math 862V or permission of the instructor.

867V Algorithmic Combinatorics (3) Classical combinatorial analysis, graph theory, trees, network flow, matching theory, extremal problems, block designs. Same as CS 867V. Prereq: Math/ CS 205 and CS 235.

881V Advanced Numerical Methods I (3) Review of basic concepts from Linear Algebra. Direct and indirect methods for solving systems of equations. Numerical methods for finding eigenvalues and eigenvectors. Computation of inverses and generalized inverse, Matrix norms and applications. Same as CS 881V. Prereq: Math/CS 330.

882V Advanced Numerical Methods II (3) Solutions to equations and systems of equations, approximation, numerical solutions to boundary value problems, numerical solutions to partial differential equations. Same as CS 882V. Prereq: Math 881V/CS 881V.

891V Advanced Topics in Optimization (3) Topics selected from integer programming methods, optimization under uncertainty, constrained and unconstrained search procedures, advanced dynamic programming, variational methods and optimal control. May be repeated for credit with permission of Graduate Advisor. Same as CS 891V. Prereq: CS 430, CS 431.

898V Graduate Seminar (1-3) A graduate seminar in mathematics.

899 Thesis (3-6)

899V Independent Graduate Studies (3) Under this number a graduate student may pursue studies in an area that is not normally available to him in a formal course. The topics studies will be a graduate area in mathematics to be determined by the instructor. Prereq: Permission of instructor and graduate classification.

911 Advanced Topics in Algebra I

912 Advanced Topics in Algebra II (Each 3) Vector spaces, linear transformations, theory of

a single linear transformation, sets of linear transformations, bilinear forms, Euclidean space, unitary space, products of vector spaces. Prereq: Math 411 and permission of instructor. Math 911 required for Math 912.

923-924 Theory of Functions of Real Variables (Each 3) The real number system, generalized convergence, continuity, semicontinuity, bounded variation, differentiation, Lebesgue-Stieltjes integration, abstract measure theory, Lp spaces. Prereq: Math 423-424/823-824 or advanced calculus. 923 needed for 924, 923 to be offered in the fall of odd-numbered years. 924 to be offered in the spring of evennumbered years.

926-927 Functional Analysis (Each 3) Semester I: Normed linear spaces, and operators, duality, Fredholm operators. Semester II: Spectral theory, reflexive Banach spaces, Hilbert spaces, self adjoint operators. Prereq: Math 427 and two 800V or higher level courses one of which must be Math 862V or 923.

Statistics

800J Statistical Methods I (3) Distributions, introduction to measures of central value and dispersion, population and sample, the normal distribution, inference: Single population, inference: Two populations, introduction to analysis of variance. Statistical packages on the computer will also be utilized in the course. Prereq: Math 131 or equivalent.

801J Statistical Methods II (3) Regression and correlation, analysis of covariance, chi-square type statistics, more analysis of variance, questions of normality, introduction to nonparametric statistics. Statistical packages are used when appropriate. Prereq: Statistics 800J or equiva-

Music

854M Renaissance and Baroque Music Literature (3) Study of representative compositions from the Renaissance and Baroque periods. Written project. Prereq: 6 hrs. of undergraduate music history and permission.

855M Classical and Romantic Music Literature (3) Study of representative compositions from the Classic and Romantic periods. Written project. Prereq: 6 hrs. of undergraduate music history and permission.

856M Music in the Twentieth Century (3) Study of representative 20th Century compositions in all performance media. Written project. Prereq: 6 hrs. of undergraduate music history and per-

820V-839V Applied Music (1 or 3) Elective level for graduate students in the music education track for one credit hour. May be repeated. Required for graduate students in the performance track for three credit hours. To be repeated one time. Prereq: Audition and permission.

820V Guitar (1-3) 821V Piano (1-3)

822V Voice (1-3)

823V Violin (1-3)

824V Viola (1-3)

825V Violoncello (1-3)

826V Bass Viol (1-3)

827V Flute (1-3)

828V Oboe (1-3)

829V Clarinet (1-3) 830V Bassoon (1-3)

831V Saxophone (1-3) 832V Trumpet (1-3)

833V French Horn (1-3)

834V Baritone Horn (1-3)

835V Trombone (1-3)

836V Tuba (1-3)

837V Pipe Organ (1-3)

838V Percussion (1-3)

839V Harp (1-3)

861V Seminar-Workshop in Music Education (1-3) Seminars and workshops in music and music education for the graduate student and inservice teacher. Prereg: Permission.

863V Advanced Instrumental Conducting (3) Study of advanced conducting problems in band and orchestral literature and techniques for their solution. Prereq: Music 260 and 363 or 364 or equivalent.

Philosophy and Religion

430/830M Existentialism and Religious Thought (3) A study of existentialism in its theistic (e.g., Kierkegaard) and atheistic (e.g., Sartre) forms, and its impact on recent Jewish and Christian thought.

465/865M Philosophy of Mind (3) A discussion of various accounts of the nature of minds which focuses upon philosophical problems such as whether the mind is identical with the brain, the extent of similarities between human minds and computers, the nature of personal identity, and the relationship of mental activity to behavior.

Physics

301/801J Elements of Electronics (3) The background of theory, operation, and practice of electronic devices and circuits particularly as they apply to scientific instrumentation. Both solid state and vacuum tube principles and circuits are involved. Prereq: Calculus and Physics 112 or 212.

302/802J Optics (3) The nature of light energy as disclosed through studies of geometrical optics, physical optics and quantum optics. Prereq: Math 196 and Physics 112 or 212.

315/815J Modern Developments in Physics (1880-1950) (3) A modern physics course for science teachers at the secondary level. Concepts rather than mathematical rigor is stressed. Topics include spectroscopy, electronic structure, nuclear structure, basic quantum concepts of matter. Primarily for teachers who have not had an equivalent modern physics course within the past ten years.

375/875J Electricity and Magnetism I (3) An advanced discussion of electrostatics and magnetostatics as well as a.c. theory. Prereq: Calculus, Physics 325, or permission.

376/876J Electricity and Magnetism II (3) A course in electrodynamics. Topics include maxwell's equations and methods for their solution, boundary conditions, as well as energy, momentum, and transformations of the fields. Prereq: Physics 375.

385/885J Thermodynamics and Statistical Mechanics (3) The topics of thermodynamics include various equations of state, first and second laws of thermodynamics, thermodynamic potentials and their uses. In addition, an introduction to classical statistics, Bose-Einstein and Fermi-Dirac statistics as well as transport phenomena is given. Prereq: Calculus and Physics 112 or 212.

405/805M Solid State (3) Behavior of materials in the solid state as concerns energy levels, wave mechanics, optical and electrical phenomena. Prereg: Calculus and Physics 325 or permission.

407/807M The Special Theory of Relativity (3) This course includes the general historical background, the important experiments, Lorentz transformations, covariant formulation, applications to electromagnetism and mechanics and philosophical implications of special relativity including relationship to the general theory. Prereq: Calculus and Physics 112 or 212.

412/812M Atomic and Molecular Physics (3) This course consists of applications of quantum theory to atomic and molecular physics. Topics include the Schroedinger theory, solutions of square wells and simple harmonic oscillator potentials and barriers, one electron atoms, atomic spectra, fine structure, orbit angular momentum, selestion rules, magnetic effects, ionic and covalent bonding, molecular spectra, and the Raman effect. Prereq: Physics 111-112 or 211-212 and Physics 325 or the equivalent.

414/814M Nuclear Physics (3) Methodology and principles of nuclear science, nuclear structure, artificial and natural radioactivity, isotopes, tracer, techniques, radiation health physics, reactor theory. Prereq: Calculus and General Physics 112 or 212.

435/835M Astrophysics (3) Physics and theory of the physical characteristics, distribution, and space motion of stars and stellar systems; internal structure, evolution, and death of stars; structure of stellar atmospheres; interstellar matter and gaseous nebulae; structure and origin of the universe. Prereq: Physics 213 or 412 and Calculus I and II (Phys 135 is helpful).

455/855M Quantum Mechanics (3) In this rigorous introduction to quantum mechanics the student becomes familiar with the methods of Schroedinger's wave mechanics and Heisenberg's matrix mechanics. Using these techniques the following topics are discussed: Particles in potential wells, harmonic oscillator, angular momentum, hydrogen atom, time-dependent and time-independent perturbation theory and molecular bonding. Prereq: For 855m, calculus. Physics 325, or permission of the instructor.

495-496/895M-896M Problems in Physics (Each 1-3) Individual laboratory and/or library work in some field of energy. Prereq: General physics and permission of instructor. For 496: 495 and permission of instructor.

Political Science

403/803M The Presidency (3) The rise of the institution from Washington to the present, to the position and prestige it holds and how the president uses this power and prestige to influence Congress, the courts, and the public. Prereq: For 403, Political Science 110 and junior standing.

404/804M The Legislative Process (3) A comprehensive study of the legislative process of the Congress and state legislatures. The major emphasis is on legislative institutions, processes and behavior. Prereq: For 404, Political Science 110 and junior standing.

405/805M The Judicial Process (3) This is a course in the administration of justice. It examines the federal and state courts with respect to their powers, judicial selection, the bar, and the reform movements in the most basic of all of man's objectives, the pursuit of justice. Prereq: for 405, Political Science 110 and junior stand-

412/812M Public Opinion and Political Behavior (3) Analysis of the political socialization process as it relates to opinion formulation and partici-pation and the effects of this process on the operation of the political system. Prereg: For 412, junior standing.

417/817M Constitutional Law I: Foundations (3) Examination of the principles, design and intended operation of the American constitutional system. Analysis of Declaration of Independence, Articles of Confederation, Constitutional Convention, ratification debates. Stress laid on Federalist Papers and on reform criticism of Constitution.

418/818M Constitutional Law II: The Federal System (3) Analytical examination of American constitutional law regarding the relations of nation and state (Federalism) and the powers of the national government (Judicial, Congressional and Executive).

419/819M Constitutional Law III: Civil Liberties (3) Analytical examination of American constitutional law as it pertains to civil liberties. Emphasis on 1st, 4th, 5th, 6th, 8th, 13th, 14th, and 15th Amendment cases.

420/820M International Politics of Asia (3) Analysis of contemporary relations among the Asian nations as well as their interactions with the great powers; emphasis on the forces and issues which influence the international system of Asia. Prereq: For 420, junior standing.

421/821M Foreign Policy of The U.S.S.R. (3) A study of the foreign policy of the U.S.S.R., with emphasis on developments since 1945. Internal and external influences on Soviet foreign policy, the processes of foreign policy making, and the relations among members of the communist camp also will be considered. Prereq: For 421, junior standing.

428/828M Inter-American Politics (3) Analysis of the role of Latin American states in the international political arena. Emphasis upon developing, applying and testing an explanatory theory of international politics through the study of the inter-American system: The regional institutional and ideological environment, power relations, policies, and contemporary problems. Prereq: For 428, junior standing.

431/831M Political Theory I (3) Reviews and analyzes the leading political theories of western man from the Hebrews and Greeks to the mid-17th century. Prereq: For 431, junior standing.

432/832M Political Theory II (3) Continues the review and analysis of the leading political theories of western man begun in Pol Sci 431, bringing the study down to the French revolution. Prereq: For 432, junior standing.

433/833M Political Theory III (3) Continues the review and analysis of the leading political theories of western man begun in Political Science 431 and 432 (Political theory I and II), bringing the study down to the present day. Prereq: For 433, junior standing.

435/835M Democracy (3) A basic study of theory, practice and practitioners of political democracy, its roots, development, present application and problems and future. Prereq: For 435, junior standing.

436/836M Dictatorship (3) A basic study of theory, practice and practitioners of political dictatorship, its roots, development, major 20th century application and bestiality, and threats to man. Prereq: For 436, junior standing.

437/837M Communism (3) The Marxian message, its use as an impulse to political power, its world-wide extension, and the threat it poses for the world in the hands of the Soviet Union and others. Prereq: For 437, junior standing.

450, 350M Government and Politics of Great Britain (3) A comprehenseve study of British politics and government. Emphasis will be focused on the formal institutions and informal customs and practices of the British political system. Prereq: For 450, junior standing.

492/892M Topics in Political Science (3) A proseminar on selected topics based upon analysis of the literature of political science and/or primary source materials. Prereq: For 492, junior standing or permission of the instructor.

800V Seminar in The Research Methods of Political Science and Public Administration (3) A critical investigation of the methods of data collection and analysis for political science and public administration research. Prereq: Permission of the graduate advisor. (Also listed under public administration)

804V Seminar in American Government and Polities (3) A thorough analysis of selected aspects of the structure and function of the American political system with emphasis on individual research by the student. Prereq: Permission of graduate advisor.

815V Seminar in Public Law (3) Practical methods of research as applied to specifically selected problems in the areas of administrative, constitutional, and/or international law. Problems studied will correspond to those encountered by government employees, officials, and planners at the national, state, and local level. Emphasis will be varied from semester to semester in accordance with the background and objectives of the students enrolled. Prereq: Three semester hours in public law or permission of graduate advisor.

820V Seminar in International Politics (3) An examination of the theoretical frameworks advanced for the systematic study of international relations, with application to particular problems in international relations. Prereq: Permission of graduate advisor.

830V Seminar in Political Theory (3) Analysis of selected topics in normative, empirical and ideological political theory and their impact upon practitioners of politics. Prereq: Six hours of political theory or permission of graduate ad-

850V Seminar in Comparative Politics (3) An examination of the purpose, theories and litera-ture of the field of comparative politics, with evaluation of the theories by application to con-temporary political systems. Prereq: Permission of graduate advisor.

852V Seminar in Comparative Politics: Emerging Areas (3) Research, analysis, and writing on topics of general and particular aspects of the governments, politics, and political problems of emerging nations. Prereq: Permission of graduate advisor.

880V Independent Study in Topics of Urbanism (1-2) Graduate student research on an individual basis under faculty supervision in topics pertaining to urbanism. Prereq: Undergraduate major in one of the social sciences. (Also listed under economics, geography, and sociology.)

883V-884V Interdisciplinary Seminar On The Urban Community (3-6) An interdisciplinary course on the metropolitan community in which various departmental and college offerings concerned with urban problems are put in broad interrelated focus. Prereq: Undergraduate major in one of the social sciences plus 6 hours of graduate work in one of the social sciences. (Also listed under economics, geography, and

890V Readings in Political Science (3) Specially planned readings in political science for the graduate student who encounters scheduling problems in the completion of his degree program, or who has special preparatory needs and who is adjudged by the political science department to be capable of pursuing a highly independent course of study. Prereq: Permission of graduate advisor.

899 Thesis (3-6) A research project, written under the supervision of a graduate advisor in the Department of Political Science, in which the student establishes his capacity to design, conduct, and complete an independent, scholarly investigation of a high order of originality. The research topic and the completed project must be approved by the student's departmental committee. Prereq: Permission of graduate ad-VISOT.

Psychology

401/801M History of Psychology (3) A study of the origins, development, and nature of pshchology and its relation to external events; emphasis on the period since 1875. Prereq: For 401, junior standing.

405/805M Computer Concepts in Psychology and The Behavioral Sciences (3) An introductory course emphasizing the applications of computers in the areas of psychology, sociology, and education. Includes a functional description of computers and a discussion of programming languages as well as specific uses. Prereq: Psychology 213 or equivalent.

406/806M Environmental Psychology (3) A study of effects of natural and artificial environments on human behavior. Particular emphasis on effects of spatial arrangements and their interactions with social distance, territoriality, privacy and such. Prereq: Basic Statistics or Experimental Psychology with laboratory or permission.

407/807M Cognitive Processes: Thinking and Imagination (3) An exploration of historical and contemporary research and theory concerned with higher cognitive processes including concept formation, problem solving, creativity, memory, and symbolic behavior. Prereq: For 807m, Psychology 301 or 904.

413/813M Research Design (3) Methods for gathering and evaluating information in psychology with emphasis on the design of experiments. Prereq: Psychology 213 or equivalent.

425/825M The Limits of Consciousness (3) A survey of theories, practices and research on altered states of consciousness. Emphasis on experiential as well as intellectual proficiency. Prereq: For 425, junior standing.

427/827M Animal Behavior (3) Behavior of diverse animals for the understanding of the relationships between nervous integration and the behavior manifested by the organism, as well as the evolution and adaptive significance of behavior as as functional unit. Prereq: Psychology 101 and Biology 175 or permission. (Same as Biology 427 and 827m)

428/828M Animal Behavior Laboratory (1)Laboratory and field studies of animal behavior with an ethological emphasis. Classical laboratory experiences and independent studies will be conducted. (Same as Biology 428/828M) Prereq: Biology/Psychology 427/827M or concurrent enrollment.

431/831M Psychological and Educational Testing (3) The use of standardized tests in psychology and education is considered with special regard to their construction, reliability, and validity. Prereq: Psychology 102 or 351.

433/833M Individual Differences (3) A critical study of experimental and statistical investigations of the influence of age, ancestry, sex, physical traits, and environment in causation of individual differences in mental traits. Prereq: 9 hours of psychology, including Psychology 101 and Psychology 213 or equivalent.

443/843M Psychoanalytic Psychology (3) The study of Sigmund Freud, psychoanalytic theories, and current theories of sleep and dreams. Readings are emphasized.

444/844M Abnormal Psychology (3) A course designed to examine the aberrant behavior of individuals. Symptoms, dynamics, therapy, and prognosis of syndromes are considered. Prereq: Psychology 213 or equivalent and Psychology 343.

445/845M Personality Theories (3) A comparative approach to the understanding of personality theory emphasizing the conflict, fulfillment, and consistency approaches to personality. Prereq: Psychology 343 and senior standing or permission.

447/847M Jungian Psychology (3) To become familiar with C. G. Jung: his life and words; his psychology, philosophy, theology, and literature. Readings are emphasized. Prereq: None.

448/848M Eastern Psychology (3) Theory and techniques of eastern psychology with emphasis on both dominant and non-dominant brain hemisphere activity. Daily practice of nonlinguistic thinking required. Prereq: For 448, junior standing and permission of the instructor.

452/852M Psycholinguistics (3) A discussion of the literature concerned with how such psychological variables as perception, learning, memory, and development relate to the linguistic variables of sentence structure, meaning, and speech sounds. Prereq: For 452, senior or graduate standing, or permission of the instructor. (Same as Anthropology 452 and Comm. 452)

455/855M Retardation (3) This course considers significantly subaverage intellectual functioning originating during the developmental period and associated with impairment in adaptive behavior. Research is emphasized. Prereq: Psychology 431/831m; or Psychology 213 or equivalent and Psychology 343 or 445/845m.

459/859M Psychology of Exceptional Children (3) A study of the special problems of children and adolescents with visual, auditory, or neurological impairments, orthopedic anomalies, intellectual retardation or superiority, speech disorders, emotional or social maladjustments, learning disabilities or cultural problems; and characteristic relationships of parents, professionals, and others with these persons. Prereq: None.

461/861M Engineering Psychology (3) The methods of experimental psychology are discussed as they relate to problems of designing machines for efficient human use. Prereq: Psychology 101 and permission of instructor.

463/863M Techniques of Programmed Instruction (3) An introduction to methods and technology in construction and use of teaching machine programs, with special emphasis on computer assisted instruction. Prereq: Psychology 101 and permission of instructor.

800V The Profession of Psychology (0) A required non-credit course for graduate students in psychology. Intended to familiarize the beginning graduate student with the profession of

psychology including such topics as ethics, professional organizations, job and educational opportunities, the use of reference materials, licensing and certification, and other relevant material.

805V Seminar in Social Psychology (3-6) Assigned reading, discussion, specialized individual work leading to the writing and presentation of a paper applicable to a general topic in social psychology selected by the instructor. As seminar topics change, this course may be repeated in a student's program without implying duplication. Prereq: Permission. (same as Sociology 805V)

814V Nonparametric Statistics (3) A study of distribution-free statistics with particular emphasis on application of distribution-free tests to research problems in social behavioral sciences. Prereq: Psy 213 or equivalent.

820V Introduction to Counseling Theories (3) Study of contemporary theories of counseling, the counseling process and methods. Prereq: Education 490 or department permission. (Same as Coun 820v)

832V Psychometric Methods (3) A study of the theoretical and practical problems related to the development and use of psychological tests covering such topics as measurement, test development, standardization, reliability, validity, and interpretation. Prereq: Psychology 213 or equivalent.

850V Seminar in Communication Theory (3) Analysis of current approaches to the study of communication with emphasis on theoretical models and their application to various professional interests. Prereq: Psychology 213 or equivalent or permission of instructor. (Same as Speech 850v)

851V Advanced Educational Psychology (3) A study of the principles of learning and testing and their applications to problems of contemporary education, particularly to those problems existing in the classroom. Prereq: Psychology 351.

853V Individual Tests I (3) Administration, scoring, standardization, and interpretation of individually administered tests with special emphasis upon intelligence testing. Prereq: 16 graduate hours of psychology including completion of all required courses for the master's degree and Psychology 431/831m or 832v and admission to either psychological assistant or school psychologist program.

854V Individual Tests II (3) Administration, scoring, standardization, and interpretation of individually administered tests with special emphasis upon intelligence testing. Prereq: 16 graduate hours of psychology including completion of all required courses for the master's degree and Psychology 431/831m or 832v and admission to either psychological assistant or school psychologist program.

855V Introduction to Therapeutic Techniques With Children (3) The purpose of this course is to become familiar with play therapy, a technique for enhancing the adjustment and maturity of children. The history and methods of and

the research with play therapy are considered. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

856V Learning in Children (3) A course dealing with learning in infants, children and, for comparison purposes, adults. Research relevant to developmental differences in learning ability will be emphasized. Content areas included will be learning methodology with infants and children, learning in infancy, probability learning, transposition and reversal shift learning, imprinting, habituation and imitation learning.

857V Behavior Modification (3) A course in the techniques, rationale, and research literature of changing behavior through reinforcement procedures. Particular attention will be paid to institution and agency clients, from childhood to old age. Prereq: Psychology 102 and 343, or permission of the instructor.

858V Linguistic and Cognitive Development (3) Advanced, in-depth study of the theory and research on cognitive and linguistic development from infancy to adolescence. Prereq: Psychology 352 or equivalent or permission of instructor.

859V Social and Personality Development (3) A course which provides the student with an indepth coverage of the research literature on social and personality development in infancy and childhood. Research methods and theory, as they apply to social and personality development, will be emphasized throughout the course. All students will be expected to design and conduct a mini-observational study in the area of social and personality development.

860V Psychology of Women (3) A course providing comprehensive coverage of psychological theory and research pertaining to women. Critical analysis of theoretical and experimental issues will be emphasized. Students will participate in the conduct of the course and will be expected to write an appropriate research proposal. Prereq: Graduate standing, any department, or by permission of instructor.

862V Psychological Aspects of Industrial Training and Education (3) A study and application of the theory, techniques, and procedures involved in preparing individuals for their jobs through training and education. Prereq: Psychology 362 and Psychology 213 or equivalent.

868V Clinical Child Psychology for School Psychologists (2) An advanced course in child psychology, with emphasis upon diagnostic classification, refinement of approaches and techniques of assessment, and correction of problem behavior in the school age child. Prereq: Permission. (Crosslisted with Psychiatry 868 at the University of Nebraska College of Medicine)

890V Problems in Psychology (1-6) A faculty supervised research project, involving empirical or library work and oral or written reports. Prereq: Written permission of the department.

895V Practicum in Industrial Psychology (1-6) Faculty supervised experience in industry or business designed to bridge the gap between the classroom and a job, emphasizing use of previously acquired knowledge in dealing with prac-

tical problems. Prereq: Written permission of your practicum committee.

897V Practicum in Educational Psychology (1-6) Faculty-supervised experience in an educational agency designed to acquaint the student with practical problems faced by psychologists who work in an educational setting. Prereq: Written permission of your practicum committee.

898V Practicum in Developmental Psychology (1-6) Faculty- supervised experience in a setting designed to provide a practical understanding of theoretical concepts of human development. Emphasizes direct observation and/or personal interaction as a means of training, and can be directed toward various populations within the developmental life span (e.g., infants, preschoolers, middle childhood, adolescents, adults, aged persons). Prereq: Psychology 956 and permission of the Developmental Psychology Area Committee.

899 Thesis (1-6) Independent research project written under supervision of a faculty committee. May be repeated up to a total of 6 hours. Prereq: Written permission of your thesis committee.

903 Seminar: Psychology of Motivation (3-9) A topic area within the field of motivation will be explored in depth. Each year, the specific topic will be selected to coincide with that of the Nebraska symposium on motivation. Students enrolled in the course will be expected to attend the symposium which is held in Lincoln. Prereq: Graduate standing and instructor's permission.

904 Proseminar: Learning (3) A comprehensive and intensive coverage of the experimental literature on learning in humans and animals. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

905 Advanced Seminar in Learning (3) A course considering theorists who have most directly influenced the contemporary psychology of learning. Prereq: Psychology 301 or 904 or permission of instructor.

910 Proseminar: Analysis of Variance (3) A course providing a theoretical and practical understanding of inferential statistics emphasizing the analysis of variance model. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

911 Proseminar: Multiple Regression and Factor Analysis (3) Advanced problems and techniques of correlation and regression are discussed including special simple correlation methods and problems, multiple correlation, multiple regression, and factor analysis. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

921 Proseminar: Perception (3) A comprehensive and intensive coverage of the experimental literature on perception in humans and animals. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

923 Proseminar: Physiological Psychology (3) A systematic study of the physiological processes underlying behavior. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

929 Seminar in Developmental Psychobiology (3-6) A theoretical and empirical analysis of neuro- and other physiological changes correlated with and contributing to developmental processes in infra-human and human subjects.

Prereq: Completion of the psychology proseminar sequence or equivalent and permission of instructor.

936 Seminar in Applications of Non-Verbal Communication Theory (3) Theories and research on the development, facilitation and barriers of human non-verbal communication. Analysis of non-verbal interaction with specific application to education, business, supervision, counseling, therapy and interpersonal speech communication. Prereq: Course in research methods or permission of instructor. (Same as Speech 955 and SED 936)

940 Seminar in Small Group Communication (3) Research and theory in the processes of small group communication and leadership; research procedures; approaches to teaching a discussion course. Prereq: Communication 801V or equivalent, or basic statistics, or permission of instructor. (Same as Communication 940 and Sociology 940)

943 Proseminar: Personality (3) A course considering the effects of personality variables on behavior. A historical, theoretical, psychometric, and experimental approach will be emphasized. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

944 Proseminar: Social Psychology (3) Examination of theories, research findings and controversies in social psychology. Topics will include socialization; person perception; interpersonal attraction, leadership and group effectiveness; attitudes, attitude measurement, and attitude change; intergroup relations, power and social influence. New topics will be added as they become part of the research interests of social psychologists. Prereq: Permission of the instructor.

945 Experimental Social Psychology (4) Acquisition of basic research skills and a working understanding of key philosophical and methodological issues in social studies, either by oneself or as a part of a small group. Prereq: Psy 944 and 910 or 911 or permission.

946 Personality and Prediction (4) This course is intended to provide advanced graduate students in psychology and related disciplines with the methodological, psychometric, and statistical skills required to investigate the influence of personality variables on behavior. Prereq: Psych 943 or 944 and Psych 910 or 911 or permission of instructor.

948 Geropsychology (3) To become familiar with the psychology of aging from a research perspective. The focus will be on psychological research in the middle years and in later years. (Same as Gerontology 948). Prereq: 12 hours of psychology and/or gerontology or permission.

956 Proseminar: Developmental Psychology (3) A comprehensive and intensive coverage of the experimental literature on human and infrahuman development. Prereq: Permission of the instructor.

957 Applied Behavior Analysis (3) A comprehensive introduction to experimental methodology in applied behavior analysis. Topics covered include observational recording systems, reliability indices, procedural implementation of

behavioral techniques, single-subject research designs, and a broad review of the research literature. Prereq: A minimum of one course in learning theory (Psy 856V, 857V, 904, or equivalent) and permission.

957L Laboratory in Applied Behavior Analysis (3-6 hrs) Laboratory work coordinated with Psychology 957 (Applied Behavior Analysis) consisting of the systematic application of behavioral technology within the context of single-subject experimental designs. Emphasis will be on the modification of behavior of children with cognitive, social, or behavioral problems. Prereq: Psy 957 or permission.

958 Personality Assessment (3) A course dealing with tests and techniques for evaluation of personality characteristics and intended for advanced graduate students in psychology who certification as school psychologists. Prereq: An introductory course in group testing: psychology 213 or equivalent, and permission.

959 Seminar in Developmental Psychology (3-9) Faculty and student presentations organized around one of the following three major subdivisions of child psychology: (1) Social and personality development, (2) Developmental changes in conditioning and learning, (3) Cognitive growth and functioning. The course may be repeated each time a different topic is covered, up to a maximum total of nine credit hours. Prereq: Completion of the proseminar sequence and permission of the instructor.

960 Alcoholism and the Family A review of the theoretical and research literature on alcoholism within a family context. The specific focus in this course is those areas of alcoholism which relate to child and family development. Such issues as genetic aspects of alcoholism, effects of progeny, socialization practices in an alcoholic family, and child and adolescent alcoholism are covered. Prereq: Permission.

961 Seminar in Industrial/Organizational Psychology (3) Intensive study of current problems and research in psychology in industry with particular emphasis on integration of research findings. Prereq: Psychology 213 or equivalent.

963 Personnel Selection and Assessment (3) A practical course designed to familiarize the student with the procedures used in assessing and selecting people for industrial positions. Prereq: Psychology 213 or equivalent, Psychology 832V and permission of instructor.

979 Topical Seminar in School Psychology (1-6) A discussion of a specific advanced topic in school psychology which will be announced each time the course is offered. The course may be repeated each time a different topic is covered, up to a maximum total of 9 credit hours.

991 Topical Seminar in Psychology (1-3) A discussion of specific advanced topics which will be announced whenever the course is offered. Prereq: Permission of the instructor.

995 Practicum in Organizational Behavior (1-6) Faculty supervised experience in industry or business designed to bridge the gap between the classroom and a job, emphasizing use of previ-

ously acquired knowledge in dealing with practical problems. Prereq: Permission of department and admission to doctoral program.

996 Research Other Than Thesis (1-12) Research work under supervision of a faculty member. May be repeated up to a total of 12 credit hours. Prereq: Enrollment in a graduate program beyond the master's level and permission of the department.

997 Practicum in School Psychology (1-6) Faculty-supervised experience in an educational agency designed to acquaint the student with the practical problems faced by school psychologists. Prereq: Admission to school psychology program and written permission of department.

Public Administration

440/840M Public Budgeting (3) A study of the processes and procedures involved in making budgets for governmental institutions. Prereq: For 440, P.A. 317, senior standing. For 840m, P.A. 317.

441/841M Public Personnel Management (3) A study of the personnel process in American governmental administration. The processes and problems of recruiting, structuring, and operating public bureaucracies are examined as well as problems in personnel leadership, neutrality, accountability and performance. Prereq: For 441, P.A. 317, junior standing. For 841m, P.A. 317.

443/843M Municipal Administration (3) The administrative structure and administrative practices of American cities covering such areas as finance, personnel, public works, public safety, health, utilities, and planning. Prereq: For 443, Pol Sci 301, junior standing. For 843m, Pol Sci 301, P.A. 317.

800V Seminar in The Research Methods of Political Science and Public Administration (3) A critical investigation of the methods of data collection and analysis for political science and public administration research. (Also listed under political science.) Prereq: 317, permission of graduate advisor.

805V Survey of Public Administration (3) This course is designed for graduate students who have had no undergraduate Introduction to Public Administration course work. It involves a study of the environment of public administration, introducing the student to public organization theory and practice and functions and problems of the public administration process. This course does not count toward the 36 hours required for the MPA degree. Prereq: Course in American government or permission.

810V Seminar in Public Administration (3) An in-depth study of the relationships existing between the art and science of public administration, on the one hand, and the processes of government on the other. The emphasis is principally on broad categories of political and administrative issues as they condition each other. Prereq: Permission of graduate advisor.

830V Seminar in Public Policy Analysis (3) A study of the economic, social and political determinants of public policy in terms of administration and decision making and of measuring and evaluating policy impact. The course includes both study of general policy processes and, to a lesser extent, particular policy topics. Prereq: Permission of graduate adviser.

842V Seminar: Introduction to Public Organizations (3) A study of the various approaches to understanding public organizations and the relationship of these approaches to the design and functioning of public agencies. Prereq: Permission of graduate adviser.

844V Seminar in Organization Development in Public Agencies (3) A study of the theory and practice of organizational development in public agencies. Development of interpersonal skills in dealing with organizational problems is stressed. Prereq: Permission of graduate adviser.

845V Seminar in Advanced Management Analysis in Public Agencies (3) A study of theory and method related to analysis of problems of organization and workflow in public agencies. The course includes problem analysis, field study methods, design of improved methods and measures of impact. Prereq: Permission of graduate adviser.

846V Seminar in Public Personnel Administration (3) This course focuses on the principal consideration affecting the selection and utilization of personnel by government agencies. The emphasis is less in terms of description of processes than in terms of identifying and exploring solutions to problems. Prereq: Permission of graduate advisor.

848V Seminar in Public Financial Administration (3) Financial organization, intergovernmental financial relations, and the administrative and political aspects of budgetary planning and control. Prereq: Permission of graduate advisor.

860V Seminar in Administrative Law (3) A review of the principal elements of the role and character of legal processes in government administration, including delegation of powers, legal forms of administrative action, liability of government units and officers and judicial review of administrative action. Prereq: Permission of graduate adviser.

881V Urban Seminar in Metropolitan Planning and Development (3) An overview of the present status of planning in metropolitan areas with special emphasis on structure of planning departments, comprehensive plans, and problems of annexation. Prereq: Geo. 412 or recommendation from pol sci, soc, or econ departments. (Also listed under geo)

890V Advanced Topics in Public Administration (1-3) A pro-seminar on selected topics based upon special needs of graduate students in selected options. Normally taught by outstanding practitioners in the field. Prereq: Graduate standing, permission of instructor, prior course work and/or experience in the topical area.

892V Readings in Public Administration (1-3) Specially planned readings in public administration for the graduate student who encounters scheduling problems in the completion of his degree program, or who has special preparatory needs and who is adjudged by the department to be capable of pursuing a highly independent course of study. Prereq: Permission of graduate advisor.

894V Research in Public Administration (1-3) The course is intended for advanced graduate students in public administration. It is especially suited for those in-career students who have had their internships waived and who might profit more by in-depth research on a problem of public administration rather than additional classroom courses. Prereq: 15 hours graduate work in public administration and permission of faculty adviser.

803U-804U Internship (3 per sm) Maximum of 6 to be granted upon completion of written report on internship. Internship in some government: National, state, local. Prereq: All course work for the M.P.A. completed.

Secondary/Post-Secondary Education 480/880M Principles of Vocational Education (3) A study of the basic philosophy underlying vocational education and the principles and practices in the various fields. F,Su

481/881M Principles of Adult Education (3) An introduction to the study of adult education as a major development in contemporary America. The course surveys the major forms and problems of adult education and the foremost agencies providing programs. F,Su

482/882M Literature for The Adolescent (3) This course is designed to assist library media specialists, English teachers, teachers of the humanities and other classroom teachers to gain information about adolescents, their reading and viewing habits and interests. Factors which affect reading, guidance in reading, and types of literature, regardless of format, will be examined. Cross-listed with Is 482. Prereq: For 882m, Educational Foundations 205 or Educational Foundations 207 and Psychology 351 and graduate standing.

485/885M Coordination Techniques in Vocational Education (3) Reviews responsibilities and techniques of coordination for the vocational teacher-coordinator and or vocational coordinator, with special emphasis upon local administration of the part-time cooperative program and analysis of the laws and regulations governing this program. (S,Su)

487/887M Adult Group Leadership (3) A study of adult groups in modern society and the characteristics of effective leadership in all types of groups. (S, Su)

490/890M Problems: Post-Secondary/Higher Education (3) This course surveys the historical development, current status and future directions of post-secondary/higher education in the United States. Its major focus is on the problems and issues confronting postsecondary/higher education today. (S,Su)

800V Special Studies (1-3) A series of intensive courses especially for teachers in service-scheduled as regular seminars, or workshops, according to purpose.

810V Research Project (1-3) Individual or group study and analysis of specific problems in schools. Typical problems may include surveys, school finances, transportation, school building construction, maintenance and operation, curriculum and pupil personnel.

815V Practicum Teaching-Community and Junior College (3) The practicum experience is intended for graduate students who are or desire to become vocational or academic instructors at the community or junior college level. The eligible student will be placed in a practicum situation in a recognized teaching field under faculty supervision from the College of Education in association with the appropriate community or junior college faculty.

820V Seminar for Cooperating Teachers (3) A seminar for cooperating and prospective cooperating teachers. Discussion of problems, trends, research and evaluation of student teachers and student aides in the secondary school. Assessment of kinds of programs and experiences available to pre-service students.

825V Seminar in Secondary Education (3) Intensive study of problems of secondary education. Critical analysis of current research and related literatures; group and individual work on problems of group interest and relevance to secondary education.

827V International Curriculum Practices (3) An analysis of curriculum practices and procedures that are currently utilized in selected countries around the world. Units of study will include Belgium, France, Germany, England, China, Africa, and Russia. The course activities will include correspondence with foreign students and educators as well as in-depth research on assigned areas. Prereq: Graduate standing.

830V Emerging School Curriculum (3) Designed to provide the student with understanding of the nature and trends in secondary school curriculum development with the principles and practices utilized in curriculum planning. Strong emphasis is placed on curriculum construction.

833V Analysis of Teacher Behavior (3) Emphasis is placed upon current observational systems for analysis of teacher behavior in a classroom setting. Specific topics include indepth instruction to inter-action analysis, micro-teaching, non-verbal behavior and simulation. Student proficiency in these observational systems using video-tape equipment is stressed.

835V Improvement of Instruction of Secondary School Speech (3) Exploration of the implications and contributions of recent methodological and empirical research to instructional improvement in speech. Investigation of the speech process and the contribution of other disciplines to speech instruction.

837V Improvement of Instruction of Secondary School Foreign Language (3) This course is designed especially for the teacher who is interested in the improvement of instruction in foreign language. The course will encompass a whole range of opportunities for improvement of instruction of such languages, but will concentrate on current developments in audio-

lingual-visual programs that have implications for the classroom teacher.

840V Improvement of Instruction of Secondary School English: Language (3) Exploration of the implications of recent research in language and linguistics for instructional improvement in the teaching of English.

841V Improvement of Instruction of Secondary School English: Literature (3) Exploration of the implications of recent research in the teaching of literature and rhetoric for instructional improvement in the secondary school English classroom.

845V Improvement of Instruction of Secondary School Social Studies (3) Designed especially for teachers who are interested in the improvement of instruction of the social studies. Will encompass the whole range of opportunities available for the improvement of social studies instruction; emphasis will be concentrated on current developments that have implications for the classroom teacher.

846V Simulation/Gaming Laboratory for Secondary Teachers (3) This course is designed to familiarize secondary school teachers with simulation/games. It is designed to provide them with the ability to understand, use, and create simulation/games for the classroom. Prereq: Graduate standing.

847V Materials Laboratory for The Social Studies (3) Designed to acquaint social studies teachers with new materials in the social studies. Students will develop criteria for the evaluation of materials from recent curriculum projects.

849V Seminar in Social Studies Curriculum Construction (3) This course is designed for social studies supervisors, department chairmen, team leaders and teachers who are interested in learning to design and construct curricula for the social studies.

850V Improvement of Instruction of Secondary School Mathematics (3) This course is designed for those students who wish to extend their knowledge of the secondary school mathematics curriculum and their skill in employing instructional techniques for teaching mathematics. Emphasis is placed upon new curriculum developments and contemporary teaching strategies.

852V Foundations in Business Education (3) Designed to develop a deeper and broader understanding of business education; to identify and define business education and to examine its past, present, and future role in the total education pattern of our country in today's world.

853V Seminar in Mathematics Education (3) A graduate seminar in K-12 mathematics education emphasizing recent curricular developments, curriculum planning and evaluation, research, mathematics supervision, and contemporary issues in mathematics education. Prereq: Graduate standing and permission of instructor.

855V Improvement of Instruction of Secondary School Science (3) This course is designed for graduate students in education who wish to become better informed about the recently developed programs for secondary science; the methods, materials, philosophy, and emphasis instruction which are characteristic of these programs.

865V Science Education Seminar (3) A graduate seminar in K-12 science education emphasizing research, newly developed science curricula, curriculum planning, science supervision and treatment of one or more localized science education issues.

868V Trends and Teaching Strategies in Science Education (3) This course is designed for the graduate student whose study program emphasis is in the area of science education. Its focus will be K-12 and as such is meant to serve graduate students in both elementary and secondary education departments. The course will describe and analyze past and present trends in science education including curricula, teaching-learning strategies, the laboratory, and instructional materials. Particular strategies that have ment and relevance concerning today's students and teachers will be treated in depth.

875V Improvement of Instruction in Vocational Business Education (3) A course designed for teachers of business education to provide information, methods, and techniques relative to current practices and trends in vocational business education.

876V Problems of Vocational Business Education (3) Designed for teachers of business education to develop a better understanding of the purposes, philosophy, current practices and trends in business education.

877V Vocational Curriculum Construction (3) A course designed for teachers, supervisors, coordinators, and administrators of vocational education. The course includes principles, needs, factors, and trends that should be considered in developing a vocational education curriculum.

899 Thesis (1-6) Required of all students taking Master of Arts degree, see major adviser for information.

936 Seminar in Applications of Non-Verbal Communication Theory (3) Theories and research on the development, facilitation and barriers of human non-verbal communication. Analysis of non-verbal interaction with specific applications to education, business, supervision, counseling, therapy and interpersonal speech communication. (Cross listed as Psychology 936 and Comm. 955.) Prereq: Course in research methods or permission of instructor.

Social Work

Foundation Courses

800 Human Behavior and the Social Environment (4) A foundation course providing basic knowledge of the contributions of the biological, behavioral and social sciences to understanding of human functioning in transaction with social structure. Prereq: Admission to graduate program in social work or permission.

805 Social Welfare Policy, Services & Analysis (4) An examination of social policy development and the functioning of specific, delivery systems together with beginning policy analysis

embodying socio-economic, political, legal, and psychological contexts. Academic background in economics, political science, and U.S. history is highly recommended. Prereq: Admission to the graduate program in social work or permission.

809 Research Methods in Social Work (2) Scientific inquiry, the general types and methods of research in social work, and the collection, analysis and presentation of social welfare date will be studied. The more commonly used statistical techniques will be reveiwed. Research in social work will be assessed and utilization in social work practice will be explored. Prereq: SW 808 or permission.

810 Social Work Practice I (Generic) (2) This course is designed to serve as an introduction to the common core of concepts, skills, tasks and activities which are essential to the practice of social work and which serve as a foundation for further professional growth. Prereq: SW 800; concurrent with SW 800; or permission.

812 Social Work Practicum II (Micro) (2) An introductory course for graduate social work students focusing on basic theory and principles of social work practice with individuals, families and small groups. Prereq: SW 800, SW 810; concurrent with SW 800; or permission.

814 Social Work Practice III (Macro) (2) This is an introductory course for graduate social work students which surveys basic theories and principles of social work practice with organizations, institutions and communities, and includes social action and planning, community development, community organization, administration, and program evaluation. Prereq: SW 800, SW 810, SW 805; concurrent with SW 800, SW 805; or permission.

816 Social Work Practicum I (3) This course will provide supervised individualized learning experiences in selected social welfare agencies, introducing a variety of social work practice roles; emphasizing developing relationships with client systems, the problem solving process, and differential use of interventive modalities to effect change. Prereq: Concurrent with or subsequent to SW 810.

817 Social Work Practicum II (3) This course is designed to provide supervised individual learning experiences, in selected social welfare agencies. It is designed to introduce graduate students to beginning micro and macro social work practice. Prereq: SW 816, concurrent with or subsequent to SW 812, 814.

Micro Practice Courses

820 Micro Intervention I (3) To provide the student with knowledge of theories and techniques in various modalities which are used in working with individuals, families and small groups. Prereq: BA, Social Work major, SW 817, or permission.

821 Micro Intervention II (3) To provide the student with knowledge of theories and practice in techniques in various modalities used in working with individuals, families and small groups with emphasis on particular settings such as rural mental health clinics, schools, and

family service agencies. Prereq: SW 820 or permission

825 The Family as the Client (3) The family is considered as a system of social work intervention. Several theories of family interaction are considered: alternative modalities of family treatment are assessed; interventive skills are developed. Prereq: SW 820 or permission.

826 Gestalt-Transactional Analysis (3) An intensive didactic and experiential course designed to give students in-depth knowledge and practice skills in the combined use of transactional analysis (TA) and Gestalt therapy. Prereq: SW 820 or permission.

827V Issues in Human Sexuality for Social Workers (3) An intensive didactic review of current theory and research in human sexuality, with a primary focus on psychosocial aspects of human sexuality. It is designed to give the student in-depth knowledge of personal and sociocultural dynamics influencing communication regarding sex, programs of sex education for specific client systems, current issues in human sexuality, and the causes of sexual dysfunction and current rationale for treatment. Prereq: Bachelor's degree; familiarity with counseling, psychology, or experience in a counseling relationship; HED 822V, or equivalent basic course in human sexuality, and permission of the instructor.

Practicum Courses

840 Advanced Social Work Practicum I (3-4) To provide individualized professional experience in micro or macro social work practice. Prereq: SW 817 or equivalent, SW 820 or SW 850/852/854

841 Advanced Social Work Practicum II (3-4) To provide individualized professional experience in micro or macro social work practice, building upon opportunities provided and competence achieved in Advanced Practicum I. Prereq: SW 840.

842 Advanced Social Work Practicum III (1-4) To provide a third advanced practice opportunity in a selected social welfare agency or practice setting for refinement/addition of micro or macro social work practice skills. Prereq: SW 841.

Macro Practice Courses

850 Task Groups in Macro Practice (3) A study of the various types of task groups involved in social service delivery and planning and community organization and community development. Prereq: SW 814, SW 817, or permission.

852 Social Work Administration (3) A study of the role of the social work administrator in the creation and administration of social service agencies of varying sizes. Prereq: SW 814 and SW 817; undergraduate equivalent; or permission.

854 Social Work Planning (3) An advanced course in social planning, including administrative planning for social services, comprehensive planning for social welfare programs, and planning for social change. Prereq: SW 814 and SW 817; undergraduate equivalent; or permission.

856 Supervision in Social Work (3) To provide the student with knowledge of theories and practice in techniques used in supervising paid or volunteer staff in social agencies, with emphasis on the leadership and helping functions of the supervisor in both educational and administrative roles. Prereq: Completion of accredited undergraduate social work major or one graduate year of social work courses, or permission.

858 Advanced Policy Analysis and Implementation (3) An advanced course in policy analysis techniques, policy development and implementation. Prereq: SW 805. SW 814 and SW 817; undergraduate equivalent; or permission.

Social Problem/Condition Courses

460/860M Social Work in Mental Health (3) This course is an elective for the advanced student who is seeking substantial specialized knowledge of current social work practice in mental health and mental retardation. Prereq: Students in MSW program or permission.

462/862M Social Welfare and Institutional Racism (3) An examination of racism in social institutions, including social welfare, with particular attention to the implications for social work practice and the social work practitioners. To increase the students awareness of the impact of racism on the behavior of both racial minorities and whites. Prereq: Senior social work majors, graduate social work students or permission of the instructor.

866 Social Work in Child Welfare (3) The course is designed to provide the student an understanding of the primary child welfare programs and services designed to strengthen family living.

868 Social Work in the Juvenile Justice System (3) To provide the graduate social wrok student understanding and knowledge of the practice of social work within the juvenile justice system.

870 Alcohol Abuse: Comprehensive Treatment Programs (3) An examination of problems and processes related to alcoholism which are common in a social work setting. Special emphasis is given to detection, intervention, referral, etiology, and treatment alternatives and resources.

871 Alcohol Abuse: Comprehensive Community Programs (3) An examination of the elements of a comprehensive service system for alcohol-related problems.

480/880M Social Work and the Law (3) An examination of some of the legal aspects of selected social welfare policy issues such as abortion, illegitimacy, alcoholism and drug addiction, creditor and debtor's rights, landlord and tenant relationships, housing law, right to treatment, status of the convicted individual, mental health commitment procedures. Prereq: SW 311 or its equivalent at the graduate level. SW 805 or permission.

888 Topical Seminar in Social Work (2-4) Advanced topics and experiences in social work theory and practice. Specifics will be announced when the course is offered. The topics selected will be consistent with faculty expertise and stu-

dent needs. This course may be repeated for up to nine hours credit. Prereq: Permission.

Special Studies and Social Welfare Research Courses

890 Special Studies in Social Welfare (1-3) Special studies in a selected area of social welfare for deepening the student's knowledge in that particular area. Prereq: Permission.

892 Seminar in Utilization of Research in Social Work (3) Emphasis is placed on the utilization of research in social work practice. Prereg: SW 809 or equivalent, or permission.

894 Evaluation of Social Programs (3) A study of the various issues and methodology of social program evaluation. Evaluation of agency organizational structure, program design and effectiveness, and social impact will be covered. Prereq: SW 808 and 809 or equivalent, SW 852 or permission.

896 Research Other Than Thesis (3) Students prepare a research proposal, carry out the proposed study and prepare a detailed report of the purpose, design, outcome and meaning of the study. Prereq: SW 892 or 894 or permission.

899 Master's Thesis (6) Under the supervision of the thesis instructor and the thesis committee, the student will complete a thesis research. Prereq: SW 809 or equivalent, or permission.

Sociology

Anthropology

420/820M Urban Anthropology (3) The course is intended to examine the city from an anthropological point of view. Included will be an overview of its history and the processes by which cities are formed and grow as well as the internal structure and processes within the city. The course is intended to be comparative geographically and temporally. Topics covered will include urbanization and cities in both the socalled "third-world countries" as well as in the developed, industrialized ones. Graduate students will be required to do a substantive term paper on a topic mutually acceptable to both the instructor and the student. In addition to the written work, the student will also be required to make an oral presentation in class of the research done and the major findings. Prereq: Permission of the instructor.

421/821M Cultural Anthropology (3) Arts, economics, family, kinship, politics, religion, subsistence, technology, war and world view ap-proached as parts of an integrated whole, a way of life in human society. Illustrations will be drawn from a number of societies, anthropological theories and methods of study. Prereq: Permission of the instructor.

422/822M North American Archaeology (3) American Indian culture history in North America, with emphasis on the peopling of the new world, origin and development of new world agriculture, development of middle American civilizations and their impact on core areas of village-farming in the continental United States: introduction to archaeological

investigation techniques, dating methods, and taxonomic concepts. Prereq: For 422, Anthropology 105 or 421. For 822m, permission of the instructor.

452/852M Psycholinguistics (3) A discussion of the literature concerned with how such psychological variables as perception, learning, memory, and development relate to the linguistic variables of sentence structure, meaning, and speech sounds. Prereq: Senior or graduate standing or permission of the instructor. Recommended: Anthr. 105. (Same as Psychology 452 and Comm. 452)

492/892M Seminar in Anthropological Problems (3) The seminar will cover a specific topic which will be announced each time the course is offered. The students will work with the instructor on projects designed to increase the student's depth of knowledge in specific areas. Prereq: Permission of the instructor.

Sociology

401/801M Social Control of Behavior (3) The social processes by which the person's behavior is adapted to the group. External restraints, roles, self control. Analysis and measurement of behavior in the context of socially defined fields. Prereq: For 401, 9 hours of sociology, including Sociology 101 or 403, and 301. For 801m, permission of the instructor.

402/802M Collective Behavior (3) Group and individual processes of ephemeral social action and institution formation are studied. The development of transitory groups and ideologies in new movements and organizations through opinion formation; case and comparative investigations of the origins and growth of collective movements are made and relevant social theories are applied. Prereq: For 402, 9 hours of sociology, including Sociology 101 or 403, and 301. For 802M, permission of the instructor.

403/803M Advanced General Sociology (3) A survey of the principles of sociology including interactions groups, institutions, social organization, and change. Consideration is also given to sociological techniques, major specialties, and classes of data. Prereq: Junior/ senior standing or permission. Not open to anyone who has recent credit in Sociology 101. (Does not carry graduate credit in Sociology.)

410/810M The Community (3) A basic course in community sociology. Sociological theory and the techniques of empirical research are applied to published studies of communities in the United States and elsewhere. The comparative social scientific method is elaborated as it pertains to data derived from community investigation. Prereq: For 410, 9 hours of sociology including Sociology 101 or 403. For 810m, permission of the instructor.

411/811M Applied Social Gerontology (3) An introduction to social gerontology with a special emphasis upon the effects of aging on social institutions and social participation. Examines practice-oriented implications. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

412/812M Urban Geography (3) A geography of the city from the viewpoint of history, site, and situation, external relations, internal relations, and the comparative study of cities. Prereq: For 412, junior standing. For 812m, permission of the instructor. (Same as Geography 412 and Economics 412.)

413/813M Sociology of Deviant Behavior (3) A theoretical analysis of the relation of deviant group behavior and subcultures to community standards of conventional behavior as expressed in law and norms. Prereq: For 413, 9 hours of sociology, including Sociology 101 or 403. For 813m, permission of the instructor. (Same as Criminal Justice 413/813m).

414/814M Urban Sociology (3) Examines urban theoretical perspectives, urbanization processes, the diversity of metropolitan communities, urban stratification, metropolitan growth, urban neighborhoods, community power and urban policy and planning. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

415/815M American Family Problems (3) (1) A theoretical treatment of the family as a social institution outlining the essential functions it provides for its members and the society. (2) An analysis of failures of function and attendant problems in a variety of American families: Parentyouth tensions, problems of sexual adjustment, role conflict, multiproblem families, desertion, divorce, others. Prereq: For 415, 3 hours of sociology; for 815M, permission of the instructor.

416/816M The Craft of Sociology (3) Sociology major seminar integrating prior learning and covering contemporary sociological theories, research methods, theory-building strategies. practical applications, moral implications, various views on professional goals and technical writing skills. Graduate students will be expected to write their term papers as if they were submitting the papers to a professional journal. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

453/853M Seminar in Cross-Cultural Communication (3) This seminar will be directed towards understanding the components of cultural and subcultural misinterpretations, with the purpose of bringing to awareness those factors which disturb communication in cross-cultural situations. Prereq: For 453, junior standing and permission of the instructor. For 853m, permission of the instructor. (Same as Comm. 453/853M).

462/862M Sociology of Formal Organizations (3) Examines organizational theory and research. Analyzes organizational problems such as goals and effectiveness; authority, leadership and control; professionals in organizations; communications: clients: organizational change; and organizations and their environments. Comparative analysis of many types of organizations such as business, industry, schools, prisons, and hospitals with special attention given to human-service organizations. Prereq: Permission of the intructor.

471/871M Development of Sociological Theory (3) An intellectual history of sociology as an academic discipline surveying outstanding contributions to its body of theory. Stress is placed on the development of sociology as a science with illustrative materials drawn from the estab-

lished works of recent decades although backgrounds to these are traced to their ancient and medieval antecedents where applicable. Prereq: For 471, senior standing and 12 hours of sociology. For 871m, permission of the instructor.

472/872M Contemporary Sociological Theory (3) A thorough and detailed presentation of a major theoretical integration of contemporary sociological research and theory with shorter descriptive presentations of alternative positions indicating similarities and differences. Principles of theory construction and a review of maor sociological concepts and writers. Prereq: For 472, senior standing and 12 hours of sociology. For 872m, permission of the instructor.

475/875M Social Change (3) A discussion of theories and the basic models of change. Case and comparative examples from contemporary and historical change. Emphasis is placed on understanding causes and effects and larger trends current in American society and institutions, Prereq: For 475, Sociology 101 and junior standing or higher for 875M permission of instructor.

485/885M Sociology of Religion (3) Analysis of religious behaviors from a sociological and social-psychological perspective, and utilizing both theoretical and empirical materials. The class is designed as an introductory approach to the sociology of religion, and the first in a twostep sequence, undergraduate and graduate. Prereq: For 485, Sociology 101 or 403, or permission of the instructor. For 885m, permission of the instructor.

499/899M Independent Study (1-3) Guided reading in special topics under the supervision of a faculty member. Prereq: For 499, senior standing and permission of the instructor. For 899m, permission of the instructor.

801V General Seminar in Sociology (3) This seminar, required of departmental graduate students, gives a basic orientation to the profession, its leading figures, publications, organizations, and university departments. It emphasizes critical discussion of issues in the discipline and selected substantive problems of sociology. Prereq: Graduate standing and permission of instructor.

805V Seminar in Social Psychology (3-6) Assigned reading, discussion, pecialized individual work leading to the writing and presentation of a paper applicable to a general topic in social psychology selected by the instructor. As seminar topics change, this course may be repeated in a student's program without implying duplication. Prereq: Permission (same as Psych

810V Seminar in Applications of Sociology (3-6) Sociological theory and method applied to a practical problem of relevance to general social issues. As seminar topics change, this course numbers may be repeated in a student's program without implying duplication. Prereq: Per-

811V Social Problems of The Disadvantaged (3) A survey of the social problems existing in disadvantaged communities. The effects upon individuals of such settings. The subculture of poverty. Prereq: Graduate standing and permission of instructor.

812V Seminar in Social Gerontology (3) A topical seminar focusing on the sociology of aging. Students are encouraged to develop proposals for research, programs, or social policy. Focus is upon generational differences and age changes throughout the adult life. Prereq: Permission of instructor.

850V Seminar in Research Methods (3-6) A complete research project carried out under the supervision of an instructor particularly qualified in the area of concern. Students participate in the background work, question formulation, selection of (or construction of) test instruments, data gathering by methods such as interviewing and participant observation, and analysis. As seminar topics change, this course may be repeated in a student's program without implying duplication. Prereg: Permission.

855V Seminar in The Sociology of Religion (3-6) A seminar dealing with religion as a social and cultural phenomenon. The study theme will vary from time to time in keeping with the special interests of the instructor. As seminar topics vary, this course may be repeated in a student's program without implying duplication. Prereq: Permission.

860V Seminar in Social Organization (3-6) Assigned reading, discussion, specialized individual work leading to the writing and presentation of a paper applicable to a general topic in social organization selected by the instructor. As seminar topics change, this course may be repeated in a student's program without implying duplication. Prereq: Permission.

865V Seminar in Occupations & Professions (3) Assigned reading, discussion, specialized individual work leading to the writing and presentation of a paper applicable to the sociology of occupations and professions. Questions relating to theory, research, and practical application are considered. Prereq: Graduate and permission of

870V Seminar in Sociological Theory (3-6) Assigned reading, discussion, specialized individual work leading to the writing and presentation of a paper applicable to a general topic in sociological theory selected by the instructor. As seminar topics change, this course may be repeated in a student's program without implying duplication. Prereq: Permission.

871V Population Seminar (3) The significance of differences from place to place in the number, kind and qualities of human inhabitants and changes through time. Prereq: Graduate standing and permission of instructor. (Same as Geography 871v)

880V Independent Study in Topics On Urbanism (1-3) Graduate student research on an individual basis under faculty supervision in topics pertaining to urbanism. Prereq: Undergraduate major in one of the social sciences plus 6 hours of graduate work on one of the social sciences. (Also listed under economics and geography.)

883V-884V Interdisciplinary Seminar On The Urban Community (3-6) An interdisciplinary course on the metropolitan community in which various departmental and college offerings concerned with urban problems are put on broad interrelated focus. Prereq: Undergraduate major in one of the social sciences plus 6 hours of graduate work in one of the social sciences. (Also listed under economics, geography, political science, and urban studies.)

885V-886V Seminar in Urban Economics (3-6) An examination of the theoretical basis for the analysis of urban economic problems with emphasis upon the policy alternatives applicable toward their possible solution. Separate credit may be received for each course. Prereq: At least 6 hours of upper division course work in economics or permission of the instructor. (Same as Geography 885v-886v and Economics 885v-886v)

895V-896V Practicum in Applied Sociology (Each 3) A practical work experience under supervision which provides opportunity for applying principles from the student's academic area of concentration. Prereq: Graduate sociology major for the M.S. Degree.

899 Thesis (1-6)

940V Seminar in Small Group Communication (J. Brilhart) (3) Research and theory in the processes of small group communication and leadership; research procedures; approaches to teaching a discussion course. Prereq: Communication 801V or equivalent, or basic statistics, or permission of the instructor. (Same as Communications 940 and Psychology 940)

Special Education

808 Introduction to Design of Human Service Systems (3) This course is designed for graduate students interested in the design of human service systems, especially those serving older or handicapped citizens. The course will provide an interdisciplinary analysis of (1) history of services, (2) current trends, and (3) future directions. The basic service philosophy, attitude toward human and legal rights, etc., for several different service areas (services for mentally and physically handicapped; older citizens, etc.) will be examined. Prereq: None.

420/820M History, Education, Guidance of Deaf (2) An introductory investigation of deafness and the education of the deaf, historical development of the field, educational and social problems associated with impaired hearing, current educational strategies, and programs, the vocational adjustment of deaf individuals. For students beginning course work towards provisional level certification in the area of deafness. Prereq: FED 801.

421/821M Speech for the Deaf I (2) To provide prospective teachers of the hearing impaired with an understanding of the importance of speech for the hearing impaired child, the process of acquisition of speech in the normal child, and the speech and language needs of cildren with severe and profound hearing losses. To investigate the methods and techniques for devel-

oping speech in the hearing impaired child, the use of several orthographic systems in the teaching of speech, and the methods employed in correcting speech in the older deaf child. Th course is designed for undergrad/grad level students preparing to be teachers of the hearing impaired.

422/822M Teaching of Speech to the Deaf II (2) A continuation of SPED 421, an investigation of diagnostic speech procedures used with hearing impaired children, the development of speech unit plans, the writing of individual speech prescriptions, the application of distinctive feature theory and generative phonology procedures to the teaching of speech to the deaf. and an in-depth study of the intonation patterns of English and methods employed in teaching them to hearing impaired students. For students preparing for students preparing for provisional level certification as teachers of the hearing impaired. Prereq: SPED 821 and FEd 801.

423/823M Language Development of Hearing Impaired Children (3) An investigation of the nature and structure of language, the various disciplines studying language, the acquisition of language in normally hearing children. The effects of the hearing loss on language development, language development in the hearing impaired infant and preschool child. This course is designed for students preparing to be teachers of the hearing impaired. Prereq: FEd 801.

424/824M Teaching of Language to the Deaf II
(3) Continuation of SpEd 423 with further consideration of criteria for selection and utilization of teaching materials; special emphasis on language principles for the older deaf pupil Prereq: For 424, Special Education 423. S

433/833M Speech Reading and Auditory Training (2) An investigation of the receptive modes of oral communication employed by and for the hearing impaired, the processes employed in perceiving language through speech reading, the limitations to speech reading factors affecting speech reading ability, and the prominent methods of teaching speech reading to the hearing impaired. Also, an investigation of the importance of the auditory channel in the development of communication skills of the hearing impaired, the use of amplification in educational settings, the available procedures for providing amplification to the hearing impaired, an evaluation of these procedures, and the techniques and methods employed in developing audition within the hearing impaired population. Prereq: FED 801.

435/835M Teaching School Subjects to the Deaf II (2) Consideration of problems in deaf education; approaches to school subjects considered in detail. Prereq: For 435, Special Education 434. (S)

438/838M Speech Science I: Auditory and Speech Mechanism (3) Basic structure and functions of the organs involved in hearing and speech. Prereq: For 438, junior standing. 2.5 GPA. (F)

839M Hearing Science (3) This course is designed for undergraduate majors in speech pa-thology and audiology and for graduate students in education of the deaf. The purpose of the course is to introduce basic concepts important for understanding the process of human audition. The course will include basic terminology, anatomy and physiology of the hearing mechanism, acoustics and physics of sound, the processes of human hearing, elements of basic hearing measurement, and psychophysics. Prereg: 938M - Graduate major in Deaf Education. Not available to Speech Pathology majors as a graduate course.

440/840M Learning Disabilities (3) Study of specific learning disabilities among children; review problems of terminology, criteria, and definition; causal factors of learning disabilities; evaluative techniques for identification of the problem; therapy techniques for habilitation or rehabilitation of children with specific learning disabilities. Prereq: For 440, junior standing. Teacher education and 2.5 GPA. (F,S,Su)

445/845M Speech Science II: Experimental and Applied Phonetics (3) Analysis of phonetic and phonetic elements in major American English dialects; practice in transcription of standard and defective speech, use of the sound spectograph, spirometer and other equipment. Prereq: For 445, junior standing. 2.5 GPA. (F,Su)

451/851M Basic Clinical Practicum in Speech Pathology (1-3) Minimum of 45 clock hours per credit hour of supervised practice in speech and hearing clinic; speech and hearing evaluation, therapy sessions, lesson plans, records, and a weekly colloquium. Prereq: For 451, Special Education 443 or Special Education 444. For 851m, graduate standing and permission of the instructor. (F,S,Su)

460/860M Introduction to Mental Retardation (3) This modular competency based course covers background information on mental retardation; the needs of and services available for the mentally retarded; the history of the field and its contributions; an introduction to teaching techniques and methods: the problems caused because of mental retardation in a family and society; and the status of and trends in the field of mental retardation.

463/863M Curriculum Planning for The Disabled (3) This is a modular competency based course where students study the terminology of curriculum, its goals and aims, objectives and taxonomies, curriculuar development, units and lesson plans, task analysis assessment and evaluation, programming. Project, small group discussion, and a final test make up the evaluation techniques used in this class. Prereq: Special Ed 460 and working experience with handicapped children. (F,S,Su)

464/864M Methods and Materials for Teaching Mentally Retarded Children (3) The retarded child as he relates to a variety of educational processes designed for his learning needs; methodology and teaching materials; practice in the design and implementation of curriculum units, preschool through vocational; consideration of programs for the trainable and educable. Prereg: For 464, junior standing, teacher education, Special Education 306 and Special Education 460, and 2.5 GPA. (F,S,Su)

466/866M Vocational Training for the Mentally Retarded (3) Concerned with the vocational training of the Mentally Retarded from various perspectives: the individual; the community; the school or training center; the employer; and the government. Interaction with agencies that deal with vocational training, projects, and small group discussions make up the format of the course. Prereq: SPED 460/860M.

880M Social Development of Children and Youth (3) The study of psychological, biological, and environmental factors that affect social and emotional development of children and adolescents. Emphasis is placed on symptoms, causitive emotional handicaps and educational strategies for classroom intervention. Prereq: Student teaching, graduate standing.

481/881M Classroom Techniques for Behavior Control (3) This course will introduce the student to a variety of techniques for managing behavior in the classroom. Three major areas will be presented and specific techniques within each will be practiced both in the class and in the student's own teaching situation. Applications and adjustments of techniques will be accomplished in class. The course is intended for undergraduate students who are currently enrolled in student teaching and for graduate students who are currently teaching in elementary, secondary, or special education programs. Prereq: for 481, Junior standing and student teaching; for 881m, graduate standing. (S)

485/885M Introduction to The Physically Handicapped (3) Nature and educational needs of children and youth who are physically handicapped: definitions; prevalence and types of children in educational programs; history; trends. (F) Prereq: For 485, junior.

800V Special Projects (1-3) A series of intensive courses especially for teachers in-service scheduled as regular seminars or workshops, according to purpose.

806V Interdisciplinary Approaches to Developmental Disabilities (3) This is an introductory course dealing with the various developmental principles as viewed by different disciplines at Meyer children's rehabilitation institute. The different disciplines will come in and present an overview of their role in working with the developmentally disabled child. (F) Prereq: FED

810V Research Projects (3) Individual or group study and analysis of specific problems.

812V Reading Diagnosis and Remediation for the Classroom Teacher (3) This course is designed for in-service teachers who are interested in diagnostic and remedial techniques appropriate for the disabled reader. Diagnostic instruments will be analyzed, constructed, and administered during the course. Remedial techniques for disabled readers will be examined. Prereg: One reading course and Graduate standing.

813V Diagonostic and Remedial Instruction in Reading (3) A course for advanced students in reading which will provide the student with the essential information for the diagnosis and rem-

ediation of reading disabilities. (F,S,Su) Prereq: SpEd 911 or 912.

814V Measurement and Evaluation of Reading (3) A course for advanced students in reading which will provide the student with the necessary training for establishing and operating a reading center (i.e., initiating and accepting referrals, forming evaluation schedules, administering appropriate evaluative devices, writing case reports and establishing follow-up sessions). (F,S) Prereq: SpEd 813v.

815V Clinical Practice in Reading (3) A laboratory-oriented course for advanced students in reading which will provide them with practicum training in the use of proper remedial reading techniques in order that they might qualify as reading specialists. (F,S,Su) Prereq: Permission and SpEd 814v.

834V Pediatric Audiology (3) The course is designed for graduate majors in speech pathology and audiology and for students in education of the deaf. The purpose of the course is to introduce basic concepts important to the understanding of the development of human hearing in the child. The course will include basic terminology, techniques for testing and assessment of children categorized as neonates, infants and preschool children. Disorders of hearing commonly found in children will be stressed. Remedial procedures and approaches for hearing disabilities will be developed. Prereq: Hearing Disorders, SPED 438.

837M Hearing Disorders (3) This course will focus on the problems caused by disease processes, congenital abnormalities, and injuries which affect the normal process of audition. Appropriate intervention and remedial techniques will be discussed and applied. For students majoring in Speech Pathology and Education of the Deaf programs. Prereq: SPED 439.

842V Advanced Studies in The Disorders of Voice (3) Types and causes of voice disorders; rationale for case selection; cleft palate; special emphasis on rehabilitation procedures associated with individual involvements; practicum. (F)

843V Advanced Studies in The Disorders of Rate and Rhythm (3) Types and causes of rate, rhythm and stress pattern disorder; rationale for case selection; survey of stuttering theories and therapies; special emphasis on rehabilitation procedures associated with individual involvement; practicum. (S)

844V Advanced Studies in The Disorders of Aphasia and Related Problems (3) Types and causes of language symbolization disorders; rationale for case selection; childhood aphasia and autism; special emphasis on rehabilitation procedures associated with individual involvements; practicum. (S)

845V Current Practices in Speech Pathology This course provides for study and experience in speech therapeutic programming utilizing behavioral modification techniques based on Skinnerian-behaviorist principles. It includes a review of current literature and emphasizes operant articulatory and language remedial procedures. (Su) Prereq: SpEd 850m.

846V Diagnostic Methods in Communicative Disorders (3) Tests and procedures for evaluating individuals with speech disorders; principles in differential diagnosis and report writing; observation during evaluation periods in speech and hearing centers. (F) Prereq: Graduate standing and 6 hours of speech pathology.

847V Speech Science III: Neurophysiology of Speech and Language (3) Introduction to human neuroanatomy and neurophysiology. Emphasis is placed on gaining familiarity with the brain mechanisms and sensory and motor functions which underline human communication and its disorders; individual projects. (F,Su)

848V Advanced Audiology (3) This course is intended for graduate students majoring in speech pathology. It is designed to present information pertinent to clinical certification of the speech pathologist. Course content includes specialized techniques applicable to the assessment and diagnosis of auditory dysfunction. Application of basic hearing techniques combined with special tests for assessment of site of lesion will be stressed. The use of case histories, otological considerations, identification audiometry, and equipment maintenance will be considered. Prereq: SPED 437.

850V Basic Clinical Practicum in Speech Pathology (3) This course in practicum follows the course 451 which is the student's first experience in clinical practicum. It is designed to give graduate students who need more than one semester of closely supervised practicum an opportunity to get this experience before being placed in a setting away from the university. (F,S,Su) Prereq: Permission and SPED 451 or equivalent.

851V Advanced Clinical Practicum in Speech Pathology (3) This course provides the student with an externship experience for clinical practicum in either a school or a medical setting. A minimum of 45 clock hours of work is required for each credit hour per semester. (F,S,Su) Prereq: 451 and graduate standing.

852V Advanced Clinical Practicum in Speech Pathology (3) The second semester of advanced clinical practicum. The student is placed in an externship setting with a cooperating master clinician. A minimum of 45 clock hours of work is required for each credit hour per semester. (F.S,Su) Prereq: SpEd 851v.

853V Seminar in Speech Pathology (3) Student selects and investigates three different areas of current concern in speech pathology; initial survey, annotated bibliography, presentation of observation and conclusions, seminar discussion of findings. Instructor will base his lectures on topics chosen by students for study; clinical demonstrations of selected voice, speech and language problems. (S,Su) Prereq: Twenty-four hours speech pathology and graduate standing.

854V Cleft Palate (3) This course in speech pathology is designed for graduate students and public school speech clinicians. This course is designed to expose students to the problems of

communication by which the child with a cleft of the palate is confronted. Developing competencies for remediation procedures and methods will be the primary aim of the course. (S)

855V Alaryngeal Speech Rehabilitation Problems of voice and speech rehabilitations for the individual without a functional larynx; social, emotional, and medical considerations as well as clinical procedures for esophageal, phyringeal and buccal speech; implications for use of artificial larynx; current research pertinent to this area. (F) Prereq: Graduate standing and 6 hours speech pathology courses including voice

856V Speech Problems of Cerebral Palsied Children (3) Identification of types of cerebral palsy by a location of lesion, motor symtomology, and additional handicaps; the role of the speech clinician on the team; types of speech therapy, with special emphasis on the bobath approach; current research and controversial issues will be discussed. (S) Prereq: SpEd 847v.

861VA Teaching Severely/Profoundly Handicapped (3) The course is designed to meet the needs of those who desire a basic overview of skills and techniques needed in the education and training of the severely/profoundly handicapped. Since the problems of educating the severely and profoundly handicapped are not limited to public school settings, all efforts will be made to involve community personnel who have expertise or concerns in specific areas. The course is open to students desiring graduate credit, for those seeking professional development, and for students desiring to work for a degree. Prereq: SPED 460/860.

864V Theoretical Approaches to Teaching The Developmentally Disabled Child (3) This is an advanced methods course for students majoring in Special Education. It will be offered to graduate students in the following areas: retardation, learning disabilities, education of the deaf, and early childhood education for the handicapped. (F,S,Su) Prereq: SPED 806V and SPED 860V.

867V Community Services for The Handicapped (3) An introduction to community and regional resources providing services to the handicapped. Program goals, objectives, activities, manpower needs, and involvement, coordination with related programs, administration of services, financing, and priority settings are studied for each agency. (S,Su)

870V Seminar in Special Education (3) Graduate course primarily for special education majors and professional workers in the fields of speech and hearing, teaching the deaf, teaching the mentally retarded, remedial reading and teaching the physically handicapped. Familiarity with philosophy, major literature and practices in each area; student will research and present a paper reflecting his personal professional interests. Discussions, forums, and panels: visiting experts. (F,S,Su)

871V Parent-Professional Relationships in Special Education (3) This course includes interviewing parents of handicapped children, identifying both family and professional concerns, and a student project in one of four areas: (1) challenges of parenting the handicapped; (2) strategies for involving parents in planning, implementing, and evaluating handicapped child education plans; (3) curriculum/instruction/therapy modification for family use; and (4) professionals dealing with families of the handicapped. Prereq: Acceptance in Special Education Graduate Degree Program.

872U Basic Practicum in Special Education (3) This course provides participation in various clinical or classroom situations in the field of special education. The course is open to all students in all areas of special education. Assignments will be made according to the area of interest of the student. (F,S) Prereq: Master's degree and acceptance in the ed spec program.

872V Basic Observation and Student Teaching in Special Education (3 or 5) Classroom experience with exceptional children for graduate students who have had other professional experiences. Students will participate in observation, participation, teaching, and a weekly seminar. (F,S,Su)

873U Advanced Practicum in Special Education (3) A second semester of participation in various clinical or classroom situations in the field of special education. The course is open to all students in all areas of special education. Assignments will be made according to the area of interest of the student. (S) Prereq: 872u.

873V Advanced Observation and Student Teaching in Special Education (3 or 5) A second semester of classroom experience with exceptional children for graduate students who have had other professional experiences. Students will participate in observation, participation, teaching, and a weekly seminar. (F,S,Su) Prereq: 872v.

886V Methods and Materials for Teaching The Physically Handicapped (3) Consideration of the physically handicapped child as his unique exceptionalities require the development of specialized methods and materials designed to meet his learning needs; an investigation of practices and problems involved in methodology and materials; application of methods; development and evaluation of materials; practices in design and implementation of methods and materials; selected observation of programs. (S) Prereq: 806v and intro. to the education of the physically handicapped.

887V Diagnostic and Remediation Techniques in Early Childhood Education for The Disabled (3) This course deals with the different disciplines used at the Medical Center presenting some of their techniques for assessing the developmentally disabled child and also presenting methods that can be utilized in intervention with the developmentally disabled child. (S) Prereq: 806v.

890U Administration and Supervision of Special Education (3) Problems of organization, administration, and supervision of special education programs: finance, federal involvement, legislation, litigation, due process, intermediate educational units, accountability and physical facilities will also be presented. Prereq: Graduate Standing.

895V Basic Diagnosis of Learning Deficits (3) The purpose of this course is to provide the student with theoretical and observational experiences concerning informal and formal approaches to diagnosing children with learning and/or behavioral deficits. Significant aspects of the design of the course is the opportunity to develop skills of observing, recording, and evaluating children's learning performance and behavior in the classroom; to attain a knowledge of theory, standardizations, functions, and processes of normative references evaluative measures; to attain a knowledge of the purpose, designs, and required functions and processes of criteria referenced evaluative measures; to develop techniques for informally assisting a child's learning performance through diagnostic teaching approaches; and to develop skills of informal test construction based upon various theories of learning and child development. Prereq: SPED 840. Permission.

896V Advanced Diagnosis of Learning Deficits (4) The purpose of this course is to provide the student with indepth practicum experiences in the administration and interpretation of normative referenced evaluative measures, (non-psychological), criteria referenced tests, and informal diagnostic teaching probes. Graduate students who have successfully completed SPED 895 (Basic Diagnosis) and SPED 897 (Clinical Teaching) will be eligible to enter SPED 896. (F,S) Prereq: SPED 895 and SPED 897

897V Clinical Teaching in Learning Disabilities (3) Theoretical and limited practical knowledge of a particular kind of teaching; which is to tailor learning experiences to the unique needs of children who have specific learning disabilities. The student learns of the flexibilities and continuous probing needed for individualized instruction. (F,S,Su) Prereq: SpEd 895.

899 Thesis (3-6) Required of all students taking master of arts degree, see major adviser for information. (F,S,Su)

911 Problems of Teaching Reading--Elementary (3) This is a beginning graduate course for both elementary and secondary teachers and is open to any student who has graduate standing. Major emphasis will be given to the administration, organization, evaluation, and methods and materials for teaching reading from Kindergarten through the sixth grades. There are no prerequisites except graduate standing.

912 Problems of Teaching Reading--Secondary (3) An advanced course in reading for elementary or secondary teachers. Major emphasis will be given to the administration, organization, evaluation, and methods and materials for the teaching of reading in each of the content subjects at the junior and senior high levels.

917 Seminar in Organization and Administration of Reading Programs (3) Participation in the seminar is limited to individuals who have completed at least one graduate reading course (or equivalent) and who are professional workers who are charged with the total or partial responsibility for organizing and administering reading programs. Familiarity with the philosophy,

organization, and major research related to different reading programs will be emphasized. Local and area reading authorities will conduct panels and lectures on topics chosen by the students. Prereq: One graduate reading course or permission of instructor.

918 Seminar in Research in Reading (3) A course for graduate and post-graduate students relating to in-depth studies of significant, recent research in reading with appropriate application for instructional procedures which may be undertaken. Each student will conduct self-initiated research and report the results of the activity to other class members for comment and evaluation. Prereq: One graduate reading course (or equivalent), FED 801 (or equivalent), and permission.

919 Topical Seminar in Reading (3) Participation is limited to individuals who have completed the Master's Degree in Education and have completed at least nine semester graduate hours in reading, and who are professional workers in the field of reading education. The major intent of the course will be that of orienting and apprising students of the latest techniques and curriculum changes in reading. Specifics will be described when the course is offered. The general topic selected will be announced each time the course is offered. The course may be repeated each time a different topic is covered, up to a maximum total of six credit hours. Prereq: Master's Degree in Educa-tion and have completed at least nine semester graduate hours in Reading.

Technical Institute

Industrial Technology

421/821M Contemporary Trends in Industrial Education for The World of Construction (3) Introduction to a new program development in industrial education, with major emphasis placed

on the world of construction curriculum. Analyzation of basic construction operations and management practices utilized in industry and adapts them as learning units for the junior high industrial laboratory. Prereq: For 421, junior. For 821m, graduate standing.

422/822M Contemporary Trends in Industrial Education for The World of Manufacturing (3) Introduction to a new program development in industrial education, with major emphasis placed upon the world of manufacturing curriculum. Analysis of basic manufacturing operations and management practices utilized in industry and adapts them as learning units for the junior high industrial laboratory. Prereq: For 422, junior.

Urban Studies

801V The Metropolis As A Public Economy (3) The integration of politics and economics in the metropolitan system as they affect metropolitan problems such as poverty, transportation, housing, crime, education, and the environment will be analyzed.

802V Race, Ethnicity, and American Urban Culture (3) This course explores two central themes, race and ethnicity, which have played a dominant role in the shaping of American society and American culture.

883V-884V Interdisciplinary Seminar On The Urban Community (3-6) An interdisciplinary course on the metropolitan community in which urban problems are put in a broad interrelated focus. (Also listed under economics, geography, political science, and sociology).

Faculty and Administration

GRADUATE FACULTY

ROBERT L. ACKERMAN Elementary and Early Childhood Education	Ed.D., University of Missouri-Columbia, 1973; Associate Professor
Ed.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1966; Professor	ROGER M. BERG Elementary and Early Childhood Education
PAUL B. ACKERSONSecondary/Post- Secondary Education	Ph.D., Northwestern University, 1972; Associate Professor
Ed.D., Oklahoma State University, 1965; Professor	JOSEPH BERTINETTICounseling and
JAMES C. AKERS Special Education Ed.D., Oklahoma State University, 1969; Associate Professor	Ph.D., University of New Mexico, 1972; Associate Professor
LARRY ALBERTSON Health,	JOHN V. BLACKWELLArt Ph.D., University of Iowa, 1957; Professor
Physical Education & Recreation Ed.D., University of Georgia, 1973; Associate Professor	RICHARD H. BLAKE
DAVID M. AMBROSEMarketing	Professor KENT BLASER
D.B.A., George Washington University, 1971; Associate Professor	Ph.D., University of North Carolina, 1977; Visit-
CLIFFORD ANDERBERG Philosophy and Religion	ing Assistant Professor WILLIAM BLIZEK (GF) Philosophy
Ph.D., University of Wisconsin-Madison, 1953; Professor	Ph.D., University of Missouri-Columbia, 1970;
DOUGLAS A. ANDERSONCommunication	Associate Professor
Ph.D., Southern Illinois University, 1977; Assistant Professor	CHRISTOPHER BOLTON (GF) Gerontology Ph.D., University of Oklahoma, 1974; Assistant Professor
SUNNY ANDREWS	JUDITH E. BOSS
ate Professor	Ph.D., Texas Christian University, 1971; Assistant Professor
AARON ARMFIELD Special Education Ed.D., University of Northern Colorado, 1964; Professor	LAWRENCE A. BRADSHAWArt M.F.A., Ohio University, 1973; Assistant Profes-
WALTER M. BACON, JRPolitical Science Ph.D., University of Denver, 1974; Assistant Professor	THOMAS BRAGG
BRUCE P. BAKER II	Professor M. JEAN BRESSLER English-Secondary/ Post-Secondary Education
GEORGE W. BARGERSociology	Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1965;
Ph.D., University of Missouri-Columbia, 1964; Professor	Associate Professor JOHN L. BRICKELL. Educational Foundations
NICHOLAS BARISS Geography and Geology Ph.D., Clark University, 1967; Professor	Ph.D., University of Oregon, 1973; Assistant Professor
CLYDE BASSETT	JOHN K. BRILHART (GF)Communication Ph.D., Pennsylvania State University, 1962; Pro- fessor
GORDON M. BECKER (GF) Psychology Ph.D., University of Pittsburgh, 1955; Professor	NAOMI BRILL
RONALD S. BEEREducational Administration and Supervision	Professor
Ph.D., Kent State University, 1969; Associate Professor	EVAN L. BROWN (GF)
BILL D. BELL (GF)	WILLIAM M. BROWN
JOSEPH V. BENAK	and Computer Science
Ph.D., University of Illinois-Urbana, 1967; Professor	Ph.D., University of Arizona, 1968; Professor SIDNEY BUCHANANArt
ROBERT W. BENECKEBanking and Finance D.B.A., University of Colorado-Boulder, 1966; Professor	M.A., New Mexico Highlands University, 1963; Associate Professor
KRIS E. BERGHealth, Physical Education	DAVID M. BUEHLMANN
and Recreation	sociate Professor

Ph.D., University of Iowa, 1968; Professor

Professor

ate Professor JAMES D. FAWCETT..... Ph.D., University of Colorado, 1975; Assistant Professor DEANA C. FINKLER Psychology Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1971 Associate Professor JOHN W. FLOCKEN (GF) Physics Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1969; RICHARD B. FLYNN...... Health, Physical Education and Recreation Ed.D., Columbia University, 1970; Professor ROGER E. FOLTZ..... Ph.D., University of Texas at Austin, 1977; Assistant Professor FRANK S. FORBES (GF) Law and Society J.D., University of Iowa, 1963; Professor WARREN T. FRANCKE......Communication Ph.D., University of Minnesota, 1974; Associate Professor LAURENCE FRENCH......Criminal Justice Ph.D., University of New Hampshire, 1975; Assistant Professor EUGENE H. FREUND..... ... Educational **Foundations** Ed.D., Wayne State University, 1969; Professor DALE GAEDDERT..... Ph.D., Ohio State University, 1969; Associate Professor ELVIRA E. GARCIA...........Foreign Languages Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1976; Assistant Professor BRUCE M. GARVER (GF)History Ph.D., Yale University, 1971; Associate Profes-KENNETH GELUSO Biology Ph.D., University of New Mexico, 1972; Assistant Professor MARGARET GESSAMAN (GF). Mathematics and Computer Science Ph.D., Montana State University, 1966; Profes-RICHARD E. GIBSON......Civil Engineering Ph.D., University of Colorado-Boulder, 1969; Professor **CHARLES RICHARD** GILDERSLEEVE Geography-Geology Ph.D., University of Nebraska, 1978; Assistant Professor MICHAEL L. GILLESPIE Philosophy Ph.D., Southern Illinois University, 1974; Assistant Professor KENNETH J. GILREATH ... Special Education M.S., University of Nebraska at Omaha, 1967; Assistant Professor

Guidance

e	JOHN M. GLEASON (GF)Business
=	Administration DBA, Indiana University, 1973; Associate Pro-
y	fessor
t	G. WAYNE GLIDDENEducational
	Foundations Ed.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1964;
y	Professor
•	HAROLD F. GORDONPublic
955	Administration
s	Ph.D., University of Colorado, 1968; Associate
	Professor
I	WILLIAM D. GOSNOLD, JR Geography- Geology
7	Ph.D., Southern Methodist University, 1976: As-
10	sistant Professor
C	DONALD J. GRANDGENETT Secondary/
=	Post-Secondary Education Ed.D., Arizona State University, 1967; Professor
y	CARL I. GREENBERG (GF) Psychology
68	Ph.D., Wayne State University, 1976; Assistant
1	Professor
2	RAYMOND A. GUENTHERPhysics
	Ph.D., Illinois Institute of Technology, 1969; Associate Professor
2	
	ERT J. GUMHistory Ph.D., Louisiana State University, 1963; Profes-
1	sor
S	PAUL A. HAEDERMathematics and Computer Science
	Ph.D., Iowa State University, 1968; Professor
1	NAN L. HAHNHistory Ph.D., Emory University, 1972; Assistant Profes-
,	sor
	DONALD R. HAKALA (GF)Banking and Finance
	Ph.D., Indiana University, 1966; Professor
5	MARY R. HALL Textiles, Clothing and Design
Si	Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1973; Professor
,	NORMAN H. HAMM (GF)Psychology
	Ph.D., Kent State University, 1968; Professor
	GORDON D. HANSEN Psychology
	Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1972; Associate Professor
	SCOTT HARRINGTON Counseling and
i	Guidance
•	Ph.D., University of Colorado-Boulder, 1971;
•	Associate Professor
ŗ	GEORGE T. HARRISEconomics Ph.D., University of Iowa, 1953; Professor
	ROGER R. HARVEY Special Education
	Ph.D., East Texas State University, 1970; Asso-
	ciate Professor
,	E. LAVERNE HASELWOOD Secondary/ Post-Secondary Education
	Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1972;
	Professor
	ROGER L. HAYEN (GF) Management and
	Organizational Behavior D.B.A., University of Colorado, Boulder, 1972;
	Associate Professor
	BARBARA A. HAYHOME Biology
	Ph.D., University of Chicago, 1970; Assistant Professor
	I I DI NASVI

120 UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMA	MA
SHELTON HENDRICKS (GF) Psychology Ph.D., Tulane University, 1967; Professor ELAINE HESS Sociology Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1970;	JAMES B. JOHNSONPolitical Science Ph.D., Northwestern University, 1972; Assistant Professor JAMES L. JOY
Assistant Professor WAYNE M. HIGLEYAccounting Ph.D., University of Illinois-Urbana, 1962; Pro- fessor	Professor ANTHONY JUNGForeign Languages and Literature
JACK A. HILL (GF) Management and Organizational Behavior	Ph.D., University of Illinois-Urbana, 1972; Associate Professor
Ph.D., University of Texas-Austin, 1964; Professor JOHN W. HILL	LEE A. KALLSTROM
Ph.D., The American University, 1974; Assistant Professor	DAVID E. KAPEL (GF)Education Ed.D., Temple University, 1964; Professor
PETER W. HILL (GF)	JOHN K. KARLOF
LAURENCE M. HILTON Special Education Ph.D., Northwestern University, 1973; Associate Professor	JOHN C. KASHER (GF)
DAVID HINTON	Foundations Ph.D., Stanford University, 1974; Assistant Pro- fessor
ROGER F. HOBURG	DARRELL F. KELLAMSEducational Administration and Supervision Ed.D., University of Kansas, 1964; Professor
WILLIAM C. HOCKETTAccounting M.B.A., University of Denver, 1949; Professor	ERNEST J. KEMNITZ JR
BRUCE J. HORACEKGerontology Ph.D., University of Iowa, 1978; Assistant Pro- fessor	Assistant Professor PAUL C. KENNEDYEducational Administration and Supervision Ed.D., University of Kansas, 1955; Professor
JULIE HORNEY	C. ROBERT KEPPEL
WILLIAM R. HOSEK (GF)	JOHN KERRIGAN (GF)
JAMES Q. HOSSACK	THOMAS R. KIDD Health, Physical Education and Recreation
HELEN J. HOWELL Elementary and Early Childhood Education	Ed.D., University of Oregon, 1970; Associate Professor BRUCE A. KIRCHHOFF (GF) Management
Ed.D., University of Colorado-Boulder, 1969; Professor	and Organizational Behavior Ph.D., University of Utah, 1972; Associate Pro-
KENNETH M. HUGGINS	fessor KENT KIRWAN (GF)Political Science
D.B.A., Texas Technical University, 1973; Associate Professor	Ph.D., University of Chicago, 1970; Associate Professor
CHARLES O. INGHAM Biology Ph.D., University of Utah, 1963; Associate Pro- fessor	EZRA KOHNSocial Work Ph.D., University of Nebraska, 1972; Associate Professor
ROBERT STEWART IRVING Biology Ph.D., University of Texas at Austin, 1968; Associate Professor	BERNARD D. KOLASAPolitical Science Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1969; Associate Professor
HARL R. JARMIN Counseling and Guidance Ph.D., University of Missouri-Kansas City, 1969; Professor	PATRICIA KOLASA. Educational Foundations Ph.D., University of Kansas, 1973; Assistant Professor
G. VAUGHN JOHNSON Management and Organizational Behavior	JOHN KONVALINAMathematics and Computer Science
D.B.A., Arizona State University, 1972; Associate Professor	Ph.D., State University of New York at Buffalo, 1975; Associate Professor

Ph.D., Washington University, 1950; Professor Associate Pr	versity of Missouri-Columbia, 1970;
RICHARD L. LANEEnglish SUZANNE	ELAINE MOSHIER Biology
Ph.D., University of Arkansas, 1968; Professor JOHN T. LANGAN Elementary Education Professor	versity of Chicago, 1972; Assistant
	W L. MOSTForeign Languages and Literature
JOSEPH C. LAVOIE (GF)Psychology Ph.D., Laval	University, 1953; Professor
Associate Professor M.S., Juillia	C. MULLEN
	MUNDELLEnglish
Early Childhood Education sistant Profe	
	AYLOREducational Administration and Supervision
Fil.D., 14cw Tolk Oliversity, 1974, Associate	ersity of Kansas, 1952; Professor
DAVID G. LOW (GF)	AZEN (GF) Decision Sciences chester University, 1970; Associate
Professor GLEN A. N	EWKIRKEnglish
NORMAN J. LUNA	ersity of Denver, 1966; Professor IEWTON (GF)
Ph.D., University of Colorado-Boulder, 1969; Ph.D., Ohio	State University, 1955; Professor
STEFLER LUNT Biology	A. NIELSEN Real Estate and Land Use Economics
Ph.D., University of Utah, 1964; Professor Ph.D., Syrac	euse University, 1970; Associate Pro-
D.M., Indiana University, 1978; Assistant Pro- CARL E. NO	ORDAHL Biology
fessor Ph.D., University	ersity of Iowa, 1969; Assistant Pro-
M.F.A., University of Iowa, 1963; Professor TOM NORY	WOODSecondary Education
JOHN P. MALONEY	ersity of Nebraska, 1975; Assistant
	O'DELL (GF) Biology ling Green State University, 1971;
Organizational Behavior Assistant Pro	ofessor
Associate Professor	O'REILLY (GF)Educational Administration and Supervision ersity of Kansas, 1962; Professor
Ed.D., University of Kentucky, 1964; Associate B. GALE OI	LESON Counseling and Guidance ersity of Wyoming, 1953; Professor
JOHN J. MC KENNA English SALIMA ON	MER Social Work
Ph.D., Ohio University, 1970; Associate Professor Ph.D., Branchessor	deis University, 1975; Associate Pro-
Science Ph.D., Univ	OSWALT
	ofessor OTTEMANN (GF) Management
C. RAYMOND MILLIMET (GF) Psychology Ph.D., Oklahoma State University, 1968; Profes-Ph.D., Univ	and Organizational Behavior versity of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1974;
sor Associate Pro	ofessor
	A. OVERFIELDHistory ersity of Maryland, 1968; Associate
LEO E. MISSINNE (GF)Gerontology RONALD H	I. OZAKI (GF) Social Work
Ph.D., Louvain University, 1963; Professor D.S.W., Was	shington University, 1960; Professor V. PALMER
Computer Science	and Religion
	ersity of Iowa, 1966; Professor IELLElementary Education
ILII I IIII.	ersity of Wisconsin-Madison, 1973;

122 UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMA	AHA
DAVID F. PAULSEN JRPublic Administration	ROBERT T. REILLY (GF) MA, Boston University, 1948
Ph.D., University of Washington, 1966; Professor	HAROLD J. RETALLICK
DAVID W. PAULSENPhilosophy and Religion	Ph.D., Clark University, 1950 HARRY W. REYNOLDS JR
Ph.D., Stanford University, 1971; Assistant Pro- fessor	Ph.D., University of Pennsylv
DENIS PAZHistory Ph.D., The University of Michigan, 1974; Visit-	sor JANET M. RIVES
ing Assistant Professor JEFFREY S. PEAKE Geography-Geology Ph.D., Louisiana State University, 1977;	Ph.D., Duke University, 1971 sor
Assistant Professor BONNIE C. PEDRINI (GF) . Special Education	ROY ROBERG Ph.D., University of Nebra Assistant Professor
Ph.D., University of Nebraska, 1974; Assistant Professor	WILBUR F. ROGERS Ph.D., Pennsylvania State Un
DUILIO T. PEDRINI (GF)	fessor WILLIS P. ROKES (GF)
KERMIT C. PETERSMusic D.M.A., 1976, University of Arizona; Professor	Ph.D., Ohio State University, sity of Utah, 1951; Professor RONALD W. ROSKENS (G
THOMAS A. PETRIE (GF)Educational Administration and Supervision	Administrati Ph.D., University of Iowa, 195
Ph.D., The Ohio State University, 1966; Associate Professor WILLIAM R. PETROWSKI (GF)History	SUSAN ROSOWSKI (GF) Ph.D., University of Arizon
Ph.D., University of Wisconsin-Madison, 1966; Professor	Professor MARK O. ROUSSEAU
DONALD J. PFLASTERER Counseling and Guidance	Ph.D., University of North C sistant Professor
M.Ed., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1952; Associate Professor	ROBERT G. RUETZ D.M., Indiana University, 196
ROSS A. PILKINGTON	DONALD C. RUNDQUIST Ph.D., University of Nebra Assistant Professor
Professor WILLIAM T. PINK (GF)Educational	EDWARD J. SADLER
Foundations Ph.D., University of Oregon, 1972; Associate Professor	Ed.D., University of Nebra Professor
JON J. POLIFRONE (GF)	DAVID L. SCHULZE (GF) Ph.D., Iowa State University Professor
OLIVER B. POLLAK (GF)	DAIVD C. SCOTT
1973; Assistant Professor JANET B. PORTERCriminal Justice	Th.D., Harvard University, 19
Ph.D., University of Oklahoma, 1966; J.D., University of Missouri at Kansas, 1971; Assistant Professor	JAMES W. SELEE Educa Ed.D., University of Colora
WILLIAM C. PRATT (GF)History Ph.D., Emory University, 1969; Associate Pro- fessor	Professor HENRY F. SERENCO M.F.A., Alfred University, 19
LEONARD W. PRESTWICHMarketing Ph.D., Ohio State University, 1957; Professor	fessor ROGER S. SHARPE
WARREN F. PRINCE	Ph.D. University of Nebra Associate Professor
Professor PAUL V. PRIOR (GF) Biology	JOHN F. SHRODER (GF)
Ph.D., University of Iowa, 1950; Professor	Ph.D., University of Utah, 196 ROBERT B. SIMPSON
DAVID M. RAABE	Ph.D., Washington University Professor

ROBERT T. REILLY (GF)Communication MA, Boston University, 1948; Professor	
HAROLD J. RETALLICK Geography and Geology	
Ph.D., Clark University, 1950; Professor HARRY W. REYNOLDS JR. (GF)Public	
Administration Ph.D., University of Pennsylvania, 1954; Professor	
JANET M. RIVES	
ROY ROBERG	
WILBUR F. ROGERS	
WILLIS P. ROKES (GF)Insurance Ph.D., Ohio State University, 1959; J.D., University of Utah, 1951; Professor	
RONALD W. ROSKENS (GF)Educational Administration and Supervision Ph.D., University of Iowa, 1958; Professor	
SUSAN ROSOWSKI (GF)English Ph.D., University of Arizona, 1974; Assistant Professor	
MARK O. ROUSSEAU	
ROBERT G. RUETZ	
DONALD C. RUNDQUIST	
EDWARD J. SADLERSecondary/Post- Secondary Education	
Ed.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1969; Professor	
DAVID L. SCHULZE (GF)Economics Ph.D., Iowa State University, 1969; Associate Professor	
DAIVD C. SCOTT Public Administration Ph.D., University of Iowa, 1948; Professor	
JOE D. SEGERPhilosophy and Religion/Humanities	
Th.D., Harvard University, 1965; Professor	
JAMES W. SELEE Educational Foundations Ed.D., University of Colorado-Boulder, 1964; Professor	
HENRY F. SERENCOArt M.F.A., Alfred University, 1970; Associate Pro- fessor	
ROGER S. SHARPE	
JOHN F. SHRODER (GF) Geography and Geology	
Ph.D., University of Utah, 1967; Professor ROBERT B. SIMPSON	
Ph.D., Washington University, 1970; Assistant Professor	

MICHAEL SKAUEnglish Ph.D., University of Illinois (Urbana-	Ph.D., University of Minnesota-Minneapolis 1970; Associate Professor
Champaign), 1973; Assistant Professor ANDRIS SKREIJASociology Ph.D., University of Minnesota-Minneapolis,	LARRY R. TRUSSELL (GF)Accounting Ph.D., University of Arkansas, 1972; Associate Professor
1973; Assistant Professor MADELEINE SMITHForeign Languages Agrege, Sorbonne, Paris, France; 1972; Associ-	KEITH K. TURNEREconomic. Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1968 Associate Professor
ate Professor PHILLIP CHARLES SMITHEnglish Ph.D., University of Nebraska, 1974; Assistant	ANGELA MARIA VALLE. Foreign Languages Ph.D., Michigan State University, 1978; Assist- ant Professor
Professor JACQUELINE ST JOHNHistory Ph.D., University of Oklahoma, 1969; Associate	PHILIP E. VOGEL Geography and Geology Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1960; Professor
Professor PAUL J. STAGEMAN	WILLIAM O. WAKEFIELD Criminal Justice Ph.D., South Dakota State University, 1976; As- sistant Professor
Professor RICHARD H. STASIAK Biology Ph.D. University of Minnesota-Minneapolis,	SAMUEL E. WALKER (GF)Criminal Justice Ph.D., Ohio State University, 1973; Associate Professor
1972; Associate Professor ELROY J. STEELEBanking and Finance Ph.D., University of Iowa, 1957; Professor	THOMAS D. WALSH
LARRY J. STEPHENS	JOHN W. WANZENRIED Communication Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1974; Associate Professor
ate Professor JUSTIN D. STOLEN (GF)Economics Ph.D., University of Illinois-Urbana, 1970; Associate Professor	BLAINE E. WARD Educational Foundations Ed.D., University of South Dakota, 1969; Asso- ciate Professor
DALE A. STOVER Philosophy and Religion Ph.D., Mcgill University, 1967; Associate Profes-	RICHARD H. WARREN (GF) Mathematics and Computer Science Ph.D., University of Colorado, 1971; Associate
DANIEL M. SULLIVAN	Professor FLOYD T. WATERMAN (GF)Educational Foundations
Assistant Professor DAVID M. SUTHERLAND (GF) Biology Ph.D., University of Washington, 1967; Associate Professor	Ed.D., Columbia University, 1965; Professor VINCENT WEBB
PETER T. SUZUKI (GF)	Professor A. THOMAS WEBER Biology Ph.D., University of Wisconsin-Madison, 1970;
Ph.D., Georgia State College, 1969; Associate Professor MICHAEL L. TATE (GF)History	Associate Professor WAYNE WHEELER (GF)Sociology Ph.D., University of Missouri-Columbia, 1959; Professor
Ph.D., University of Toledo, 1974; Associate Professor RICHARD S. THILLForeign Languages	RICHARD L. WIKOFF (GF) Psychology Ph.D., Oklahoma State University, 1965; Associate Professor
Ph.D., University of California-Los Angeles, 1973; Associate Professor	MARY E. WILLIAMSONCommunication Ph.D., University of Missouri-Columbia, 1972; Associate Professor
TOMMY R. THOMPSON	R. WAYNE WILSON Real Estate and Land Use Economics
JAMES A. THORSON (GF)Gerontology Ed.D., University of Georgia, 1975; Assistant Professor	J.D., University of Illinois-Urbana, 1947; Associate Professor JAMES K. WOOD
RICHARD G. THURMAN	Ph.D., Ohio State University, 1969; Associate Professor JAMES M. WOOD
RICHARD TIPPING (GF)	Ph.D., University of Utah, 1966; Professor JOSEPH S. WOOD
GAYLORD H. TODDForeign Languages	Ph.D., The Pennsylvania State University, 1978;

and Literature

Assistant Professor

UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA 123 Ph.D., University of Minnesota-Minneapolis, 1970; Associate Professor LARRY R. TRUSSELL (GF).....Accounting Ph.D., University of Arkansas, 1972; Associate Professor KEITH K. TURNER......Economics Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1968; Associate Professor ANGELA MARIA VALLE.. Foreign Languages Ph.D., Michigan State University, 1978; Assistant Professor PHILIP E. VOGEL Geography and Geology Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1960; Professor WILLIAM O. WAKEFIELD Criminal Justice Ph.D., South Dakota State University, 1976; Assistant Professor SAMUEL E. WALKER (GF).... Criminal Justice Ph.D., Ohio State University, 1973; Associate Professor THOMAS D. WALSH......English Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1973; Associate Professor JOHN W. WANZENRIED Communication Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1974; Associate Professor BLAINE E. WARD Educational Foundations Ed.D., University of South Dakota, 1969; Associate Professor RICHARD H. WARREN (GF) Mathematics and Computer Science Ph.D., University of Colorado, 1971; Associate Professor FLOYD T. WATERMAN (GF) Educational Foundations Ed.D., Columbia University, 1965; Professor VINCENT WEBBCriminal Justice Ph.D., Iowa State University, 1972; Assistant Professor A. THOMAS WEBER Biology h.D., University of Wisconsin-Madison, 1970; Associate Professor WAYNE WHEELER (GF)......Sociology Ph.D., University of Missouri-Columbia, 1959; Professor RICHARD L. WIKOFF (GF)........... Psychology Ph.D., Oklahoma State University, 1965; Associate Professor MARY E. WILLIAMSON Communication Ph.D., University of Missouri-Columbia, 1972; Associate Professor . WAYNE WILSON Real Estate and Land Use Economics .D., University of Illinois-Urbana, 1947; Assoiate Professor AMES K. WOODChemistry Ph.D., Ohio State University, 1969; Associate Professor AMES M. WOOD...... Special Education Ph.D., University of Utah, 1966; Professor

JANE D. WOODY
ROBERT H. WOODY (GF)
DONALD L. ZALEWSKI Secondary/
Post-Secondary Education Ph.D., University of Wisconsin, Madison, 1974; Associate Professor
LUCILLE ZELINSKY
RAYMOND A. ZIEBARTH Secondary / Post-
Ph.D., University of Minnesota-Minneapolis, 1963; Professor
GF = Graduate Fellow

GRADUATE FACULTY MEMBERS (Joint Appointment with College of Medicine)

KENNETH BERRY Psychology Ph.D., Texas Christian University, 1964; Associ-	
Ph.D., Texas Christian University, 1964; Associ-	
. D f [M - J: - 1 D L - 1	
ate Professor of Medical Psychology	
KAREN S. BUDD	
Ph.D., University of Kansas, 1975; Assistant	
Professor	
ROBERT J. ELLINGSON (GF) Psychology	
Ph.D., Northwestern University, 1950; M.D.,	
University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1963; Professor	
ALAN J. FIX	
Ph.D., SUNY at Buffalo, 1969; Assistant Profes-	
SOF	
CHARLES GOLDEN (GF)	
Ph.D., University of Hawaii, 1973; Assistant	
Professor	
J. MICHAEL LEIBOWITZ (GF) Psychology	
Ph.D., University of Maryland, 1974; Associate	
Professor	
CORDELIA ROBINSON Psychology	
and Special Education	
Ph.D., George Peabody College for Teachers,	
1972; Associate Professor	
JACK A. STARK Psychology	
JACK A. STARK Psychology and Special Education	
Ph.D., University of Nebraska, 1973; Assistant	
Frolessor FRED STRIDER (GF)	
Ph.D., University of Nebraska-Lincoln, 1961;	
Associate Professor	
WILLIAM D. WOOD	
Ph.D. University of North Carolina, 1967: As-	
sistant Professor	

Administrative Staff

Robert L. Ackerman	Alan S. Hackel
Elementary and Early Childhood Education	Mary R. Hall Assoc. Dean
David M. Ambrose Director.	College of Home Economics
Nebraska Business Development Center	Gordon D. Hansen
Aaron Armfield	Roger Haven Chairnerson
Clyde Bassett	Decision Sciences
Otto F. Rauer Vice Chancellor	Charles Hein Exec. Asst. to the Chancellor & Director of
for Academic Affairs	University Relations
Ronald S. Beer	Shelton Hendricks
Joseph, V. Benak	Elaine Hess
Vic Blackwell Chairperson, Art	Jack Hill
David Buehlmann	David W. Hinton
Accounting Hobart BurchDirector, School of Social Work	Roger Hoburg
Robert R. Butler	William Hosek
Gary L. Carrico	David E. Kapel
J. Brad Chapman	Darrell F. Kellams
Hugh P. Cowdin	John E. Kerrigan
Harold Davis Acting Director, Industrial Systems Tech.	and Community Service
Joe DavisAsst. Vice Chancellor Student Development Services	Edwin E. Kinney
William A. deGraw Chairperson, Biology	Kent Kirwan
Michael M. Delaney	Julien Lafontant
Donald A. Deppe	Intercollegiate Athletics
Robert Detisch	Jim Leslie
English Richard C. Duggin	W. Boyd Littrell
Rex C Engelretson Asst to the	JoAnne Lofton
Chancellor for Planning John T. Farr	Institutional Research
John W. Flocken	Kenneth G. Merkel
Richard B. Flynn	John A. Moore
Frank S. Forbes Chairperson, Law and Society	Woodrow Most
Margaret Gessaman	John Newton Dean, College of Arts and Sciences
Thomas Gouttierre	Donald Nielsen
Donald R. Hakala	Tom Norwood

Richard Overfield
Donald J. Pflasterer Ombudsman
William Pink
Jon Polifrone
Leonard Prestwich
Robert Ruetz
Robert S. Runyon
Dave Scott
Charles Sedlacek Acting Chairperson, Electrical Systems
Joe Seger

Donald Skeahan
Charles Smith
Wilda Stephenson
Dale A. Stover
Larry R. Trussell
Gardner Van DykeAsst. Vice Chancellor, Student Academic Services
Philip Vogel
Floyd T. Waterman
Vincent Webb
Del D. Weber
Raymond Ziebarth

INDEX

A	G
Absences from class16	Grades, standard of15
Accredited standing9	Graduate Assistantships24
Administrative officers2	Graduate Council
Admission Classification12	Graduate Faculty Fellows25
Unconditional12	Graduate Faculty Members25
Provisional12	Graduate Management Admissions Test12
Non-degree12	Graduate Program Committees26
Temporary13	Graduate Record Examination
Admission to Professional Education	Graduate Studies History and Purpose9
Programs13	Incompletes Policy15
Appeals Procedure16	L
Applications:	
For Admission to Graduate Study11	Late Registration (consult calendar)5
For Candidacy for the Degree14	Load, study
For the Degree14	Loans24
Assistantships, graduate24	M
Audit17	Master of Arts Degree10
В	Master of Arts for Teachers of Mathematics
STEEL STORE PRODUCT VALUE THE SECURITY HE	Degree
Beta Gamma Sigma, National Business	Master of Business Administration Degree 10
Honorary	Master of Public Administration Degree10
Board of Regents	Master of Science Degree10
C	Master of Social Work Degree
Calendar for 1978-795	Matriculation Fee 11
Candidacy for degree14	Miller Analogies Test
Center for Urban Education27	
Certificate	N
English42	Non-degree Areas64
Gerontology43	Non-degree students12
School Psychologist49	Non-residents of Nebraska21
Teacher	0
Class Attendance	
Commencement Exercises (consult	Ombudsman17
calendar)5	Oral Examination on Thesis
Comprehensive examinations14	Omicron Delta Epsilon, National Economics
Courses for Graduate credit18	Honorary25
Course offerings (consult table of contents —	P
course descriptions)3	
	Phi Delta Gamma, Women's
D	Graduate Sorority25 Phi Delta Kappa, Men's Graduate Education
Degree programs10	Fraternity25
Degree Requirements (consult table of	Plagiarism, statement on
contents)3	Policy on Ethical Conduct
Departments offering graduate instruction7	Privacy Act10
Dropping courses17	Procedures and Regulations11, 28
E	Psy Chi, National Psychology Association25
2000 v. s. s. s. v. s. v. s. v. s. s. v. s.	74M 57 50M 97MS
Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action Policy	Q
Statement	Quality of Work15
Examinations for Graduate Students	
Graduate Record Examination11	R
Admission Test for Graduate	Refunds20, 21
Management Study12	Registration, procedure
The Test of English as a Foreign	Dates for (consult calendar)5
Language	Fees
Miller Analogies Test	Residence Requirements18, 21
Extramural Grants26	S
F	
-	School Probability Property 24
Faculty, Graduate	School Psychologist Program
Fees	Specialist in Education Degree
1 00319	Student Development Services21

8 UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA

tudy Load	1
Pemporary Admission Pest of English as a Foreign Language	1
hesis ime Limit for Graduate Degrees	1
ranscripts of undergraduate and graduate credit for admission	l
Transfer for Credit	2
uition Waivers	2
J	
Jniversity Regulations	1
<u>v</u>	04

university of nebraska University of at omaha